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O Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker
From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent: Thursday, June 01, 2006 9:27 AM

To: Sampson, Kelvin Dale; McElroy, Barbara J
Subject: FW: Questions for the COI

Coach,

As you can see from the email trail below, Jim Elworth (the NCAA staff’s liaison 1o the COl) says that we should
cancel your speaking engagement this weekend if we can not guarantee that abselutely no prospeclts will be in
allendance. Please remember, that for now anyway until the COl says otherwise, it looks like even good faith
atlempts to comply with the sanctions that fail will be dealt with harshly by the COL

This is only for a year — it will go by fast — hang in there!
Let me know if you have any questions.
Thanks,

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Greenspan, Richard 1

Sent: Thursday, June 01, 2006 8:42 AM
- To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: Questions for the COl

Jen,

I think this is excessive and almost unreasonable bul we will comply pending clarification on many of these type of
issues. Please inform coach and indicate the path we will take on all future events to insure control, coordination
and compliance. ' '

RG

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2006 5:53 PM
To: Greenspan, Richard 1

Subject: FW: Questions for the COY
Importance: High

Rick,
'im Elworth says that the COl may want to address our list as a whole (rather than just the chair), so it may take a

/hile to get their response to our guestions. So, he suggests that if there’s any chance that a prospect might be
present at the American Heart Association event, he should cancel his appearance.
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I have to leave, bul you can reach me on my cell phone, if necessary: 327-0071.
Please let me know if you would like to tell Coach Sampson or if you prefer that i do it
Thanks,

Jennifer

Jenmifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Elworth, Jim [mailto:jelworth@ncaa.org]
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2006 3:28 PM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Cc: Cooper, Shep; Tom Yeager

Subject: RE: Questions for the COI

Jennifer,

1 am forwarding your questions lo acting chair Yeager right now. He may want me lo get input from the full
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commiltee which might take awhile. In the meantime, my suggestion (and please note that | am not the authority)

is to plan on Coach Sampson cancelling his appearance if that appearance would violate the commitlee’s

directive. The order is in effect as of the release of the report and for him o make such an appearance, whether

previously scheduled or not, may well run him afoul of the committee’s sanction. As for what to tell the event
organizer, that is up to you guys.

Again, | am sending this on right now and will get back to you as soon as } get something in return.

Jim Elworth

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L {mailto:jhooker@indiana.edu)
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2006 3:20 PM

To: Elworth, Jim

Subject: Questions for the COI

Hi Jim,

’

Could you please forward the attached list of questions lo Mr. Yeager? The first question deals with a pre-
existing speaking engagement that is scheduled for tomorrow evening. So, if possible, we would like to
know how to proceed (what we need to tell the event organizers). With Coach Sampson’s goodwill trip lo
Kuwait and the holiday weekend, this has quickly become (unfortunately) an urgent matier. The rest of the
questions {and there are many!) are not as urgent, bul we hope to have aresponse to #1 as soon as
possible.

Thanks,

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athleties Director - Compliance
Indiana University '
812-855-0451

1/28/2008
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O This email and any attachments may contain confidential and privileged
information. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the
sender immediately by retorn email, delete this message and destroy any
copies. Any dissemination or use of this information by a person other
than the intended recipient is unauthorized and may be 1liegal.
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From:v Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent: Thursday, June 01, 2006 1:59 PM

To: Greenspan, Richard |
Subject: RE:
Will do.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Greenspan, Richard [

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2006 5:34 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Cc: Calhoun, M, Grace; Rohleder, Mary Ann
Subject:

Jen,

Page 1 of 1

As a follow-up from our meeting please insure that your staff is providing clariflication on the implementation of the
NCAA sanctions lo the basketbalt staff. Additionally, it is important that the weekly meetings remain firmly in place
as documentation of our diligence and vigilance. These meetings wilt also be heipful in assuring that Coach
Sampson’s schedule of outside events falls within the boundaries as defined by the NCAA.

Keep me posted.

Thanks,

RG

1/28/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent:  Thursday, June 01, 2006 5:21 PM

To: Rohleder, Mary Ann; Calhoun, M. Grace
Subject: Weekly Updatle

Kathy is off Friday and Monday. She is working on lenders — both issuing initials and trying to gel the renewals
back. She sent reminders to coaches with outstanding renewal tenders and letlers to all tendered athletes
inquiring about any oulside aid they might be receiving (ihis is crealing a lot of phone calls from SAs and/or
parents with questions). She is working on 5™ year aid tenders and starting lo enter athletic aid into the financial
aid system for the academic year.

Chip is off Friday. He reviewed and revised every female student-athletes degree progress, hours passed and
eligibility; revised female ineligible list; prepared junior sheets to be sent o campus to verify completion of a
degree with 5 years; met with training room and rowing to discuss novice program in the fail; provided training
room with 10 digit id numbers of student-athletes; and, corrected data entry for student athlete test scores for
Anitra's reports (composile ACT was missing on some athletes).

Jennifer is off Friday. This past week she worked on MBB issues (reviewed COI report, drafled revised
compliance agreement, drafted list of questions for darification from COl, fielded questions from staff, etc.);
drafted and submitted a self report for a secondary violation in diving; drafted and distributed June Indiana
Compliance Newsletter; researched various rules interpretations; met with Mary Ann regarding evaluation; met
with Grace regarding merger; met with Bruce Jaffee to review revisions to compliance agreement; met with Anitra,
Grace and Bruce to discuss quaniitative hours requirement calculation; began preparing for next Tuesday’s
compliance meeting; and continues to monitor Christian’s work as he makes the transition into his job.

Anitra conlinued to work on transcripts, grades and ineligibles report. She is working with academics. to reclify
student-athletes who don’t meet current interpretation of hours towards degree requirements, and has met with
Grace, Mattie, Bruce and myself, as well as the footbali coaches to resolve problematic student-athletes. She is
also working on the GSR report that is due to the NCAA today. She has also been working on transfer transcripts
and dealing with international admissions issues.

Christian has collecled and reviewed sports inventory reports for all sports. He meets continually with Jerry Green
to monitor basketball recruiting activity. He has approved 3 separate camps for Coach Goldman and.has begun
discussions with men’s basketball for an additional elite camp. He has requested the summer employment
information from men’s and women's basketball to facilitate communications between the compliance office and
those identified employers. He continues to provide interpretations for all coaching stafis. He is still collecting
participation reports for spring sports, with track & field remaining. Lastty, he has begun to coliect awards
documentation from a few coaches and will continue in the coming month.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

3/31/2008




@\ Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

. From: Brinegar, Jennifer L .
Sent: Thursday, June 01, 2006 5:39 PM
To: Frapwell, Derothy J.
Cc: Jaffee, Bruce L.; Calhoun, M. Grace
Subject: Compliance Agreement

Attachments: Men's Basketball Revised Corrective Action 06-05-06 Memo.doc; Men’s. Basketball Correclive
Action 04-19-06 Memo.doc

Dotlie,

Shortly after Coach Sampson was hired, Rick and Bruce decided lo have him sign a compliance agreement that
specified his responsibilities regarding the penalities that IU adopted from those self-imposed by Okiahoma. We
didn’t think to run it by you since it was regarding NCAA rules, bul Bruce thought of it today when we were
revising the document to factor in the additional penalties assessed by the NCAA Committee on Infractions.

Could you please take a look and see if we need to add/revise/delele anything (some of the stilted language is
lifted right out of the COI reporl}? | included a copy of the first {w/o it being on Rick’s letterhead) in order for you to
have both documents.

Thanks,

Jennifer

c ‘ennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University
812-855-0451
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To:

From:

Date:

. Re:

Memorandum

Coach Kelvin Sampson

Rick Greenspan
Bruce Jaffee

June 5, 2006

Revised Compliance Agreement

This memorandum replaces the April 19, 2006, compliance agreement signed by all
the parties listed above. The Committee on Infractions report dated May 25, 2006,
noted that although Indiana University adopted and transferred the penalties listed

below,

further recrmting restrictions were warranted. Therefore, we have amended

paragraphs | and 4, and added paragraphs 6 and 7 to this compliance agreement.
The complete list of corrective actions is as follows:

1.

The director of compliance or the assistant athletics director for compliance
will meet, on a weekly basis, with the head coach or the director of men’s
basketball operations to review men’s basketball recruitment activities and
documentation, inchuding telephone records. Coach Sampson will work
with the compliance staff to establish effective monitoring systems and
regular and effective rules education sessions.

Indiana University shall submit a report to the Committee on Infractions by
August t, 2006, detailing our monitoring of, and rules education sessions
for, Coach Kelvin Sampson and his staff. The report will also include
documentation of Indiana University’s compliance with all other penalties
adopted and transferred to IU. Furthermore, Indiana University will file a
written report with the NCAA not later than August 31, 2007, detailing the
implementation and fulfillment of the penalties which were transferred to
Coach Sampson upon his employment at Indiana University, as well as
those assessed by the committee on May 25, 2006.

Reduce the number of permissible calls by the men’s basketball coaching
staff to prospects on or afler June 15 of the prospect’s sophomore year in
high school through July 31 of the prospect’s junior year in high school
from one call per month to one call every other month for a period
commencing March 29, 2006, and concluding June 30, 2007. Exceptions to
this penalty will be permitted in accordance with the provisions of NCAA
Bylaws 13.1.3.3.2 (Official Visit Exception), 13.1.3.3.3 (Letter of Intent
Signing Date Exception) and 13.1.3.3.4 (Telephone Subsequent to National
Letter of Intent Signing or Other Written Commitment).
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4. Reduce the number of permissible calls by the men’s basketball coaching
- staff to prospects on or after August 1 of the prospect’s senior year in high
school from two calls per week to one call per week for a period
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
Leiter of Intent Signing or Other Written Commitment).

5. Restrict the number of days which Coach Kelvin Sampson may recruit off-
campus to a maximum of 4 during the period of March 29, 2006 through
May 24, 2006 (Coach Sampson used 15 of the 19 recruiting-person days he
was permitted pursuant to the University of Oklahoma’s self-imposed
penalties while still employed at the University of Oklahoma).

6. Impose similar base and bonus compensation restrictions on Coach Kelvin
Sampson, for the period beginning March 29, 2006 and concluding June 30,
2007. '

7. Coach Kelvin Sampson is prohibited, for a period of one year beginning
May 25, 2006 through May 24, 2007, from making any phone calls that
relate in any way to recruiting or being present when members of his staff
make such calls.

8. Coach Kelvin Sampson is prohibited, for a period of one year beginning
May 25, 2006 through May 24, 2007, from engaging in any off-campus
recruiting activities. The prohibition on off-campus recruiting activities
shall apply to all off-campus appearances at which prospects may be in
attendance, including banquets, booster functions and exceptions provided
by Bylaw 13.1.9,

It is understood that any additional sanctions imposed en you or IU by the NCAA
and/or the Big Ten Conference will be followed as well.

By signing and.dating this memo, all parties agree to abide by the penalties set
forth above.

Kelvin Sampson . (date)
Rick Greenspan (date)
Bruce Jaffee {date)



To:

From:

Date:

-Re:

Memorandum

Coach Kelvin Sampson

Rick Greenspan
Bruce Jaffee

April 19, 2006

Compliance Agreement

We agree, in light of the circumstances of which we are aware, that the
University of Oklahoma imposed a -number of significant penalties on its
men’s basketball program. Like Oklahoma, Indiana University believes that
when violations occur, regardless of the intent, appropriate penalties must

follow.

to you,

Therefore, it is our plan to carry out those penalties that relate directly
as well as to place a few additional requirements on your program.

Accordingly, the following corrective action will be iniplemented:

1.

The director of compliance will meet, on a weekly basis, with the head
coach or the director of men’s basketball operations to review men’s
basketball recruitment activities and documentation for the previous
and upcoming weeks. Furthermore, Indiana University will file a
written report with the NCAA not later than August 31, 2007, detailing
the implementation and fulfillment of the penalties which were
transferred to Coach Kelvin Sampson upon his employment at Indiana
University.

Reduce the number of permissible calls by the men’s basketball
coaching staff to prospects on or after June 15 of the prospect’s
sophomore year in high school through July 31 of'the prospect’s junior

~ year in high school from one call per month to one call every other

month for a pertod commencing March 29, 2006, and concluding June
30, 2007. Exceptions to this penalty will be permitted in accordance
with the provisions of NCAA Bylaws 13.1.3.3.2 (Official Visit
Exception), 13.1.3.3.3 (Letter of Intent Signing Date Exception) and
13.1.3.3.4 (Telephone Subsequent to National Letter of Intent Signing
or Other Written Commitment),

. Reduce the number of permissible calls by the men’s basketball

coaching staff to prospects on or after August 1 of the prospect’s
senior year in high school from two calls per week to one call per
week for a period commencing March 29, 2006, and concluding June



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
or Other Written Commitment).

4. Restrict the number of days which Coach Kelvin Sampson may recruit
off-campus to a maximum of 4 during the period of March 29, 2006,
through June 30, 2006 (Coach Sampson used 15 of the 19 recruiting-
person days he was permitted. pursuant to the University of
Oklahoma’s self-imposed penalties while still employed at the
University of Oklahoma).

5. Impose similar base and bonus compensation restrictions on Coach
Kelvin Sampson, for the period beginning March -29, 2006, and
concluding June 30, 2007,

It is understood that any additional sanctions imposed on you or IU by the
NCAA and/or the Big Ten Conference will be followed as well.

By signing and dating this memo, all parties agree to abide by the penalties set
forth above.

Kelvin Safnpson (date)
Rick Greenspan (date)
Bruce Jaffee (date)
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é Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker
From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent: Friday, June 02, 2006 1:51 PM
To: Smithson, Terri J
Cc: Greenspan, Richard I; Jaffee, Bruce L.
Subject: Revised Compliance Agreement (MBB)

Attachments: Men's Basketbail Amended Corrective Action 05-30-06 Memo.doc

- Hi Terri,
}
Rick, Bruce and Dotlie have all reviewed, revised and approved the attached memo. Could you please print it off
on Rick’s letlerhead and then Rick, Bruce and Kelvin sign and date it (I dated it as of Monday, since you are out
this week)?

Let me know if you have any questions.
Thanks!

Jennifer
Jennifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

Indiana University
812-855-0451

Q

3/31/2008




Memorandum

To: ~ Coach Kelvin Sampson

From: Rick Greenspan
Bruce Jaffee

Date: June 5, 2006

Re: Revised Compliance Agreement

This memorandum replaces the April 19, 2006, compliance agreement signed by
all the parties listed above. The Committee on Infractions report dated May 25,
2006, noted that although Indiana University adopted and transferred the penalties
listed " below, further recruiting restrictions were warranted. Section 4.08
of your Employment Contract, dated April 20, 2006, states in part, "If the NCAA
imposes sanctions against the Employee...or if the NCAA requires that the
Employee’s prior employer’s (University of Oklahoma) sanctions against him be
enforced, Indiana University shall impose those same sanctions against the
Employee." Therefore, we have amended paragraphs 1 and 4, and added
paragraphs 6 and 7 to this compliance agreement. The complete list of corrective
actions is as follows:

1. The director of compliance or the assistant athletics director for
compliance will meet, on a weekly basis, with the head coach or the
director of men’s basketball operations to review men’s basketball
recruitment activities and documentation, including telephone records.
Coach Sampson will work with the compliance staff to establish effective
monitoring systems and regular and effective rules education sessions.

2. Indiana University shall submit a report to the Committee on Infractions
by August 1, 2006, detailing our monitoring of, and rules education
sessions for, Coach Kelvin Sampson and his staff. The report will also
include documentation of Indiana University’s compliance with all other
penalties adopted and transferred to IU. Furthermore, Indiana University
will file a written report with the NCAA not later than August 31, 2007,
detailing the implementation and fulfillment of the penalties which were
transferred to Coach Sampson upon his employment at Indiana University,
as well as those assessed by the committee on May 25, 2006.



3. Reduce the number of permissible calls by the men’s basketball coaching
staff to prospects on or after June 15 of the prospect’s sophomore year in
high school through July 31 of the prospect’s junior year in high school
from one call per month to one call every other month for a period
commencing March 29, 2006, and concluding June 30, 2007. Exceptions
to this penalty will be permitted in accordance with the provisions of
NCAA Bylaws 13.1.3.3.2 (Official Visit Exception), 13.1.3.3.3 (Letter of
Intent Signing Date Exception) and 13.1.3.3.4 (Telephone Subsequent to
National Letter of Intent Signing or Other Written Commitment).

4. Reduce the number of permissible calls by the men’s basketball coaching
staff to prospects on or after August 1 of the prospect’s senior year in high
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

5. Restrict the number of days which Coach Kelvin Sampson may recruit
off-campus to a maximum of 4 during the period of March 29, 2006
through May 24, 2006 (Coach Sampson used 15 of the 19 recruiting-
personr days he was permitted pursuant to the University of Oklahoma’s
self-imposed penalties while still employed at the University of -
Oklahoma).

6. Impose similar base and bonus compensation restrictions on Coach Kelvin
Sampson, for the period beginning March 29, 2006 and concluding June
30, 2007.

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
by Bylaw 13.1.9.

It is understood that any additional sanctions imposed on you or IU by the NCAA
and/or the Big Ten Conference will be followed as well.



By signing and dating this memo, all parties agree to abide by the penalties set |
forth above.

Kelvin Sampson (date)
Rick Greenspan (date)
Bruce Jaffee (date)
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent:  Monday, June 05, 2006 11:29 AM
To: ‘Elvorth, Jim*

Subject: RE: Questions for the COI

Thanks — | appreciate your help as the liaison to the COl. We'll probably be in touch quite a bit until we get a handle on how
the letter and the intent of the sanclions should be followed. I hope you don’t mind!

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Elworth, Jim [mailto:jelworth@ncaa.org]
Sent: Monday, June 05, 2006 11:14 AM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: Questions for the COI

Jennifer,
Just to let you know...

The commitiee has the letter and is reviewing it. } hope to have some kind of response for you shortly.

Jim Elworth
-—-—--Original Message-----
From: Brinegar, Jennifer L [mailto:jhocker@indiana.edu]
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2006 3:20 PM
To: Elworth, Jim
Subject: Questions for the COl

Hi.Jim,

Could you please forward the attached list of questions to Mr. Yeager? The first question deals with a pre-existing
speaking engagement that is scheduled for tomorrow evening. So, if possible, we would like to know how 1o proceed
{what we need to tell the event organizers). With Coach Sampson’s goodwill trip to Kuwait and the holiday weekend,
this has quickly become (unfortunately) an urgent matter. The rest of the questions (and there are many!) are not as
urgent, but we hope to have a response to #1 as scon as possible.

»

Thanks,

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

This email and any attachments may contain confidential and privileged
information. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the
ender immediately by return email, delete this message and destroy any
-opies. Any dissemination or use of this information by a person other

3/31/2008
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than the intended recipient is unapthorized and may be illegal.
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Brinegar, Jennifer L

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent:  Wednesday, June 07, 2006 2:52 PM
To: Senderoll, Robert A.

Cc: Brinegar, Jenniler L

Subiject: RE: Compliance Question

Coach,

Absolutely not. We cannot allow or direct a current student-athlete to transport a prospect to an event of
any kind. This would be a definite infraction of Bylaw 13.15.1.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosters!

From: Senderoff, Robert A,

Sent: Wednesday, June 07, 2006 11:06 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: Compliance Question

I just found out that at another school, a current player on their team went and picked up a prospect from his

home and brought him to an open gym. Are we allowed 1o do that?

Rob Senderoff

Indiana University

Men's Basketball, Assistant Coach
O# B12-855-2238

6/7/2006
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hookér

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Tuesday, June 13, 2006 2:41 PM
TJo: 'Elworth, Jim’

Subject: RE: Questions for the COI

I received the letter this morning around 10. Please pass along my thanks to the chair and the committee {lel me
know if you think | should do 4 more formal response/thank-you).

The question below is answered to the extent that he can’t go anywhere off campus if there’s any chance a
prospect-aged individual might be present (which was stated very clearly in the report).

Also, for your information only, | wanted to let you know that the majority of these questions are not coming from
Coach Sampson, but rather his staff. | get the distinct impression that he has no problem following the sanctions

assessed against hirm due to the nature and severity of the violations.

Thanks again for everything and I’'m sure we’li be in touch on a regular basis as we progress through the next
year or so. :

Iennifer Brinegar ,
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Elworth, Jim [mailto:jelworth@ncaa.org]
Sent: Monday, June 12, 2006 1:21 PM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: Questions for the COl

You will be receiving a letter from acting chair Yeager this afternoon. After you review it, please let me know if this

question is still unresolved.

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L [mailto:jhooker@indiana.edu)

Sent: Monday, June 12, 2006 8:01 AM iy

To: Elworth, Jim .

Subject: RE: Questions for the COl ,

Jim,
Good morning. Could you please forward one additional guesticn on to the commitlee?

If Coach Sampson is invited o a coaches clinic where local college (not IU) students will be demonstrating,
can he attend and/or speal at the clinic (no prospect-aged students will be present)?

We look forward to receiving some guidance from the committee and appreciale your assistance in this
matter.

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
Sent: Monday, June 05, 2006 11:14 AM '
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: Questions for the COI

. Jennifer,

Just to let you know...

The committee has the letter and is reviewing it. | hope to have some kind of response for you shortly.

“Jim Elworth

-----Original Message-----

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L [mallto ;jhooker@indiana.edu]
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2006 3:20 PM

To: Elworth, Jim _

Subject: Questions for the CO1

Hi Jim,

Could you please forward the attached list of questions to Mr. Yeager? The first question deals with

. a pre-existing speaking engagement that is scheduled for tomorrow evening. So, if possible, we
would like to'know how to proceed (what we need to tell the event organizers). With Coach -
Sampson’s goodwill trip to Kuwait and the holiday weekend, this has quickly become {unfortunately)
an urgent matter. The rest of the questions (and there are many!) are not as urgent but we hope to
have a response lo #1 as soon as possible. : i

Thanks,

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

This email and any attachments may contain conﬁdent:a] and privileged
information. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the
sender immediately by retum email, delete this message and destroy any
copies. Any dissemination or use of this information by a person other
than the intended recipient is unauthorized and may be illegal.

This email and any attachments may contain confidential and privileged
information. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the
sender immediately by return email, delete this message and destroy any

pies. Any dissemination or use of this information by a person other
than the intended recipient is unauthorized and may be illegal.

3/31./2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

é From:
: Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:

Brinegar, Jenrniifer
Tuesday, June 13, 2006 3:47 PM

Barbara JMcelroy; Fitzpatrick, Timathy Martin (tmfitzpa@indiana.edu); Green, Jerry;
Greenspan, Richard | (rgreensp@indiana.edu); Kelvin Sampson; McCallum Jr, Ray Ray

(rmccailu@indlana edu); Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis (jedmeyer@indiana.edu); Senderoff, Robert
.; Tim CGarl

Calhoun, M. Grace; Jaffee, Bruce L.; Pope, Christian Dean
Clarification of COl Penalties

Attachments: Clarification CO! Sanctions.doc

Please see the attached memo which provides the committee on infractions (“COI") responses (in italicized red
fant) to the questions we had regarding the application of the penalties set forth by the COI.

A brief summary:

1.
2.

6.

The COI holds 1U strictly liable if any prospects are in attendance at any off campus speaking
engagement,

Coach Sampson’s local radio show should either be broadcast from an on-campus site (e.g., Yogi's,
Lennie’s) or at a site off-campus that is secure and closed to the public (to ensure that no prospects
are present).

Coach Sampson (nor any of his assistant coaches) can text message (or call, in the case of an
assistant) a prospect and tell him to call Coach Sampson. Given the wording of the COl reply to this
specific question, it appears to be okay for the text message to provide his number (which a text
message does automatically anyway) and say words to the effect, “You can call me anytime at your
convenience.”

The assistant coaches may not brmg Coach Sampson in on a 3-way call with a prospect, parent or
coach, even if the call originated from the prospect, parent or coach.

If a prospect, parent or coach calls Coach Sampson and the call is dropped (e.g., bad cell
connection), the prospect, parent or coach must call back. Coach Sampson is not allowed to return
dropped calls.

Indiana is still allowed to have our maximum limit of coaches on the road at any one time.

| will send out a copy of the letter from the COl to everyone listed in this email. In the meantime, please let me
know if you have any further questions,

Thanks.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

°
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COMPLIANCE MEMORANDUM

To: MBB Coaching Staff
From: Jennifer Brinegar
Date:  June 13, 20006

- Re: Clarification of COI Sanctions

Below, please find answers from the committee on infractions to our questions regarding the
application of the sanctions assessed Coach Sampson and the Indiana basketball program.

1. We would like clarification regarding the prohibition on outside speaking engagements.
Specifically, what is the institution’s obligation to monitor attendance at the few speaking
engagements Coach Sampson may make during the next year on behalf of our
institution?

Regarding questions 1-4, the COI considers this to be an issue of “strict liability” for
Indiana, that is, if Coach Sampson chooses to attend an event (or if the institution allows
him to attend an event) and prospects happen to be present, he runs the risk of being in
violation of the committee s sanction. If he or the institution chooses to assume that
certain functions will not be attended by prospects, it is done with the same
understanding (we will be held strictly liable for violating the sanction if a prospect-aged
individual happens to show up. '

2. For example, Coach Sampson was previously scheduled to speak at a local black tie
fundraiser for the American Heart Association this weekend. What happens if an attendee
brings his or her son or daughter in place of a business associate who cancels at the last
minute?

We would be held strictly liable for violating the restriction against being off-campus in
the presence of prospects.

Is the intent of this restriction aimed at recruiting only? No. If so, is it possible to look at
the target audience and then not hold Coach Sampson or the institution responsible if
there happen to be a few prospect-aged individuals in the audience (using perhaps a
reasonable person standard for determining in advance who the target audience is)? No
(really not applicable since the answer to the first question was “no”).



What about at our IU booster/donor events? We typically schedule the majority of these
in the summer — around golf outings — they are aimed at the boosters/donors, but what
happens if they bring along their children or grandchildren?

Again, we would be strictly liable for violating the sanctions imposed by the COl if a

prospect was present at any off-campus speaking engagement, regardless of the “target”
audience. '

Coach Sampson has a long-standing speaking engagement at the 20 year reunion of the
movie “Hoosiers” which is taking place in Knightstown, Indiana, where much of the
movie was fitmed. Is it okay for him to fulfill his obligation even though this event is
open to the public and there may be prospect-aged individuals in the audience?

He should not attend any speaking engagement or function if there is any chance a
prospect-aged individual could be present.

What about his local radio show during the season — it is broadcast from a local restaurant
and he does take questions from the audience (actually, the host, Don Fisher, acts as the
moderator and he is the one who takes the calls/questions)?

Again, see above. IU needs to have Coach Sampson’s local radio show on campus if
it’s open to the general public.

‘What happens if prospect-aged individuals are eating at the restaurant during the show?

See above.

What happens if there are prospect-aged females in attendance at a speaking
engagement? '

See above. The committee did not limit the restrictions to male prospects. The restrictions
apply to all prospects.

It doesn’t appear that the COI limited the number of IU coaches who could be on the road
at any one time except for the fact that Coach Sampson can not be out at all. Is this an
accurate statement?

The limitation on the number of coaches permitted on the road is not reduced by Coach
Sampson’s removal from the road. Of course, all other coaches must be certified to
recruit off-campus per NCAA rules.

Exactly who can Coach Sampson call? He is restricted from “making any phone calls that
relate in any way to recruiting or being present when members of his staff make such
calls.” The restriction certainly applies to prospects, their coaches, and their parents. We
can’t think of anyone whom he should be permitted to call that has a relationship to high
school, JC, or AAU basketball. Is our interpretation too restrictive? Does it violate the



CC:

10.

11.

12.

spirit of the penalties if the assistants make a recruiting call and tell the person to call
Sampson at some specific time that Sampson has arranged?

We are accurate and not too restrictive in our interpretation. As is stated in the
committee’s report, Coach Sampson cannot make ANY calls that relate in any way to
recruiting, including calls to the individuals mentioned above. Also, yes, the committee’s
order is violated if Coach Sampson has one of his assistants tell a prospect to call Coach
Sampson at a specific time arranged by the coaches.

Can Coach Sampson text message a recruit and type: “Call me at 1-800-TUBBALL” (or
whatever his phone number is)? No.

If an AAU or HS coach calls one of the IU assistant coaches and then adds a prospect in
on a 3-way call, can the assistant coach add in Coach Sampson at that time (since the
original call was initiated by the AAU or HS coach and not by anyone at IU)? No.

Once a prospect signs an NL], is it possible for Coach Sampson to call him and to have
off-campus contact with him (can he make a home visit to a current NLI signee)? No.

What happens if Coach Sampson receives a call from a prospect (or coach or parent), but
loses the connection (common problem with cell phones)? The prospect, parent or coach
must call Coach Sampson back. Can he call back or must he wait for the prospect (or
coach or parent) to call him back? No, he cannot call them back. He must wait for the
prospect, coach or parent to call him back.

Can Coach Sampson call high school and/or AAU coaches about basketball related
issues, such as talking about our offense, defense, etc.? No.

If the institution determines we will not be appealing or contesting any findings made by
the committee, do we need to notify you of that decision or is notification only necessary
if we did decide to appeal or contest any findings? Once the time for perfecting an appeal
has run, none can be filed. Therefore, if the NCAA does not receive the notice of appeal
in a timely fashion, the NCAA will be aware that no appeal has been taken.

Rick Greenspan
Tim Fitzpatrick
Grace Calhoun
Bruce Jaffee
Jerry Green
Christian Pope
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@ Brinegar, Jennifer Hookér

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2006 1:52 PM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: Housekeeping ltems

Christian,
¥ still am playing catch up, so here are a few things I've been meaning to pass on to you.

First, your six month evaluation period ends on August 12 (as your official start date was February 13). | wouid
like to have either weekly or bi-monthly meetings with you 1o review your progress between now and then. Let me

know your preference.
Second, please follow up with MBB ASAP regarding:

1. Coach Sampson’s “recruiting” trips on April 22-23 and 29-30 as his travel reimbursement forms indicated

he was recruiting.

2. Get in writing al} off campus recruiting activity for Coach Sampson between March 29 and May 25
(prospect's names, schools, cilies, type of recruiting activity, etc.).

3. Confirm, in writing, that Coach Sampson has not recruited off campus since May 25 (including no off-

~ campus contact with any HS, JC or AAU coach}.

4. Confirm, in writing, that each MBB assistant coach knows_and understands all of the sanctions imposed on

. Coach Sampson and the IU MBB program by the COI, including those carried over from Oklahoma

é (easiest way to do this is in a memo that they sign at the bottom).

5. Provide weekly documentation to me of the results of your monitoring of the telephone logs AND phone
records {this area is key and we must show compliance in meeting the restrictions, as well as in the
monitering of these activities).

6. Please provide me with the summary of your meetings (both formal weekly meetings, as well as your daily

" informal meelings). Be especially clear and detailed regarding rules education (dates, topics discussed,

include materials/handouts distributed, staff present, etc.).

7. Work with MBB to get all their recruiting activities logged in one place by lhe end of this month (either on
CyberSports or in a paper file).

- 8. Find outif Coach Sampspn counts in the number of off-campus recruiters if he attends and/or speaks ata

coaches clinic (where no prospects are present).

9. Gel with me regarding your statement that CyberSports doesn’t allow a coach to enter a 4™ conlact if

his/her sport is only allowed 3. '
Third, work on your weekly agenda to make sure it covers all of the COI adopted and imposed sanctions.

Fourth, please provide me with your final draft of all rules education PRIOR to sending it out. This is SOP for our
office as il helps to prevent sending cut bad info or a document that just looks bad. So, especially for those items
listed above that require memos or anything else, please lel me see it AND comment on it BEFORE it goes oult (I
had asked to see the FB RE piece, but you sent it out w/o letting me review it and it was not as | had asked you to
do — I didn't want you to copy and paste the bylaws — since you had already done that on a few occasions — but

rather, turn the bylaws/legislation into easy to understand bullet peints).

Fifth, if you have any questions on your duties and responsibilities that are clearly laid out in your job description
and in the monthly calendar checklist, please see me.

.anks,

@ Jennifer

3/31/2008
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Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compiiance
Indiana University
812-855-0451
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent:  Tuesday, June 27, 2006 8:56 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: RE: Evansville

I think I'm meeting with Rick and Grace today, so I will respond. In the meantime, please let me know how you
have been proceeding with requests such as this so thal we are on the same page. Thanks. .

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Monday, June 26, 2006 3:47 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: FW: Evansville

Jennifer,
Do you want me to respond to this request? Thanks.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Calhoun, M. Grace

Sent: Saturday, June 24, 2006 3;51 PM

To: Pope, Christian Dean; Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: FW; Evansville

Jennifer and Christian,

Read dialog below. You'll need to get me up to speed with your procedure for approving Coach Sampson's
speaking engagements.

Grace

From: Dolson, Scott M

Sent: Fri 6/23/2006 10:38 AM
To: Greenspan, Richard 1

Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace
Subject: RE: Evansville

Rick: Iagree....the deal will be that the alumni club in each area either finds a private plane we agree lo or THEY pay for the

3/31/2008
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IU plane to fly Kelvin 1o the event. 1 will get with Grace on clearing any compliance issues. Thanks!
Scolt

---—-Original Message—---

From: Greenspan, Richard |

Sent: Friday, June 23, 2006 10:34 AM
To: Dolson, Scott M

Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace

Subject; Re: Evansville

Scott

IU plane costs so good bucks.....let's see if we can get donor plane. All events with coach need approval of compliance.

Rg

Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld

----- Original Message ---—

From: Dolson, Scott M

To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Cc: Greenspan, Richard 1; Smithson, Terr: J; Harris 111, James Freeman
Sent: Fri Jun 23 10:00:13 2006

Subject: FW: Evansville

Tim: Based on our earlier conversation regarding the basketball tip-offs, below is the proposed schedule from BJ for Coach
Sampson. Evansville has been added per the request of Coach Sampson (he met Charlie Cantwell and liked him so he once

to do it for him). We will work on private aircraft (o handle the travel to the events. We can talk more about these at senior
staff but I wanted you to know how it has progressed to this point. Thanks!

Scott

PS Maybe Emmis can give you a potentiat date for Indy while you are with them on Monday? The Indy Club is willing to
help promote it in any way possible as well as the Emmis football event on the circle. .

-----Onginal Message—---

From: McElroy, Barbara J

Sent: Friday, June 23, 2006 8:34 AM
To: Dolson, Scott M

Subject: RE: Evansville

Scott:

All three of these dates are a go. 1U plane for all three too.

Thanks,

3/31/2008
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From: Dolson, Scott M

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2006 11:56 AM

To: McElroy, Barbara J

Subject: RE: Evansviile

BJ):

How about this.schedule:

Sept. 26th: NW Indiana (Merrillviile)... ... Ieave B’ton around 5:30 and return around 9:00ish
Sept. 27th: Fort Wayne...... leave B’ton around 5:30 and return around 9:00ish

Ocl. 2nd: Evansville..... leave B’ton around 5:30 and retum around 9:00ish

Let me know what you think. ....thanks!

Scott

————— Onginal Message--—--

From: McElroy, Barbara J

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2006 9:57 AM
To: Dolson, Scott M

Subject: Evansville

Scott:

Charlie Cantwell has asked Coach to come down in October to speak to their Alumni Chapter. He met Charlie the other day
and would really like to do this for him, but wanted to know if it was worth his while to do so.

BJ

B.). McElroy

Assistant to Coach Kelvin Sampson
Indiana University

Men's Basketball

(812)855-2238

3/31/2008
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Brine_gar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent:  Tuesday, June 27, 2006 9:03 AM

To: Greenspan, Richard |
Subject: RE:
Rick,

} bélie_ve that Terri Jo had you review the letter of admonishment to Coach Sampson and Coach Senderoff {either
late Monday or early Tuesday morning), but you left for NACDA just before the actual self report was written.

Since you had approved the letter of admonishment, Mary Ann and | felt comforiable with Terri putting your initials

on both letters of admonishment {one also went to Christian for failing to remind the coaches of this rule) and
Mary Ann signing the self report on your behalf since it was so minor.

As for the weekly meetings, | allended one two weeks ago and was very concerned about the lack of
documentation being provided 1o the compliance office. | asked Christian Lo step it up — asking for the requisite
documentation was not enough — we actually need to get it AND review it for compliance with both NCAA and
COl rules and restrictions. Christian assures me this is now laking place, but i am still going to check in with him
every other week to make sure he is getling what we need 10 stay on top of the issues. ‘

As for the speaking engagements, [ think the administration needs to decide how to proceed. The COl says the
institution is strictly liable in the event a prospect-aged individual happens to show up. Unless the institution can
guarantee 100% compliance with this restriction, 1 don’t think he shouid be allowed to go to any OFF-campus
speaking engagements until May 25, 2007. As of this time, the compliance office is not able to monitor who is in
attendance at these speaking engagements (and apparently, he is signed up to do several alumnifvarsity club .
engagements in the next few weeks). If he does these engagements, we might want to consider sending either
Christian or myself along to monitor compliance with the COI sanctions.

! also heard from one individual, who was a part of a group that requested Coach Sampson give a motivational
talk to their organization, that they were specifically asked not to announce/publicize the fact that no prospect-
aged individuals could be in attendance. So, 1 am not sure how much significance the COI penallies are being
given by the MBB staff. ' '

A meeting will help get us all on the same page, so | am glad you have convened one for loday.

JB

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Greenspan, Richard I
Sent: Monday, June 26, 2006 4:23 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject:

The President was concerned about the secondary violation in men's basketball. Did ! sign this letter of
admonishment ? | don’t recall. How are the weekly compliance meetings going with basketball and your
staff.......... any issues, are we documenting, etc ?

RG

3/31/2008




C Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Greenspan, Richard |
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2005 11:27 AM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: RE:
Jennifer,

Let my guidance be clear.

The weekly meetings with the basketball staff will be thorough and documented.

Christian needs to understand the significance of his role and realize it is perhaps the most crilical aspect of his
position. for the next year. Failure to meet expectations will be met with harsh realities.

You are to send a memo to Coach Sampson indicating him that under my direction all public, off-campus
speaking engagements will be discussed with Christian or the Compliance staff and need PRIOR APPROVAL.
Reinforce the language and intent of the COl infractions/penalties.

I want an overview in writing of our phone monitoring process.

I am not prepared to quibble and debate these matters.

RG

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 9:03 AM
To: Greenspan, Richard I

Subject: RE:

Rick,

. b believe that Terri Jo had you review the ietter of admonishment to Coach Sampson and Coach Senderoff (either
late Monday or early Tuesday morning), but you left for NACDA just before the actual self report was written.
Since you had approved the letter of admonishment, Mary Ann and | felt comfortable with Terri putting your initials
on both letters of admonishment (one also went to Christian for failing to remind the coaches of this rule) and
Mary Ann signing the self report on your behalf since it was so minor. !

As for the weekly meetings, | attended one two weeks ago and was very concerned about the lack of
documentation being provided to the compliance office. | asked Christian to step it up —asking for the requisite
documentation was not enough — we actually need to get it AND review it for compliance with both NCAA and
COl rules and restrictions. Christian assures me this is now taking place, but | am still going to check in with him
every other week to make sure he is getting what we need to stay on top of the issues.

As for the speaking engagements, | think the administration needs to decide how lo proceed. The CO! says lhe
institution is stricily liable in the event a prospect-aged individual happens to show up. Uniess the institution can
guarantee 100% compliance with this restriction, | don’t think he should be allowed to go to any OFF-campus
speaking engagements until May 25, 2007. As of this time, the compliance office is not able to monitor who is in
altendance at these speaking engagements (and apparently, he is signed up to do several alumnifvarsity club
apgagements in the next few weeks). If he does these engagements, we might want to consider sending either
yristian or myself along to monitor compliance with the COl sanctions. :

é 1 also heard from one individual, who was a part of a group that requested Coach Sampson give a motivational
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latk to their organization, that they were specifically asked not to announce/publicize the fact that no proquct-
aged individuals could be in altendance. So, j am not sure how much significance the COI penalties are being

given by the MBB staff.

A meeting wili help get us ali on the same page, so | am glad you have convened one for today.

B

+ Jenmifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University
812-855-0451

From:-Greenspan, Richard 1

Sent: Monday, June 26, 2006 4:23 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject:

The President was concerned aboul the secondary violation in men’s basketball. Did | sign this letter of
admonishment 7 | don’t recall. How are the weekly compliance meelings going with basketball and your

staff.......... any issues, are we documenting, etc ?

Q

2/19/2008
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. RE: Evansville | ‘ Page 1 of 4

Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L-

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 11:34 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: RE: Evansville

Thanks. See the dates (highlighted) below - they look like evening speaking engagémenls, so al this point he
probably shouldn’t attend unless we (more specifically the event organizer AND Coach Sampson) can somehow
guarantee no prospect-aged individuals will be present.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 10:32 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: Evansville

Jennifer,

During my weekly meetings with Jerry Green, he and I review Coach Sampson’s calendar for events
that he will, or has been asked to, attend to discuss whether or not preparations have been made to avoid
any potential contact with prospective aged students. Coach has had to deny some requests due to this
circumstance. Additionally, I want to inform you that Coach has been invited to throw out the first pitch

at Victory Field as well as in Cincinnati on July § 4™ and August 1% respectively. Ihave asked Jerry
Green to request that Coach Sampson not attend those functions as most athletics contests will be
attended by students within the 9% through 12'0 grade bracket. In this instance 1 would ask that Scott
communicate with my office whether precautions have been made either to the event regarding
attendees or regarding the event itself.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 8:56 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: RE: Evansville

| think 'm meeting with Rick and Grace today, so | will respond. In the meantime, please let me know how you
have been proceeding with requests such as this so that we are on the same page. Thanks.

Jennifer Brinegar

3/31/2008




. RE: Evansville

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University
812-855-0451

Page2 of 4

.From: Pope, Christian Dean

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

From: Calhoun, M, Grace
- Sent: Saturday, June 24, 2006 3:51 PM

To: Pope, Christian Dean; Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: FW: Evansville

Jennifer and Christian,

Read dialog below. You'll need to get me up to speed wilh your procedure for approving Coach Sampson's

speaking engagements.

Grace

From: Dolson, Scott M

Sent: Fri 6/23/2006 10:38 AM
To: Greenspan, Richard 1

Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace
Subject: RE: Evansville

Rick: 1 agree....the deat will be that the alumni club in each area either finds a private plane we agree to or THEY pay for the

1U plane to fly Kelvin to the event. 1 will get with Grace on clearing any compliance issues. Thanks!

Scott

-----Original Message-----

From: Greenspan, Richard |

Sent: Friday, June 23, 2006 10:34 AM
To: Dolson, Scott M

Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace

Subject: Re: Evansville

Scott

- 3/31/2008
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TU plane costs so good bucks.....let's see if we can get donor plane. All events with coach need approval of compliance.

Rg

Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld

----- Original Message ---—-

From: Dolson, Scott M

To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Cc: Greenspan, Richard 1; Smithson, Terri J; Harris 111, James Freeman
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

to do it for him). We will work on private aircraft to handle the travel to the events. We can talk more about these at senior
staff but 1 wanted you to know how it has progressed to this point. Thanks!

Scott

PS Maybe Emmis can give you a potential date for Indy whi_lé you are with them on Monday? The Indy Chub is willing to
help promote it in any way possible as well as the Emmis football event on the circle.

--——-Original Message—---

From: McElroy, Barbara J

Sent: Friday, June 23, 2006 8:34 AM

To: Dolson, Scott M

Subject: RE: Evansville

Scott:

All three of these dates are a go. 1U plane for all three too.
Thanks,

BJ

From: Dolson, Scou M

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2006 11:56 AM
To: McElroy, Barbara J

Subject: RE: Evansville

Bl

How about this schedule:

3/31/2008
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Let me know what you think.....thanks!
Scott

—--Original Message——---

From: McElroy, Barbara J

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2006 9:57 AM
To: Dolson, Scott M

Subject: Evansville

Scott:

Charlie Cantweil has asked Coach to come down in October to speak 1o their Alumni Chapter. He et Charlie the other day
and would really like to do this for him, but wanted to know if it was worth his while to do so.

BJ

B.J. McElroy

Assistant to Coach Kelvin Sampson
Indiana University

Men's Basketball

(812)855-2238 -

3/31/2008
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o . Brinegar, Jennifer L

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent:  Tuesday, June 27, 2006 12:25 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: Telephene Call Monitoring

Jennifer,
1 also omitted a monthly declaration that is collected. Thanks.

vl
PD 1. Weekly review with the Director of Basketball operations to review the COl sanctions to
yjtba include the following.

a. Coach Sampson is precluded from making any recruiting phone calls to prospects,
family of prospects, coaches or anyone directly or indirectly involved with a prospective
aged student.

During the following time frame (June 15, 2006 of the prospect’s sophomore year
through July 31% of the prospect junior year in high school) JU’s assistant coaches are
allowed to make one call every other month as opposed to one call per month under
NCAA Bylaw 13.1.3.1.2.

During the following time frame (August 1 prior to the commencement of the prospects

senior year through July 31%, 2007) 1U assistant coaches may call a prospect only once
per week as opposed to two call per week under NCAA Bylaw 13.1.3.1.2.

. . "The assistant coaches are allowed the exceptions under the following NCAA Bylaws
e . exceptions include bylaw 13.1.3.3.2 (Official visit exception); 13.1.3.3.3 (Letter of Intent
signing date exception); and 13.1.3.3.4 (Telephone calls subsequent to the national letter
or intent signing or other written commitment)

2. Weekly review of the IU adoption of sanctions from the COI to include the following.
Weekly meetings conducted by the director of compliance to review any and all
recruiting issues with the basketball director of operations.
b. Review of the written commitment made by IU regarding the COI sanctions and the

August 15! time frame. - », W%"\

3. Weekly collection of written phone logs from each assistant coach. = ,AM A S
4. \/Collect monthly declarations from all coaches indicating whether or not their home phone is
utilized for recruiting calls. vl 1< ¢ 7 werbs pata -4' 2t VAL
- LAt
5. Review and cross check of those written logs against the reports generated by the
Cybersports software. ‘N abnvrmal
6. Review and cross check cell and umiversity phone records against those supplied by the

coaching staff as well as any recruit phone numbers already establlshed on the database file.

— o ean déree /oo@ j,o«k—
7. Review and cross check of the written records/ C bcrspoﬂs repo agam t other a%sistan

coachcs on the staff. ;JW .
é &,"‘\"n T N Mo /)MWJA lyf Aol ¥
VA ey
612712006 reur S
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Any dlscrcpanmcs are promptly communicated with the DOBO and the individual coach to
rectify any recorded issues or clarifications. -~

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 12:14 PM
Toz: Pope, Christian Dean

" Subject: RE: Telephone Call Monitoring

Can you add in how you will be monitoring (cross checking) the phone logs against the actual phone records?
Thanks. .

Jennifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

- Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 12:13 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: Telephone Call Monitoring

"~ Jemnifer,

O

My procedures are as follows:

9. . Weekly review with the Director of Basketball operatxons to review the COI sanchons to
include the following.

a. Coach Sampson is precluded from making any recruiting phone calls to prospecls
family of prospects, coaches or anyone directly or indirectly involved with a prospectwe
aged student.

b. During the following time frame (June 15, 2006 of the prospect’s sophomore year
through July 31% of the prospect junior year in high school) IU’s assistant coaches are
allowed to make one call every other month as opposed to one call per month under
NCAA Bylaw 13.1.3.1.2. :

c. Durng the following time frame (August 13! prior to the commencement of the prospects

senior year through July 31%, 2007) IU assistant coaches may call a prospect.only once
per week as opposed to two call per week under NCAA Bylaw 13.1.3.1.2.

d. The assistant coaches are allowed the exceptions under.the following NCAA Bylaws
exceptions include bylaw 13.1.3.3.2 (Official visit exception); 13.1.3.3.3 (Letter of Intent
signing date exception); and 13.1.3.3.4 (Telephone calls subsequent to the national letter
or intent signing or other written commitment)

ANTINNNOA




1Lapce g v s

10. Weekly review of the IU adoption of sanctions from the COI to include the following.
O a. Weekly meetings conducted by the director of compliance to review any and all
recruiting issues with the basketball director of operations.

‘b. Review of the written commitment made by IU regarding the COI sanctions and the
August 1% time frame.

11 Weekly collection of written phone logs from each assistant coach.

12. Review and cross check of those written logs against the reports generated by the
Cybersports software.

13. Review and cross check of the written records/ Cybersports reports against other assistant
coaches on the staff.

14. Any discrepancies are promptly communicated with the DOBO and the individual coach to

rectify any recorded issues or clanfications.
Thanks.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

A ialy | 1 A0

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 11:44 AM

To: Pope, Christian Dean
o ubject: Telephone Call Monstonng
wsmportance: High

Bl X 1R I A o I Ay | ) (9

Christian,
To make sure everyene is on the same page, could you please provide me (in writing) your procedures for

ensuring compliance with the telephone call rules (and specifically the COI restrictions regarding those rules)? |
would like to have those written procedures for my review by 2:00 p.m, this aftemoor.

Thanks,

Jennifer
" Jennifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

Indiana University
812-855-0451

@
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent:  Tuesday, June 27, 2006 1:39 PM
To: McElroy, Barbara J

Subject: RE: educational material mailing

BJ - something else came up this moming and | felt fike it needed to be addressed first, so | didn’t even bring up
the camp issue. Is it possible for me to meet with him again for 5 minutes? | could come right up. Let me know.
Thanks, Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: McElroy, Barbara )

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 11:57 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L .
Subject: educational material mailin

]

Jennifer:

After your meeting with Coach Sampson, is it now ok to send out that mailing to the first week of overnight
campers?

BJ

3/31/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Greenspan, Richard {

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 5:19 PM
To: Dolson, Scott M

Cc:  Brinegar, Jennifer L

Scott,

As discussed today it is critical that you run all of Coach Sampson’s appearances/speaking engagements past
our compliance staff for their review prior to you, Coach and/or staff making commilments for him to speak. | have
asked Jen B 1o share this protocot with Coach Sampson and to insure that this becomes standard operaling
procedure.

i you have any questions please ask Jennifer B or Christian.

Thanks,

RG

2/19/2008




©

Page 1 of 1

Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent: A Wednesday, June 28, 2006 8:05 AM
To: ‘Elworth, Jim'

Subject: Clarification of COI Restrictions

Importance: High
Hi Jim,
I hope you are doing well and through traveling for a little while!
We have another issue that has come up that needs some clarification. Coach Sampson has been asked to lhrow
out the first pitch at an Indians and a Reds game in the next few months, as well as play in a celebrity golf
tournament (as an invited guest celebrity). An argument could be made that these are not off-campus recruiting
activities; however, | am concerned that they do fall under the provision in the COl report thal reads: “The '

prohibition on off-campus recruiting aclivities shall apply to all off-campus appearances at which prospects
may be in attendance. . . “ {emphasis added).

Could you please ask the Chair to clarify whether or not an appearance, as opposed to an aclual speaking

. engagement, is prohibited by the sanctions assessed by the COI? Also, could the committee please distinguish a

regular golf date with 3 friends as opposed to an invitation 1o a golf outing/tournament/fundraiser (if “appearances”
are impermissible — when prospects may be present)?

| appreciate your assistance in this matter.

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

Sent:  Wednesday, June 28, 2006 10:11 AM

To: Sampson, Kelvin Dale

Cc: Greenspan, Richard }; Pope, Christian Dean
Subject: Public Appearances/Speaking Engagements

Ccach,

Rick asked me to email you regarding the CO1 reslriclion on speaking engagements/appearances/booster

“functlions where prospects might be present. Because it appears thal the restriction is very broad, it is imperative

that your slaff seek pre-approval from Christian {or me if Christian is out of the office for the day) priorlo
accepting any invitation to make a public appearance or attend a booster function. As you know, the chair of the
COl has clarified that 1U will be held strictly liable for any violation of the restrictions imposed by the committee.
The compliance office is here %o assist you and your staff in making sure we get through the next 11 months with
(hopefully) no viclations of those restrictions. Rick and | have designated Christian to be the primary contact for
you and your staff to (1) handle all interpretative issues — both in general regarding all NCAA and Big Ten rules
and more specifically regarding the COI penalties and (2) establish and ensure institutional control by
implementing appropriate monitoring policies and procedures.

So, with regard to requests for speaking engagements/public appearances/boosler funclions, please make sure
that Jerry {or whomever is handling these matlers) does not accept any invitations on your behalf until each and
every one of them has received approval from the compliance office. Christian will need complete details
regarding the event (e.g., name of the event, place, dale, audience, private vs. public gathering, possibility of high
school-aged.individuals being present, efc.) in order o accuralely assess whether your appearance falls within
the parameters set forth by the COl. He may also need time to research the issue further, so please try o give
him at least one business day to get back to your staff with an answer. Of course, any events thal are approved
will always be conditioned upon the absence of any prospect-aged individuals.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or concerns.

Thanks, .

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

.Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

Indiana University
812-855-0451

1/28/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Big Ten - Greg Waller [gwalter@bigten org}
Sent:  Thursday, June 29, 2006 6:11 PM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Cc: Big Ten - Chad Hawley

Subject: RE: hiring

As long as the PSA's high school coach is not in attendance at or involved with the certified event, communication is
permissible in MBB. See 13.1.7.2.2.1.

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L [mailto:jhooker@indiana.edu}
Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2006 9:42 AM

To: Big Ten - Greg Walter

Subject: FW: hiring

ARGHH - i fee! like my head is just swimming in ali of the legislation and changes the last few years. When you get a chance,
could you read through the emails below - MBB wants to know if prospects’ coaches can visit campus in July (since Sampson
can‘t go out). | can't figure out the highlighted section of ER 2006-7 below — does this mean that our coaches cannot have ANY
communicalion with ANY of a prospect’s coaches during the time the prospect is participating in a summer certified event? The
way | read it, it includes “any individual associated with the prospect's participation in basketball,” which to me looks like it
applies to all basketball (including HS/JC) and not just the summer certified event. Am | making any sense ({from the email trail
with Chnistian - it doesn’t look fike he was following my analysis either — so, call me crazy if that's appropriate!)? Thanks!

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Comphance
Indiana University

§12-855-0451

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2006 10:19 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: hiring

Your assertion is correct in my view. ! don’t belicve that we were on the same page. My understanding is that any
coach (AAU or High School) may visit IU to meet with our coaches as long as it is not in conjunction with an event
in which their team is participating per bylaw 13.1.7.2.2.

Christian ]
Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2006 9:31 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: RE: hiring

Not sure we're on the same page. If it applies to HS/JC coaches, then'they probably would not be at the AAU event. So, does
this restriction below apply to them — they coach the prospect, but just not during the summer?

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

2/19/2008
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812-855-0451

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2006 9:20 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: hiring

Jennifer,

Yes it is and yes it would. But if a coach visits U to meet with our staff, 1 don’t believe they would do so when their
teamn is playing in a summer event. If they attempted that, the vent would have to be at 1U and then 13.1.7.2.2 would

take effect.

Christian ‘ , |
Director of Compliance : i
Indiana University

812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Brinegar, Jennifer i,

Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2006 7:53 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean ’
Subject: RE: hiring

Is the highlighted section below referencing the AAU coach and/or the HS/AJC coach? | can't tell from the language below. If it is
either coach, would this not preclude the HS/JC coach from visiling campus while the prospect is participating in 2 summer
certified event?

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Pope, Christian Dean
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 5:22 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: hiring

Jennifer,
As the preclusion for evaluation periods during July apply only to women’s basketball, I believe that the men’s

coaches can do this. Please see the attached info | was able to find on the matter. Let me know your thoughts. .
Thanks. ’

ER-2006-7 RECRUITING — CONTACT RESTRICTIONS AT SPECIFIED SITES --
ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS -- BASKETBALL

Bylaws: Amend 13.1.7.2.2, page 98, as follows:

"13.1.7.2.2 Additional Restrictions -- Men's and Women's Basketball. In men's and women's basketball, the
following additional restrictions shall apply:

[13.1.7.2.2-(a) unchanged.]

2/19/2008




jhan Abionibudabaiilud, Bublal |

"R

-

Message ‘ Page 3of 5
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"(b) In men’s basketball, all communication with a prospect, the prospect’s relatives or legal guardians, the
prospect's coach or any individual associated with the prospect as 2 result of the prospect’s participation in
basketball, directly or indirectly, is prohibited during the time period in which the prospect is participating

‘| in the summer certified event. However, printed materials (e.g., letters, recruiting brochures, questionnaires) may

be sent via regular mail (see Bylaw 13.4.1) to a prospect’s home while the prospect in participating in a certified
event.

ER-2005-56 ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS - RECRUITING CALENDARS --
RECRUITING PERIODS

A. Bylaws: Amend 13.1.4, page 95, as follows:

"13.1.4 Recruiting Calendars. Recruiting calendars specify the dates for the applicable recruiting periods in the
applicable sports. The Management Council shall have the authority to establish such calendars in the
Administrative Regulations (per Constitution 5.2.3.1). (See Bylaw 30.11 for a complete listing of the calendars in
effect at the time of the publication of this Manual.)"

B. Administrative: Amend 30.11.1, page 410, as follows:

"30.11.1 Basketball, Men's. The following recruiting periods shall apply to men's basketball:"

{30.11.1-(a) through 30.11.1-(j) unchanged.]

Christian

Director of Comphance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent: Friday, June 23, 2006 7:03 PM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: RE: hiring

Christian — | am not up to speed on the restrictions on recruiting in July. | know the coaches could not come to campus during a
dead period. From what | can recall, the COIl penalties were only restrictive as to no off campus recruiting or telephone calls by
Coach Sampson and limits on telephone calls by the rest of the staff. So, research the July restrictions {maybe they only apply
to the women — | just can’t remember) and let’s discuss on Tuesday (Monday, if | come in) BEFORE you have your weekly
meeting at 10, Thanks, Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Friday, June 23, 2006 2:59 PM
To: Senderoff, Robert A.

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer t

Subject: RE: hiring

Coach,

Bylaw 11.7.1.1.1 spéaks specifically to your question. Please see the attached on page 60 of your 2005-2006 NCAA

2/19/2008
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Manual. The specifics for staff notAcounted in the limitations of Bylaw 11.7 (director of basketball operations, video

coordinator, and administrative assistant) are as follows:

1. They may not be identified as coaches.

2. They may not engage in any coaching activities. (Attending meetings involving coaching activities,
analyzing videotape or film of U or opponent teams)

3. . They may not be invelved in any way in the recruiting process.

4, They may be involved in any way with the scouting of opponents.

5. They may participate with or watch student-athletes who are participating in nonorganized or

voluntary athletically related activities. (Pick up games)

11.7.1.1.1.1 Nencoaching Activities Effective Date: Aug 01, 2006

engaged in nonorganized voluntary athletically related activities (e.g., pick-up games).

Institutional staff members involved in noncoaching activities (e.g,, administrative assistants, academic counselors)
do not count-in the institution's coaching limitations, provided such individuals are not identified as coaches, do not
engage in any on- or off-field coaching activities (e.g., attending meetings involving coaching activities, analyzing
videotape or film involving the institution's or an.opponent's team), and are not involved in any off-campus
recruitment of prospective student-athletes or scouting of opponents. A noncoaching staff member with sport-
specific responsibilities may not participate with or observe student-athletes in the staff member's sport who are

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Senderoff, Robert A.
Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2006 5:41 PM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: hiring

2/19/2008
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Christian-

Can a coaching staff have a Director of Ops, a Yideo Coordinator and a Administrative
-assistant? [s there a rufe on that? '

I need to know this...thanks....also, did you get a final rufing on coaches coming to U to
visit with Coach Sampson yet. Thanks. .

-Rob

(@

2/19/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent:  Friday, June 30, 2006 12:24 AM
'i'o:' Pope, Christian Dean
Subject: FW:
1 would tike to meet with you tomorrow to discuss Rick's concerns below (which I highlighted). | included the entire

email trail so that you can see both the context in which the email was sent and the sngnn" cance that Rick is
placmg on the compliance office’s momtonng efforts.

I woutd iike for you to review for me all of the documentation you have collected and reviewed so far. | will
probably start the written report the week that you are gone (1 would like to get it done and sent it well before the
August 1 deadline). Please be prepared to walk me through it — | want a thorough and comprehensive review,

I would like to try to do this at 8:30 (as | have meetings scheduled for 9:30 and 10, followed by a doctor’s appt at
11:30).

Thanks.

Jennifer Brinegar

- Assistant Athletics Director - Comphance

Indiana University
812-855-0451

~om: Greenspan, Richard 1
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 11:27 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: RE:

. Jennifer,,

O

Let my guidance be clear.

The weekly meetings with the basketball staff will be thorough and documented.

Christian needs to understand the significance of his role and realize it is pgrhaps the most critical aspect of his
position for the next year. Failure to meet expectations will be met with harsh reaiities.

You are to send a memo to Coach Sampson indicating him that under my direction alt public, off-campus
speaking engagements will be discussed with Christian.or the Compliance staff and need PRIOR APPROVAL.
Reinforce the language and intent of the CO! infractions/penalties.

I want an overview in writing of our phone monitoring process.

| am not prepared to quibble and debate these matters.

RG

» rom: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 9:03 AM

3/31/2008
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To: Greenspan, Richard I
Subject: RE

Rick,

I believe that Terri Jo had you review the letter of admonishment to Coach Sampson and Coach Senderoff (either
fate Monday or early Tuesday morning}, but you left for NACDA just before the actual self report was wntten
Since you had approved the letter of admonishment, Mary Ann and | felt comfortable with Terri putting your initials
on both letters of admonishment (one also went to Christian for failing to remind the coaches of this rule} and
Mary Ann signing the self report on your behalf since it was so minor.

As for the weekly meetings, | attended one two weeks ago and was very concerned aboult the lack of
documentation being provided to the compliance office. | asked Christian to step it up — asking for the requisite
documentation was not enough — we actually need to get it AND review.it for compliance with both NCAA and
COl rules and restrictions. Christian assures me this is now taking place, but | am still going to check in with him
every other week to make sure he is getting what we need to stay on top of the issues.

As for the speaking engagemenls | think the administration needs to decide how to proceed. The COl says the
institution is strictly liable in the event a prospect-aged individual happens to show up. Unless the institution can
guarantee 100% compliance with this restriction, | don't think he should be allowed to go to any OFF-campus
speaking engagements unlii May 25, 2007. As of this time, the compliance office is not able to monitor who is in
attendance at these speaking engagements {and apparently, he is signed up to do several alumni/varsity club
engagements in the next few weeks). If he does these engagements, we might want to consider sending either

Christian or myself along to monitor compliance with the COf sanctions.

i also heard from one individual, who was a part of a group that requested Coach Sampson give a motivationa}
lalk to their organization, that they were specifically asked not to announce/publicize the fact that no prospect-
aged individuals could be in attendance. So, { am not sure how much significance the COI penalties are being

given by the MBB staff.

meeting“will help get us all on the same page, so | am glad you have convened one for today.

B

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Greenspan, Richard 1

Sent: Monday, June 26, 2006 4:23 PM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L ' '
. Subject:

The President was concerned about the secondary viotation in men’s basketball. Did 1 sign this letter of
admonishment ? | don’t recall. How are the weekly compliance meetings going with basketball and your

staff.........any issues, are we documenting, etc ?

RG

®

3/31/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Friday, June 30, 2006 12:24 PM
To: Calhoun, M. Grace

Cc: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: RE: Evansville

Christian meets with Jerry every Tuesday. One of the agenda items is to discuss Coach Sampson's calendar for
the week and to review any speaking engagement and/or public appearance requests for compliance office
approval. We now have an understanding with MBB that this MUST occur prior to anyone accepting an invitation

on Coach Sampson’s behalf.

Jennifer Bonnegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Calhoun, M. Grace

Sent: Saturday, June 24, 2006 3:51 PM

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
To: Greenspan, Richard ]

Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace
Subject: RE: Evansville

Rick: Iagree....the deal will be that the alumni club in each area either finds a private plane we agree 1o or. THEY pay for the
U plane to fly Kelvin to the event. 1 will get with Grace on clearing any compliance issues. Thanks!

~ Scott

-----Original Message---—

From: Greenspan, Richard I

Sent: Friday, June 23, 2006 10:34 AM
To: Dolson, Scott M

Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace

Subject: Re: Evansville

Scott

3/31/2008 - -
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IU plane costs so good bucks.....let's see if we can get donor plane. All events with coach need approval of compliance.

Rg

Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld

----- Oniginal Message --—-

From: Dolson, Scott M

To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Cc: Greenspan, Richard I; Smithson, Terri J; Harris 111, James Freeman
Sent: Fri Jun 23 10:00:13 2006 -

Subject: FW: Evansville

Tim: Based on our earlier conversation regarding the basketball tip-ofTs, below is the proposed schedule from BJ for Coach

Sampson. Evansville has been added per the request of Coach Sampson (he met Charlie Cantwell and liked him so he once
todo it for him). We will work on private aircraft 1o handle the travel to the events. We can talk more about these at senior

staff but I wanted you fo know how it has progressed to this point. Thanks!

Scott

PS Maybe Emmis can give you a potential date for Indy while you are with them on Monday? The Indy Club is willing to
help promote it in any way possible as well as the Emmis {ootball event on the circle.

—~---Original Message-----

From: McElroy, Barbara J

Sent: Friday, June 23, 2006 8:34 AM
To: Dolson, Scott M

Subject: RE: Evansville

Scott:

All three of these dates are a go. 1U plane for all three too.
Thanks,

BJ

-----Original Message—-—-

From: Dolson, Scott M

Sent: Wednesday, June 21,2006 1 1:56 AM
To: McElroy, Barbara J

Subject: RE: Evansville

BJ:

>w about this schedule:

o

3/31/2008




o

KE: Evansville : - Page3 of 3

Sept. 26th: NW Indiana (Merrillville)...... leave B'ton around 5:30 and retum ar_ound 9:00ish
Sept. 27th: Fort Wayne...... leave B’ton around 5:30 and retum around 9:00ish

Oct. 2nd: Evansville...... leave B ton around 5:30 am;i return around 9:00ish

Let me know what you think.....thanks?

Scott

--—--Original Message-----

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
and would really like to do this for him, but wanted to know if it was worth his while to do so..

BJ

B.J. McElroy

Assistant to Coach Kelvin Sampson E
Indiana University

Men's Basketball

(812)855-2238

3/31/2008
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Bnnegar Jenmfer Hooker,

From: Calhoun, M. Grace

Sent:  Friday, June 30, 2006 1:09 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: Evansville

Okay, thanks. ! wrote this before Rick requested lhal the protocol be in writing, but | lhlnk that we're all on the
same page now.
MGC

M. Grace Calfioun, MBA, PRD.

Associate Athletic Director, Academic Services

Indiana University Department of 1 ntercaﬂ]zgmte Athletics
oj:ﬁce phone 812/855—0876

- From: Bnnegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Friday, June 30, 2006 12:24 PM
To: Cathoun, M. Grace

Cc: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: RE: Evansville

Christian meets with Jerry every Tuesday. One of the agenda items is to discuss Coach Sampson’s caléndar for
the week and 1o review any speaking engagement and/or public appearance requests for compliance office
approval. We now have an understanding with MBB that this MUST occur prior to anyone accepling an invitation
on Coach Sampson’s behalf.

Jennifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

~ 812-855-045)

From: Calhoun, M. Grace

Sent: Saturday, June 24, 2006 3:51 PM

To: Pope, Christian Dean; Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: FW: Evansville

Jennifer aﬁd Christian,

Read dialog beiow. You'll need to get me up to speed with your procedure for approving Coach Sampson's
speaking engagements.-

Grace

From: Dolson, Scott M

Sent: Fri 6/23/2006 10:38 AM
To: Greenspan, Richard ]

Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace
Subject: RE: Evansville

Rick: 1 agree....the deal will be thai the alumni club in each area either finds a private plane we agree to or THEY pay for the

2/5/2008
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0 IU plane to fly Kelvin to the event. 1 will get with Grace on clearing any comphiance issues. Thanks!
Scott

--—-Orginal Message-----
From: Greenspan, Richard |
Sent: Friday, June 23, 2006 10:34 AM
To: Dolson, Scott M
Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace
" Subject: Re: Evansville

- Scott

TU plane costs so good bucks.....let's see if we can get donor plane. All events with coach need approval of compliance.

Rg

Sent from my BlackBerry Wireless Handheld

----- Onginal Message -----
o From: Dolsen, Scoit M
g To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin
" Cc: Greenspan, Richard I; Smithson, Terri J; Harris 111, James Freeman

Sent: Fri Jun 23 10:00:13 2006
Subiect: FW: Evansville

Tim: Based on our earlier conversation regarding the basketball tip-ofTs, below is the proposed schedule from BJ for Coach
Sampson. Evansville has been added per the request of Coach Sampson (he met Charlie Cantwell and liked him so he once

to do it for him}. We will work on private aircraft to handle the travel to the events. We can talk more about these at sentor
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

All three of these dates are a go. [U plane for all three (0o.

0 " Thanks,

2/5/2008
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-

BJ

-—-—Original'Mcssa'gc -----

From: Dolson, Scott M

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2006 11:56 AM

To: McElroy, Barbara J

Subject: RE: Evansville

BI:

How about this schedule:

Sept. 26th: NW Indiana (Merrillville)...... leave B’ton around 5:30 and return around 9:00ish

Sept. 27th; Fort Wayne......leave B’ton around 5:30 and return around 9:00ish

Oct. 2nd: Evansville...... leave B ton around 5:30 and retum around 9:00ish

Let me know what you think. ...thanks!

Scott

From: McElroy, Barbara J

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2006 9:57 AM
To: Dolson, Scott M

Subject: Evansville

Scott;

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
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c Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Monday, July 03, 2006 5:23 PM

To: Rohleder, Mary Ann; Calhoun, M. Grace
Subject: ‘Weekly Update

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Due By: Monday, July 03, 2006 12:00 AM

Flag Status: Completed

Jennifer worked on the Big Ten eligibility issue with Anitra, JoAnn, Grace and Bruce; drafted and distributed the
July Indiana Compliance Newsletter; worked on tightening up the monitoring and oversight procedures for the
MBB COl penalties; drafted and sent an email for further clarification of the prohibition against any appearance
here prospects might be present (b/c Coach Sampson has accepted invitations to throw out the first pitch at
both an Indians and Reds baseball games this summer); began collecting all correspondence with the NCAA
regarding self reports from August 1, 2001 (open records request from Mark Alesia that Pete Rhoda passed on to
me); is discussing a second open records request (also from Mark Alesia) regarding applications for grants from
the Special Assistance Fund and the SA Opportunity Fund (! would hope "application documentation® would be
confidential, met with Coach Sampson regarding secondary violation and reviewed the applicable tegislation and
3-page handout she prepared for MBB to send to campers who did not receive the requisite educational session;
met wi WRBB}) to discuss her stipend she received in the past from being a “carded athlete” in
Canada te, noy at Nebra ed with questions regardlng the amount of stipend one of his
SAs had received) — ot on th ational team this year, so it is not an issue for us; reviewed
outstanding international prospective student-athlete cases with Mark Jones at Ice Miller; and assisted Christian

Olm providing interpretations to coaches and staff.

nathy is working of fall aid and clearinghouse issues; sending requests for transfer information; dealing with
internal audit {SA employment); and working on the usual tender issues — initials, non-renewal and s year
. aid. She has spoken with a lot of parents this week who have been here for freshman orientation.

Anitra is processing Sum I grades and updating ineligibles report (also checking over Chip’s progress with the
same before his leaving); have supplied two sets of addition; cumentation requested by Bruce Jaffee to send
to the Big Ten to amend original petitions foMIed 6/8/2006; will be faxing Bruce’s addendum
letter to Big Ten with updated transcripls reflecting grades; preparing to research prior year certifications for
current athletes to discover any problems; requested medical information for four student-athletes for petitions
and completed Big Ten petition paperwork on two of them which was passed to Bruce Jaffee today to complete
his cover letters before he leaves for Croatia; will be trying to obtain all of the medical information on the four next
week so Bruce can finish the other two upon his return; just received statement from Tory Yamaguchi to initiate
request for medical information for a fifth pefition; working with Kathy A. to cover the pressmg duties for Chip's
position (admissions, NCAA Clrnghse, transfer releases, transcript evaluations, processmg women's transcripts &
degree %, checking junior sheets and quaniitative hours forms for all sporis, etc. ) answering advisor questions
about various topics (eligibility, summer courses, program planning, etc.).

Christian spent a lot of time working on various men’s basketball issues and had several meetings with members
of the MBB staff; he entered revisions | had made on the sections of the compliance manual he is responsible for
updating; and he worked on the Sports Inventory wrap-up with Mitch and Marty. He is on vacation from July 1-10.

Jennifer Brinegar _
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

Indiana University
.812-855-0451

@
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O Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent:  Wednesday, July 05, 2006 4:56 PM

To: Senderoff, Robert A.; Green, Jerry; McCallum Jr, Réy
Cc: Sampson, Kelvin Daie

Subject: FW: MBB Questions

See below — should have more definitive answers to your questions by tomorrow; but, for now, use the more
restrictive guidelines set forth in the NABC document. I'll email you all lomorrow (and touch base with Rob on his

cell phone as soon as i hear). Good luck!

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Big Ten - Greg Walter [mailto:gwalter@bigten.org]
Sent: Wednesday, July 05, 2006 4:44 PM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: MBB Questions

o 3

1 will follow up as soen as possible, but use the more restrictive NABC guidelines for the time being (if ’'m not able
to get back to you by the start of the evaluation period tomorrow). There are a couple of pieces on this document

that | want to follow up on...
More to follow,

Gw

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L [mailto:jhooker@indiana. edu] ) . !
Sent: Wednesday, July 05, 2006 1:22 PM
To: Big Ten - Greg Walter

Subject: MBB Questions

Importance: High

Greg,

Thanks for responding to my eligibility question(s). | hope you had a fun and relaxing 4% of July weekend, since
you are now flying solo for the month of July!

Christian is out this week on vacation, so MBB came to me with some clarifications regarding the upcoming July
evaluation period. | have a copy of an educational memo sent out by the NABC to all head coaches regarding
summer certified event protocol. Here are the questions:

1. Can MBB text a HS coach? According to your email from June 29 at 6:11 p.m., Bylaw 13.1.7.2.2.1, which

states that it is okay for MBB to have “telephone contact” with a PSA’s HS coach while the PSA is
participating in a summer certified event, would allow a HS coach to come to campus to meet with Coach

2/19/2008
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Sampson. Since this Bylaw extends to face-to-face contact, would it not also be okay for MBB to then text

the HS coach?

2. Inlight on the third bullet in #4 on the memo (which | will fax to you), this looks like contact at any location
is prohibited with both nonscholastic AND scholastic coaches. So, if this is correct (#7 in the memo seems
like they just apply 13.1.7.2.2.1 o phone calls only), does your answer on 6/29 and in #1 above change?

3. Can MBB attend a regularly scheduled (but not organized — the gym is just open at certain times each day)
pick-up game at a local high school if there are PSAs from other high schools also there?

4. DJ White, a MBB SA at 1U, is working the NIKE camp in Indy. Can MBB talk to him (as long as there are no

prospects or thenr coaches around)?

I will fax you a copy of the memo. Thanks for helping me out!

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

. Assistant Athletics Director - Comphance

©

Indiana University
§12-855-0451

21972008




O ' Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent:  Thursday, July 06, 2006 8:30 AM
- To: Greenspan, Richard

Subject: RE:

Rick,

Based on the information you provided this does not have anything to do with recruiting, so it would be
permissible for him to go.

JB

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Greenspan, Richard I

Sent: Wednesday, July 05, 2006 5:52 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject:

o i en,

Coach has been invited to attend the NBA summer leagues games to talk basketball with NBA and other head
college coaches. No prospects, recruits, high school coaches. This is a professional development opportunity.
Please do a quick review for clearance but it seems on the face of it to be well within the boundaries. He would
leave for Vegas this Sunday.

RG

o

1/28/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Greenspan, Richard |

Sent:  Thursday, July 06, 2006 8:45 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE:

OK..........thanks

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Thursday, July 06, 2006 8:34 AM
To: Greenspan, Richard I

Subject: RE:

Christian is on vacation, so | am taking over his duties with regards to MBB for this week. He'll be back next

Monday or Tuesday. -

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Comphance
Indiana University

812-855-045Y

From: Greenspan, Richard I

ient: Thursday, July 06, 2006 8:32 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: RE:

OK..ooveee. just so we keep our protocol that we established let's have Christian review and consent if
appropriate. | am Irying to be a facilitator on these issues but not a clearinghouse or parl of some appeilate

process. | believe this starls on Sunday so Christian will need to react today.
Thx,
RG

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Thursday, July 06, 2006 8:30 AM
To: Greenspan, Richard I

Subject: RE: »

Rick,

Based on the information you provided this does not have anything to do with recruiting, so it would be

permissibie for him to go.
JB

Jennifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

2/19/2008
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812-855-0451

Ffrom: Greenspan, Richard 1
Sent: Wednesday, July 05, 2006 5:52 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

- Subject:

Jen,

Coach has been invited to attend the NBA summer leagues games to lalk basketball with NBA and other head
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

Sent:  Thursday, July 06, 2006 10:41 AM

To: Sampson, Kelvin Dale; Pope, Christian Dean; Green, Jerry
Cc: Greenspan, Richard |

Subject: FW: Ciarification of COl Restrictions

See below — the COl is basically saying that Coach Sampson is precluded from making a public appearance if
prospects may be in attendance. So, until May 24, 2007, he can not accept invitations for any public appearance
if there's a chance that a prospect-aged individual will be present. Unfortunately, he will need te decline the
invitations to throw out the first pitch at the Reds and Indians games. Sorry.

Based on the intent of the sanctions (no off campus recruiting activities, including public appearances where
prospects might be present) and common sense, the golf date with three friends would be permissible as long as
his presence at the golf course was not publicized (in advance or at the time he is playing).

Until Christian returns next week, please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or concemns.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

rom: Elworth, Jim [mailto:jelworth@ncaa.org}
Sent: Thursday, July 06, 2006 10:27 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Cc: Cooper, Shep
Subject: RE: Clarification of COI Restrictions

Hello Jennifer,
The committee is of the opinion that the issue you raise was adequately addressed in the previous letter

regarding clarification of the sanction. It has been suggested that the institution keep in mind the intent of the
sanction and use common sense in making determinations regarding the coach's activities.

Jim Elworth ,

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L [mailto:jhooker@indiana.edu]
Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2006 8:05 AM

To: Elworth, Jim

Subject: Clarification of COI Restrictions

Importance: High

Hi Jim,

1 hope you are doing well and through traveling for a litte white!

1/28/2008
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We have another issue that has come up that needs some clarification. Coach Sampson has been asked
10 throw out the first pitch at an Indians and a Reds game in the next few months, as well as play in a
celebrity golf tournament (as an invited guest celebrity). An argument could be made that these are not off-
campus recruiting activities; however, | am concerned that they de fall under the provision in the COI report
that reads: “The prohibition on off-campus recrumng activities shall apply to all off-campus appearances
at which prospects may be in attendance. . . * {emphasis added).

Could you please ask the Chair to clarify whelher or not an appearance, as opposed lo an actual speaking
engagement, is prohibited by the sanclions assessed by the COI7 Also, couid the committee please
distinguish a regular golf date with 3 friends as opposed to an invitation to a golf
outing/tournament/fundraiser {if “appearances” are impermissible — when prospects may be present)?

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
sender immediately by returmn email, delete this message and destroy any
~opies. Any dissemination or use of this information by a person other
.nan the intended recipient is unauthorized and may be illegal.

1/28/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Thursday, July 06, 2006 3:15 PM

Jo: Senderoff, Robert A.; Sampson, Kelvin Dale; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; McCallum Jr, Ray
Cc: Pope, Christian Dean; Greenspan, Riﬁhard I

Subject: FW: MBB Questions
Importance: High

Coaches — here are the short answers to Rob’s questions {see below for more explanation):

1. You can text a HS coach while players from his team play in a certified event PROVIDED the HS cocach is
NOT at the cerlified event.

2. Per NCAA rules, a HS coach can come to campus to meet with Coach Sampson during the July evaluation
period to discuss basketball NOT recruiting. However, it locks like the NABC is interpreting this much more
conservatively {third bullet in #4), so'l will try to contact Jim Haney for a clarification.

3. Any of the assistant coaches can attend a pick up game at a high schoo! that is regularly scheduled (open
gym), but not organized, and there can-be prospects there from other high schools.

4. Any of the assistant coaches can speak with DJ White during breaks when he is a counselor at the NIKE
camp in Indy IF it is a cerlified event AND only if NO prospects/parents/coaches are around and the

discussion CANNOT be about any of the prospects altending the camp.

Hope this helps — remember to document ALL of your recruiting activities - good luck!

:nnifer Brinegar
Asgistant Athletics Director - Compllance
Indiana University
812-855-0451

From: Big Ten - Greg Walter [mailto:gwalter@bigten.org]
‘Sent: Thursday, July 06, 2006 1:27 PM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Cc: Big Ten - Chad Hawley

Subject: RE: MBB Questions

Jennifer:

-

See my answers below, but first a disclaimer. All of these answers relate specifically to the application of NCAA
legistation. Any additional or more stringent restrictions or protocol imposed by the NABC on its membership
should be addressed with that body. In other words, I'm not telling you that you should ignore the NABC'’s July 3rd
meme or that parts of the memo are “wrong” — rather, I'm interpreting the text and legislative history of NCAA
Bylaw 13.1.7.2.2 as it relates to the July evaluation period.

1 hope this helps.

Greg

Greg Walter

2/19/2008
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Assistant Director of Compliance
Big Ten Conference

Phone: (847) 696-1010. ext. 119
Fax: (847)696-1150
gwalter@bigten.org

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L [mailto:jhooker@indiana.edu]
Sent: Wednesday, July 05, 2006 1:22 PM

To: Big Ten - Greg Walter

Subject: MBB Questions

Importance: High

Greg,

Thanks for responding to my eligibility question(s). | hope you had a fun and relaxing 4™ of July weekend, since
you are now flying solo for the month of July!

Christian is out this week on vacation, so MBB came to me with some dlarificalions regarding the upcoming July
evaiuation period. | have a copy of an educational memo sent out by the NABC to all head coaches regarding
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

[GW] Yes... again, we're talking about a situation where a HS coach is not involved with or attending a cerified

vent, IU’s coach is not attending a certified event, and the only connection to a certified event is that one of the
1S coach’s athletes just happens to be participaling in a certified event at some other location at the same time.
Under these circumstances, our take is that the legisiation permits text messaging by a college coach to the HS
coach or an on-campus meeting between a college coach and the HS coach. (Note, however, that an off-campus
meeting including discussion of PSAs would be impermissible since it wouid be an evaluation not occurring at a
cerlified event, pick-up game, etc.}) Neither of these interactions compromises the intent of the originat legislation
(2001-53), which was to establish “standards governing approprate behavior of collegiate coaches attending
certified events.”

2. In light on the third bullet in #4 on the memo {which | will fax to you), this looks like contact at any location
is prohibited with both nonscholastic AND scholastic coaches. So, if this is correct (#7 in the memo seems
like they just apply 13.1.7.2.2.1 to phone calis only), does your answer on 6/29 and in #1 above change?

[GW] No — see answer to #1 above.

incidentally, regarding point #7 on the NABC memo, NCAA legislation (13.1.7.2.2.1) does not require that [U’s
coach not be in attendance at the certified event, it only requires that the high school coach or administrator not
be in attendance al or otherwise involved with the certified event. In fact, the rationale for the adoption of this
legislation (Proposal 2003-61) specifically contemplates a college coach that is attending a certified event calling
a HS coach that is not involved/atiending the certified event. See below.

Rationale Statement - 2003-61: “Finally, current reguiations preclude coaches from making telephone calls to
anyone associated with the prospect during the prospect's participation in a certified event. In some instances,

coaches will observe a prospect for the initial time and seek additional information regarding the

prospect’s gualifications and/or remaining summer schedule, The ability to make phone calls to a high-
school coach {or administrator) who is not attending the event to ascertain such information does not

compromise the objective of prohibiting all interaction at the event site and continues to further the intended
al of placing greater emphasis on the scholastic environment in the recruiting process.”

3. Can MBB allend a regularly scheduled (but not organized — the gym is just open at certain times each day)

2/19/2008
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o pick-up game at a local high school if there are PSAs from other high schools also there?
IGW] Yes.

4. DJWhite, a MBB SA at U, is working the NIKE camp in Indy. Can MBB talk to him (as long as there are no
prospects or their coaches around)? '

[GW] Possibly, but only if no PSAs, coaches of PSAs, other camp employees, elc. are present and there is no
discussion of prospective student-athletes or camp aclivities (in other words, I'm imagining a discussion between
an U coach and an 1U SA that just happens to be occurring during a break in the camp and not a discussion
relating to recruiting or camp activities involving PSAs). It probably goes without saying, but the date(s} of the
NIKE camp must be certified for your coach(es) to attend in the first place.

| wilt fax yoﬁ a copy of the memo. Thanks for helping me out!

Jennifer
~ Jennifer Brinegar |
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

Indiana University
812-855-0451

o
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, JenniferL

Sent:  Friday, July 14, 2006 8:52 AM
To: Cathoun, M. Grace -
Subject: Weekly Update

Anitra is being Chip, Kathy, and Anitra---handling NCAA Clraghse and admissions issues; faxing
NLI’s/Big Ten tenders to Big Ten after validation; answering financial aid questions when possible and
deferring others until Kathy’s return; still working to complete petitions—

waiting on Sports Medicine and FAR answering questions for Big Ten for pending petltlons providing
information to FAR for remaining faculty sponsorship cases; continuing records review of past for all
sports; hoping to update ineligibles and admission summary reports very soon; completing multiple
transfer information forms; assisting Jennifer B. with Big Ten self-report to make sure facts are accurate.

Christian updated and then sent off the 06-07 NCAA and IU compliance documents to be copied for the
fall compliance meetings; began construction of fall sports rosters for the compliance meetings; emailed
softball, baseball and volleyball about their upcoming fall recruiting periods; collected all but men’s
golf’s sports inventory forms and have verified the data with each coach; worked with the training room
to request a listing of all minors to disperse NCAA & IU information to those individuals prior to their
arrtval in August for compliance purposes; conducted weekly meeting with the director of basketbali
operations to discuss the committee on infractions sanctions, Coach Sampson’s public appearances
schedule as well as to review all recruiting records as they exist from the assistant coaches to date; and
egan playing and practice season documentation verification with each sport except for diving which
_ill provide information later in September due to NGB schedulmg issues. He continues to provide
* rules interpretations to all staff.

Jennifer investigated, drafted, submitted to the NCAA and distributed copies of two self reports of -
secondary violations; drafted and distributed the quaiterly reports to the president for both the first and
second quarters of 2006 of all secondary violations reported to either the NCAA and/or Big Ten;
researched various rules interpretations for Christian, coaches and a parent of a prospect; provided rules
education to the staff via the question of the week; and she served as the liaison for the two candidate’s -
interviewing on campus for Chip’s position (her staff also participated in an interview with each
candidate). She is working with Kip Drew at Legal regarding an Open Records Request — she has
provided documentation of how.the Special Assistance Fund monies were distributed by sport last year
and she is in the process of collecting all of the self reports and correspondence regarding same from
August 2001 to present, which she and Kip will cleanse of any confidential information regarding
student-athletes names or identities; and working on the eligibility violation self report with Anitra and
Bruce. She will be out of the office most of Friday and will be attending a compliance seminar in
Minneapolis on Monday and Tuesday. She has arranged for two additional candidates to come in for 2
day interviews on Wednesday and has left both resumes with Mattie (she indicated she was willing to
facilitate the on-campus interviews with the staff).

Jennifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

Indiana University
12-855-0451

2/19/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

crom: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent:  Wednesday, July 26, 2006 8:06 AM
To: Green, Jerry

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: Coach Sampson's Calendar

We can these by phone if necessary to expedite the process but we still need the info to make the initial
decision. Thanks.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!.

From: Green, Jerry

Sent: Wednesday, July 26, 2006 8:04 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: RE: Coach Sampson’s Catendar

hris:
is will need to be a quick turnaround to be able as to placing it on his schedule
on your part and ours.

Jerry

Jerey Green
Director of Basketball Operations

Indiana University | ,

- 812-866-0177

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Tuesday, July 25, 2006 4:39 PM

To: McElroy, Barbara J; McLaughlin, Elizabeth C; Green, Jerry; McCallum Jr, Ray; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis;
Senderoff, Robert A.; Sampson, Kelvin Dale

Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace; Brinegar, Jennifer L; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; Dolson, Scott M

Subject: Coach Sampson's Calendar

Importance: High

AN

>

Please be certain whenever you receive a request to have Coach Sampson attend an event of any kind,
that you forward it to the compliance office for approval prior to placing the event on his calendar.

2/20/2008
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O To have an event approved to go on his schedule you need to collect the following:
The name of the event/outing

The purpose of the function/event.

Where it is occurring.

What the date of the event is.

How we IU ensure that prospective aged students will not be in attendance.

DB

Due to our current circumstance, every effort to protect Indiana University in this regard is necessary
and since you all are asked from time to time to run invitations by coach, I need and appreciate your
assistance in this matter. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to ask.

Christian D. Pope
Director of Compliance
Indiana University
1001 East 17th Street
~ Bloomington, IN 47408-1590
- 812-856-6074
Go Hoosiers!

©

2/20/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent:  Wednesday, July 26, 2006 8:32 AM
To: Calhoun, M. Grace

Cc: Pope,.Christian Dean

Subject: FW: Coach Sampson's Calendar

Grace,

See below. White | understand the need for a quick turn-around, it is jus! as important (if not more so) lo have the
time needed to lhorqughly research each request 1o ensure compliance with the COJ sanctions.

Christian is putting basketball's needs and issues at the top of his priority list and has been extremely responsive
to all questions and issues.

1 would like to request your assistance (and possibly Rick's) in making sure that basketball understands
compliance is here to help them — not only in abiding by the COI penalties, but in complying with all applicable
NCAA and Big Ten rnules so that they can do their jobs to the best of their abilities. We are not here to make their
jobs harder — although it may seem like that — but the rules were voted on by membership, not by the U
compliance office! ©

1 would appreciate your thoughts and assistance in this matter.
Thanks,

wnnifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Wednesday, July 26, 2006 8:06 AM

To: Green, Jenty

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L .
Subject: RE: Coach Sampson's Calendar

" We can these by phone if necessary to expedite the process but we still need the info to make the initial

o

decision. Thanks.

Christian

Director of Compliance ,
Indiana University

812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

om: Green, Jerry
Sent: Wednesday, July 26, 2006 8:04 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

4/1/2008
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Subject: RE: Coach Sampson's Calendar

-hris: :
This will need to be a quick turnaround to be able as to placing it on his schedule
on your part and ours. :

Jerry

Jerry Green
Director of BashetGall Operations

Indiana University
872-8606-017¢

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Tuesday, July 25, 20606 4:39 PM

To: McElroy, Barbara J; McLaughlin, Elizabeth C; Green, Jerry; McCallum Jr, Ray; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis;
Senderoff, Robert A.; Sampson, Kelvin Dale

Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace; Brinegar, Jennifer L; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; Dolson, Scott M

Subject: Coach Sampson's Catendar

Importance: High

"—:_.1],

Please be certain whenever you receive a request to have Coach Sampson attend an event of any kind,
that you forward it to the compliance office for approval prior to placing the event on his calendar.

To have an event approved to go on his schedule you need to collect the following:

The name of the event/outing

The purpose of the function/event.

Where it is occurring.

What the date of the event is.

How we IU ensure that prospective aged students will not be in attendance.

XS REY

Due to our current circumstance, every effort to protect Indiana University in this regard is necessary
and since you all are asked from time to time to run invitations by coach, ] need and appreciate your
assistance in this matter. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to ask.

Christian D. Pope

Director of Compliance
Indiana University

1001 East 17th Street .
Bloomington, IN 47408-1590
812-856-6074

c o Hoosiers!

4/1/2008




c Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Sent:  Thursday, April 12, 2007 11:10 AM

To: Senderoff, Robert A. )

Cc: Kelvin Sampson; McCallum Jr, Ray; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; Rickerby, lan J
Subject: Telephone Calls

Rob,

The telephone call rule for MBB changed as of January 2006, so that you no longer get the three
calls in July (for senior prospects). The rule now states:

One call a month (IU is restricted to one every other month through July 31, 2007) to a prospect
(or his parents or legal guardians) on or after June 15 of his sophomore year in HS through July 31.
Two calls per week (IU is restricted to one per week through July 31, 2007) to a prospect (or his
parents or legal guardians) beginning August 1 prior to his senior year in high school. ' |

So, the restrictions running through July 31 (2007) really don’t make a difference per the start and
end dates for the new rule (which is located on page 89 — Bylaw 13.1.3.1.2).

I hope this helps to clarify the issue. If not, let me know.

o

1anks for asking!
Jennifer
Jennifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University
812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

o

1/28/2008
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o - Briﬁegar, Jennifer Hookér |

";From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker
Sent:  Monday, April 30, 2007 9:17 AM
To: McEiroy, Barbara J

Subject: RE:

The phone restrictions do not lift until July 31 and we will still need to monitor phone calls-
after that (going forward the same way to show institutional control). :

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

3 Go Hoosiers!!!

From: McElroy, Barbara ]
Sent: Monday, April 30, 20807 9:09 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

. o Subject:

Jennifer,

After the end of May, when everything is lifted from Coach Sampson, do | still need to have
all of the guys sign those phone forms about if they used their home, office, cell, or

additonal phones for recruiting purposes?
‘Thanks,

BJ

B.Y.

B.J. McElroy

Assistant to Coach Kelvin Sampson
Indiana University

Men’s Basketball

(812)855-2238

[

1/28/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer L vrems=
From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Wednesday, August 02, 2006 11:43 AM

To: Senderoff, Robert A.; McEiroy, Barbara J; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; Greenspan, Richard I;

Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; Green, Jerry; McLaughlin, Elizabeth C; McCallum Jr, Ray; Sampson,
Kelvin Dale; Garl, Tim C . :

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subiject: September Contact Period reminder
Attachments: MBK Fall contacl-eval 06.doc

Coach,

Please review the attached reminder for the fa]l contact/evaluation period. As always, do not hesitate if
you have any questions. Thank you.

Christian D. Pope

Director of Compliance
Indiana University

1001 East 17th Street
Bloomington, IN 47408-1590
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

8/30/2006




A Men’s Bilskgtball Fall 2006 Contact Period (08/02/06)

Contact Period (No cvaluanons at sites other than the prospect’s educational

- institution)
Evaluation Period

WOclober 6-November 5

Recruiting Person Days 13.02.7
Men’s basketball staff members cannot exceed | 5. A recruiting-person day is defined as one

coach engaged in an off-campus recruiting activity of a men’ ’s basketball prospcct on one day (12:0la.m. through
midnight}. Two coaches engaged in recruiting activities on the same day shall use two recruiting person days.

Contactable Prospects 13.1.1.1.2
In basketball, contact cannot be made with a prospect prior to the opening day of classes of the prospect’s senior year in
high school (and in no instance before September 9, 2006. which is the beginning of your contact period this year).

Visit to Prospect’s Educational Institution 13.1.5.1
Staff members may not visit a prospect’s educational institutie;
within a contact period, regardless of the number of

contacted during that one occasion. :

p on more than one occasion during a particular week
d at that institution or whether any prospect is

All visits that occur during the time period in which sion must receive thé approval of the executive

officer (or designee) of the prospect’s educational in

JE 3

Number of contacts 13.1.6.3
During the academic year, IU is limited to (contacts and evalvations combined) per
orosoect, but may not include more than three, in-person, off-campus contacts during the prospect’s senior year. Also

i nber, your 130 person day limit during the academic year.

Off-campus recruiting: At any one time 11.7.4.3.1
It is permissible for a coach to leave campus 10 engage in off-campus contact or evaluation before another coach who 15
off-campus actually retumns to campus, provided the total number of coaches recruiting on behalf of the institution at any

time do not exceed the permissible number.

In other words, if the limitation on the number of coaches who are permitted to contact or evaluate prospects off campus
at any one time is reached, another coach in that same sport may leave campus to engage in off-campus contacts or
I E e SRRV aTayt e does not begin any off-campus recruiting activity until the coach being replaced has
completed his recruiting activities. Further, the replaced coach mdy not engage in additional recruiting activities until .
after he or she has returned to the institution’s campus.

. ’

Men’s basketball is limited to a [N RIT RSOy Who may engage in off-campus recruiting at any one time.

Telephone calls 13.1.3.1.2
The following are the standard regulations for men's basketball. Please remember that the committee on
infractions case resulted in a reduction for YU in the following areas. Note the text in parentheses,

In men’s basketball, IU is permitted to make SCREEIMERTI RN ENONIIRGERa el [or the prospect’s parents or legal
A fon or after June 13 of the prospect's sophiomore vear in high school through July 31 of the prospect's juniot
GURNRULIEIION (COT reduction- one call every other month)

97 < permitted to make ISR (G e AT RN T IR R s {or prospect’s parents or legal guardian(s)]
R R R e R R R Rt eI} (COX reduction — one call per week)

ospeci (Uil prospect’s parentsflegal

1U is permitted to make o}

¢ telephone call per week to a two-yeur college pr
guardian(s)]. :
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G Brinegar, Jennifer L

srom: Pope, Christian Dgan

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2006 12:58 PM

Ta: Sampson, Kelvin Dale; Green, Jerry; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; McCallum Jr, Ray' Senderoff,
Robert A.

Cc: McElray, Barbara J; McLaughlin, Elizabeth C; Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject:  FW: Official Visit Question
Importance: High

FYI

Christian D. Pope
.Director of Compliance
Indiana University -
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin
Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2006 12:45 PM
To: 'Big Ten - Chad Hawley"
Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L; Cathoun, M. Grace; Pope, Christian Dean; Green, Jerry; Greenspan, Richard 1
Subject: RE: Official Visit Question
portance: High

" Thanks, Chad — we truly appreciate this information and your prompt assistance. 1 will see to it that this message
is quickly distributed to the appropriate parties within our men’s basketball staff, our comphance staff and our -
athletic administration. We wifl ceitainly let you know if we have further questions or require addmonal
assistance.

Hope to see you soon. Go Hoosiers!

Tim Fitzpatrick

From: Big Ten - Chad Hawley [mailto:CHawley@bigten.org]

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2006 12:37 PM ,
To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin .
Subject: Offidial Visit Question

Tim:

. Just wanted to let you know that I've heard from both Chris Strobet (Dir. of Secondary Enforcement) and Shep
Cooper (Dir. of the Committee on Infractions) today, and both confirmed that the off-campus recruiting ban
does ude ch Sampson fro ing o mpus cofntact {withi ile radius

cl id)_visit to Indiana. So for example, if Coach Sampson’s home is within
30 miles of campus, it would be permissible for him 1o host prospects making an official visit at his home. Again,
this is applicable only to prospects on official visits; the off-campus ban would be in effect for all other ofi-campus
contacts.

Qe this helps. Let me know if you have further questions. I'll leave it up to you to distribute this to the
ppropriate folks on your end.

8/30/2006




Chad

G Chad Hawley

—s  Agsistant Commissioner
~  ig Ten Conference
1500 W. Higgins Rd.
Park Ridge, IL 60068
ph: 847/696-1010, x. 118
fax: 847/696-1150

©

8130/2006
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Tuesdéy. September 26, 2006 8:49 AM
To:  McLaughlin, Elizabeth C

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: Queslion!

Beth,

Coach Sampson is allowed to write correspondence to prospects provided they are juniors or seniors in
high school at this point in time. The committee on infractions penalties and Indiana University’s
adoption of Oklahoma’s penalties do not include a ban or restriction on written correspondence. Thank
you for the question.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: McLaughlin, Elizabeth C
»nt: Monday, September 25, 2006 11:36 AM

" .0: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: Question!

Good Afternoon, | hope ydur weekend was welll | was wondering if Coach Sampson is aflowed 1o write thank you
noles to recruits that have come in this past weekend. Thank you for alt your help!

Take Care
Beth

9/27/2007
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent:  Friday, September 29, 2006 4:21 PM

To: Sampson, Kelvin Dale

Cc: Greenspan, Richard I; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; Calhoun, M. Grace; Pope, Christian Dean
Subject: FW: Sampson's request regarding phone calls subsequent to NLI

Coach Sampson,
NCAA Enforcement checked with the COI regarding your question as to whether you would be
able to call a prospect once he has signed an NLI with Indiana. Unfortunately, the COI said the
ruling last May precludes you from calling prospects, regardless of whether they have signed an
NLIL
You may, of course, continue to text message and emai! the signees.
Thanks for checking,
Jennifer
Jennifer Brinegar
\ssistant Athletics Director - Compliance
. .adiana University

812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

" From: Cooper, Shep [mailto:scooper@ncaa.org]

Sent: Friday, September 29, 2006 11:20 AM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L; Strobel, Chris

Cc: Elworth, Jim

Subject: RE: Sampson's request regarding phone calls subsequent to NLI

Jennifer:

Jim Elworth has been handling most of the issues with regard to the OU case and the sanctions which followed
Kelvin Sampson to IU, so | forwarded your e-mail to him.

He is out today, so I'm nol certain if he has responded to you. Regardless, | know that he checked with the
committee and the ruling was that Coach Sampson should nol tetephone prospects, regardless of whether they
have signed LQlis, as you set forth in #2-of your e-mail below. -

Thanks for checking and tet me know if you have any additional questions.

Shep Cooper

“hepard C. Cooper

irector of the NCAA Infractions Committees
P.O. Box 6222

4/4/2008
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Indianapolis, IN 46206-6222
(317)917-6222

----- Original Message-—--
From: Brinegar, Jennifer L [mailto:jhooker@indiana.edu]
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2006 12:14 PM
To: Cooper, Shep; Strobel, Chris
- Subject: FW: Sampson’s request regarding phone calls subsequent to NLI

Shep and Chris,

I hope you both are doing well. We have a dilemma at IUU. Can Coach Sampson call a
prospect once he signs an NLI to attend TU {during the early signing period in November)'?
We believe there are two ways of looking at this quesnon

L. Even after a prospect signs a valid NLI, they are still considered a prospect per
NCAA Bylaw 13.02.11. The only designation that has changed is that now they
are considered “recruited.” One could find that the COl would not preclude
Coach Sampson from making phone calls on that basis. The reasoning for this
stance is that we do have in the COI report that our coaches may make unlimited
phone calls per 13.1.3.3.3 subsequent to the signing of the NLI (without regard to
the restrictions on phone calls). Therefore, it could be presumed that this
exception includes Sampson. Moreover, that line of thought appears to be
supported on page 19 of the May 25, 2006 COI public infractions report which
says, “any phone calls that relate in any way to recrditing.” It can be easily
demonstrated that these calls-are not for recruiting purposes once a NLI has been
signed and processed to the Big Ten.

2. The other train of thought is that the COI may view any phone call to d prospect
to be impermissible for Coach Sampson until the “prospect(s)” satisfies one of the
three criteria of bylaw 13.02.11 and becomes a student-athlete, or the sanctions
are lifted on May 24, 2007.

Would you be able to provide us with some direction on this issue or do we need to take it
to the COI? If so, could you please pass the question on to them?

Thanks,

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director — Comphance
Indiana University

(812)855-0451

Go Hoosiers!

This email and any attachments may contain confidential and privileged
information. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the

“nder immediately by return email, delete this message and destroy any
copies. Any dissemination or use of this information by a person other
than the intended recipient is unauthorized and may be illegal.

'4/4/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From:  Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent:  Monday, October 02, 2006 4:30 PM
To: 'Big Ten - Chad Hawley'

Subject: FW: MBB Incident

FYI - I'll let you know if we hear anything from the COI. Thanks for bearing with me on our other
issue today. I do appreciate your advice and assistance, and I’'m glad we’re on the same side 99% of

- the time!

_ Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University
812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

From: Cooper, Shep [mailto:scooper@ncaa.org]

Sent: Monday, October 02, 2006 11:04 AM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L; Strobel, Chris; Elworth, Jim

Cc: Greenspan, Richard I; Jaffee, Bruce L.; Calhoun, M. Grace; Sampson Kelvm Dale
Subject: RE: MBB Incident

Jennifer-
Thank you for your detailed report. | appreciate your efforls in following up with this. | will forward your message

to the committee to determine if there is any need for additional information. FIl get back to you as soonas t geta
response.

Shep Cooper

Shepard C. Cooper

Director of the NCAA Infractions Committees
P.O. Box 6222

Indianapolis, IN 46206-6222

(317)917-6222

————— Original Message-—--

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L [mailto:jhooker@indiana.edu]

Sent: Friday, September 29, 2006 6:20 PM

To: Cooper, Shep; Strobel, Chris; Elworth, Jim

Cc: Greenspan, Richard I; Jaffee, Bruce L.; Calhoun, M. Grace; Sampson, Kelvin Dale
Subject: MBB Incident

Importance: High

Shep, Chris and Jim,

I wanted to bring the following matter to your attention as soon as I was able to gather all of
the facts.

4/7/2008
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Coach Sampson, at the request of the TU Varsity Club and the IU Alumni Association
(IUAA), had two speaking engagements in northern Indiana this week. He spoke at
Merrillville on Tuesday and Ft. Wayne on Wednesday. In order to ensure compliance with
the COI sanctions, we sent the director of compliance to help monitor attendance at these
events, Prior to the Ft. Wayne event, one of the staff members in the Varsity Club
approached the director of compliance with an article from the Post-Tribune (a Gary,
Indiana newspaper) that indicated a prospect-aged individual had attended the event in
Merrillville on the previous evening. Upon returning to work on Thursday morning, the -
director of compliance met with me and I asked him to follow up with the columnist who
wrote the article as well as the alum who brought along his daughter’s boyfriend (a HS
junior who we are not recruiting nor are we recruiting anyone from his high school to play
basketball at IU). The columnist interviewed the two outside of the banquet room and did
not see them enter the room. However, the alum confirmed in a phone conversation with
the director of compliance late yesterday that he and his daughter’s boyfriend entered the
room after Sampson began speaking and sat in the back of the room.

The director of compliance and the Varsity Club staff had worked extensively with the
TUAA staff and the local organizing committee to make sure that all who were invited to
this event were informed that no prospect-aged individuals could be in attendance (the
invitation specifically stated that this was an NCAA restricted event and that no individual

in the 9th through 12t grade could attend this event), and had checked the pre-registration
list to ensure that this restriction was being met. The event organizers also questionned
people who entered the room (they actually turned away one high school aged individual),
and the director of compliance and staff from the Varsity Club circulated the room prior to
the event starting to ensure compliance. Apparently, the alum and the high schooler entered
unnoticed after the program had started. To be honest, we all find it very strange that no one
(the director of compliance, the AD, the coach, the Varsity Club staff, the TUAA staff and
the event organizers) noticed these two enter the room, sit through the program and then
leave, as the director of compliance believes that 98% in attendance were 50 or older."

Regardless, this is the only time we are aware that such a situation has occurred during
Coach Sampson’s speaking engagements since May 25, 2006. We will implement additional
security procedures to ensure that this does not happen again.

Please let me know if you need any further information.

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

Indiana University '

812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!

This email and any attachments may contain confidential and privileged -
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
¢ “han the intended recipient is unauthorized and may be illegal.

S
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

“Sent:  Monday, October 16, 2006 2:22 PM -
To: Calhoun, M. Grace
Subject: FW: Official Visit Question

FYI

Jennifer Brinegar :
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance -
Indiana University :
812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

Ffom: Cooper, Shep [mailto:scooper@ncaa.org]

‘Sent: Monday, October 16, 2006 12:00 PM

To: Big Ten - Chad Hawley
Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L; Elworth, Jim; Strobel, Chris; Najjar, Ameen; Price; David; Yeager, Tom {Business)
Subject: RE: Official Visit Question

Chad-

i have heard back from the majority of the committee members who sat for the OU case. The feedback | received
from them confirms the guidance 1 provided to you back in August (and which you set forth in your August 30 e-
mail to Tim Fltzpatnck fbelow)). .

Specifically, Bylaw 13.6.6.1 {General Restrictions) would apply with regard to official pald visits and Kelvin
Sampson’s recruiting activities during the OPVs. That bylaw addresses the “30-mile rule.”

Please let me know if you have any questions. My apologies for any confusion on this issue.

Shep Cooper

Shepard C. Cooper o
Director of the NCAA Infrachons Committees
P.O. Box 6222

_Indianapolis, IN 46206-6222

(317)917-6222

From: Big Ten - Chad Hawley [mailto:CHawley@bigten.org]
Sent: Thursday, October 12, 2006 5:17 PM :

To: Cooper, Shep

Subject: FW: Offidial Visit Question

Shep:
“his is the notification | sent to Indiana. Just let me know if | need to tell them something different (or keep me in

«ne loop if you follow up with them). 1 may be out of the office over the next few days, so if you don’t get me here,
call my cell phone anytime: 630-772-8801.

4/7/2008
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Thanks,
Chad

From: Big Ten - Chad Hawley

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2006 11:37 AM

To: IN - Tim Fitzpatrick, MBB/WBB Tournament Contact
Subject: Official Visit Question

Tim:

Just wanted to let you know that I've heard from both Chris Strobel (Dir. of Secondary Enforcement) and Shep
Cooper {Dir. of the Committee on Infractions) today, and both confirmed that the off-campus recruiting ban does
NOT preclude Coach Sampson from having off-campus contact (within a 30-mile radius) with a prospect who is
making an official {paid) visit to Indiana. So for example, if Coach Sampson’s home is within 30 miles of campus,
it would be permissible for him 1o host prospects making an official visit at his home. Again, this is appiicable only
to prospects on official visits; the off-campus ban would be in effect for all other off-campus contacts.

I hope this helps. Let me know if you have further questions. I'l leave it up to you to distribute this to the
appropriate folks on your end.

Chad

Chad Hawley

Assistant Commissioner
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

4/17/2008




O Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

.rom: Calhoun, M. Grace

Sent:  Tuesday, Oclober 31, 2006 11:09 AM

To: Greenspan, Richard I; Cuervo, Frank Martin

Cc: Smithson, Teni J; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: RE: Radio Sponsor Lunch

Compliance has approved this event. Christian will follow up on delails for his records. Jennifer Brinegar will
altend to police the door and ensure that no prospects gain admittance.
MGC

M. Grace Calfioun, MBA, PAD.

Associate Athletic Director/Senior Woman Administrator
Indiana University Department of Intercollegiate Atfiletics
office phone 812/855-0876

From: Greenspan, Richard 1 ,

Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2006 9:44 AM

To: Cuervo, Frank Martin

Cc: Smithson, Terri J; Calhoun, M. Grace; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Subject: RE: Radio Sponsor Lunch

I will ask TJ to put as a lentative on my schedule. Please clear Coach Sampsons appearance with Compliance. |

From: Cuervo, Frank Martin

Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2006 7:50 AM

To: Greenspan, Richard I; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin
Subject: Radio Sponsor Lunch

Wanted to let you both know that Coach Jack and Sampson have agreed to speak at a radio sponsor funcheon,
coordinated through Arlistic Media, at Colorado Steakhouse next Tuesday, Nov. 7 at 11:30am (they will actually
speak at about noon and 12:25, respeclively). There will be approximately 50-75 people at the lunch (Seminary
Hall, where Hep's radio show is held), both current and potential sponsors. You are certainly welcome to attend if
you like and your schedule permits.....I plan on being there lo make sure everything runs smoothly. Let me know

if you have any questions. Thanks. '
FC

Frank M. Cuerve

Assistant Director of Athletics- External Operations
Indiana University Department of Athletics

Assemnbly Hall- 1001 East 17th Street

Bloomington, Indiana 47408 * P: 812-856-1401

o

2/5/2008
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c Brinegar, Jennifer L

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: ~ Monday, December 11, 2006 9:03 AM
"To: Brinegar, Jenniter L
Subject: Woeekiy Basketball update

- Atachments: DOBO 12.06.06 Supplement.doc; MBK 12.04-08.06.doc

Jennifer,

‘ Here are the weekly basketball logs as well as the educational materials used in the Wednesday DOBO
meeting.

Christian D. Pope .

Director of Compliance
Indiana University

1001 East 17th Street
‘Bloomington, IN 47408-1590
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

o

12/11/2006




| wonday December 4, 2006

1. 9:22-9:25 AM

2. 9:26-9:30 AM

3. 10:45-10:49 AM

Tuesday December 5, 2006

i 9:32-957 AM

2. 9:58-10:23 AM

o " 10:24-10:32 AM

4. 1:45-1:49 PM

Basketball Logs for the week of December 4 - 8, 2006

I reviewed and logged the monthly coaches phone usage declaration sheets.

I emailed John Tweedie to run a report for my auditinhg of office phdne
usage for the basketball staff to cross check records against the Cybersports
database.

" I spoke with Jerry Green regarding the athletically related activities process

and due dates for reports. He referred me to Tim Garl ands said that he -
would speak with Tim regarding the process and the request for timely
reports.

I edited the director of basketball operations agenda for tomorrows meetin g

I searched the Division I official notice on-line for all pertinent men’s

_basketball legislations to include in the rules education supplement for

tomorrows basketball weekly meeting.

I preparcd the basketball Opcratnon rules education supplement materi als
from the research materials from item #2 above.

1 spoke with Jerry Green about the weekly meeting for the months of -
December and January and we planned out the schedule to-avoid
competitions and days away from campus.

1. 8:42-8:46 AM

2. 9:00-9:34 AM

3. 1:15-1:17 PM

Wednesday December 6, 2006

I prepared the materials for the weekly director of Basketball operations
meeting.

I met with Jerry Green and Jeff Meyer for our weekly director of basketball
operations meeting to include coach Sampson speaking engagement
calendar review and a rules education component where new proposed
legislation relevant to basketball was introduced.

I spoke with BJ McElroy about autographed items requests from the JU
alumni association. Irequested that the forms be sent to my attention for
processing and approval. 1 also approved one autographed item request and
processed the form to BJ.




i1

Friday December 8, 2006

2:40-2:44 PM

2:58-3:00 PM

1.

2.

8:45-8:58 AM

3:12-3:15 PM

I met with Ray McCallum regarding his concern for a potenﬁal APR issue.
I informed him to approach Anitra for specifics but described the basic
framework to retain and stay eligible equating to 2 points per term.

I spoke with Beth McLaughlin about autographed items requests.

1 met with Jeff Meyer concerning recruiting materials and thefimy future at -
Iggfin University.

I Memoed Eric Behrman about autographed item requests and referred him
to BY McElroy about the new forms and process for requesting such.




DOBO mesting Supplement — (12.06.06)

’ NO. 2006-23 AMATEURISM — INVOLVEMENT WITH PROFESSIONAL TEAMS — TRYOUT AFTER ENROLLMENT ~ RECEIPT
OF EXPENSES -— SUMMER OR NOT FULL TIME

..tz To specify that a student-athlete may Iry out with a professional organization in a sport during the summer or during the
academic year while not a full-time student, provided the student-athlete does not receive more than one expense-paid visit from each
professional team (or a combine including that team) and each visit does not exceed a 48-hour period.

Source: Atlantic 10 Conference.

Effective Date: Inmediate

Category: Amendment

Topical Area: Amateurism

Rationale: Cumently, tryouts with a professional team are permitted during the summer or during the academic year if the student-
athlete is not enrolled full time and does not accept any payment of expenses from the professional team. If the rules permit student-
athletes to enter a professional league’s draft, the student-athletes should be able to participate in tryouts that may assist them in
evaluating their likelihood of being drafted. Permitting professional teams to pay the actual and necessary expenses associated with a
tryout would provide more opportunities for student-athletes who may not be able to pay their own expenses. This proposal would
also reduce the pressure on student-athletes to seek funding from outside sources. The legislation would continue 10 restrict tryouts to
the summer or during the academic year when a student-athlete is not enrolled full time so that student-athletes do not feel the need to
withdraw from their institutions in order to participate in such tryouts. . Lastly, current legislation permits an individual prior 10
collegiate enrollment to participate in one expense-paid visit per professional team, provided such a visit does not exceed 48 hours..

Proposal No. 2006-22 better addresses the sponsor’s concerns related to providing tryout opportunities 1o student-athletes. In addition,
the proposal does not further the student-athlete’s academic performance, does not provide meaningful solutions to team disruption
and may encourage student-athletes to drop to part-time status during the academic year. Finally, the cabinet noted that the NCAA
Division 1 Student-Athlete Reinstatement Committee supports Proposal No. 2006-22 {as modified) and opposes Proposal No. 2006-
23. '
Men's Basketball Issues Committee: The committee [JJJJlil the proposal, noting that it does not further the student-athlete’s.
academic performance, does not provide meaningful solutions to team disruption and could encourage student-athletes to drop to part-

e tatus during the academic year in order to engage in a pald tryout.

*-Athlete Reinstatement Committee: The commitice Il Proposal No. 2006-23. The committee gencmlly supports the

concept but believes Proposal No. 2006-22 better addresses the issues and thus, would support modifications to that proposal.

NO. 2006-25 AMATEURISM — INVOLVEMENT WITH PROFESSIONAL TEAMS — PROFESSIONAL BASKETBALL
DRAFT — FOUR-YEAR COLLEGE STUDENTATHLETE — MEN’S BASKETBALL

Intent: In men’s basketbail, to specify that an enrolled student-athlete may enter a professional league’s dratt one time during his
collegtate career without jeopardizing eligibility in the sport, provided that within 30 days after the conclusion of the NCAA Division
1 Men’s Basketball Championship game, the siudent athlete requests that his name be removed from the draft list and declares his
intention to resume intercollegiate participation, the studeni-athlete’s declaration of intent is in writing to the institution’s director of
athletics, and the student-athlete is not drafied.

Source: Big Ten Conference.

Effective Date: August 1, 2007

Category: Amendment

Topical Area: Amateurism

Rationale: Currently, men’s basketball student-athletes have as many as 30 days after the NBA draft 1o indicate their intent to retumn
to collegiate participation (e.g., the 2006 NBA draft date was June 28). This two to three month period between April and July is
intrusive on academic performance during the spring, and increases the potential for outside individuals to have a negative influence .
on the well-being of men’s basketball student athletes. Establishing a shorter timeframe by which men’s basketball student-athletes
must withdraw from the draft and declare their intent to resume intercollegiate participation will encourage student-athletes to refocus
on academics sooner and lessen the potential for committing violations that jeopardize amateur status. This proposal complements the
proposed legislation that would allow currently enrolled student-athletes to engage in tryouts with professional tcams while enrolled
full time as potential solutions to address academic concerns and the overall well-being of men’s basketball student-athletes.

Academics/Eligibility/Compliance Cabiner: The cabinet unanimously [l Proposal No. 2006-25. The cabinet believes that the
nroposal would negatively impact the well-being of basketball student-athletes by not providing adequate time for the student athletes
€ ate their status and make an informed decision about their potential professional future. Specifically, the cabinet believes that
. .-athletes should be able to participate in individual workouts and a professional sports organization’s predraft basketball camp
portunities to evaluate their status. A 30-day nmelmc following the NCAA Division 1 Men’s Basketball Championship game
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within 30 days after the national championship. The 30-day reflection period should continue to start after the conclusion of the actual
o drafi.
L Student-Athlete Reinstatement Committee: The commitiee 3 on Proposal 2006-25. The committee does not
helirve 30 days beyond the NCAA Division I men's basketball championship provides adequate time. The committec agrees that
. some parameters on the declaration process makes sense but would dcfer to the NCAA Division I Men's Basketball Issues
Committee as to what the appropriate parameters should be.

l Mén's Basketball Issues Committee: The committee I i proposal, noting that the student-athlete may not know his draft status

NO. 2006-52 ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS —RECRUITING CALENDARS — MEN’S BASKETBALL — MARCH
CONTACT

PERIOD

Intent: In men’s basketbali, to establish a contact period March 16 through 22.

Source: Southern Conference.

Effective Date: Inmediate

Category: Amendment

Topical Area: Recruiting :

Rationale: The elimination of the March contact period in men’s basketball has condensed the period of time during which off
campus conlacls between prospective student-athletes and collegiate coaches can occur prior 10 the start of the spring signing period of
the National Letter of Intent. The current men’s basketball recruiting calendar provides collegiate coaches with less than six days
during which off-campus contact with a prospects can occur prior to the start of spring signing period. The increased external
pressures the spring signing period brings to both collegjate coaches and prospective student-athletes are compounded due to the
reduction of face-to-face off-campus recruiting opportunities prior to the start of the period. This proposal 1o reinstate the March
contact period will provide prospective student-athletes and their families with increased opportunities to meet with collegiate coaches
and should assist the prospective student-athlete in selecting an institution and coach that best fit the needs of the prospective student-
athlete. This change also should enable institutions to make more sound recruiting judgments. The current recruiting calendar in
women’s basketball provides coaches in that sport with 30 days during the month of March {March 1 through 30) during which
collegiate coaches can conduct off-campus contacts with prospective sindent-athleles prior to the start of the spring signing period.

Men’s Basketball Issues Committee: The committee § the proposal based on the sponsor’s rationale.
Academics/Eligibility/Compliance Cabinet: Thé cabinet unanimously gB # Proposal No. 2006-52. The cabinet agrees with the
onsor’s rationale statement and notes that the proposal does not increase the number of recruiting-person days. The cabinet noted
G Men’s Basketball Issues Committee supports the proposal. .

NO. 2006-53 ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS —RECRUITING CALENDARS — MEN’S BASKETBALL —
CHAMPIONSHIP DEAD PERIOD

Intent: In men’s basketball, to specify that the dead period suo oundmg the NCAA Division I Men’s Basketball Chamnpionship shall
be froms Thursday prior to the championship game until noon on Thursday following the championship game.

Source: NCAA Division I Championships/Competition Cabinet (Men’s Basketball Issues Committee).

Effective Date: Immediate

Category: Amendment

Topical Area: Recruiting

Rationate: Coaches are pressured 1o increase recruiting activities in April prior to the National Letter of Intent signing period. As a
resuit, many coaches leave the Final Four prior to the championship game or do not attend the related events. By extending the dead
period until the Thursday after the conclusion of the championship game, coaches would be able to celebrate their sport by atiending
all of the associated activities and still have adequate time in April to make last-minute recruiting contacts before the signing pesiod

begins.

Academics/Eligibility/Compliance Cabinet: The cabinet unanimously 8 Proposal No. 2006-53. The cabinet agrees with the
sponsor’s rationale statement. Specifically, extending the dead period surounding the Division | Men’s Basketball Champioaship will
encourage men’s basketball coaches to remain engaged and in attendance at the championship until its conclusion.

e ————
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent:  Friday, January 05, 2007 10:21 AM
To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

_ Subject: RE: National Guard Homecoming Party

Thanks for the update. If a compliance presence 1s needed, let me know. [ would go, but am
scheduled to be at Crawfordsville for a swim meet that both of my sons are competing in this
weekend. Since it is in Ellettsville, I could see if Christian could go, if needed.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana Untversity

812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

From: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2007 10:10 AM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L .

Subject: FW: National Guard Homecoming Party

Jen —
Here’s our guidance direclly from Rick....I"N call Jerry and tell him to make sure that Coach Sampson understands

that he cannot currently attend this event in the state that we know it'io be. We may need to prep for some bad
PR, but I'd rather have that issue that a tussie with the COI over a goodwill gesture.

Thanks,

Tim

From: Greenspan, Richard I

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2007 10:02 AM

To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Subject: RE: National Guard Homecoming Party

Absolutely.......... I mandate full compliance with the COM restrictions and if the event needs to be moved or
cancelled so be it. | assume they could restrict attendance as we have with other events but these matters need
coordination, clearance and approval as we have stated uneguivocally in the past. t is Jerry’s responsibility to
have full transparency with us in a timely manner so we can handle administratively.

RG

From: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2007 9:49 AM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Cc: Green, Jerry; Greenspan, Richard I
Subject: RE: National Guard Homecoming Party

4/9/2008
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Importance: High

Jen —

Thanks for this information....f appreciate it. 'm going to forward this to both Rick Greenspan and Jerry Green so
they can be in this loop. | agree with your assessment about the problem with probable attendance by prospect
age individuals as the event is being held at Edgewood High School in Elletisville. Rick needs to know for a lot of
reasons, and | think we need lo have Jerry ask Coach Sampson directly whether or not he plans on attending the
event. If he’s not planning on going, we likely don’t have an issue. If he is, then we need to intervene
administratively to make sure that he does not, per the sanclions we're working under. | know this particular

. cause is near-and-dear to Coach Sampson, but we still need to make sure that we comply with the terms and
conditions of the sanction. I'll contact Jerry separately and get an answer here quickly.

Be back to you soon with further guidance, and thanks for bringing this matter to my attention. It's far better for us
to be safe rather than sorry in this case.

Tim

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2007 9:41 AM
To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Subject: National Guard Homecoming Party
Importance: High

Tim,

As you are aware, Coach Sampson was invited to be a part of the celebration for the returning
members of the National Guard from the war in Irag. BJ or Beth contacted me via phone last week
and asked if this was perm1531ble I said it would be permissible only if they could guarantee that no
prospect-aged individuals were in attendance — which I stated would probably be impossible since
family members would be in attendance.

Last night, I heard an ad on the radio inviting members of the public to this event at Edgewood
High School in Ellettsville and this morning there is a big article on page 3 of the front section in
the H-T again inviting the public. The radio ad and the H-T article both listed Sampson as co-chair

of this event.

1 am not sure if he is planning on attending or just is being listed as the co-chair, but he can not
attend any event that is open to the public (per the sanctions imposed by the COI) UNLESS they
move the homecoming party to somewhere on IU’s campus.

Please let me know l_'low.I should proceed.
Thanks,

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

Indiana University
812-855-0451

4/9/2008 -
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Go Hoosiers!t!
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o Brinegar, Jennifer Hookér

From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Sent:  Thursday, March 08, 2007 3:18 PM
To: McElroy, Barbara J

Subject: RE: MN Clinic

Thanks - I think we're good to go. Coach Sampson will just need to be very vigilant that no
prospect-aged individuals are in his presence at any point during this clinic or he violates the COI

sanctions.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

From: McElroy, Barbara J
Sent: Thursday, March 08, 2007 2:43 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

e Subject: FW: MN Clinic

-----Original Message----

From: Dan Ninham [mailto:DNinham@clbs.k12.mn.us]
Sent: Thursday, March 08, 2007 2:46 PM

To: McElroy, Barbara J

Subject: Re: MN Clinic

Please forward to your compliance department:
The demonstrators of the 2007 Panther Hoops Coaching Clinic, Cass Lake, MN, o.n May 6th will
be members of the current/former Bemidji State University Men's' Basketbail Team. No 9th-12th

grade individuals will be allowed to be demonstrators or be allowed to be in the audience of Coach
Kelvin Sampson's presentations.

- Dan Ninham
Director
PHCC
>>> "McElroy, Barbara J" <bymcelro@indiana.edu> 03/08/07 1:15 PM >>>
I haven't heard from you lately regarding the clinic and the taping issue.
o Secondly, our Compliance office needs confirmation that you will not be using any 9th-12th

graders as demonstrators at the clinic.

3/26/2008
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Thank you so much.

B.J. McElroy

Assistant to Coach Kelvin Sampson
Indiana University

Men's Basketball

(812)855-2233

3/26/2008
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c Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Sent: Monday, May 07, 2007 5:59 PM

To: Kelvin Sampson; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; McCallum Jr, Ray; Senderoff, Robert A.

Cc: Greehspan, Richard I; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; Calhoun, M. Grace; Rickerby, lan J

Subject:  COI Sanctions
Importance: High

‘Folks,

There has been a discrepancy regarding the end date of the telephone call restricions. While all of
Coach Sampson's restrictions end as of May 25, 2007, the restrictions on the number of calls that
TU can make don’t end until July 31, 2007. I had inadvertently listed this date as June 30, 2007 on
the letter of understanding signed off on by Coach Sampson, Rick and Bruce, as well as the COI
report we submitted 1ast August. Unfortunately, no one at IU, the NCAA, or the COI caught my
error. I have made sure that the weekly agendas have had the correct end dates for all of the
penalties since April 4, 2007.

Here are the relevant sections from the original COI report laslt May 25, 2006:

E. The number of permissible calls to prospects on or after June 15 of the prospects’
o\ sophomore year in high school through July 31 of the prospects’' junior year in high
school shall be reduced from one call per month to one call every other month for a
period of two years commencing August 1, 2005, and concluding July 31, 2007.
Exceptions to this penalty will be permitted in accordance with the provisions of NCAA
Bylaws 13.1.3.3.2 (Official Visit Exception), 13.1.3.3.3 (Letter of Intent Signing Date -
Exception) and 13.1.3.3.4 (Telephone Calls Subsequent to National Letter of Intent
Signing or Other Written Commitment). This penalty will result in a minimum reduction
of 240 calls over a two-year period of implementing the reduction and was imposed to
directly address any recruiting advantage gained by the impermissible telephone calls.
(Self-imposed penalty adopted by the committee as its own.) :

F. The mstitution shall reduce the number of permissible calls to prospects on or after
August ] of their senior year in high school from two calls per week to one call per week
for a period of two years commencing August 1, 2005, and concluding July 31, 2007.
Exceptions to this penalty will be permitted in accordance with the provisions of NCAA
Bylaws 13.1.3.3.2 (Official Visit Exception), 13.1.3.3.3 (Letter of Intent Signing Date
Exception) and 13.1.3.3.4 (Telephone Cails Subsequent to National Letter of Intent
Signing or Other Written Commitment). This penalty will result in a reduction of from at
least 780 calls up to possibly more than 1,600 calls over a period of two years. These
numbers are based on a calling period from August to April, which is about 40 weeks,
and recruiting 20 prospective student-athletes per year. (Self-imposed penalty adopted by
the committee as its own.)

1. The former head coach was restricted to engaging in off-campus recruiting activities for
o a maximum of 19 days during a period commencing August 1, 2005, and concluding

5/16/2007
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June 30, 2006. Further, this prohibition applies to all off-campus appearances at which prospects

may be in attendance including exceptions provided in Bylaw 13.1.9. (Self-imposed
penalty adopted by the committee as its own.)

The institution retroactively implemented a ban on the former head coach's eligibility for
bonus compensation due under the former head coach's contract for the two year period
of March 2, 2005, through March 1, 2007. During the same two year penod, the former

- head coach’s employment contract shall not be renegotiated, amended or extended and he

shall not be eligible for any compensation increase. According to financial figures
supplied by the institution, the cost to the former head coach over the two year period
will be approximately $180,000. (Self-imposed by the university.)

The former head coach's present institution adopted and transferred penalties E, F, J and
K above. It noted that the former head coach had already used 15 of the 19 permissible
off-campus recruiting days at Oklahoma and would therefore only be able to be off-
campus four days from the date of his hiring through June 30, 2006. The present
institution has also required weekly -meetings between compliance personnel and the
director of basketball operations to monitor men's basketball recruiting activities. While
the committee recognizes the significance of the transferred penalties it determined that,
because of the number and nature of the violations committed by the former head coach
as well as the atmosphere of noncompliance he fostered and encouraged among his
assistant coaches, further recruiting restrictions are warranted. Therefore, his current
employing institution shall, pursuant to the provisions of NCAA Bylaw 19.5.2.2 (1), show
cause why it should not be penalized if it does not prohibit the former head coach, for a
period of one year from the date of the release of this report (May 25, 2006 through May
24, 2007), from 1) making any phone calls that relate in any way to recruiting or being
present when members of his staff make such calls; and 2) engaging in any off-campus
recruiting activities. The prohibition on off-campus recruiting activities shall apply to all
off-campus appearances at which prospects may be in attendance including banquets,
booster functions and exceptions provided by Bylaw 13.1.9. The present institution shall
submit a report to the committee by August 1, 2006, in which it details the institution's
monitoring of, and rules education sessions for, the former head coach and his staff. The’
report should also include documentation of the institution's comphance with all other
penalties adopted and transferred to the present institution.

While the COI report did not specifically requii’e a summary report at the end of our penalty
period, our original adoption of penalties included this provision:

| The director of compliance will meet, on a weekly basis, with the head coach or
the director of men’s basketball operations to review men’s basketball recruitment
activities and documentation for the previous and upcoming weeks. Furthermore,
Indiana University will file a written report with the NCAA not later than August
31, 2007, detailing the implementation and fulfillment of the penalties which were
transferred to Coach Kelvin Sampson upon his employment at Indiana University.

So, by the last sentence in L. above, there appears to be another discrepancy as to whether we will
need to file a second written report (this one to the NCAA) no Jater than August 31, 2007, since the
original COI report asked for a report from U to the COI by August 1, 2006. T will contact Shep
“ooper for clarification.

5/16/2007
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker_

From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Sent:  Thursday, May 10, 2007 9:15 AM
To: McEiroy, Barbara J

Subject: RE: .

Thanks!

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

From: McElroy, Barbara

Sent: Thursday, May 10, 2007 7;27 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker
Subject:

Per your phone message, this is an email confirming there will be no high school aged
children at the Dick Vital event tomorrow evening, per Coach Sampson.

Also, the Big Brothers/Big Sisters event on the 22nd have confirmed no high school aged
children in attendance as well. :

B.5.

B.J. McElroy _ ’
Assistant to Coach Kelvin Sampson

Indiana University

Men's Basketbal!

(812)855-2238

1/28/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Sent: Thursday, May 10, 2007 10:42 AM
- To: ' Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis

Cc: Rickerby, lan J

Subject: Recruiting Person Days

Attachments: DOBO 04.20.07 Supplement.doc
Jeff,
Attached please find the rules education for April 20 — which reviewed the recruiting-person day

rule. As it states, the 130 day limit on MBB applies to the time period that is 1U’s academic year:
So, Coach -Sampson may go and visit our NLI signees on or after May 25, 2007, without that

~ making us go over our limit of 130 (since that is where we ended).

Thanks for having us check on that for you,
Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar _
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

312-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

1/28/2008
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DOBO meeting Supplement — (04.20.07)

("aunting Recruiting-Person Days Subsequent to National Letter of Intent Signing or Other
itten Commitment - Men's Basketball (1)

Date Issned: Mar 28, 2007
Type: Official .
Item Ref: 2

Interpretation:

The committee determined that, in men's basketball, off-campus recruiting activities involving a
prospective student-athlete who has signed a National Letter of Intent (or signed acceptance of the
institution's written offer of admission and/or financial aid) must count toward the institution's recruiting-
person days limit.

[References: Bylaws 13.02.7 (recruiting-person days - men's basketball) and 13.1.6.8 (contacts subsequent
to National Letter of Intent signing or other written commitment sports other than women's basketball)]

A review of the reminders sent out via email by Ian last Friday since we are still getting questions on this
issue: :

First, it is permissible for a coach to have off-campus contact with a signed prospect during a quiet period.
T i assumes that there isn’t some other rule standing in the way of the contact {e.g., prospect is

. .dcipating in competition at the time of the contact). 13.1.6.8 — you may still only visit their school
NCE per week, and no contact DURING a tournament in which they are playing. Contact with signed
rospects during the July Dead Period is only OK if they are enrolled in summer school here.

Also, contacts with signees that are made during a quiet period during the institution’s academic year
count against the 130 person days (even though 13.1.8.8-[a] only refers to contact and evaluation periods).

So, Coach Sampson MAY go to see the families of the signed piayers after May 25", and as IU is out of
regular school at that time, those contacts need not be counted towards the 130 (though still should be
recorded with Beth).

I', between now and May 4" anytime anyone else goes to one of their schools (Elr’s or EJ’s, etc.) OR
visits with their families, it can only be once a week and HAS to count within the 130 days.
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McCaw, Carrie

Page | of 2

From: Harris, Robin Green

Sent:  Thursday, May 01, 2008 10:41 AM
To: McCaw, Carrie

Subject: FW: Men's Basketball Staff Meeting

From: Sampson, Kelvin Dale

Sent: Thursday, October 25, 2007 6:04 PM

To: MAM; Sample, Michael M; Greenspan, Richard I; Calhoun, M. Grace;
Frapwell, Dorothy J; Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker; Rickerby, Ian J;
Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; Frapwell, Dorothy J

Ce: Dakich, Daniel John; McCallum Jr, Ray; Senderoff, Robert A_; Meyer,
Jeffrey Dennis _

Subject: Men's Basketball Staff Meeting

Minutes of Thursday, October 24, 2007, Men's Basketball Staff Meeting;

Those in attendance: Kelvin Sampson, Ray McCallum, Jeff Meyer, Rob
Senderoff, Dan Dakich, BY McElroy

. This meeting was conducted to give explicit instructions to the men's

basketball staff on new guidelines Coach Sampson wants adhered to on
maintaining and providing accurate telephone records, for the [U
Athletic Compliance Staff, effectively immediately until November 30,
2008. '

Coach Sampson emphasized the necessity for our staff to police ourselves
and that we must be pro-active. Our goal is that day-by-day,
month-by-month, year-by-year to be 100% correct. He does not want to
repeat mistakes made by the staff this year! He does not want to look

at a rule to make it work to our advantage. Let's play the rules of the

game right!

Coach Sampson wants all coaches to submit both their home, and cell
phone records, for the months of July, August, September, and October no
later than November 1, 2007, to Dan Dakich. These, in tumn, will be
submitted to Ian Rickerby, in Compliance. Ounce these records have been
submitted to Jan, Coach Sampson requests a confirming email, from fan,
that he has received everyone's records dating back to July, 2007. In
addition, Coach Sampson requests that Jan email him the first of every
month once he has received the records from Dan,

As of today’s date, each coach will be supplied with Daily Phone Log
Forms of which they will be required to submit each day, no later than
8:30 am,, to Dan Dakich. Dan, in turn, will give these logs to Beth
McLaughlin for her to input into the recruiting database (The

Recruiter). Once daily phone logs are collected for the week, Dan will
submit them to [an the following Monday moraing for the previous week’s
calls.

Dan Dakich brought up a point that the staff not depend on their memory
in order to keep their call logs. They will each have a daily log

record and should keep it by their phones at all times, at home, in

office, or on the road. If they find themselves out and do not have a

log to record a call, call their voicemail on their office phone and

leave themselves a message on the information on the call they

initiated. Upon returning to the office, they can theri retrieve this

5/112008



O

Message

information from their voice mail and add it to their daily phone log.
Each coach is personally responsible for their calls.

Starting on December 1, 2007, each coach will be responsible for
submitting copies of their cell and home statements, to Dan Dakich, ona
meonthly basis.

Coach Sampson indicated he will continue to use his home phone for
incoming calls and his cell for outgoing. He said the staff can
continue using the phones they have used in the past but whenever a
phone is used, home or cell, it must be documented, no exceptions!

There is no need to report incoming calls, only calls placed.

Dan also told the staff, if for some reason an error is made, record it
on your sheet, do not omit this entry. This is how we are self policing
ourselves.

Coach Sampson made it a point of emphasis that even on calls that do not
count, record them. :

1t was noted that Rob Senderoff voluntarily submitted his phone records
to Ian through the month of August. Coach Sampson, Ray McCallum, and
Jeff Meyer need to submit theirs by November 1, 2007.

A question was brought up concerning the monthly sheets that compliance
asked the coaches to sign, the first of each month, from May, 2006 to

May 2007 stating which phones, in their possession, they had used to
make calls for the month. It hasn't been made clear if these forms are

still to be submitted,

Ray McCallum's phone records, relative to his son's basketball
teammates, were brought up. Again, Ray was instructed to be pro-active
with this, recording these calls and the nature of them so there is

never any question as to their intent.

Coach Sampson was emphatic that we keep a well documented paper trail.
He wants everyone to recognize that we, as a staff, are doing everything
possible to insure these problems never arise again.

Whenever the staff meets, notes of the meeting will be taken and emailed
to the following individuals: President McRobbie, Rick Greenspan, Grace
Calhoun, Jennifer Brinegar, Tim Fitzpatrick, 1an Rickerby, Dottie
Frapwell and Mike Sample.

5/1/2008
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e Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker
From: Rohleder, Mary Ann w O é

Sent:  Thursday, March 30, 2006 3:06 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin
Subject: RE: MBB

Jennifer,

Tim would like for you to wait untif some time next week lo schedule a compliance meeting with the
entire MBB slaff al the same time. You should probably touch base with Tim again loward the middle of
next week and, by that time, he may know more about assistants, elc.

Thanks,

MA

“From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Thursday, March 30, 2006 12:38 PM
To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Cc: Rohleder, Mary Ann

Subject: MBB

Tim
o ~ 1id you let me know when would be a good time for me to meel with Coach Sampson to briefly review our
vumpliance philosophy, policies and procedures? This should lake approximately 30 mmules and is standard with

ali new coaching hires (both head and assislant).

Theh, when his staff is set, my staff needs to meet with the complete MBB staff to more thoroughly (yet still as
brief as possible) review the same (see atlached agenda from our last meeting). This meeling usually lasts
approximately 60 minules, bul can be more or less depending on how many questions are asked).

If possible, could you also brief. me on what has been said to Coach Sampson about {U's compliance
policies/philosophy? | would just like to be consistent with the message we send to our coaches.

Thanks,

Jennifer . .

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University '
812-855-0451

@
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From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent:  Wednesday, Aprit 05, 2006 9:35 AM
To: McElroy, Barbara J ‘

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: need asap

BJ

?

The Dead period for this week ended yesterday at noon. Next week is dead from Monday the ot through
Thursday the 13, The only other dead period coming up is in the summer.

July 16-21, 2006, [except for (1) below]: DEAD Period

{1) It is permissible for an institution to have contact with a prospect
who is enrolled in the institution's summer term (i.e., summer
session or summer bridge program) and has signed a National Letter
of Intent or other written commitment to attend the institution.

(Adopted: 4/25/02)

Christian
Go Hoosiers!

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

<ent: Wednesday, April 05, 2006 9:30 AM
»: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: FW: need asap

Importance: High :

Can you respond-to this right away? Thanks!

Jennifer Brinegar :

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: McElroy, Barbara )

Sent: Wednesday, April 05, 2006 8:52 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: need asap

Jennifer,

Please email me back, pronto, with all of the dead period, evalualion period, dates for April and May.

Thanks,
BJ

B.J. McElroy

Assistant to Coach Kelvin Sampson
wdiana University

ven's Basketball

(812)855-2238

9/26/2007
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o Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Friday, April 14, 2006 1:31 PM

To: Sampson, Kelvin Dale; McElroy, Barbara J

Cc: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Marlin; Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: FW: Comments on Two MBK Events

FY1

Christian

Go Hoosiers!
From: Big Ten - Chad Hawley [mailto:CHawley@bigten.org]
Sent: Friday, April 14, 2006 1:11 PM

To: Compliance Group

Cc: Big Ten - Greg Walter

Subject: Comments on Two MBK Events

1) The NJCAA Coaches Association junior-college all-star event at Kilgore College (Kilgore, TX on April
22") has been approved by the NJCAA. Conseqguenlly, coaches may attend this event.

2) There’s been some chatler about the All Canada Basketball Weekend at Centennial College
{Scarborough, Ontario on Aprii 30"™). While the event has been sanclioned by Canada Basketball
{comparable to USA Baskelball}, coaches may notl atténd this event as Canada Basketball—since it

O isn’t a scholastic entity—doesn’t have the authority 1o “approve/sanction/etc.” the event for the purpose

of 13.1.8.8. That authority would rest with the Ontario Federation of School Athletic Associations

(http://www.ofsaa.on.ca/site/index.cfm?DSP=Chapter&ID=24), which lo date, has not

sanclioned the event. Il let you know if | hear something different about this event, but for now, il

remains offlimits.

Let me know if you have any questions.

Chad

Chad Hawley

Director of Compliance
Big Ten Conference
1500 W. Higgins Rd.
Park Ridge, IL 60068
ph: 847/696-1010, x. 118
fax: 847/696-1150

9/26/2007
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker .QCM/,{ - l%& +o
From: Brinegar, Jennifer L W a:/’k,&ﬁzf %ﬂﬁ

Sent:  Monday, April 17, 2006 6:22 PM
Subject: Questions of the Week

All three questions of the week deal with recently issued (or recently referenced) NCAA interpretations — please
read all the way through! 1 will keep next week’s QOTW short and sweet!

Question #1 (of 2): Is it okay for a coach to receive expenses (e.g., travel, lodging) during a recruiting trip
from someone (or some organization) outside the athletics department?

. Answer #1: Not according to a recent interp! “[PJursuant to NCAA Bytaw 13.14.1, all funds for the recruitment
of prospective student-athletes shalt be deposited directly with the member institution, which shall be exclusively
and entirely responsible for the manner in which such funds are expended. Therefore, institutions should note
that it is not permissible for any outside organization or individual (e.g., recruiting or scouting service, event
operator) to provide institutional coaching staff members with expenses (e.g., fravel, lodging) to attend any event
for recruiting purposes. Such expenses are considered funds donated for recruiting purposes and NCAA rules
require that such funds be deposited direclly with the member institution, as opposed to being provided directly to
an inslitutional coaching staff member(s).” INCAA Educational Column 03/17/06 - emphasis added]

Question #2: | keep getting bombarded with requests for balls, apparel or other items from high schools
and ctubs that are fundraising for their programs. What, if anything, can | donate?

Answer #2: Bylaw 13.15 is fairly specific in that we can't be involved in fundraising for high schools or
~ther organizations consisting primarily of prospects (although, like every other rule, there are exceplions).
wyway, the NCAA recently issued this Educational Column regarding donations:
mstitutions should note that pursuant to NCAA Division' | Bylaw 13.15.1, an institution or a representative of its
athletics interests shall not offer, provide or arrange financial assistance, directly or indirectly, to pay (in whole or
in part) the costs of a prospeclive sludent-athlele’s educational or other expenses for any period prior to his or her
enroliment or so the prospect can obtain a postgraduate education. This prohibition applies lo all prospects,
including those who have signed a National Letter of Intent or an institutional offer of admission or financial aid.
An institution may not provide funding, directly or through paid advertisements, to benefit a high school athletics
program.
It is not permissibie for an institution’s athletics department, in response to requests from high school (or
preparatory school or two-year college) groups, to provide items (e.q., autographed balls, jerseys) to assist in
raising money for its programs (athletics or other). If another department of the institution is asked to provide
donations to benefit prospects, such activily is permissible only if the donations are not earmarked specifically for
an athletics purpose or used only 1o provide benefits to prospeclts’ athletics programs. An institution may not
donate institutional memorabilia {e.g., jerseys, hats, T-shirls) to any organization for thé purpose of being
auctioned to raise funds to provide financial assistance to high school students to atlend collegiate institutions.
An institution {or an inslitution’s coach or representative of its athletics interests) may contribute to a nonathletics
organization that includes prospective student-alhletes and nonprospects (e.g., YMCA, YWCA, Boys and Girls
Clubs), provided the assistance is not earmarked for a parlicular prospective sludent—athlete and is offered in
conjunction with the organization's regular fund-raising activities.
An institution’s athletics department staff member (e.g., coaching staff member) may not provide any financial
contributions to a high school {or preparatory school or two-year coliege) athletics program through parlicipation
in a fund-raising event (e.g., paying greens fees to parlicipate in a golf outing when any portion of the greens fees
will go to benefit an athletics program). Bylaw 13.15.1 also prohibits an institution from sponsoring a table,
providing memorabilia or otherwise providing institutional support in conjunction with a banquet or other function
that will directly or indirectly benefit prospective student-athleles (e.g., awards banquet conducted by a sporls
foundation, high school athletics banquet). Therefore, if a sporls foundation provides benefits to prospects (e.g.,
=cholarships, donations to high school athletics programs), it would not be permissible for an institution to provide
:morabilia or sponsor a table at any of the foundation’s functions. ‘Any type of inslitutional support in
vonjunction with such functions wouid, at a minimum, indirectly benefit prospective student-athietes.

Subject to applicable recruiting calendar restrictions, athlelics department staff members are not precluded from

2/20/2008




O

Page 2 ot 4

individually purchasing admission 1o atlend events {e.g., athletics banquets or meetings, competitions) where
funds from the admission fee ultimately will benefit prospects, provided the primary purpose of the event is not to
-ise funds for prospects. In addition, an institution’s coach may participate in aclivities to raise funds to

: donaled to a foundation that will distribute the funds 1o high school {or preparatory school or two-year college)
athletics programs, provided the request to participate in such aclivities is initialed by the foundalion, the coach
does not make actual financial contributions to the foundation, and the coach or coach's institution is not involved
in selecting the educational institutions that are to receive the financial assistance. [NCAA EC 04/11/06].

Question #3: Is it permissible to provide 1U student-athletes with energy or calorie-replacement drinks if
we get them free from the manufacturer?

Answer #3: The answer depends on whether the drinks meet the definition of a permissible nutritional
supplement as set out in the Educational Column from May 2005 {see below - il is long, but a must-read for
coaches, strength coaches, trainers and sport administrators). No one from IU should provide ANY nutritional
supplement 1o an 1U student-athlete without first recelvmg permission from the respeclive sport administrator AND

" trainer.

NCAA Division | Educatmnal Column - NCAA Bylaw 16.5.2- (g) Nutritional
Supplements

NCAA Division I institutions should note that NCAA Bylaw 16.5.2-(g) (nutritional supplements)
indicates that an institution may provide only nonmuscle-building nutritional supplements to a student-
athiete at any time for the purpose of providing additional calories and electrolytes, provided the
supplements do not contain any NCAA banned substances. Permissible nonmuscle-building nutritional
supplements are identified according to the following classes: Carbohydrate/electrolyte drinks, energy
bars, carbohydrate boosters and vilamins and minerals. Pursuant to a July 26, 2000, official
terpretation, it is not permissible for an institution to provnde any nutritional supplement/mgredlents to
is student-athletes, unless the supplement/ingredient is a nonmuscle-bmldmg supplement and is
included in one of the four classes identified specifically in Bylaw 16.5.2:(g). The following
information is an updated list of examples of permissible and nonpermissible nutritional
supplements/ingredients as developed by the NCAA Competitive Safeguards and Medical Aspects of
Sports Committee (CSMAS). The list below is not exhaustive but should assist institutions in
determining the types of nutritional supplements/ingredients that may be provided to student-athletes.

Permissible Nonpennissib_le

itamins and minerals ino Acids (including amino acid chelates)
nergy bars hondroitin*

alorie replacement drinks :
e.g., Ensure, Boost)
lectrolyte replacement drinks
e.g., Gatorade, Powerade)

LA (Conjugated Linoleic Acid)
reatine/creatine-containing compounds
arcinia Cambogia (Hydroxycitric Acid)
inkgo Biloba

SM (Methylsulfonyl Methane)
rotein powders
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« It 1s permissible for an institution to provide Glucosamine and/or Chondroitin to a student-athlete for

medical purposes, provided such substances are provided by a licensed medical doctor to treat a
specific, diagnosed medical condition (as opposed 1o prescribing them for preventive reasons).

** Glycerine or glycerol as a binding ingredient in a supplement product is permissible.

A supplement that contains protein may be classified as a nonmuscle-building supplement provided it is
included in one of the four permissible categories, does not contain more than 30 percent of its calories
from protein (based solely on the package label) and does not contain additional ingredients that are
designed to assist in the muscle-building process (see examples of nonpermissible
supplements/ingredients). Nutritional supplements containing more than 30 percent of its calories from
protein are classified as muscle-building supplements and may not be provided to student-athletes.

One gram of protein equals four calories. Therefore, the percentage of calories from protein contained
in a nutritional supplement may be calculated by multiplying the number of grams of protein per serving
by four and dividing the product by the total number of calories per serving. For example, a nutntional
supplement that contains 120 total calories per serving and nine grams of protein per serving would
contain 36 calories from protein (i.e., 9 grams x 4). Therefore, the percentage of calories from protein
would be 0.3 or 30 percent (i.e., 36 calories from protein/120 total caleries).

Institutions should note that if a supplement product includes any impermissible ingredient, it 1s not
~ermissible to provide such a supplement to student-athletes. Further, when considering the product’s

Jtein-content, institutions should consider the listing of the word “protein” and the number of grams
included. If any other parts of a protein are listed separately, as in any amino acid or chain, it would not
be permissible for an institution to provide such a supplement to its student-athletes. If the product lists
a “‘proprietary protein” or “protein blend,” then this is not protein from a whole food source, but rather a
concoction created by the manufacturer, and in most instances includes impermissible supplement
ingredients. '

Finally, in order to assist the membership in applying the legislation, the following steps are
recommended.

In considering whether a supplement product is permissible under the legislation, a member institution
should:.

= Review the label and ingredients to determine if the product meets one of the permissible classes
of supplements (e.g., carbohydrate/electrolyte drinks, energy bars, carbohydrate boosters and
vitamins and minerals);

»  Review the ingredients for any banned substances (see www.ncaa.org/health-safety);

» Determine whether or not the product contains any of the examples of “impermissible”
 ingredients referenced earlier; and
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« Determine if the product contains more than 30 percent calories from protein.

" still unsure whether or not a particular supplement is permissible, the institution should contact

- wCAA membership services for interpretive assistance and should - provide full written product

ingredient information. Membership services will act in concert with sports medicine consultants to
-provide a review of the product and response back to the member institution. Products deemed
permissible should be reviewed annually to determine if any reformulation of the product has introduced
elements that make it no longer permissible to provide to student-athletes. If an institution has an
interest in providing a supplement product being offered by a manufacturer or distributor of the product,
it is the institution’s responsibility to follow the outlined steps. An institution should not refer the
manufacturer or distributor to the NCAA for a product review. [NCAA EC 05/23/06]

Thanks for hanging in theret The answer to fast week’'s QOTW was “d" ~ For sports other than football, [the time
period for unlimited calls under the Letter-of-Intent Signing-Date Exception] starts on the first day (Wednesday)
and during the two days immediately following the initial signing date (Thursday and Friday). For football,
unlimited calls are permissible during the period 48 hours before and 48 hours after 7 a.m. on the initial signing
date for the NLI (Monday at 7 a.m. until Friday 7:00 a.m.). Thanks to those of-you who responded — I think all
those who did respond got it right!

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director- Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

2120/2008
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O Brmegar Jennifer Hooker %né-wie J‘}DW
S ootz 2ot

From: Bnnegar, Jennifer L
Sent:  Wednesday, April 26, 2006 6:04 PM
Subject: Meeting Reminder, Question of the Week and a follow up to last week's QOTW

Don’t forget that next Tuesday is the May Compliance Meeting (10-11 in the Hoosier Room), where we
plan to have a review session for the 20068-07 NCAA Coaches Certification Exam (and perhaps a short
quiz/contesl, if time permits!). We will NOT be conducting individual review sessions, so plan on
attending this meeting!!

Question: Is it permissible for a coach to have face-to-face contact with a prospect or his/her parents at
either a banguet/meeting at which the coach is speaking {per Bylaw 13.1.9) or at a “cotllege night” the
coach is attending with U Admissions personnel?

Answer: Depends - Per Bylaw 13.02.3, any face-to-face encounter between a prospect or the prospect’s
parents, relatives, or legal guardian(s) and an instilutional staff member or athletlics representative in excess of an
exchange of a greeting is considered a contact. Further, pursvant to Bylaw 13.1.1.1, in-person, offcampus
recruiting contact may only be made with contactable prospects (i.e., July 1 following junior year of high

school). Therefore, institutional coaches may only have contact with prospects at activities conducted by
admissions offices or other institutional entities (e.g., college night events, team banquets) if the prospect is
defined as a contactable prospect. it should be noted that pursuant to Bylaw 13.02.4.1, for sports with
legislated recruiting periods, contact may only be made with contactable prospects during a specified contact
period. Per Bylaw 13.4.2.2, it remains permissible for inslitutions’ regular admissions program representalives to
make off-campus recruiting contacts with prospects provided the contact is dzrected at all prospective students,

o including nonathletes.

Here is a follow up to one of last week’s questions because it generated quite a bit of discussion.

Question #1 (of 2): Is it okay for a coach to receive expenses (e.g., travel, lodging) durmg a recruiting trip
from someone (or some organization) outside the athletics department?

Answer #1: Not according to a recent interp! “[Plursuant to NCAA Bylaw 13.14.1, all funds for the recruitment
of prospective student-athteles shall be deposited directly with the member institution, which shall be exclusively
and entirely responsible for the manner in which such funds are expended. Therefore, institutions should note -
that it is not permissible for any outside organization or individual (e.g., recruiling or scouting service, event
operator) to provide institutional coaching staff members with expenses (e.g., travel, lodging) to attend any event
for recruiting purposes. Such expenses are considered funds donated for recruiting purposes and NCAA rules
require that such funds be depaosited directly with the member institution, as opposed to being provided directly to
an institutional coaching staff member(s).” {NCAA Educational Column 03/17/06 — emphasis added])

The idea behind 13.14.1 and the 03/17/06 educaticnal column is that the instilution should maintain control over
the recruiting process and should not let outside parties that are involved in the recruiting process (e.g.,
prospects, parents of prospects, high school coaches, AAU event organizers) use money to influence that
process.

That doesn’t mean that an institution is required to self-report every time a coach stays at a friend’s house during
a recruiting trip or gets a ride from a friend to attend a prospect's competition. The institution should approve of
the arrangement and an individual providing such assistance will trigger booster status (see below), but there is
no 13.14.1 concem.

On the other hand, the educational column explains that it is not permissible for an event organizer
ancing/subsidizing the cost of a block of hotel rooms for the purpose of enticing college coaches to come watch
-z evenl. if the event organizer is spending funds from the event budget for the purpose of providing travel
o expenses {o allending college coaches, then that organizer is dictating — or at least influencing — the recruiting
process by enticing coaches to come to histher event rather than another event that is not offering a similar
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incentive.

This is the type of regulation that should be interpreted with a degree of common sense based en the specific

{uation and the intent of the legistation. An event organizer cannot spend money 1o pay/subsidize the cost of a
recruiting coach's hotel room, but that doesn’t mean it's a problem if the event organizer calls a local hotel,
inquires about the availability of a discounied group rate, and then provides information about that rate to
altending coaches. Similarly, | don't see a problem with the event organizer providing reasonable hospitality at the
evenl.

- Similarly, the parent of a prospect cannol fly a coach to watch the prospect play (see the 3/22/89 SI below), but
we've said that a coach can eal a meal in a prospect’s home during a recruiting contact. The lodging piece is in
the middle of the continuum between the PSA’s parent financing the entire trip {not permissible) and the coach
eating home-cooked beef stew at the prospect’s house (permissible). The Big Ten is uncomfortable with a
blanket statement authorizing coaches to receive lodging from parents of prospects, and even more
uncomfortable if such lodging is offered by a PSA’s parent as an incentive. So, as in the past, continue o run all
offers of lodging by the compliance office, so that we can ensure institutional control over all recruiting activities
and expenditures. :

Institution’s coach traveling with friends to view prospect’s competition

Date issued: Dec 08, 1992

Type: Staff Interpretation

Item Ref: e

Interpretation:

e. Institution’s Coach Traveling with Friends 1o View Prospect's Competition: A friend of an institution’s coach may
provide transportation (e.g., ride in car) to the coach in canjunction with the coach’s recruiting trip lo observe a
prospect’s contest, provided the institution has authorized such activity. The staff confirmed that such an
individual would be cansidered an alhletics representative and, therefore, may not attend the contest.
[References: 13.9.2 (material benefits); 13.15.1 (institutional control); 13.1.2.5-(b) {observing prospect’s contest)]

»oster providing services for coaches on recruiting trips

Date Issued: Dec 30, 1988

Type: Staff Interpretation

ltem Ref: a

Interpretation: :

a. Booster Providing Services for Coaches on Recruiting Trips: Determined that the provisions of Bylaw 1-5-(c)
[outside organizations, groups or individuals shall not utilize, administer or expend funds for recruiting prospective
student-athletes] would not preciude a booster from providing free services (e.g., lodging accommeodations, use of
car) to a member institution’s coach on a recruiting trip, provided the institution has knowledge and approves of
such arrangements; further, it would be permissible for the coach to entertain (e.g., dinner) the booster in
exchange for these services, provided such expenses are properly documented and approved.

Use of recruiting funds

Date Issued: Mar 22, 1989

Type: Staff Interpretation

ltem Ref: e

Interpretation:

Confirmed that a parent of a prospective student-athlete could not provide an airline ticket tc a member
Jnstitution’s coach for purposes of traveling to scout the parents’ son or daughter, inasmuch as Bylaw 13.14.1
(institutional control of recruiting funds) stipulates thal all funds for the recruiling of prospects shalt be deposited
with the member institution, which shall be exclusively and entirely responsibie for the manner in which the funds
are expended.

TMI —~ 1 know, | know. Thanks for hanging in there!

sennifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
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Brinegar, Jennifer L

From: Pope, Christian Dean
- Sent: ' Tuesday, May 02, 2006 2:27 PM

To: Pope, Christian Dean; Crabb, Charles K; McElroy, Barbara J; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; /
Greenspan, Richard I; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; McCallum Jr, Ray; Sampson, Kelvin Dale; Garl, Tim

C
Ce: Brinegar, Jennifer L; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin
Subject: RE: Follow Up

Just a point of clarification, the event is titled the “Adidas May Classic.”” Thanks.

Christian
Go Hoosiers!

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Tuesday, May 02, 2006 12:26 PM

Fo: Crabb, Charles K; Barbara JMcelroy (bjmcelro); Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin (tmfitzpa@indiana.edu);
Greenspan, Richard 1 (rgreensp@indiana.edu); Jeff Meyer; Ray McCallum; Sampson, Kelvin Dale; Tim CGarl

(tgarl)
Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

~ Subject: FW: Follow Up

O

Coach,

- :ease be certain that neither contact nor evaluations take place at this event even-though the event is on
campus as we are in a quiet period from May 12-14. The event organizer must pay the rental fee which
is done through Chuck — and no collegiate (Division I, at Jeast) coaches may be in attendance. Any
contact would be impermissible and would need to be reported as a violation: Additionally please see

the attached for your information.

Thanks to Greg Walter for the assistance in pulling the legislation together for this correspondence and
thanks to you for your attention to this matter. Please do not hesitate with any questions or concerns.

Christian

Go Hoosiers!

On-Campus Evaluations Outside Contact or Evaluation Period (I/1I)

Date Issued: Oct 22, 2003 Type: Staft Interpretation Item Ref: a

interpretation: In sports that have legislated recruiling periods, the membership services staff confirmed that
it is not permissible for a coaching stalf member 1o evaluate a prospect participating on the institution's
campus_in any sport outside a contact or evaluation period. [References: NCAA Division I Bylaw 13.02.6
(evaluation), Division il Bylaw 13.02.5 (evaluation) and 06/08/99 official interpretation, ltem No. 1, which has

been archived]

13.11:3.3 Activities Not Involving Institution's Staff

‘e use of a member institution’s facilities for physical activities by a group that includes prospects shall not be
Jnsidered a tryoul, provided the institution's athletics department staff members or representatives of
its athletics interests are not involved in the conduct, promotion or administration of the activity (other

than activities incidental to supervising the use of the facilities) and are subject to all applicable NCAA
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recruiting legislation.

3.4.4.1 Recruiting Advertiséiments '
vhe publication of advertising or promotional material, by or on behall of a member institution, designed to solicit
the enroliment of a prospective student-athlete is not permitted, except as provided in Bylaw 13.4.4.1.1.

Accordingly, a member institution may not buy or arrange to have space in game programs or other

rinted materials published to provide information concerning the athletics participation or evaluation

of prospects {e.9.. recrumng publlcahons) for any purpose whatsoever, including gdvemsements, a
thlet instituti i

mateg;als related to the mstnutlon. Vlolanons of this bylaw shall be considered institutional violations per
Conslitution 2.8.1; however, they shall not affect the prospective student-athlete’s eligibility. (Revised: 4/28/05,

effective 8/1/05)

Date Issued: May 17, 1995 Type: Staff Interpretation Item Ref: b

~'agislative services stafl determined that when an institution permits competition between high school,

High-school game program that includes host member institution’s welcome letter

Date Issued: Nov 15, 1991 Type: Staff Inlerpretation ltem Ref: b
Interpretation: b. High-Schoo! Game Program That Includes Host Member Institution's Welcome Letter:

Reviewed Bylaw 13.4.3.1 (recruiting adverlisements) and determined that a member institution would be
permitted to incorporate a welcome letter in a high-school game program, provided the member
institution is hosting the event, the welcome letter is generic in nature and does not include information
designed 1o solicit the enrollment of prospective student-athietes. :

Advertising of Collegiate Contests Held in Conjunction with High-School Contests

Interpretation: b. Advemsnng of Collegiate Contests Held in Conjunction With High-School Contests The
-eparatory. school or two-year colleges to be conducted in conjunction with a collegiate event:pursuant to
13.12.1.3, the institution may adventise the event, as wefl.as the names of the participating teams, through those
media outlets normally used by the institution. The institution may not publicize the appearance of any specific

prospects nor may it use individuals or team photographs of participating teams involving prospecls in any
advertising activities. [References: Bylaws 13.11.3 (prospect's visit) and 13.12.1.3 {competition in conjunction
with a high-school prep school or two-year coliege))

O
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o Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
'Sent:  Thursday, May 11, 2006 3:03 PM
To: Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis
Cc: Pope, Christian Dean
Subject: FW: Two Queslions

See below - the answer is exactly what we read (no exceptions or interpretations on this paricular issue, so far).
You may have contact with an AAU coach this weekend, but just remember that you may not have any contact
(even incidental contact if you've put yourself in a position where the incidental contact is inevitable) with any
prospect competing in the tournament on the days the tournament is being run. So, you could invite the coach
(but tell him not to bring any prospeclts or parents with him) to come up to your office or you could cali the AAU
coach on the phone.

Jennifer Brinegar ]

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Big Ten - Greg Walter [mailto:gwalter@bigten.org]
Sent: Thursday, May 11, 2006 12:45 PM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L
O ~«: Big Ten - Chad Hawley

dbject: RE: Two Questions

JB:

1. Generally, yes... the only exception would bé if the AAU coach is involved with a summer certified event
(during the July evaluation pericd) or - starting 8/1/06 — with a nonscholastic event during the April contact

period. See 13.1.7.2.2. - :

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L {mailto:jhooker@indiana.edu]
Sent: Thursday, May 11, 2006 11:18 AM

To: Big Ten - Greg Walter

Subject: Two Questions

Hi Greg,
I hope you're doing weil. Fm looking forward to San Diego — will you be there?
i have two hopefully relatively easy questions:
1. Can a member of our MBB coaching staff have contact (face-lo-face &/or via lelephone) with an AAU

coach while they are here in town this weekend for the adidas tournament (obviously not during the time
they are coaching their team, but what if they drop by the basketbal! office or a coach sees them in town)?

1anks,

Jennifer

1/28/2008
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e Jennifer Brinegar .

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
diana University

312-855-0451
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

. From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent:  Tuesday, May 23, 2006 5:05 PM

To: Senderoff, Robert A.; McCallum Jr, Ray

Cc: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: RE: Queslion @ seein_g‘—
Rob,

Bylaw 13.1.6.8 governs contacts after a prospect has signed a National Letter of Intent. Since-is one

- of our NLI signees, then Ray (or any other lJ MBB coach) could visit him at his house (NOT at his JC/educational
institution), as long as it wasn’t during a dead period or on a day he was compeling or involved in a multi-day
tournament. See below.

13.1.6.8 Contacts Subsequent to National Letter of Intent Signing or Other Written
Commitment -- Sports Other Than Women's Basketball

In sports other than women's basketball, subsequent to the calendar day on which a prospective student-
athlete signs a National Letter of Intent, there shall be no limit on the number of contacts by the
institution with which the prospective student-athlete has signed. For an institution not utilizing the
National Letter of Intent in a particular sport, there shall be no limit on the number of contacts with the
prospective student-athlete, the prospective student-athlete's relatives or legal guardian(s) by that
e institution subsequent to the calendar day of the prospective student-athlete's signed acceptance of the
istitution’s written offer of admission and/or financial aid. However, the following conditions continue
to apply. (Revised: 1/16/93, 1/11/94, 4/28/05 effective 8/1/05, 4/27/06)

(a) Any contact at the prospective student-athlete's educational institution in football and men's
basketball shall be confined to the permissible contact period and shall not exceed one visit per week;

(b) No in-person, on- or off-campus contact may be made during a "dead period;" (Revised: 1/10/92)

(c) No on- or off-campus contact (including correspondence and telephone calls) may be made by a
representative of the institution's athletics interests except those involving permissible pre-enrollment
activities (e.g., a discussion of summer employment arrangements); and

(d) Contact at the site of a prospective student-athlete's competition shall continue to be governed by the
provisions of Bylaw 13.1.7.2. Note: contact with the prospective student-athlete's relatives or legal
guardians at the site of the prospective student-athlete's competition shall be permitted. (Revised:
1/10/92)

Thanks for checking!

Jennifer
Jennifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

.diana University
812-855-0451

3/31/2008
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From: Senderoff, Robert A.

sent: Tuesday, May 23, 2006 4:31 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: Question @ seein

Jennifer-

Ray would like to go see’aboul his academics and he said that he did not think he was allowed 1o do it
because il is not a contact period. I do know that NC State was with Larry Davis in his home last night and has
gone lo see him twice since he was given his conditional release. Larry visited IU last week which is how | know
this information. | don’t see there being a difference between NC Stale going to see a signed recruil and us going
to sec/MEIIRAP Could you please check into whether or not Ray could go see 4, because we really
need to make sure thatl he is doing everything that he needs to do academically. Ray was hoping to go down
there on Thursday. Thanks for your help.

Rob Senderoff

Indiana University

Men's Basketball, Assistant Coach
O# 812-855-2238

3/31/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent:  Tuesday, May 30, 2006 11:37 AM
Subject: QOTW, June Compliance Meeting reminder and BSC Transfer Release & Permission to Speak

Question: What are the rules regarding tryouls with a professional team after enrollment?
Answer: Pursuant lo NCAA Division § Bylaw 12.2.1.2 (tryout after enrofiment), it is not permissible for an enrolled
{full-time) student-athlele wilh remaining eligibility lo participate in a professional tryout {or permit a professional
athletics team to conduct medical examinalions) during the academic year, regardless of the location of the tryout.
As set forth in NCAA Division | Bylaw 12.2.1.4 (professional team representative at college practice), a
professional representative can evaluate an enrolled student-athlete participating in an institution’s regular
praclice session, a physical education class, or out-of-season conditioning or skill instruction workouts during the
academic year, provided the activilies observed are a normai part of, and take place during, a regular practice
session, class or conditioning session.
it is permissible for a professional leam to conduct a tryout with an enrolled student-athlete on the inslilution’s
campus during the summer vacation period, provided the student-athlete does not receive any expenses (e.g.,
travel, room or board) in conjunction with the tryoul. In addition, it would be permissible for the institution lo
reserve a facility for the student-athlete to participate in the summer tryout; however, NCAA Bylaw 17 restrictions
would prohibit coaching staff members from being present at such tryoul sessions. It would be permissible for a
student-athlete’s family members to be present during the tryout as well as other individuals associated with the
student-athlete, as long as those individuals are not agents or acting on behalf of agents. [NCAA Ed. Col. 05-11-
08]
Furthermore, a student-athlete may try out with a professional organization in a sport in the summer or during the
academic year while not a full-time student, provided the student-athlete does not receive any form of expenses
or other compensation from the professional organization. A student-athlete using the pre-draft baskelball camp
exception sel forth in Bylaw 12.2.4.2.1 may participate in a predraft camp sponsored by a professional spors
Janization {during the summier or academic year), provided the student-athlele has received written permission
om the institution’s director of athletics. If writteni permission is received, a basketball student-athlete may accept
actual and necessary travel, and room and board expenses from a professional sporis organization lo attend that
organizalion’s predraft basketball camp. '
Finally, a single scouting bureau recognized by a professional league is permitied to conduct one medical
examination per student-athlete during the academic year without jecpardizing the student-ahtlete’s eligibility in
that sport, provided the examinalion does not cccur off campus. [12.1.1.4.9, 12.2.1.2. 12.2.1.2.1, 14.7.3.2«¢), and
16.10.1.9]
Next week we are having our last monthly compliance meeting for the 05-06 year: June Compliance
Meeting on Tuesday, June 6 from 9-10:00 a.m. Now that training table is over for the summer, | would like
to start this meeting at 9:00 a.m., unless there is an overwhelming desire to keep it at 10 (I would like to
attend my son’s “graduation” ceremony at Binford even though | oppose this concept for anything less
than HS graduation). For the first part of the meeting, we will go over new legislation as well as a few
compliance office reminders (approxamateiy 30-45 minutes). Football and basketball may leave prior to
the start of the remainder of the session, which will cover rules education regarding local sports clubs
(approximately 10-15 minutes). Remember, all coaches are expected to attend the monthly compliance
meetings — if you are on the road recruiting, in camp, teaching, or on vacation, please try to have at least
one member from your coaching/administrative staff present to receive the information. We will also send
out a memo to all those who don’t attend. Coaches are responsible for knowing and abiding by all NCAA
and Big Ten rules — these monthly meetings serve to assist you in your efforts|
See below for a blanket release on all of Birmingham Southern’s sludent-athleles due lo its reclassification from
D-I to D-lIl. If you do end up contacling any of BS's sludent-athleles, please be sure o start a log or enter lhe
information in your recruiting database and keep a copy of this email in the file.

Thanks!

Jennifer Brinegar

sistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University
812-855-0451

3/31/2008
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From: Big Ten - Greg Walter [mailto:gwalter@bigten.org]
“ent: Tuesday, May 30, 2006 10:42 AM
o: Compliance Coordinators
Cc: Big Ten - Chad Hawley
Subject: FW: [CCACA] BSC Transfer Release & Permission to Speak

Information regarding Birmingham Southern’s reclassification from D-1 1o D-lll and the accompanying blanket
release...

From: CCACA-talk@lists.pac-10.org [mailto:CCACA—talk@lisB.pac—lO.org] On Behalf Of Dawn Turner

Sent: Tuesday, May 30, 2006 9:01 AM
To: CCACA-talk@lists.pac-10.0rg; Wayne Bridgeman; John Secord (TAMU-CC); Robbie Davis (RU); Scott

McDonald (WU); 'Rosemary Shea (HC)'; 'Brad Wocdy (UNCA)'; 'Bruce Gregory (CCUY'; 'Cliff Wade (VMIY'; ‘Lesiie
Claybrook (BSC)'; 'Meredith Hollyfield (LU); 'Mike Hammond (CSU)'; "Mike Tuttle (HPUY'
Subject: [CCACA] BSC Transfer Release & Permission to Speak

Everyone:

At this point, | am sure most of you have heard about Birmingham-Southern’s decision to
transition to Division Il}. They are issuing blanket releases for their student-athletes. If you
have an institution who would like to request a hard copy of the release, please contact

Leslie.

Thanks!
“awn

To whom it may concern:

Please be advised that Birmingham-Southern College has decided to reclassify its athletic program from NCAA
Division | to NCAA Division Ill. As such, our sludent-athleles have immediate permission to speak with other
institutions about transferring. Also, because of the reclassification, student-athletes’ are immediately eligible

(14.5.5.2.6 Discontinued/Nonsponsored Spoit Exception).

H you have any addiliona! questions, please feel free to contact me via email at Iclaybro@bsc.edu or via
telephone at 205-226-7732.

Thanks!

Leslie

GO PANTHERS!

Leslie Claybrook

Assaociate Athletic Director
Birmingham-Southern College
205-226-7732

3/31/2008




0 Brmegar Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent:  Fnday, June 09, 2006 5:14 PM

To: Green, Jerry

Cc: Pope, Christian Dean; Greenspan, Richard |
Subject: RE: Ncaa Rulings

Jerry,

Sorry for the delay. | opened up my emails from today énd yesterday top to bottom, which unfortunately meant the
first ones sent were the last | opened.

I have not heard back from the commitlee on infractions (COI) regarding our laundry Jist of clarifications submitted
May 315

The COl report was pretty straightiorward and indicated that Coach Sampson needed to err on the side of caulion
as any actions that viotate the restrictions would be at his own risk. | believe it is prudent for Coach Sampson to
be very conservalive in his approach to responding to requests for speaking engagements. Until we are otherwise
notified, if there is any chance a prospect could be present, he should not altend a speaking engagement. Al this
point, if we push too hard and end up crossing the line, we open ourselves up to additional criticism and-comment
regarding the Oklahoma major infractions case (as well as potentially having the COl extend the penalty and
probation period).

Our stance has been and should continue to be that we are taking the high road, accepting responsibility for our

past actions, and going forward we will comply with all NCAA and Big Ten rules. No excuses. Evenlually, this -

o <hould go away unless we happen to have secondary violations, including any involving the restrictions set forth
" the-COl, which could potentially set off another explosion that none of us want to deal with.

Please know that the compliance office is only trying lo protect Coach Sampson, the U MBB program and the
institution. We did not assess the penalties, but it is our responsibility to ensure compliance with the penalties and
all other NCAA rules.

As soon as | hear back from the COI, I will definitely forward the information on to Coach Sampson, Rick, you, the
MBB staff, and Christian, so thal we are all operating on the same page.

Have a great weekend and don't hesilate to call me or Christian on our celi phones at any time should you have
- an urgent question.

Take care,

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

From: Green, Jerry :
Sent: Thursday, June 08, 2006 8:38 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

~.*hject: Ncaa Rulings

cJennifer, have you received any information from our meetings about Coach

9/277/2007




Sampsons restrictions from the NCAA ? I remember us making a list to check on
but have heard nothing in return. Let me know because he does have a schedule.
O I check with Christian but he has not been informed of any final interps.

Best, Jerry

Jerry Green
Director of Basketball Operations

Indiana University
8712-8606-0177

e

9/27/2007



O
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From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent:  Wednesday, June 14, 2006 6:15 PM
Subject: QOTW

Question: During the summer, Halle Berry, a member of the women's baskelball coaching staff at Hollywood U.
always works out in the weightroom from 12:00 - 1:00 p.m. Is it permissible for Coach Berry lo remain in the
weightroom if a student-athlete from that team comes to the weightroom to participale in a non-mandatory
workout at 12:30 p.m.?

Answer: No, it is not permissible. Countable coaches may not be in the weight rcom with/while SAs are working
oul. Their presence alone would deem the aclivity to be countable (we are not allowed to require countable

_athletically related activities in the summer). Per an email we just received from the Big Ten, the same thing goes
with pick-up games—countable coaches may not be there — for ANY reason.

This also applies to camps — if your student-athletes play a pick up game that the campers atiend and watch, then
coaches should not be present (also, if it is scheduled for the campers to attend, it would then be an
impermissible “arranged” practice for your student-athletes as opposed to a nonmandatory pickup game).

Reminder Regarding Off-Campus Contact with Coaches of PSAs During Quiet Period — It is not permissible
to engage in off-campus recruiting aclivities during a quiet period. Consequently, if a coach (of a sport in a quiet
“period) happens to have contact with the coach of a PSA (e.g., H.S., J.C., or AAU coach), it must be for a
legitimate reason unrelated to recruiting {e.g., speaking at a coaches clinic). In the event that off-campus contact
does occur, it would not be permissible for the coach 1o engage in any dialogue related to any PSA(s), as such

would be an evaluation per 13.02.6 and thus impermissible.

FY1 - the above information was distributed to alt Big Ten compliance coordinators in a friendly email
reminder yesterday.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

O
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Brmegar Jennifer Hooker

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent:  Friday, June 23, 2006 2:59 PM
To: Senderoff, Robert A.

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: hiring

Coach,
Bylaw 11.7.1.1.1 speaks specifically to your question. Please see the atlached on page 60 of your 2005-2006 NCAA

Manual. The specifics for staff not counted in the limitations of Bylaw 11.7 (director of basketball operations, video
coordinator, and adinistrative assistant) are as follows:

1. They may not be identified as coaches.

2. They may not engage in any coaching activities. (Attending meetings involving coaching activities,
analyzing videotape or {ilm of 1U or opponent teams) '

3. They may not be involved in any way in the recruiting process.

4. They may be involved in any way with the scouting of opponents.

5. They may participate with or watch student-athletes who are participating in nenorganized or

voluntary athletically related activities. (Pick up games)

11.7.1.1.1.1 Noncoaching Activities Effective Date: Aug 01, 2006

Institutional staff members involved in noncoaching activities (e.g., administrative assistants, academic counselors)
10 not count in the institution's coaching limitations, provided such individuals are not identified as coaches, do not
sngage in any on- or off-ficld coaching activities (€.g., attending meetings involving coaching activities, analyzing
videotape or filn involving the institution's or an opponent's team), and are not involved in any off-campus
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

From: Senderoff Robert A.

Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2006 5:41 PM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: hiring

2/19/2008
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Christian-

Can a coaching staff have a Director of Ops, a Video Coordinator and a Administrative
assistant? ks there a rule on that?

I need to know this...thanks....also, did you get a final ruling on ceaches coming to IU to
visit with Coeach Sampson yet. Thanks.

-Rob

o

2/19/2008




- ' Page 1 of 1

Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

O From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
’ Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2006 2:18 PM
To: Senderoff, Robert A.
Subject: Handout

Attachments: Thank you for attending the Kelvin Sampson Basketball Camp Educational Handout.doc

If you do change any of the text (i.e., opening and/or closing), please let me review it before it goes out. Thanks.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

@

2/19/2008




Thank you for attending the Kelvin Sampson Basketball Camp the week of June 11-15.
Due to an administrative oversight, we forgot to include the NCAA-required educational
session. Therefore, please review the following information from our compliance office and
feel free to share it with your parents or legal guardian as it is important for you to know
and understand the following NCAA rules.

Imitial eligibility - All high-school athletes wishing to compete in college must register with
the Initial-Eligibility Clearinghouse. Information about the Clearinghouse can be found in the
Guide for the College-Bound Student-Athlete. The NCAA national office does not handle
initial-eligibility certifications. Please do not contact the NCAA national office with inquiries
regarding an individual's initial eligibility status, including whether transcripts, student release
forms, etc., were received or about when you will be cleared. The Clearinghouse maintains
and processes all of the initial-eligibility certifications. Beginning fall 2006, the NCAA
Amateurism Certification Clearinghouse will be the processing center for determining the
amateurism eligibility of domestic and international freshman and transfer prospective
student-athletes for initial athletics participation at an NCAA Division I member institution.

For the class of 2007;

If you plan to enter college in 2007, you must have 14 core courses to be eligible to practice,
play and receive financial aid at a Division [ school.

For the class of 2008 and after:

If you plan to enter college in 2008 or after, you will need to present 16 core courses in the
following breakdown:

« 4 years of English

» 3 years of mathematics (Algebra I or higher)

» 2 years of natural/physical science (one must be a lab science)

« ~ | year of additional English, math or science

« 2 years of social studies

» 4 years of additional core courses (from any area listed above, or from foreign
language, nondoctrinal religion or philosophy)

Computer science courses will no longer be ablé to be used for initial-eligibility purposes.
This rule is effective August 1, 2005, for students first entering a collegiate institution on or
after August 1, 2005. Computer science courses (such as programming) that are taught
through the mathematics or natural/physical science departments and receive either math or
science credit and are on the high school's list of approved core courses as math or science
may be used after the August 1, 2005, date. ‘

To be declared a qualifier by the initial eligibility clearinghouse, a student-athlete must have
graduated from high school and received a minimum cumulative grade-point average as
specified in Bylaw 14.3.1.1.1 (based on a maximum 4.000) in a successfully completed core
curriculum of at least 14 (16 for 2008 grads) academic courses set forth above AND a
minimum combined score on the SAT verbal and math sections or a minimum sum score on



the ACT as specified in Bylaw 14.3.1.1.1. The required SAT or ACT score must be achieved
under national testing conditions on a national testing date and must be reported by the testing
agency to the NCAA Clearinghouse (student can designate on his test that his results be sent
to the Clearinghouse by typing in “9999” under the section allowing a certain number of -
institutions to receive the results).

The NCAA uses a sliding scale to determine qualifier status, while there isn’t enough room
here to include the whole chart, here are some basic guidelines:

Core GPA_ SAT (verbal and math) Sum ACT
3.550 & above 400 37

3.000 620 52

2.500 820 68 |

2.000 1010 - 86

A 2.000 is the lowest GPA accepted by the Clearinghouse no matter how high your test score.

Also, you must have at least a 400 on the SAT or a 37 sum on the ACT. If either your GPA

and/or your test score are not on the sliding scale (or you have not graduated from high

school), you will be declared a nonqualifier and will be ineligible to practice, compete or

' receive athletically-related financial aid during your first academic year in residence at a
Division I institution. '

Gambling — The NCAA opposes all forms of legal and illegal sports wagering on college
sports.

> Sports wagering has become a serious problem that threatens the well-being of the

student-athlete and the integrity of college sports.

» The explosive growth of gambling has caused a noticeable increase in the number of
sports wagering-related cases processed by the Association.

» The Internet has made it easier than ever for student-athletes to place bets, providing
gasy access, virtual anonymity, and essentially no supervision.

» Student-athletes are viewed by organized crime and organized gambling as easy
marks.

» When student-athletes gamble, they break the law and jeopardize their eligibility.

» When student-athletes become indebted to bookies and can’t pay off their debts,
alternative methods of payment are introduced that threaten the well-being of the
student-athlete or undermine an athletic contest - such as point-shaving.

The NCAA membership has adopted specific rules prohibiting student-athletes, athletics
department staff members, and conference office staff from engaging in sports wagering
(Bylaw 10.3). Sports competition should be appreciated for the inherent benefits related to
participation of student-athletes, coaches, and institutions in fair contests, not the amount of
money wagered on the outcome of the competition. A student-athlete who is involved in

2



sports wagering on the student-athlete's institution shall permanently lose all remaining
regular-season and postseason eligibility in all sports. A student-athlete who is involved in
any sports wagering activity that involves intercollegiate athletics or professional athletics,
through a bookmaker, a parlay card or any other method employed by organized gambling,
shall be ineligible for all regular-season and postseason competition for a minimum of one
year.

The ban on gambling also includes participation in March Madness office, neighborhood, and
dorm floor pools, fantasy leagues, and betting on any professional sport if it’s a sport that the
NCAA also sponsors (bowling, baseball, Superbowl, Wimbledon, World Cup, etc.), where
there is an entry fee and a possible reward (risk + reward = violation). '

Agents — The NCAA supports the Uniform Athlete Agents Act (UAAA) and its adoption in
every state. There can be significant damage resulting from the impermissible and oftentimes
illegal practices of some athlete agents. Violations of NCAA agent legislation impact the
eligibility of student-athletes for further participation in NCAA competition. Violations also
may result in harsh penalties on the team and the university (including the imposition of
NCAA sanctions that have resulted in the repayment of monies received from NCAA
championship competition, forfeiture of contests and other penalties). The UAAA is an
important tool in regulating the activities of athlete agents and protecting NCAA student-
athletes and member institutions. The NCAA’s Web site (ncaa.org) is a great resource to fearn
all the applicable rules regarding agents and amateurism, but the bottom line is that you would
jeopardize your collegiate eligibility if you entered into a written or verbal agreement with an
agént to represent you either now or in the future. Further, you may not receive any extra
benefit from an agent. So, while you can certainly talk to an agent or agency about what that
person or company can do for you after your college eligibility has expired, do not let the
agent/agency buy ANYTHING for you or a family member, not even a lunch at McDonald’s
or a cup of coffee at Starbuck’s!

Banned Drugs/Drug Testing - The NCA A Drug-Testing Program was created to protect the
health and safety of student-athletes and to ensure that no one participant might have an
artificially induced advantage or be pressured to use chemical substances. The NCAA does
assess penalties for positive drug tests. For example, the first time a student-athlete tests
positive for any substance on the banned drug list, he or she is immediately ineligible for one
‘calendar year and loses a year of eligibility. The NCAA holds the student-athlete responsible
for knowing what is on the most current list of banned drugs. Failure to know the rules or
what is on the list is no excuse.

For additional information concerning the NCAA's drug-testing program visit the National
Center for Drug-Free Sport Web site (http://www.drugfreesport.com/index.asp).

- Note: Nutritional supplements are not strictly regulated and may contain substances banned
by the NCAA. For questions regarding nutritional supplements, contact the Dietary
Supplement Resource Exchange Center (REC) at (http://www.drugfreesport.com/rec/).

This handout only touches on the rules regarding initial eligibility, gambling, agents and
drugs. For further information, please refer to the NCAA Web site (ncaa.org). Thanks
again for attending the Kelvin Sampson Basketball Camp and good luck in your athletic
and academic preparations for college!
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From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent:  Thursday, June 29, 2006 3:23 AM

To: Senderoff, Robert A_; McCallum Jr, Ray; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis
Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L; Sampsori, Kelvin Dale

Subject: RE: July schedule

Coach,

According to your schedule, you are tentatively set up to visit Montverde Academy Open gym on July
11, 2006. According to Bylaw 13.1.8.8 a-4, [Summer Evaluation Period. During the summer
evaluation period, a member of an institution's basketball coaching staff may attend
noninstitutional nonorganized events (e.g., pick-up games), institutional basketball camps per
Bylaw 13.12.1.1 and noninstitutional organized events (e.g., camps, leagues, tournaments and
festivals) that are certified per Bylaw 30.16] you may attend this if it is truly an open gym but know
that Montverde must satisfy the criteria below.

1. Montverde cannot set up this “open gym” just for the sole purpose of allowing coaches to attend and
watch his players on this singular occasion. This would constitute an impermissible tryout as the
“open gym’” must be a regularly scheduled scholastic activity. Please see the underlined segment of

* the interpretation for a clarification as to what the NCAA deems to be regularly scheduled.

NCAA Division I Hot Topic No. 10 -- Division I Men's Basketball - Evaluations-
Regular.Sch_olastic Activity

Date Issued: Sep 02,2005 Type: Ed. Column  Jtem Ref: I

Interpretation: In Division I men's basketball, during the fall contact period, live cvaluations shall
be limited to regularly scheduled high-school, preparatory and two-year college contests/tournaments,
-practices and regular scholastic activities involving prospective student-athletes only at that
institution. During the April contact period, live evaluations are limited to events approved by the
appropriate state or national scholastic athletics organizations and the observation of regularly
scheduled high-school, preparatory and two-year college contests/tournaments, practices and regular
scholastic activities involving prospective student-athletes only at that institution. During the fall
contact period, evaluations do not have to occur in conjunction with a contact. During the April
contact peniod, evaluations at a prospect's educational institution [other than observing a nonscholastic
event approved by the appropriate state or national scholastic athletics organization] may be made
only in conjunction with a contact. For purposes of applying the legislation, a regular scholastic
activity is any activity involving only students enrolled at that high-school, preparatory school or iwo-
year college that has been approved by the appropriate authority at that scholastic institution. An
activity that is organized for the purpose of allowing a college coach or a college coaches (o observe
prospects demonstrating their athletics skills is not considered a regular scholastic activity, but would
constitute an impermissible tryout.

EXAMPLES

612972006
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During the fall or April contact period, it is permissible for a Division I men’s basketball coach to visit
a high-school, preparatory school or two-year college to observe prospects participating in a regularly
scheduled physical education class occurring during the regular academic day involving students from
that high school.

- During the fall or April contact period, it is permissible for a Division I coach to observe prospects

from that high-school, preparatory school or two-year college participating in an athletics related
activity outside the regular academic day, provided the activity has been approved by the appropriate
high school authority. Thus, if the high school basketball team regularly plays pick up games from 3-
5 pm three times a week in their gym and the use of the gym has been approved by the appropriate
high school authority, such an activity would be considered a regular scholastic activity. Such actmty
may not involve individuals other than students who attend that school.

~ 2006 Hot Topic #2 -- Men's and Women's Basketball Recruiting Calendars --

Evaluations at Regular Scholastic Activities -- Internatlonal Prospective Student-
Athletes (I)

Date Issued: Apr 11,2006 Type: Ed. Column  Item Ref: |

Interpretation: NCAA Division I institutions should note that in men's basketball, NCAA Division

| Bylaw 13.1.8.8-(a)-(3) defines the evaluation activities that may be conducted during the April
contact period. Specifically, evaluations at nonscholastic events during the April contact period are
limited to events that are approved, sanctioned, sponsored or conducted by the applicable state high
school, preparatory school or two-year college association, National Federation of High School
Associations or the National Junior College Athletic Association. Coaching staff members may only
attend such an event on Saturday and/or Sunday, and not on any weekend during which the PSAT,
SAT, PLAN or ACT national standardized tests are administered, regardless of where the event occurs.
If an approved nonscholastic event occurs at a high school, preparatory school or two-year college, it is
not necessary to have a contact with a prospective student-athlete who attends the educational
-institution.

Evaluations at a prespect’s educational institution (other than observing a nonscholastic event
approved by the appropriate state or national scholastic athletics organization) shall be limited

to regularly scheduled preparatory school or two-year college contests/tournaments, practices

and regular scholastic activities involving student-athletes enrolled only at that institution, and only in
conjunction with an off-campus contact.

In women's basketball, Bylaw 13.1.8.8-(b)-(1) defines the evaluation activities that may be conducted
during the academic year. Specifically, evaluations during the academic year may occur at regularly
scheduled high school, preparatory school and two-year college contests/tournaments, practices, pick-
up games and open gyms. Evaluations at nonscholastic events during the women's basketball
prospective student-athlete's academic year shall only occur during the last full weekend of the fall
contact period and the weekend of the spring evaluation period and must be certified.

This legisiation applies to both domestic prospective student-athletes and international prospective
student-athietes participating in foreign countries in both men's and women's basketball. Thus, dunng
the April contact period, men's basketball coaches may not evaluate at events in foreign countries
unless the event has been approved, sanctioned, sponsored or conducted by the applicable scholastic
entity for that level of competition in that state or country.

6/29/2006




o

*Message

site).]

In addition, institutions should note that pursuant to Bylaw 13.1.7.2, recruiting contact shall not be
made with a prospective student-athlete from the time the prospect reports on call (at the direction of
the prospect's coach or comparable authority) and becomes involved in competition-related activity
(e.g., traveling to an away-from-home game) to the end of the competition. Contact includes the
passing of notes to a prospect by a third party on behaif of an institutional staff member.

[References: Bylaws 13.1.8.8 (evaluation days -- basketball) and 13.1.7.2 (practice or competition

Page 3 of 4

Please call me if you have any questions regarding this. Thanks.

Christian

Director of Comphance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Senderoff, Robert A. '
Sent: Wednesday, June 28, 2006 2:30 PM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: july schedule

Rob Senderoft

Indiana University

Men's Basketball, Assistant Coach
0O# 812-855-2238
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker
From: Pope, Chrislian Dean
Sent:  Monday, July 10, 2006 4:01 PM

To: Senderoff, Robert A_; Sampson, Kelvin Dale; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; McCallum Jr, Ray; McLaughlin, Elizabeth C;
McElroy, Barbara J; Green, Jerry ’

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: FW: July rules

Coach,

Per your request below, please be aware of the following dos and don’ts for July. Note that this information was
taken from a June 29, 2005 educational column and has changed in that the final portion of Bylaw 13.1.7.2.2 has
been eliminaled. (Beginning with “During the time period in which...and ending with disseminating the
correspondence.(See Bylaw 13.4)7)

* Per your question about calls, please pay particular attention 1o items #1,2&3. Thank you.

Institutions should note that July 6-15 and July 22-31 are evaluation periods for basketball. As such, it is not
permissible to have recruiting contacts with prospective student-athleles during these periods. In addition,
institutions should note that pursuant to NCAA Bylaw 11.7.4, there is a Jlimit of three coaches who may evaluale
prospects at any one lime during the evaluation periods.

Institutions should note that pursuant to Bylaw 13.1.7.2.2-(b), all communication with a prospecl, the prospect's
relatives or legal guardians, the prospect's coach or any individual associated with the prospect as a result of the
nrospect’s participation in basketball, directly or indirectly, is prohibited during the time period in which the

rospeci is participaling in the summer certified event, However, panted materials (e.g., letters, recruiting
brochures, questionnaires) may be sent via regular mail (see Bylaw 13.4.1) to a prospect’s home while the prospect
is participating in a certified event. Pursuant to Bylaw 13.1.7.2.2.1, an institutional coaching staff member may
have telephone conlact with a prospect's high-school coach (or high-school administrator) while the prospect is
participating in a summer certified event, provided the high-school coach or administrator is not in attendance at
that summer certified event.

The fbllowing questions and answers are intended. to clarify the application of Bylaw 13.1.7.2.2.

1. Question. If a prospect is participating in a lournament that occurs on consccutive days and at the same sile, at what point
may a coach initiate communication with a prospecl, the prospect’s relatives or legal guardians, the prospect’s coach or any
individual associated with the prospect as a result of the prospect's participation in the certified event?

Answer. A coach may only communicate with such an individual afler the prospect’s team has been eliminated from the event
and the appropriate authorities have released the prospect, except for telephone contact with a prospect’s high-school coach
{or administrator) as permitted in Bylaw 13.1.7.2.2.1.

2. Queslion. If a prospect is participating in cxtended competition (i.¢., traveling directly from one competition site lo another
on an extended road trip), at what point may a coach initiate communication with a prospecl, the prospect’s relatives or legal
guardians, the prospect’s coach or any individuat associated with the prospect as a result of the prospect's participation in the
certified events?

Answer. Once a prospect reports on call 1o travel with his or her team al the beginning of the extended road trip, it is not
permissible for an institutional coaching staff member to have any type of communication with the prospect, the prospect’s
parents or legat guardians, the prospect’s coach or any individual associated with the prospeet as a result of the prospect's
participation in basketball [except for telephone eontact with'a prospect’s high-school coach {or administrator) as permitted

1 Bylaw 13.1.7.2.2.1} until completion of the team’s final competition of the road trip and the prospect has been released by
.1¢ appropiiate authorities. This restriction on communication should reinforee that collegiate coaches’ attendance at events
during the July evaluation period should be for observation only and not a venue whereby contacts with outside influences are
designed to be made in an effort to recruit particutar basketball prospects.
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3. Question. A certified event is scheduled to take place July 8-10. Is it permissible for coaches to meet with a prospect’s coach
the evening prior to the event?

Answer. A coach could not communicate with a prospect's coach on the evening prior to the certified event if the team is in
the loeale of the event (i.¢., team has traveled to the event) and the prospect has reported on call.

4. Question. Is it permissible for a coach to evaluate a prospect who is participating in an organized high school practice
during the July evaluation period?

Answer. It would be permissible for an institutional coaching staff member to evaluate a prospective student-athlete
participating in a high-school practice (as opposed to a nonscholastic team practice), provided the ability to have organized
practice is approved or sanctioned by the appropriate state high-school athletics governing body and the practice is held at the
direction and under the supervision of the high school coach. It remains impermissible to attend nonscholastic practices in
preparation for a certified event unless that practice time has been designated as part of the certified event.

5. Question. Is it permissible for a coach to have contact with a prospect who has signed a National Letter of Intent with the
coach’s institution?

Answer. Pursuant to a 8/13/03 official interpretation (reference: Item No. 1} it is not permissible for an institutional coaching
staff member to communicate in any way with a prospect who is participating in a summer-certified event under any
circumstances, including contact with a prospect who has signed a National Letier of Intent. However, it would be permissible
for an institutional coaching staff member to communicate with a prospect who is in attendance at a summer-certified event
only if the prospect is not participating in the event and is not associated with any team participating in the event {e.g.,
prospect travels to event at his or her own expense, prospect is not under the authority of the coach at any time, prospect does
not paiticipate in team functions).

o “hristian
irector of Compliance

Indiana University
812-856-6074
Go Hoosiers!

From: Senderoff, Robert A.

Sent: Wednesday, July 05, 2006 9:55 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: July rules

Rob Senderoff

Indiana University

Men's Basketball, Assistant Coach
O# 812-855-2238

O

2/19/2008
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Christian-

Can yoiu send me another copy of what we can and can't do during july so L can have it with me
this month. What 1 really want to see is about the calls and texs....calling HS and AAU coaches
while an event is going on. 1 read where yoiu can call a HS coach about his player at the event if
the coach is not in attendance....) want to know if | am correct with that and if that extends lo

- AAU coaches too. Thanks.

O

2/19/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: - Pope, Christian Dean
Sent: Friday, July 14, 2006 1:35 PM
To: Senderoff, Robert A.; McElroy, Barbara J; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; Greenspan, Richard I;

Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; Green, Jerry; Mclaughlin, Elizabeth C; McCallum Jr, Ray; Sampson,
Kelvin Dale; Gad, Tim C; Finlinson, Jeana Lee; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; Jones, Vera;
Legette-Jack, Felisha Ann; Pardue, Tammy J; Athletics Director; Wilson, Marc A.

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: DEAD period
Importance: High

Coach,

Please be aware that we approaching a Dead period on July 16, 2006 which last until July 21, 2006.

You are not allowed to have any in-person recruiting contacts or evaluations on or off the member
instifution's campus or to permit official or unofficial visits by prospective student-athletes to the
institution’s campus. Also note, you cannot serve as a speaker or attend a meeting/banquet at which
prospective student-athletes are in attendance and you cannot visit the prospective student-athletes’
educational institutions.’

You may still write or telephone prospective student-athletes during the dead period. Also during that
week, you may have contact with a prospect enrolled at 1U {not local schools) for summer school and
5 signed a valid NLI or IU financial tender for the fall.

Please do not hesitate if you have any questions. Thank you.

Christian D. Pope

Director of Compliance
Indiana University

1001 East 17th Street
Bloomington, [N 47408-1590
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

9/27/2007




Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Pope, Christian Dean
Sent: Thursday, July 20, 2006 5:25 PM
To: Senderoff, Robert A.; McElroy, Barbara J; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; Greenspan, Richard I;

Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; Green, Jerry; McLaughlin, Elizabeth C; McCallum Jr, Ray; Sampson,
Kelvin Dale; Garl, Tim C; Finlinson, Jeana Lee; Fitzpabrick, Timothy Martin; Jones, Vera;
Legetle-Jack, Felisha Ann; Pardue, Tammy J; Athletics Director; Wilson, Marc A.

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: FW: Interp PLEASE RAED - URGENT

Importance: High
FYI- Please read and do not hesitate to ask if you need further clarification. Thank you.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

2006 Educational Column -- NCAA Division I Proposal No. 2004-124 —
Communication with Basketball Prospects During the July Evaluation Periods (I)

Date Issued: Jul 12,2006  Type: Ed. Column  Ttem Ref: ]

Interpretatjon:

NCAA Division | institutions should note that NCAA Division I Bylaw 13.1.7.2.2 specifies that,
during the July evaluation periods in men's basketball, while a. prospect is participating in a |
certified basketball event, all communication with a prospect, the prospect’s relatives or legal
guardians, the prospect's coach or any individual associated with the prospect as a result of the
prospect's participation in basketball, directly or indirectly, is prohibited. This provision |
prohibits all forms of communication, including in-person contact, general correspondence (e.g.,
letters, faxes, text messaging, instant messages, e-mail) and teleph'one calls.

In men's basketball, institutional staff members (limited to only a countable coach beginning August
1, 2006 may send general correspondence (except for text messages) to the prospect during the
time period in which the prospect is participating in a noncertified event, provided it is sent
directly to the prospect (e.g., front desk of hotel, the prospect's personal fax machine) and there
is no additional party (e.g., camp employee, coach) involved in disseminating the
correspondence. :

Text messaging is akin to the passing of notes, which is not permissible during the time period a
prospect is participating in an athletics event.

Further, women's basketball institutions should note that with the adoption of NCAA Division |
Proposal No. 2004-124, effective August 1, 2005, all communication with a prospect, the

9/27/2007
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-prospect's relatives or legal guardians, the prospect's coach or any individual associated with the

Q prospect as a result of the prospect's participation in basketball, directly or indirectly, is
prohibited during the July evaluation periods, regardless of whether the prospect is participating
in a certified basketball event. :

R

As a reminder, it is not permissible for a prospect to make official or unofficial visits during the
July evaluation period. Finally, pursuant to Bylaw 13.02.11.1, those prospects who are enrolled in
an institution's summer term and receiving athletics aid prior to initial full-time enrollment are
no longer considered prospects for the purpose of applying contact restrictions and
communication with such individuals is permissible.

[References: Division I Bylaws 13.02.11.1 (application), 13.1.3.1.3 (exception ? women's basketball),
13.1.6.4 (women's basketball), 13.1.7.2.2 (additional restrictions ? men's and women's basketball), and

30.11.2 (women's basketball)].

9/27/2007
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Brinegar, Jennifer L

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent:  Thursday, July 27, 2006 10:50 AM
To: Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: FW: Bylaw 13.1.7.2 interp

Coach,

Per your question yesterday, please review the attached. Thank you.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Big Ten - Greg Walter [mailto:gwalter@bigten.org]
Sent: Thursday, July 27, 2006 10:23 AM

To: Pope, Christian Dean

Cc: Big Ten - Chad Hawley

Subject: RE: Bylaw 13.1.7.2 Interp

CP:
The 6/29/05 EC below should help clarify the first two issues...

1. Communication is not permissible during the July evaluation periods in men’s basketball — see #2 in the

Q&A below.
2. Communication is permissibie once the prospect’s team has been eliminated and the prospect is released
by the appropriate institutional authorities — see #1 in the Q&A below. 1t is not necessary to wait until the

prospect has actually arrived home.

3. Hthe prospect is traveling from one tournament to.another with his parents (and is not traveling with his
teamn or otherwise “on cali”), then communication is permissible once the prospect’s team has been
eliminated from the first tournament and the prospect has been released to his parents by the appropriate

institutional authority.

Hope this helps,

Greg

2005 Division | Hot Topic No. 6 - Basketball Summer Recruiting Restrictions

Date Issued: Jun 29, 2005
Type: Ed. Column
¥ = Ref: 1

/pretation: ‘
Osmuhons should note that July 6-15 and July 22-31 are evaluation periods for men’s and women’s basketball.

7127/2006
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Would you call when you get this? 1 just need a little reinforcement in my thinking before I go forward.

o Thanks.

. hristian
~ Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074
Go Hoosiers!

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Wednesday, July 26, 2006 5:17 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: Bylaw 13.1.7.2 Interp

Jennifer,

I need your help with this. Jeff has asked about email or text messaging or calling a prospect once a
July event is over. I know he can do that, but he also wants to know about the following scenarios.

L Post event but prior to travel to the next venue if a team is going to leave one site and travel to
another without returning home. - '

2. Post event on route home from an event.

3. Post event but prior to travel to the next venue if transported by parents to the next event.

‘nfusing.” Additionally, I have found the attached SI 05.03.06. Please let me you’re your thoughts.

o As worded I believe that these are all permissible but the wording in 13.1.7.2.2 and 13.1.7.2 is
.nanks. :

113.1.7.2 Practice or Competition Site

Recruiting contact may not be made with a prospective student-athlete prior to any athietics
competition in which the prospective student-athlete is a participant during the day or days of
competition, even if the prospective student-athlete is on an official or unofficial visit. Contact
includes the passing of notes to a prospective student-athlete by a third party on behalf of an
institutional staff member. Such contact shall be governed by the following: (Revised: 1/11/89,
171091, 1/11/94, 1/9/96 effective 7/1/96)

(a) Contact shall not be made with the pfospective student-athlete at any site prior to the contest on the
day or days of competition; (Revised: 1/11/89, 1/11/94)

(b) Contact shall not be made with the prospective student-athlete from the time the prospective
student-athlete reports on call (at the direction of the prospective student-athlete's coach or comparabie
authority) and becomes involved in competition-related activity (e.g., traveling to an away-from-home
game) to the end of the competition even if such competition-related activities are initiated prior to the
day or days of competition; (Revised: 1/11/94) :

“~) Contact shall not be made after the competition until the prospective student-athlete is released by
O, .1e appropriate institutional authority and departs the dressing and meeting facility;

7272006
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site); and NCAA Division Il Byiaw 13.1.4.2 (practice or competition site); and a 01/30/91 staff
interpretation, item a, which has been archived and the 03/09/94 staff interpretation, item a, which has

been archived.]

Christian D. Pope

Director of Compliance
Indiana University

1001 East 17th Street
Bloomington, IN 47408-1590
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

®
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Message

Brinegar, Jennifer L.

srom: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent:  Thursday, August 03, 2006 12:31 PM
To: | Senderoff, Rober A.

Cc: Brinegar, Jenniter L.

Subject: FW: elite camp questions

Coach,

Because Football will be meeting with the compliance staff this Saturday evening, I cannot attend.
Although, as we discussed, even though I cannot be there to speak to the group, as the camp director you
are required to provide the following information to the campers that attend the session. The
information does not have to come from a compliance staffer, it just has to be discussed. Here are the
talking points that I use. '

I. NCAA .ORG = Great Resource, everything a prospect needs can be found there from
Clearinghouse info to recruiting process.
2. Gambling activities = Beware of the 1% time best friend. Someone you never knew before

you became good in your sport. Watch out for people trying to leverage you for any sports
related information.

3. Agent activity = Similar to the above. Beware of fast friends or people who are looking for
) information. -
4. Drug Testing = The NCAA and most schools test. Even over the counter from Wal-Mart or
GNC can cause problems.
5. Initial Eligibility = 14 core courses (4 Eng., 2 Math, 2 Physical Sci., 1 additional from the

first three areas,2 Natural Scj., and 3 Additional core)

Please note on you other point; there have been no changes that would allow the incoming student-
athletes to be employed at an IU camp. Incoming student-athletes may not work a summer camp at
IU.

Please see the attached for your information as this is the only information currently on the LSDBi
regarding your question. Thanks.

13.12.2.1.5 Employment in Own Institution's Camp or Clinic

In sports other than D I-A football, 1U (or employees of its athletics department) may employ its

student-athletes as counselors in camps or clinics, provided:
™~

¢ The SA’s don’t particjpate in organized practice activities (other than during the institution’s playing
season in the sport (see Bylaw 17.1.1)).

Four-Year College Transfer Employed at Institution’s Summer Camp

" “te Issued: Jun 04, 1997  Type: Staff Interpretation  Item Ref: 2

Gnterprelﬂtion: Four-Year College Transfer Employed at Institution's Summer Camp:

8/3/2006
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, o The membership services staff confirmed:
o * A four-year college student who has received written permission per NCAA Bylaw 13.1.1.3 to

discuss transferring with another NCAA institution is considered a senior prospect pursuant to
NCAA recruiting regulations.

¢ Thus, in sports other than football, he may not be employed at any Division [ institution's
summer camp {either on a salaried or volunteer basis) if he or she is being recruited by that
institution or if he or she was a high-school, preparatory-school or two-year college athletics
award winner. :

*  Further, such a prospect may not be employed (either on a salaried or volunteer basis) at any
Division I or HI institutional camp or at a Division I football camp.
References: 13.1.1.3 (4-year prospect), 13.13.1.5.1 (employment of prospect), 13.13.1.5.2

(employment of prospect -- Divisions I and III), 13.13.1.2.1 (exception — D. 1 FB) & 13.13.1.2.1.1

-{senior prospect)]
FYI - 13.02.11.1 Application

An individual who is no longer considered a prospect per Bylaw 13.02.11-(c) shall not be
subject to the contact limitations in Bylaw 13 and shall be considered a student-athlete for

purposes of Bylaw 16. The individual weuld still.be considered a prospective student-athlete for
purposes of applying the remaining provisions of Bylaw 13 and other bylaws.

The trggers that would allow the above are as follows:
¢ The individual officially registers and enrolls in a tull time program of studies and attends classes in
any regular term (excluding summer) at IU, or
e - The individual participates in a regular practice or competition at IU that occurs before the
beginning of any term; or
e  The individual officially registers and enrolls and attends classes during the summer prior to
initial enrollment and receives institutional athletics aid.

13.12.1.5.1 General Rule

~ An institution, members of its staff or representatives of its athletics interests shall not employ or give
free or reduced admission privileges to a high school, preparatory school or two-year college athletics
award winner or any individual being recruited by the institution per Bylaw 13.02.12.1. For purposes of
this rule, a high school includes the ninth-grade level, regardless of whether the ninth grade is part of a

junior high school system.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

Christian

Director of Compliance
~iana University

0812-856-6074
Go Hoosiers!

8/3/2006
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e From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

ant: Thursday, August 03, 2006 9:47 AM
1o: Pope, Christian Dean
Subject: RE: elite camp questions

The signees can attend the camp as ong as they pay the regular admission fee. They can not work the camp (a
question Rob also asked below, bul was not addressed in your response).

13.12.1.5.1 General Rule

An institution, members of its staff or representatives of its athletics interests shall not employ or give
free or reduced admission privileges to a high school, preparatory school or two-year college athletics
award winner or any individual being recruited by the institution per Bylaw 13.02.12.1. For purposes of
this rule, a high school includes the ninth-grade level, regardless of whether the ninth grade is part of a
junior high school system. (Revised: 3/10/04)

Also, you probably need to work up a more detailed informational sheet for Rob to use — he wouldn't know the
rules on the 4 topics below lo be able 1o ad Iib like you and me.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athietics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

.O om: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Thursday, August 03, 2006 9:37 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: elite camp guestions
Importance: High

Jennifer,

Would you please take a look and tell me if [ am missing anything? Rob also wants to know about
allowing incoming signees to pay and attend the camp and I can find nothing on point. Please let me

know. Thanks.

Christian

From: Senderoff, Robert A.

Sent: Wednesday, August 02, 2006 8:31 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: elite camp questions

©

8/3/2006
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christian-

1. can you speak to our elite.camp on saturday (about 6pm) ?

2. can our incoming players (armon, Xavier and Lance) pay to participate in camp o
work at camp i think the rule changed as of august 1st

o

8/3/2006




e Brinegar, Jennifer L.

‘rom: Pope, Christian Dean
Sent:  Wednesday, August 09, 2006 8:54 AM

To: Meyer, Jetfrey Dennis; Sampson, Keivin Dale; Green, Jerry; Senderoff, Robert A.; McCallum Jr,
Ray
Cc:  Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: Video Interp

Coach,

Per your question yesterday, it would impermissible for Coach Sampson to use of a live video feed,

from his office or anywhere on campus, to a remote computer that an assistant coach has set up in a

home visit to communicate with a prospect. That is contrary to Bylaw 13.4.2. Please take a look at a

portion of an August 26, 2005 Educational column regarding the use of a computer recruiting
resentation during the recruiting process.

Q: Is it permissible for an institution to post 2 PowerPoint presentation on its Web site?

A: Institutions should note that during its April 21, 1998, meeting, the NCAA Division 1

Academics/Eligibility/Compliance Cabinet Subcornmittee on Legislative Review/Interpretations

clarified that it is not permissible for members of an institution's coaching staff to show prospects

computer recruiting presentations (e.g., using presentation software) during the recruiting

o nrocess. As a result, unless the presentation meets the provisions of Bylaw 13.4.2 (video/audio
aterials), it is hot permissible for an institution to post a recruiting presentation on its Web site.

Thank you.

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
Sent:
To:

Brinegar, Jennifer L
Tuesday, August 22, 2006 11:14 PM
Amy D_Robertson; King, Barry A; Duane LGoldman; Hoeppner, Terry L; Huber, Jeffrey'J;

“Wilson, Judith B; Kathryn AWeismiller; Kelvin Sampson; Hydinger, Ken; Legelte-Jack, Felisha

Ann; LinLoring; Lyon, Michael D; Freitag, Michael A; Michael BMayer; Pelerson, Stephen Lee;
Phillips, Stacey Lee (stalphil@indiana.edu); Randall LeeHeisler; Rlooze; RobertChapman;
Smith, Tracy J; Waliman, Clint Donald; Adam Judge; Affolder, Matthew C; McElroy, Barbara J;
Barbara LThompson; Beyster, Tarrah Jean; Bloemendaal, Randy Kenneth; Brewer, Joshua
Bryon; Brown, Gerald L; Brush, Donald J; Canada, Mathew R; Narey, Cathy Ann; Cooper,
Coyte Gene; Ferrand, Barbara W_; Finlinson, Jeana Lee; Flanders, Erika Jean; George, Brian
Alan; Green, Jerry; Hogg, Cherie Lisa; Johnson, Robert Shane; Jones, Vera; Leone, Angela
Rose; Lorie SueCanada; Lucido, Gina M; Lynch, William Michael; Lynch, William R.;
McCallum Jr, Ray; Mena, Michael J; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; Mirochna, Carmen R
{cmirochn@indiana.edu); Neal, Tyson B; O'Rourke, Frances E.; Palcic, Joseph Thomas;
Pardue, Tammy J (tjpardue@indiana.edu); Pate, Wayne H; Porch, Darlanya; Prince, Bryan
Nathan; Puls, Michelle Kristen; Azcui, Jairo R; Reggie Wright; Rickerby, lan; Rickerby, lan J;
Ricumstrict, George; Riddle, Michael Gerald; Senderoff, Robert A.; Swander, Pam; Tom,
Theodore Alan (ttomjr@indiana.edu); Wright, Trudy L; Westphal, Michael Gordon; Wilson,
Marc A.; Wiseman, Jason P; Yeager, Michael R; Yeagley, Todd J; House, Anitra L; Brinegar,

- Jennifer L; Calhoun, M. Grace; Christian Pope; Clark, Kevin; Crabb, Charles K; Cuervo, Frank

Subject:
Importance:
Attachments:

Tracking:

4/1/2008

Martin: Edge, Ronald D; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin (tmfilzpa@indiana.edu}); Garrett, Jack
Allen; Greenspan, Richard | {rgreensp@indiana.edu); Horan, Jeffrey J; Jaffee, Bruce L;
Arnold, Kathy L; Klingethoffer, C K; Martin WClark; Mauro Jr, Harold A; Reynolds, Chris;
Roberts, George M; Rohleder, Mary Ann; Scotl MDolson; Wateska, Mark J

QOTW and Compliance Reminders
High
ICN August 2006.pub

Recipient o Read

Amy D.Robertson

King, Barry A Read: B/23/2006 9:04 AM
Duane LGoldman

Hoeppner, Termy L Read: 8/23/2006 B:27 AM
Huber, Jeffrey 3 Read: 8/23/2006 11:03 AM
Wilson, Judith B " Read: B/28/2006 1:14 PM
Kathryn AWeismiller

Kelvin Sampson

Hydinger, Ken Read: 8/23/2006 9:06 AM
Legette-Jack, Felisha Ann Read: 8/23/2006 9:27 AM
LinLoring

Lyon, Michael D Read: 8/23/2006 1:00 PM
Freitag, Michael A ' Read: 8/23/2006 11:25 AM
Michael BMayer

Peterson, Stephen Lee
Phillips, Stacey Lee (stalphil@indiana.edu)
Randall LeeHeisler

Riooze
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RobertChapman
Smith, Tracy J
Wallman, Clint Donald
Adam Judge

Affolder, Matthew C

) -# McElroy, Barbara J

e A

Barbara LThompson
Beyster, Tarrah Jean
Bloemendaal, Randy Kenneth
Brewer, Joshua Bryon
Brown, Gerald L
Brush, Donaid J
Canada, Mathew R
Narey, Cathy Ann
Cooper, Coyte Gene
Ferrand, Barbara W.
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Azcui, Jairo R

Reggie Wright
Rickerby, Ian
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Read: 8/23/2006 9:00 AM
Read: 8/23/2006 7:39 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 7:29 AM

Read: 9/28/2006 10:22 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 11:27 AM
Read: 8/23/2006 7:50 AM
Read: 8/25/2006 7:28 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 8:27 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 7:44 AM
Read: 8/23/2006 9:11 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 8:21 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 8:18 AM .

Read: 8/28/2006 4:09 PM
Read: 8/23/2006 11:55 AM
Read: 8/23/2006 9:12 AM

Read: 9/13/2006 10:23 AM

-Read: 8/23/2006 5:05 PM

Read: 8/23/2006 8:05 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 9:36 AM

Read: 8/24/2006 9:45 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 2:24 PM

Read: 8/23/2006 9:44 AM
Read: 8/23/2006 11:29 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 1:01 PM
Read: 8/23/2006 9:37 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 9:37 AM
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Read: 8/23/2006 7:13 AM
Read: 8/23/2006 B:42 AM
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Read: 8/23/2006 8:24 AM

Read: B/23/2006 8:17 AM
Read: B/23/2006 B:00 AM
Read: 8/22/2006 11:57 PM
Read: 8/22/2006.11:33 PM
Read: 8/23/2006 9:18 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 10:18 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 11:15 AM
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Read: B/23/2006 9:58 AM
Read: 8/23/2006 7:23 AM
Read: B/23/2006 9:30 AM

Read: 8/23/2006 8:07 AM
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Read: 8/23/2006 8:41 AM
Read: 8/23/2006 7:44 AM
Read: 8/23/2006 9:53 AM
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Okay, it’s been weeks since the last QOTW, so NO groans! This email has a LOT of relevant and

timely info, so be sure to read through ALL of it! This is IT for August QOTWs! ©

Question: The new legislation allows for all sports but FB (FB - skip down past this Q&A) to
do two hours of skill instruction with the whole team each week as part of the permissible 8
hours of countable athletically related activities per week OUTSIDE a sport’s declared playing
and practice season, so is it okay for a team not in season at the start of the school year

(Monday, August 28) to have a one hour practice on two days next week?
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Answer: NO - this is only permissible during September 15 through April 15, so until September
15 (and after April 15), a sport that is out of season can only do the skill instruction with no more
than four student-athletes from the same team at any one time in any facility. [17.1.5.2.2]

Head Coaches: Remember — regardless of whether your first competition is exhibition or
regular season, you MUST ensure that NONE of your student-athletes participate UNTIL you
bave VERIFIED that they are on your sport’s CEL! If it’s getting 2-3 days before your first
competition (or travel to your competition if it’s away), and you haven’t done so already, get
with Anitra to see if she has everyone on YOUR roster; so, that when the list is finalized, there
is no one inadvertently left off. Also, do NOT travel or compete without reviewing and
confirming that the CEL is complctc and accurate — this is YOUR rcsponsnblhty' Is that horse .
dead yet?

(FB — skip to next section) Belated reminder for this preseason, but still applicable for upcoming
vacation periods: Volunteer coaches may NOT eat at training table meals ~ even during preseason
or vacation periods. This is not an IU rule - this is in Bylaw 11.01.5-(c) — VCs may receive
complimentary meals incidental to organized team activities (e.g., pre- or post-game meals,
occasional meals, but not training table meals) or meals provided during a prospect’s official visit,
provided the VC dines with the prospect.

Coaches - remember — no incoming student-athlete (freshmen, transfers and first-time participants
regardless of year enrolled at 1U) should practice until they have completed the three step
certification process. Due to overwhelming demand (as well as a change n the legislation), one day
tryouts are permissible once we have verified the student is enrolled in 12 hours at I[U-B AND has
received medical clearance from the training room. After the one day tryout is over, anyone who
makes the squad, even tentatively, must complete the rest of the compliance paperwork and receive
the rules education by attending one of the many compliance/eligibility meetings scheduled during
the month of September. See, call (6-4526), or email (mmooney@indiana.edu} Marni Mooney for

more info!

ALL STAFF — remember: no sports gambling, don’t provide “inside” information regarding ANY
of our teams or student-athletes to anyone OQUTSIDE of the athletics department, report any

~ suspected violation of any NCAA or Big Ten rules, and don’t treat a student-athlete different (away
from what they may receive in the course of their athletically-related and academic activities) than
you would any other IU student (e.g., no loans, no use of personal property, no free long distance
calls — even with your cell phone, no tickets to IU or community events, no overnight stays at your
house, no more than an occasional meal in the locale of Bloomington, only occasional local
transportation). If anyone can think of 5 creative (and relevant) examples of other extra benefits,
send them to me and you'll be entered in a random drawing for a free car wash!

Three recent interps from the NCAA (FB - skip the first two):

1. Educational Column -- NCAA Division I Bylaw 13.11.1.2 and NCAA Proposal No.
2005-72 — Competition Against Prospective Student-Athletes

NCAA Division | institutions are reminded that in accordance with NCAA Division 1 Bylaw 13.11.1.2,
an institution's varsity intercollegiate athletics team may not compete against a high school or
preparatory school team. An institution's varsity team may not participate in a contest against an

established outside team that includes high school prospective student-athletes except for permissible
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contests while participating on a foreign tour, exempted contests against a foreign team in the United
States and contests against the United States national team.

NCAA Proposal No. 2005-72 eliminates the practice of an institution’s varsity team competing against
any outside team that includes high school prospective student-athletes. The legislation is applicable
when an institution's team competes in an organized event against a team of prospective student-
athletes. Participation by student-athletes in individual competition (e.g., tennis, track and field,
swimming) against high school and/or preparatory school prospects remains permissible. [EC 08/21/06]

* 2. Prize Money Prior to Initial Full-Time Collegiate Enrollment and Coach's Expenses
or Fees (I)

The committee determined that for the purpose of calculating a prospective student-athlete's actual and
necessary expenses related to participation in an open athletics event, the calculation may not include the
expenses or fees of anyone other than the prospective student-athlete (e.g., coach’s fee or expenses,
parent’s expenses). [S 07/20/06] [This is good time and place to remind coaches that are recruiting
prospects (e.g., international prospects, prospects in Olympic sports) that prize money, which is
okay PRE-enrollment as long as it does not exceed actual and necessary expenses, does NOT
include an incentive or bonus from a prospect’s team based on performance — this violates the
bylaw prohibiting payment based on performance — 12.1.2.1.5 — make sure your prospects are
fully informed on ALL the regulations relating to amateurism (good luck)!|

3. Student-Athlete Establisﬁing His or Her Own Business (I)

The committee determined that a student-athlete may establish his or her own business, provided the
student-athlete’s name, photograph, appearance or athletics reputation are not used to promote such a

business. [S 07/20/06]

Last, but not least (and thanks for hanging in there!), don’t forget the All-Staff meeting on August

29t _pe prepared to sign the Athletics Staff Certification of Compliance form certifying that you
have reported all violations that you are aware of involving IU to the compliance office or AD

during the past 12 months. Also, the first Compliance Meeting is Tuesday, September 5™ from 10-
11 in the Hoosier Room — coaches are required to attend, but everyone else is welcome to come.
Dates and times for the compliance meetings {(coaches and student-athletes) for the fall semester are
found in the August ICN — in case you misplaced (or trashed) your pretty color copy, I attached
another one to this email for your convenience. Mark the dates (especially the monthly compliance
meeting dates) in your calendar!!! Also, this email went out to coaches and administrators — if you
see that someone from your sport is missing, let me know and I'll update my list ASAP (FYI -1
am sending out an identical email to my Academics, support staff, training room and Varsxty Club

dlsmbutlon lists, as well). Thanks!

Remember — we are lucky and blessed to work at TU Athletics (in other words, don’t let the
rules get you down!)!

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451
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o . Go Hoosiers!!!

e
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From:  Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Friday, September 01, 2006 9:39 AM

To: Garl, Tim C; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; Senderoff, Robert A.
Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L :

Subject: FW: MBB 'Tai|gates at Home FB Games
Importance: High

Tim,

Thanks for speaking with me about men’s basketball’s plans for providing the team with a meal in lien
of training table on Saturday. Please be aware that all walk-on’s and prospects must pay the regular cost
of the meal that is being provided. They cannot pay the reduced or group rate cost if one is being
provided by Chartwells. Please let me know if you have any questions. Thanks.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074.

Go Hoosiers!

~om: Brinegar, Jennifer L
sent: Friday, September 01, 2006 9:17 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean '

Subject: FW: MB8 Tailgates at Home FB Games

Can you come over at some point and get me up to speed on the tailgate for this weekend for
MBB? Thanks.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

Go Hoosierst!

From: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin
Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2006 7:02 PM
To: Crabb, Charles K ’

Cc: Clark, Kevin G; Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: RE: MBB Tailgates at Home FB Games

Chuck -
.anks._...this is on hold untit | can run the thing past Rick. We still have some issues to resolve before this one

goes forward ~ please hold the space and we know we can provide a lent. Among other things,  need to talk with
Kevin Clark about a funding source and also make sure that the activity has been cleared with Compliance. If

9/27/2007
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Tim presses you, send him to see me.
* ppreciale il.

Tim

From: Crabb, Charles K

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2006 5:51 PM
To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Cc: Garrett, Jack Allen

Subject: RE: MBB Tailgates at Home FB Games

| got an e-mail from Erin Erdmann of Chartwells around 2:30 p.m. Tuesday where she'd received a call from Tim
Garl asking for a tent with Chartwells providing catering. 1 respended aboul the difficulty on west side location
and then Tim Garl and | had a couple of exchanges before Tuesday ended. This morning, Tim G. asked about
location because he had said Coach Sampson wanted on the west side of Assembly Hall. 1 had a place north of
the TV truck asphall driveway which has been checked for locates with the *holy molie” pecple. We have a 20x20
tent available for Saturday which the Athletics Evenls crew will move from Armstrong to Assembly Hall.

Charles K. Crabb
Assistant Athletics Director
for Facilities Management
Assembly Hall 110-D

1001 E. 17th Sireet
Bloomington, IN 47408-1590
812/855-2127

FAX 812/856-5155

From: Fltzpatnck T:mothy Martin

-Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2006 3:18 PM
To: Crabb, Charles K

Cc: Garrett, Jack Allen

Subject: MBB Tailgates at Home FB Games

Chuck —
I need a quick “down and dirty” on this notion.. ... can you fill me in when you have a minule?
Thanks,

Tim

From:; Giddens, Chad C
Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2006 3:12 PM

To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; Roberts, George M
Subject: RE: MBB Tailgates at Home FB Games

I have no idea. ..l first heard of it yesterday when Chuck confirmed with me that there was no space on the
Southwest quadrant of Assembly Hall because of our Kids Zone setup. At that time he and [ talked about
alternative locations, such as the Southeast area between Assembly Hall and Gladstein.

had Giddens
Director of Marketing
Indiana University Athletics
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812.856.0088
812.855.2447 (fax)

Defend the Rock!?!
Call 866-IUSPORTS for Tickets

2006 1U Football commercials.
Tackle http://youtube.com/watch?v=MU_SWroTyKU
Votce from }Ibove http //www youtube com/watch ?v—z.rGAOL KaJU

From: Fltzpatrlck Timothy Martin

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2006 3:04 PM
To: Giddens, Chad C; Roberts, George M
Subject: MBB Tailgates at Homie FB Games
Importance: High

Guys —

Does anyone have any idea where this men’s basketball tailgate idea came from? I'm totally in the dark on this

.one, but at the same time realize we're in a posilion where we may need to react quickly.

(e

Thanks,

Tim

972772007
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‘From: Pope, Christian Dean

Message Page 1 of 4

Brmegar Jenmfer Hooker

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent:  Friday, September 01, 2006 10:03 AM
To: Senderoff, Robert A.

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: FW: Compliance Question....urgenti!!

Coach,

Jennifer’s suggestion is that you run the prospects by the equipment room to display some of the items that we supply
to student-athletes. In the equipment room, apparel/gear is definitely not a decorative item or a special addilion.

Atso, [ know that you understand, so I don’t need to emphasize, that the prospect’s name or number cannot be affixed .
lo any ilem in any way. Thank you.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Friday, September 01, 2006 9:00 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: Compliance Question....urgentt!!

nnifer,

Yes, they could do that. 1 don’t know if they want to visit the equipment room on the tour of the facility but P'l} offer
that to Rob. Good thlnkmg

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Bnnegar Jennrfer L

Sent: Friday, September 01, 2006 8:57 AM
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: RE: Compliance Question....urgent!!!

Then, could they take the prospects by the equipment room to show them the different types of shoes and
apparel that Adidas provides for the men’s basketball team?

Jennifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director - Complxance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

0 Hoosiers!!!

9/27/2007
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Sent: Friday, September 01, 2006 8:54 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Subject: RE: Compliance Question....urgent!!!

sennifer,

[3
The bylaw states that it would. “Personalized recruiting aids include any decorative items and special additions to
any location the prospective student-athlete will visit {e.g., hotel room, locker room, coach's office, conference room,
arena) regardless of whether or not the items include the prospective student-athlete’s name or picture.” Thanks.

Christian

Director of Compliance
Indiana Unuiversity
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent: Friday, September 01, 2006 8:51 AM

To: Pope, Christian Dean
Subject: RE: Compliance Question....urgent! !

Would this fall under “personalized” if nothing has the PSA’s name or number on it?

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana Umversity

812-855-0451

» Hoosters!!!

From: Pope, Christian Dean
Sent: Thursday, August 31, 2006 3:37 PM -

To: Senderoff, Robait A.
Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L; Sampson, Kelvin Dale; Green, Jerry; McCallum Jr, Ray; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis

Subject: RE: Compliance Question....urgent!H
Importance: High

Coach,

Per 13.7.3, you cannot display any “decorative iterns” even if those items are not personalized. You may show them
the locker room but you cannot have a display of gear/apparel that will display what they will receive if they choose
to attend IU. Thank you. :

Here is the Bylaw from page 116.

13.7.3 Activities During Unofficial Visit

An institution may not arrange miscellaneous, personalized recruiting aids (e.g., personalized jerseys, personalized
audio/visual scoreboard presentations) and may not permit a prospeclive student-athlete to engage in any game-day
simulations {e.g., running onto the field with the team during pregame introductions) during an unofficial visit.
Personalized recruiting aids include any decorative items and special additions to any lecation the
-ospective student-athlete will visit (e.g., hotel room, locker room, coach’s office, conference room, arena)
gardless of whether or not the items include the prospective student-athlete's name or picture. {4depted:
e 8/5/04; Revised: 3/14/05, 4/27/06)
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hookér

e e e —— -

From: ' Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent: Friday, September 08, 2006 5:51 PM
To: Barbara JMcelroy; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin {tmfitzpa@indiana.edu); Green, Jerry;

Greenspan, Richard | (rgreensp@indiana.edu); Kelvin Sampson; McCallum Jr, Ray Ray
{rmccallu@indiana.edu); Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis (jedmeyer@indiana.edu); Senderoff, Robert A_;

Tim CGarl
Cc: Pope, Christian Dean
Subject: Important - Please Read - New Interp!

Importance: High

2006 Educational Column -- NCAA Bylaw 13.1.8. 8 -- Fall Contact Period - Men's
Basketball (I)

Date Issued: Sep 08, 2006
Type: Ed. Column
Item Ref: 1

Interpretation:

NCAA Division | institutions sheuld note that during the men's basketball fall contact period
“eptember 9 through October 5), live evaluations shall be limited to regularly scheduled high school,
,-eparatory and two-year college contests/tournaments, practices and regular scholastic activities
involving prospective student-athletes only at that institution. Evaluations do not have to occur in
conjunction with a contact. A regular scholastic activity is any activity involving only students enrolled
at that high school, preparatory school or two-year college that has been approved by the appropriate
authority at that scholastic institution. An activity that is organized for the purpose of allowing a college
coach or college coaches to observe prospects demonstrating their athletics skills is not considered a
regular scholastic activity, but would constitute an impermissible tryout.

In evaluating whether a specific contest/tournament (e.g., preseason "jamboree") is regularly scheduled,
institutions are encouraged to contact the applicable governing scholastic entity (e.g., high school or
two-year college association) in addition to reviewing the institution's schedule and/or Web site. A
jamboree (or other contest/tournament) that appears on a high school or two-year college schedule or
Web site may be an indication that such a contest/tournament is regularly scheduled; however, it is
important that such information is verified with the applicable governing scholastic entity.

Finally, institutions are reminded that coaches may attend pick-up games during the fall contact period
provided the activity is part of the prospect's regular scholastic activities (e.g., physical education class,
regular practice activities), involves only prospects at that educational institution and is approved by the
appropriate instifutional authority.

[Reference: Division I Bylaw 13.1.8.8 (fall contact period/men's basketball)]
anifer Brinegar

nssistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University
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812-855-0451

50 Hoosiers!f
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/ I‘C_C{ﬁ LOC CM
Bnne_ggr_ Jennifer Hooker _ ?i )/’d /M//I / ffY&.M

~“rom:  Brinegar, Jennifer L \ql ( ”[Llf/{% :

Sent:  Monday, Seplember 25, 2006 10:27 AM
Subject: Question(s) of the Week - Recruiting Coordination Functions (Week of 9/25/06)

There are lots of questions/confusion regarding recruiting coordination functions and the
application of 2005-77-B (from IU and other Big Ten schools), $o here is a good Q&A from the
Big Ten office on this topic. This is a MUST read if you are a coach, as well as an
administrative assistant, director of operations, GA, volunteer coach, or other support staff
dealing with recruiting. '

Question #1: s it permissible for staff members, other than countable coaches, to make and/or
receive calls to/from prospects and thetr parents and/or legal guardians? [ understanding the
purpose of the call cannot be recruiting in nature. In planning official and-unofficial visits we will
need to accept RSVPs, communicate itineraries, and answer questions regarding the visit.

Answer #1: Per Bylaw 11.7.1.2, a countable coach must coordinate the recruiting process,
including deciding which activities will occur during recruiting visits and communicating with
prospects regarding the details of the visit (such as RSVPs and itineraries). As a general matter,
i an activity relates to the recruiting process and is not clcncal in nature (see #7 below), that
activity must be performed by a countable coach.

That said, the Big Ten says there is room for reasonable (and limited) flexibility in application — for
exdample, if a PSA calls en route to an official visit and requests directions, a violation does not occur if a
noncoaching staff member provides the information rather than trying to track down a countable coach —
but, as a general matter, the coordination and day-to-day performance of these duties must be done by a
countable coach.

Question #2: s it permissible for staff members, other than countable coaches, to respond to
emails requesting general information about Indiana and/or our football program?

Answer #2: Since “preparation of general recruiting correspondence to prospective student-
athletes” is defined as a recruiting coordination function in the legislation, a countable coach
would need to provide the content of such an e-mail. A noncoaching staff member could
engage in clerical tasks relating to the preparation of the e-mail (e.g., type an e-mail dictated by
a coach and physically send it to the PSA). See the final paragraph of the 7/27/06 EC below for

* further clarification on which specific tasks a noncoaching staff member may perform with respect to the.
dissemination of general correspondence.

Question #3: Ifit is not permissible to do #1 and/or #2, how do you suggest we best handle these
simations? That is, at what point do we need to transfer the call, forward the email, etc?

o.uswer #3: As a general matter, the call should be transferred to a countable coach or the e-

mail should be forwarded to a countable coach as soon as it is determined that it is related o
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recruitment.’

Unestion #4: For recruiting materials, how involved can staff members, who are not countable
coaches, be in the creative process? Can we help design, draft, and/or edit recruiting materials?

Answer #4: Noncoaching staff members should not be involved with the creative process as it
relates to recruiting correspondence — the substance of recruiting communication with prospects
should come from the “creative mind”’ of a countable coach. ‘A noncoaching staff member
“could, for example, type a letter whose substance has been dictated by a countable coach and
could perform grammar checks, spelling checks, and other clerical functions related to the
preparation of the correspondence.

Question #5: Is it permissible for staff members other than the countable coaches to sort and
catalog flm? These individuals do not evaluate or make recommendations to coaches. They open
mail, sort, log video.

Answer #5: Yes, under the conditions that you’ve identified. The staff members must be
merely preparing the video for review by a countable coach rather than evaluating prospects on
the videotape.

Question #6: Can they send a letter acknowledging receipt of the film to- the prospect?

Answer f#6: Samé answer as #2.

Question #7: What is considered a “routine clerical task?”

Answer #7: Here is a nonexclusive list of examples of routine clerical tasks: typing dictated
letters or e-mails, printing a letter and putting it in an envelope, addressing/stamping/ mailing
a letter, making copies, making reservations and appointments for visit-related activities (ideas
for the activities themselves should come from a countable coach), preparing compliance-
related paperwork, receiving and sorting mail, entering biographical and compliance-related
information into recruiting database, and answering the phone (subject to #1 above).

I've highlighted two sections of the 7/27/06 EC below - the first helps to clarify the application of
this legislation as it relates to phone calls, the second as it relates to recruiting
correspondence. Please contact Christian if you have additional questions.

2006 Educational Column — NCAA Division | Bylaw 11.7.1.2 - Recruiting Coordination Functions (i)

oty

Date ssued: Jul 27, 2006

Type: Ed. Column

" mRef: 1

. .erpretation:
CAA Division | inslitutions should note that with the adoption of NCAA Division | Proposal No. 2005-77-8,
fiective Augusl 1, 2006, all recruiting coordination functions (except routine clerical tasks) must be performed by
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in all sports. Such functions include:
* Aclivities involving athletics evaluation and/or selection of prospective student-athletes.

Tetephone calls to prospeclive student-athieles (or prospective student-athletes’ parents, legal guardians or
coaches).
3. Preparation of general recruiting correspondence 1o prospeclive student-athletes (or prospective student-
athletes’ parents or legal guardians).

o a coach who counts toward the numerical limitations of head or assistant coaches (NCAA Division | Bylaw 11.7.4)

Further, inasmuch as telephone calls are a recruiling-coordination activity, it is not permissible for
athletics department staff members (other than a coach who counts toward the numerical limitations of
head or assistant coaches or other specific staff members pursuant lo legislated exceptions), including
volunteer coaches (Bylaw 11.01.5), to make calls to or receive calls from prospects {or the prospects’
parents, legal guardians, or coaches) that may involve conversations related to the recruitment of the
prospects. In Division [-A football and women's rowing, such telephone calls also may be made by the graduate
assistant coach, provided the coach has successfully completed the coaches’ certification examinalion per Bylaw
11.5.1.1.

It is also important to note that with the adoption of Proposal No. 2005-77-B, the exceptions noled in Bylaw
13.1.3.4.1.1, which permitled noncoaching institutional staff members to make telephone calls lo prospeclive
student-athletes in football under specified conditions, now appiy to all sports. The following inslitutional staff
members may continue to make telephone calls to or receive telephone calls from prospective studenl-athletes
{or the prospeclive student-alhlefe’s parents or legal guardians) as specified:
1. President or chancellor/direclor of athletics. It is permissible for an instilution’s president or chancellor and
director of athletics lo return (as opposed lo initiale) telephone calls from prospective student-athfeles (or the
prospective student-athletes’ parents or legal guardian). Under such circumstances, there are no restriclions on
lhe content of the conversation that may occur during the call; however, any return call is subject to any
applicable limitations on the number of telephone calls that an instilution may place lo prospeclive sludent-
athletes.
2. Academic advisors. Itis permissible for academic advisors (including academic advisors within the athielics
¢- ~artment) to make calls lo or receive calls from prospeclive siudenl-athietes (or the prospective student-

c 2te’s parenls or iegal guardians) relaled to admissions or academic issues, subject lo any applicable limitation
on the number of telephone calls an inslitution may place to prospeclive student-athletes.
3. Compliance coordinators. Il is permissible for a compliance coordinator to return telephone calls from
prospective sludenl-athletes with no limit on the timing or number of such telephone calls, provided the calis
relate only to compliance issues. Itis permissible for a compliance coordinalor to initiate telephone calls to a
prospective student-athlete, provided the calls relate only to compliance issues and such calls occur subsequent
to the prospective student-athlete’s signing a National Leller of Intent with thal institution (or, for those instilulions
nol subscribing to the National Letter of Intent, subsequent to the prospeclive studenl-athlete’s signed acceptance
of the institution’s writlen offer of admission and/or financial aid). ’
4. Noncoaching staff members with sporl specific responsibilities. N is permissible for a noncoaching staff
member with sporl specific responsibilities to initiale and receive telephone calls from prospective student-
athletes, provided the calls relate only 1o general pre-enroliment administrative issues and such calls occur
subsequent to the prospeclive student-athlete's signing a Nationat Letler of Intent with that institution (or, for those
institutions not subscribing to the National Letter of intent, subsequent to the prospeclive student-athlete's signed
acceptance of the instilution’s writlen offer of admission and/or financial aid).

Finally, institutions are reminded that electronically transmitted correspondence {e.g., electronic mail,
instant messenger, facsimiles, pages, text messaging) must be prepared by a coach who counts toward
the numerical limitations of head or assistant coaches {(Bylaw 11.7.4). It is permissible for an individual
other than a coach who counts toward the numerical limitations of head or assistant coaches to send the
correspondence; however, this individual may neither respond to correspondence from nor prepare
correspondence to prospects. For example, a coach who counts toward the numerical himitations of head
or assistant coaches composes a message to be sent to a large group of prospective student-athletes.
Such a message may be provided to a staff member that is not a countable coach [e.q.. administrative
assislant, graduate assistant, director of gperations. volunteer coach) and that individual may coordinate
and engage in the act of sending the message to the intended recipients. In this manner, while the
ir~titutional staff member who js not included in the numericat coaching limitations actually sent the

espondence, the coach who counts toward the numerical limitations of head or assistant coaches

cgmd the content and, thus, satisfied the provisions of Bylaw 11.7.1.2.

4/4/2008
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Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

e
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‘Message

Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

‘rom: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent:  Thursday, Oclober 12, 2006 8:51 AM
To: *Senderoff, Robert A.

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Subject: RE: do's and don't

Rob,

Under Bylaw 13.4.1.1 there is nothing we can produce that you would be able to provide to him regarding recruiting,.
The only guidance/documentation you can provide is NCAA educational material published by the NCAA such as
the NCAA Guide for the College bound student-athlete. He can find this information on the NCAA web site at
www.ncaa.org. Unfortunately, that is all we can provide at this time for him.

Chnistian

Director of Compliance
Indiana University
812-856-6074

Go Hoosiers!

From: Senderoff, Robert A.

Sent: Thursday, October-12, 2006 8:44 AM )
To: Pope, Christian Dean

Subject: de's and don't

~eshman (2010) is going to be here for our midnight madness and his father asked me if we can give him a do's and dont's
sheet for recruiling. Do we have anything on that that | can hand them? Thanks

Rab Senderoff

Indiana University

Men's Basketball, Assistant Coach
Off 812-855-2238

9/27/2007
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o Brinegar, Jennifer Hookér

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L.

Sent: Monday, October 23, 2006 10:21 AM
To: Cathoun, M. Grace

Subject: FW: over signing scholarships

importance: High
Attachments: mbk07-08.xls

FYI - as noted in my previous email to you.
Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!l! -

From: Arnold, Kathy L

Sent: Monday, October 23, 2006 10:17 AM

To: Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis

Cc: Brinegar, Jennifer L : b

° ~ -bject: over signing scholarships
portance: High-

Coach,
Big Ten Rule 15.5.1 states that we shall not at any time issue a tender to a prospective student which, if
accepted, would exceed the maximum number of grants-in- aid allowed under the limits of NCAA Bylaw 15.5

Note: Football has an exception to thig policy, but basketbali does not.

So currently you will have 5 scholarships to give for next year. I have attached my numbers for you to see.
Hope this helps. )

Kathy ’

o

4/7/2008
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O "~ Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Sent:  Wednesday, October 31, 2007 4:30 PM

To: Sampson, Keivin Dale; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis
Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace; Rickerby, lan J

Subject: Status of Prospects' Eligibility

Coach Sampson and Coach Meyer,

Ijust got off the phone with Liz Perry in Student-Athlete Reinstatement (“SAR”). She has verbally
reinstated Devin Ebanks, so he is Pow eligible to play at IU.

Before she and the SAR staff will consider our request to reinstate Derek Elston’s eligibility, she
would like a signed and dated statement from the high school coach as to why he let Elston return
to camp the second day after being told not to by Coach Meyer.

Further, we will need a signed and dated statement from Elston as to:
1. Why he came back for the second day (why he didn’t go home as Meyer instructed his coach
to have him do).
2. What he knew about taking an “unofficial visit” on the first day of a 2-day camp.

o 3. How significant was this particular visit (on the evening of June 30) and the verbal offer
extended by Coach Sampson at that time in his decision to make a verbal commtment to
attend IU. :

Please keep me updated on your progress in getting these two statements.
Thanks,

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance ,

Indiana University
812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

@

1/29/2008
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o Brinegar, Jennifer L

From: Pope, Christian Dean

Sent: Wednesday, November 08, 2006 3:44 PM

To: Green, Jerry _

Cc: Sampson, Kelvin Dale; Mevyer, Jeffrey Dennis; McGallum Jr, Ray; Senderoff, Robert A_;

McElroy, Barbara J; McLaughlin, Elizabeth C; Brlnegar Jennifer L
Subject: Question
Importance: High

Jerry,
Based upon your question, you can attend Ray Jr.s events, not practice per the following." In any event,

you cannot evaluate or recruit and may not speak to or have contact with any of the pmSpects
participating or their parents or legal guardians. Thank you for the question.

Noncoaching Athletics Department Staff Members with Sport-Specific
Responsibilities (I)

Date Issued: Oct 11,2000 Type: Official Itern Ref: 1

e “nterpretation: A noncoaching athletics department staff member with sport-specific

responsibilities (e.g., basketball administrative assistant, director of football operations) may net
attend any on- or off-campus athletics event {e.g., hlgh -school contest, evaluation camp) in that sport
in which prospective student-athletes are participating unless:

a. The staff member is an immediate family member (or iega] guardian) of a prospect involved in the
activity; or

b. The activity is a competition (as opposed to a camp) conducted in the locale of the institution.

In the case of (a) and (b) above, the staff member’s attendance shall not be for evaluation purposes,
the staff member shall not have direct contact with any prospect participating in the activity and
the staff member shall not act as an institutional recruiter (e.g., by reporting back to the
institution's coaching staff about the performance of a prospect, by speaking to a prospect’s parents or
coach). [References: NCAA Bylaws 11.7.1.1.1 (countable coach), 11.7.1.1.1.1 (noncoaching
activities), 11.7.4.3 (off-campus contact and evaluation of prospects), 13.1.2.1 {general rule),
13.1.2.1.1 (off-campus recruiters) and 13.1.2.2 (general exceptions)]

Christian D. Pope
Director of Comphance
Tndiana University
/01 East 17th Street
o Bloomington, IN 47408-1590

11/8/2006
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2007 10:21 AM

To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Subject: RE: National Guard Homecoming Party

Thanks for the update. If a compliance presence is needed, let me know. I would go, but am
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

Jen - .
Here’s our guidance directly from Rick....I'll call Jerry and tell him to make sure that Coach Sampson understands
that he cannot currently attend this event in the state that we know it to be. We may need to prep for some bad
PR, but I'd rather have that issue that a tussle with the COIl over a goodwili gesture.

Thanks,

Tim

From: Greenspan, Richard [

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2007 10:02 AM

To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Subject: RE: National Guard Homecoming Party

Absolutely.......... | mandate full compliance with the COl restrictions and if the event needs to be moved or
cancelled so be it.'] assume they could restrict attendance as we have with other events but these malters need
coordination, clearance and approval as we have stated unequivocally in the past. It is Jerry’s responsibility to.
have full transparency with us in a timely manner so we can handle administrativeiy.

RG

From: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin
Sent: Friday, Janvary 05, 2007 9:49 AM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Cc: Green, Jerry; Greenspan, Richard 1
Subject: RE: National Guard Homecoming Party

3/26/2008
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Impostance: High

Jen -

Thanks for this information....F appreciate it. I'm going to forward this to both Rick Greenspan and Jerry Green so
they can be in this loop. | agree with your assessment about the problem with probable attendance by prospect
age individuals as the event is being held at Edgewood High School in Ellettsville. Rick needs to know for a lot of
reasons, and | think we need to have Jerry ask Coach Sampson directly whether or not he plans on attending the
event. If he's not planning on going, we likely don't have an issue. If he is, then we need to intervene
administratively fo make sure that he does not, per the sanctions we’re working under. | know this particular
cause is near-and-dear to Coach Sampson, but we still need to make sure that we comply with the terms and
conditions of the sanction. Pl contact Jerry separately and get an answer here quickly. .

Be back to you soon with further guidance, and thanks for bringing this matter to my attention. It's far better for us
to be safe rather than sorry in this case. ... )

Tim

From: Brinegar, Jennifer L

Sent: Friday, January 05, 2007 9:41 AM
To: Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

Subject: National Guard Homecoming Party
Importance: High :

Tim,

As you are awaré, Coach Sampson was invited to be a part of the celebration for the returning
members of the National Guard from the war in Iraq. B or Beth contacted me via phone last week
and asked if this was permissible. I said it would be permissible only if they could guarantee that no
prospect-agéd individuals were in attenndance — which I stated would probably be impossible since
family members would be in attendance. ' :

Last night, I heard an ad on the radio inviting members of the public to this event at EdgeWood
High School in Ellettsville and this morning there is-a big article on page 3 of the front section in
the H-T again inviting the public. The radio ad and the H-T article both listed Sampson as co-chair

of this event.

I am not sure if he is planning on attending or just is being listed as the co-chair, but he can not
attend any event that is open to the public (per the sanctions imposed by the COI) UNLESS they
move the homecoming party to somewhere on IU’s campus.

Please let me know how I should proceed.

Thanks,

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

Indiana University
812-855-0451

3/26/2008
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o ' Go Hoosiers!!!
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From: Brinegar, Jennifer L
Sent: Wednesday, January 10, 2007 11:57 PM
Subject: Question of the Week {week of January 15)

Attachments: ARA Log 0607 (6D).doc

Question: If a team is currently not in its playing and practice season, is the coach allowed to
require any athletically related activity on Monday (MLK Day)?

Answer: No, on official IU vacation days, teams that are out of season CANNOT have any
required athletically related activities (e.g., no required weightlifting, conditioning, or skill
instruction). [17.1.5.2.1.1)

This reminder is on your ARA logs that you complete monthly (see highlighted sentence on the
attached log), but since it 1s a relatively newly observed holiday at IU I thought it would be
"prudent at this juncture” to send this out as an early QOTW for next week (so this is it for the
QOTW until the week of January 22}).

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

(0 Hoosiers!!!

3/26/2008
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e Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker et ‘_g_hgﬁz/_
From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker :

Sent: Friday, Janvary 26, 2007 7:34 PM
Subject: Questions of the Week for the Weeks of January 22 and 29 - Please Read!

Importance: High
Question #1: When is it permissible to use an outside consultant?

Answer #1: IU may arrange for a temporary consultant to provide in-service training for the
coaching staff. However, NO interaction with student-athletes is permitted unless the individual is
counted against the applicable coaching limits. An outside consultant may NOT be involved in any
on- or off-field or on- or off-court coaching activities (e.g., attending practices and meetings
involving coaching activities, formulating game plans, analyzing videotape or film involving IU’s
or an opponent’s team) without counting the consultant in the coaching limitations in that sport.

[11.7.1.1.1.4)

Also, a student-athlete can hire someone from outside the IU community to work with him or her
(on either sport-specific or conditioning activities) as long as IU (including coaches) is not involved
in arranging for such services, U coaches don’t observe the activity and the activity doesn’t occur
at an IU facility {either during voluntary workouts or during regular IU practice sessions}, the
student-athlete pays the going rate for such services, and he/she does not receive preferential
compensation arrangements not available to the general public.

e wemember, if you want to use an outside fitness consultant to work with your team on
conditioning, you can only use an institutional employee (such as someone from our strength and
conditioning staff or someone from the SRSC fitmess center). We cannot hire someone to come in
and train your student-athletes in yoga, Pilates, cycle-fit, etc.

See the second interp below for a more permissible view towards sports psychologists (as long as
they don’t engage in any coaching activities).

NCAA Bylaws 11.7.1.1.1, 11.7.1.1.1.1 and 11.7.1.1.1:3 — countable coach/outsnde
consultants - Division I -

Pate Issued: Nov 20, 1995
Type: Ed. Column
NCAA Division I institutions should note that in accordance with Bylaw 11.7.1.1.1, an athletics department staff member
must count against coaching limits as soon as the individual participates (in any manner) in the coaching of the intercollegiate
team in practice, games or organized activities directly related to that sport, including any organized staff activity directly
related to the sport. Further, pursuant to Bylaw 11.7.1.1.1.1, institutional staff members involved in noncoaching activities .
(c.g., administrative assistanis, recruiting coondinators in sports other than football, academic counselors) do not count in the
institution's coaching limitations, provided such individuals are not identified as coaches, do not engage in any on- or off-
field coaching activities {¢.g., attending meetings involving coaching activities, analyzing videotape or film involving the
institution's or an oppenent's team) and are not involved in any off-campus recruitment of prospects or scouting of opponents.
Pursuant to Bylaw 11.7.1.1.1.3, an institation may hire a temporary consuitant to provide in-service training for its coaching
staff; however, no interaction with student-athletes is permitted untess the individuat is counted against applicable coaching
its. During its August 31 and October 5, 1995, telephone conferences, the NCAA Interpretations Committee determined
«.at it is permissible for a student-athlete(s) to receive assistance from an individual outside of the institution (e.g., consultant,
OprofcssiOnal instructor) without the individual being counted in the institution's coaching limitations, provided the institution

3/26/2008
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is not involved in any way in arranging for such activity, institutional coaching staff members do not observe such activity
and such activity does not oceur at the institution's facility {either during voluntary workouts or during regular institutional
practice sessions). Further, the student-athlete(s) must pay all the fees (at the going rate) associated with the activity and may
10t receive preferential compensation arrangements (e.g., discount rate, deferred payments) not available to the general
public. .

Sports Psychologist/Use of Qutside Consultants (I)

Date Issued: Jul 02, 2003

Type: Staff Interpretation ‘ ‘

It is permisstble for an institution's athletics department to employ a sports psychologist without
including such an individual in the institution’s coaching limitations in a particular sport, provided the
individual does not engage in any on- or off-field coaching activities (e.g., use equipment, review game
films, set-up offensive or defensive alignments when meeting with the student-athletes, meetings
involving coaching activities). A sports psychologist may engage in "mental imaging" with a student-
athlete without being considered a countable coach, provided no coaching activities occur; however, if a
student-athlete is required to meet with the sports psychologist, such a meeting is considered a countable
athletically related activity. [References: NCAA Bylaws 11.7.1.1.1 (countable coach), 11.7.1.1.1.1
(noncoaching activities) and 11.7.1.1.1.4 (use of outside consultants), 01/08/03 official interpretation,
Item 1, and 12/15/95 staff determination, item 1, which has been archived.)

Question #2 [For sports who can utilize the Local Sports Club exception to the Tryout Rule —

ootball and Basketball, skip past this Q&A and go to the end of this email]: Is it possible for a
high school student (e.g., a freshman, sophomore or junior) to “temporarily” change his or her
legal residence for the summer by changing his or her driver’s license to show Bloomington,
Indiana, and then go back home when the summer is over in order to meet the residency
requirement for local sports clubs?

Answer #2: No, the change in residency status must be permanent, See below:

Application of "Legal Resident"” to Involvement with a Local Sports Club (I)

Date Issued: Jan 07, 2007
Type: Official:

The NCAA Division | Management Council determined that for purposes of the application of the local
sports clubs legislation, a prospective student-athlete who relocates to within a 50-mile radius of an
institution on a temporary basis (e.g., to participate on a club team or attend an institution while
maintaining a permanent residence outside of the 50-mile radius) is not a "legal resident of the area” of
the institution regardless of whether the prospect meets a legal standard of state or local residency for
governmental purposes. Therefore, an institution's coach may not be involved with a local sports club
team in the coach's sport that includes such a prospect. [References: NCAA Division I Bylaw
13.11.2.3 (local sports ciubs)]

1anks for reading to the end! The first coach and the first staff member to contact me via email in
response to this email will each win a car wash (inside and out) from the Bloomington Car Wash
on South Walnut Street.

3/26/2008
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Jennifer Brinegar
c Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

"ndiana University
812-855-0451

- Go Hoosiers!!

o
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c Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2007 4:05 PM

To: McESroy, Barbara J

Subject: RE: Proposal fof.Campuswide Philanthropy Event

Attachments: Promotional Activity Request (10A).doc

This event sounds like it would be permissible per 12.5.1.1, but we would need the attached form
filled out to be sure and all of the following parameters would need to be met and foltowed by the

fratermty and the involved student-athletes:

(a) The student-athlete receives written approval to participate from the director of athletics (or his
or her designee who may not be a coaching staff member), subject to the limitations on participants
in such activities as set forth in Bylaw 17; :

. (b) The specific activity or project in which the student-athlete participates does not involve
cosponsorship, advertisement or promotion by a commercial agency other than through the
reproduction of the sponsoring company's officially registered regular trademark or logo on printed
materials such as pictures, posters or calendars. The company's emblem, name, address and
telephone number may be included with the trademark or logo. Personal names, messages and
slogans (other than an officially registered trademark) are prohibited;

e “~) The name or picture of a student-athlete with remaining eligibility may not appear on an

.stitution's printed promotional item (e.g., poster, calendar) that includes a reproduction of a
product with which a commercial entity is associated if the commercial entity's officialty registered
regular trademark or logo also appears on the item;

(d) The student-athlete does not miss class;

(e) All moneys derived from the activity or project go directly to the member institution, member
conference or the charitable, educational or nonprofit agency;

() The student-athlete may accept actual and necessary expenses from the member institution,
member conference or the charitable, educational or nonprofit agency related to participation in

such activity;

(8) The student-athlete’s name, picture or appearance is not used to promote the commercial
ventures of any nonprofit agency; .

(h) Any commercial items with names, likenesses or pictures of multiple student-athletes (other
than highlight films or media guides per Bylaw 12.5.1.8) may be sold only at the member
institution at which the student-athlete is enrolled, institutionally controlled (owned and operated)
outlets or outlets controlled by the charitable or educational organization (e.g., location of the
charitable or educational organization, site of charitable event during the event). Items that include
- - individual student-athlete's name, picture or likeness (e.g., name on jersey, name or likeness on
o. -obble-head doll), other than informational items (e.g., media guide, schedule cards, institutional

1/28/2008
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publications), may not be sold; and

o (1) The student-athlete and an authorized representative of the charitable, educational or nonprofit
: gency sign a release statement ensuring that the student-athlete’s name, image or appearance is
used in a manner consistent with the requirements of this section.

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University '

812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

----- Original Message-----

From: McElroy, Barbara J

Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2007 10:13 AM

To: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Subject: FW: Proposal for Campuswide Phitanthropy Event

Jennifer:
Coach Sampson asked that I forward this on to you to check on compliance issues. Please advise.

Thank you, :

c J. McElroy
Assistant to Coach Kelvin Sampson
Indiana University
Men's Basketball
(812)855-2238

-----Original Message-----

From: Danner, Brent Eric

Sent: Monday, January 29, 2007 3:42 PM

To: McEiroy, Barbara J '

Subject: Proposal for Campuswide Philanthropy Event

Dear Barbara,

My name is Brent Danner and I am the Director of Philanthropy for Beta Theta Pi. I am writing
you in regards to a philanthropy project my fraternity would like to develop. As a method to bring
the entire campus together for a philanthropy event, we would like to hold a dunk contest with the
IU men's basketball tearn sometime in April. In addition to having student-athletes participate, we
would also like to include a select amount of students from the student body at large. All proceeds
would be donated to a charity of the University's choice. We feel that this project could generate a
substantial amount of revenue.

In fact, this same concept has seen great success at other schools in major conferences.

Ol have been in contact with Professor Bruce Jaffee and with SAAC and they are supporting the idea

1/28/2008
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enthusiastically. Ihave also talked to Christian Pope and am working with him on compliance

issues. He recommended that I contact you to discuss if there would be any issues in regard to
O scheduling this event. I can be contacted by email at bedanner@indiana.edu and by phone at
574.453.1810. 1 look forward to working with you on this idea and I thank you graciously for your
tine.

Thanks again and GO HOOSIERS!

Brent Danner
Director of Philanthropy, Beta Theta Pi Fraternity bedanner@indiana.edu 574.453.1810

©

1/28/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Sent: Monday, February 19, 2007 11:44 AM
To: Garl, Tim C

Subject: RE: Ball

Thanks — I will just attach this to the approval form. Consider your request approved.
Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance

Indiana University '

812-855-0451

Go Hoosterst!!

From: Garl, Tim C
Sent: Monday, February 19, 2007 8:26 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Subject: RE: Ball

Jennifer:

The ball is going to be used as a prize for a “Corn Hole” competition to raise money for Pediatric Aids.

The competition is Feb 23,

The ball had Sampson’s signature on it and I told them I would get the team to sign it for the winner.

Tim

3/26/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hookéer

From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2007 2:28 PM
To: McElroy, Barbara J

Subject: RE:

Attachments: Athletics Inventory- Donation Preapproval Form.doc

Since it’s an IU event and the money is going to Riley, it’s okay. Just make sure to fill out the
attached form. Thanks for checking!

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

From: McElroy, Barbara 3
Sent: Tuesday, February 27, 2007 12:57 PM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Subject:

Jennifer:

Below is a paragraph out of a letter our office received from a student that was wanting a
basketball signed for the IU Dance Marathon. the March Madness bracket thing threw up a
red light to me, so tell me if we are allowed to sign something for this.

"This year, IUDM, is holding a March Madness forecasting event consisting of predicting a
March Madness bracket. It will be suggested that participants make a 10 dollar donation to
enter. We are searching for an attractive prize to give peopje incentive to participate. It
would be greatly appreciated if Coach Sampson could sign a balt for the winning
participant.”

Let me know, and thanks.

B.J. McElroy

Assistant to Coach Kelvin Sampson
Indiana University

Men's Basketball

(812)855-2238

1/28/2008
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From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker
Sent:  Thursday, March 01, 2007 9:39 AM

To: Barbara JMcelroy; Finlinson, Jeana Lee {jlfinlin@indiana.edu}; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin
(tmfitzpa@indiana.edu); Green, Jerry (wjegreen@indiana.edu); Hogg, Cherie Lisa; Jones, Vera
{verjones@indiana.edu); Kelvin Sampson; Legelte-Jack, Felisha Ann {flegefte@indiana.edu);
McCallum Jr, Ray Ray (rmccallu@indiana.edu); Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis (jedmeyer@indiana.edu);
Pardue, Tammy J (tipardue@indiana.edu); Senderoff, Robert A. (rsendero@indiana.edu); Tim
CGarl; Wilson, Marc A. (wilson38@indiana.edu)

Cc: Calhoun, M. Grace
Subject: Ball State basketball faces NCAA sanctions

This is a great reminder of the rules regarding off-season and summer pick-up games involving our
student-athletes:

Ball State basketball faces NCAA sanctions
To view this article on IndyStar.com, go to:

http: //www.indystar.com/apps/pbcs.dil/ article?AID=2007703010524

Jennifer Brinegar .

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
o Indiana University

812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

o

3/26/2008
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From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker
Sent;  Thursday, March 08, 2007 5:14 PM
To: Kelvin Sampson; Senderoff, Robert A.; McCallum Jr, Ray; Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; Green, Jerry
Cc: Green, Jerry; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin; McElroy, Barbara J
- Subject: Upcoming Contact Period Interpretation

FYT - This was just listed today on the LSDBi (a]though this staff interpretation was apparently
issued on 2/21/07):

Permissible Evaluation Activities During March Contact Period - Men's Basketball (I)

Interpretation: .

The membership services staff confirmed that during the March contact period, evaluations at sites other
than the prospective student-athlete's educational institution are prohibited in men's basketball. Live (in-
person, at the event) evaluations at a prospective student-athlete’s educational institution shall be limited
to regularly scheduled high school, preparatory school and two-year college contests/tournaments and
practices and regular scholastic activities involving Bylaw 13.1.8.8-(a).

Good luck tomorrow night!

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

3/26/2008
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From: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Sent:  Tuesday, March 13, 2007 10:45 AM
To: McElroy, Barbara J

Subject: RE:

The prohibition on speaking engagements in front of prospect-aged individuals ends as of May
25, 2007. So, this coaching clinic should be okay for him to attend as long as the following
parameters are followed:

An institution may not provide gifts or material benefits to high school, prep school or junior college
coaches in conjunction with its coaching clinic. [13.8.2.1]

An institution may not provide a door prize to a high school, prep school or junior college coach in.
conjunction with its coaching clinic, even if the value of the prize has been included in the
cumulative admission fee (i.e., the admission fee charged to each person, when combined, would
cover the cost of the door prize). [13.8.2.1]

It is not permissible for a vendor {e.g., apparel or equipment manufacturers) who has a booth or is
sponsoring a coaching clinic to provide any gifts or prizes to clinic participants. [S 2/9/94]

e Materials such as clipboards and file folders may be provided to coaching clinic participants
provided such the fair market value of the items is included in the registration or admissions fee for
each person (e.g., if the item is donated to you for the clinic, you still must assess the fair market
value of the item in the registration or admissions fee). [13.8.2.1]

A prospective student-athlete may not serve as a demonstrator for an institution’s coaching clinic.
[13.11.1] '
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Thanks for checking this out. -

T

Jennifer

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451

WA N TP i

o

Go Hoosiers!!! .

3 From: McElroy, Barbara J
Sent: Tuesday, March 13, 2007 10:03 AM
To: Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker
Subject:

1/28/2008
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Q | believe | sent you an email last week about another coaching clinic Coach Sampson is
' scheduled fo do in Tennessee, on September 28th. Again, | had checked this out through
Christian. Is this one ok?

B.J.
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
Sent: Wednesday, March 14, 2007 2:11 PM
To: Barbara JMcelroy; Finlinson, Jeana Lee (jlfinlin@indiana.edu); Fitzpatrick, Timothy Martin

{tmfilzpa@indiana.edu); Green, Jerry (wjegreen@indiana.edu); Hogg, Cherie Lisa; Jones, Vera
(verjones@indiana.edu); Kelvin Sampson; | egette-Jack, Felisha Arn (flegette@indiana.edu);
McCallum Jr, Ray Ray {rmccallu@indiana.edu); Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis
(fedmeyer@indiana.edu); Pardue, Tammy J (tjpardue@indiana.edu); Senderoff, Robert A.
(rsendero@indiana.edu); Tim CGarl; Wilson, Marc A. (wilson38@indiana.edu)

Cce: Rickerby, lan J; Calhoun, M. Grace

Subject: Ed Column on MBB & WBB Evaluations During the Academic Year
importance: High

Coaches,

Please read the following educational column below that was issued on March 12, sent out to
membership yesterday (March 13) and revised today (March 14) as even Membership '
Services sometimes gets called on an offensive charge when it comes to rules interpretations.
This 1s the final (corrected) version. It supplements and supports the memo that Ian
distributed to both coaching staffs yesterday (March 13). '

Thanks and good luck in your respective post-season tournaments!

Jennifer

Educational Column -- NCAA Division 1 Bylaw 13.1.8.8 — Evaluation Days —
Basketball — Attendance at Scholastic and Nonscholastic Events During the Academic

Year (I) '

Interpretation: NCAA Division I institutions should note the following restrictions apply to evaluations
in men's and women's basketball during the academic year:

General ' ,

For purposes of applying the legislation, a regular scholastic activity is any activity involving only

students enrolled at a particular high school, preparatory school or two-year college that has been

approved by the appropriate authority at the scholastic institution. An activity that is organized for the
purpose of allowing a college coach or coaches to observe prospects demonstrating his or her athletics
skills is not considered a regular scholastic activity, but would constitute an impermissible tryout.

Men’s Basketball

1. All evaluations during the academic year evaluation periods (refer to recruiting calendars) are
limited to regularly scheduled high school, preparatory school and two-year college
contests/tournaments, practices and regular scholastic activities involving prospects enrolled only at
the educational institution at which the activity occurs.

2. During the April contact period, evaluations at nonscholastic events are limited to events that are
approved, sanctioned, sponsored or conducted by the applicable high school, preparatory school or
two-year college association, National Federation of High School Associations or the National
Junior College Athletic Association. In addition, coaches may only attend such an event on

3/26/2008
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‘Saturday and/or Sunday and not on any weekend during which a national standardized test (e.g., SAT,

ACT) is admimstered.

Please note that the adoption of NCAA Proposal No. 2006-52 established a contact period March 16
through 22. During this contact period, evaluations at sites other than the prospective student-
athlete’s educational institution are prohibited. - Live evaluations at a prospective student-athlete’s
educational institution shall be limited to regularly scheduled high school, preparatory school and
two-year college contests/tournaments and practices and reguiar scholastic activities involving
prospective student-athletes enrolled only at that institution.

[Consequently, it remains permissible to evaluate, for example, state tournament games that are played

at large public arenas.]
Women’s Basketball

1.

2.

During the academic year, evaluations may occur at regularly scheduled high school, preparatory
school and two-year college contests/tournaments, practices, pick-up games and open gyms.

Evaluations at nonscholastic events shall occur only during the last full weekend of the fall contact
period and the weekend of the spring evaluation period. Nonscholastic events are limited to those
that are certified per Bylaw 30.17 and events that are approved, sponsored or conducted by an
applicable state (e.g., state high school federation, national (e.g., National Junior College Athletic
Association) or international govemning body (e.g.,, USA Basketbali, United States Olympic

Committee or international equivalent).

[References: Bylaw 13.1.8.8 (evaluation days -- basketball); Bylaw 30.17 (basketball event certification
-- women'’s basketball); and a staff interpretation (2/21/07, item No. 2)]

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director - Compliance
Indiana University

“12-855-0451

Go Hoosiers!!!

3/26/2008
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Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

From: Rickerby, lan J
Sent:  Friday, July 06, 2007 2:50 PM

To: Dakicﬁ, Daniel John; Garl, Tim C; McCallum Jr, Ray; McEiroy, Barbara J; McLaughlin, Elizabeth C;
Meyer, Jeffrey Dennis; Senderoff, Robert A.
Cc: Massey, Kimya_ Ford; Fitzpatrick, Timothy Ma_rtin;_ Brinegar, Jennifer Hooker

Subjecl: Some Foreign Tour Info

All,

While discussing your upcoming lale August / early September foreign tour with the Big 10 last month, tinquired
about the slatus of any inefigible players in regards to the tour. They confirmed bylaw 30.7.2 that states that any
ineligible student-athletes are prohibited from going on foreign tours.

30.7.2 Eligibility of Student-Athletes.
The eligibility of student-athletes on the tour shall be governed by the following:

(a) If the tour takes place during the summer, the student-athletes shall have been eligible for
intercollegiate competition dunng the previous academic year or shall have been enrolled at the
mstitution as a full-time student duning the previous academic year and have established by the
beginning of the tour that he or she is eligible for competition the academic year immediately following
the tour; or (Revised: 8/11/98 effective immediately for tours conducted during the 1998-99 academic
year and theregfier)

(b) H the tour takes place afier the academic year has started, the student-athletes shall be regularly
enrolled 1n the institution and eligible for intercollegiate competition. -

It was confirmed however, that any such ineligible players MAY take part in the practices leading up to the tour.
Let us know if you have any questions,

Thanks,

lan )

lan Rickerby

Director of Compliance

Indiana University Department of Intercollegiate Alhlehcs

812 856 6074
www.ibhoosiers.com

2/11/2008



s s DEPARTMENT OF
(@ INTERCOLLEGIATE
ATHLETICS

INDIANA ONIVERSITY

Qffice of the Director
Bleomington

November 1, 2007

Coach Ray McCallum
Men’s Basketball
Indiana University
Assembly Hall

1001 E. 17™ Street
Bloomington, IN 47408

Dear Coach McCallum:

This letter is regarding your failure to inform the compliance office when you used your home
" phone to make one known recruiting call.

As you know, Indiana University has a strong commitment to compliance with NCAA and Big

‘ . Ten rules governing intercollegiate athletics. You had direct access to the compliance office staff

O' for any interpretative questions that might arise. You also signed monthly declarations that you

were not using your home phone to make recruiting calls. This proved to be inaccurate as you

did make one known recruiting call from your home phone. Your conduct jeopardized the
compliance staff’s ability to monitor the recruiting calls of the men's basketball staff.

I am particularly troubled that this failure to disclose the use of your home phone and to report

- this call occurred during a time period when the entire men's basketball coaching staff should
have been even more attentive to the application of NCAA rules and compliance-related issues
as a result of the. violations that occurred while Coach Sampson was at the University of
Oklahoma. :

In response to the phone calls made by coaches on the men's basketball staff that were contrary
to the sanctions and in violation of NCAA rules, as set forth ia the university’s October 3 and
October 26 reports to the NCAA, the university has taken actions regarding the men's basketball
program, as detailed in the attachment to this letter. The following actions are specific to you:

a. A copy of this letter will be included in your personnel! file.
b. You will be required to attend mandatory compliance meetings every other week for the

full men’s basketball coaching staff (i.e., head coach, assistant coaches, and director of
basketball operations) for one year. '

Rick Greenspan  Director of Athletics

Assembly Hall 1001 E. 17th Street  Bloomington, IN 47408-1590 (812) 855-1966 fax (812) 855-0448  athidir@indiona.edu  UHoosiers.com
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~¢. You will be required to attend ‘the same 2008 NCAA Reg10nal Rules Seminar as a
member of the university’s compliance staff.

d. The university will reduce the number of permissible calls to prospects on or after August
1 of their senior year in high school from two calls per week to one call per week from
September 17, 2007, through the end of the regular National Letter of Intent signing
period (May 21, 2008). Further, Coach Sampson is only eligible to make every other one
of these phone calls.

It is my hope that these actions illustrate to you the critical importance of athletics compliance
and I trust that you will take every measure possible to ensure that your future conduct adheres to .
NCAA, Big Ten Conference and Indiana University regulations and guidelines.

Please be advised that your involvement in or failure to report your knowledge of any prior or
subsequent violation of NCAA, Big Ten Conference or Indiana University bylaws, regulations,
policies, procedures (including the actions listed in this letter and the attachment) or
interpretations may result in additional disciplinary action, 1nclud1ng but not limited to

- suspension or termination of your employment

I am confident that you fully understand the impact of this issue. It is imperative that you work
closely and collaboratively with the compliance staff going forward as one of their top priorities
will be to work with and assist the men’s basketball staff to ensure complete compliance.

Rick-Greenspan

Attachment

cc: Dottie Frapwell
Chad Hawley
Bruce Jaffee
Kelvin Sampson
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Attachment B
14, Corrective Actions and Self-Imposed Sanctions Taken by the Institution:

In light of the actions of the men’s basketball coaches and the calls that were contrary to
the sanctions and to NCAA rules, the university determined that significant additional
corrective actions and sanctions were necessary. These penalties were designed to
directly impact the coaches involved as well as the men’s basketball program as a whole,
and are intended to address both violations of Committee on Infractions sanctions
reported previously as well as violations of NCAA bylaw 13.1.3.1.2 as contained herein.
The university believes that these corrective actions and sanctions send a strong message
that complete commitment to NCAA compliance is expected and required of all coaches
and staff. (It should be noted that in evaluating the extent of the additional sanctions, the
university used the maximum number of potentially impermissible calls.)

Corrective Actions

a. Sampson voluntarily agreed over the next twelve-month period to forego his
scheduled $500,000 raise for this current contract year.

b. Senderoff and Meyer will not be entitled to any bonuses for the 2007-08 academic
year or salary increases for the 2008-09 academic year.

c. Letters of reprimand will be issued to Sampson, Senderoff and Meyer.

d. A letter will be included in the personnel file for McCallum.

e. The university will require Senderoff to sign a form each month reminding him of
these corrective actions and sanctions and will require him to submit his monthly
home phone records for review, in addition to his cell and office phone records.

f. The compliance office will conduct mandatory compliance meetings every other
week for the full men’s basketball coaching staff (i.e., head coach, assistant
coaches, and director of basketball operations) for one year.

g. Sampson and Senderoff will be required to attend at their own expense the same
2008 NCAA Regional Rules Seminar as a member of the university’s compliance

staff. Meyer and McCallum will also be required to attend the seminar.

h. The university has ceased the recruitment of prospective student-athlete Jonathon
"Bud" Mackey, the subject of the vast majority (25) of the NCAA violations.

Self-Imposed Sanctions

a. The university has, effective September 17, 2007, reduced the number of coaches
allowed to be involved in recruiting by one through July 31, 2008. Specifically,




Senderoff will be prohibited from: (i) making ANY phone calls that relate in any
way to recruiting (whether or not they are countable under NCAA rules); and (ii)
engaging in any off-campus recruiting activities. When Senderoff leaves the
employment of the University’s men’s basketball program, if prior to July 31,
2008, another assistant coach will serve the remainder of this sanction.

. The university will reduce by one the number of men’s basketball financial aid
awards for the 2008-09 academic year.

The university will reduce the number of permissible calls to prospects on or after
August I of their senior year in high school from two calls per week to one call
per week from September 17, 2007, through the end of the regular Nationat Letter
of Intent signing period (May 21, 2008). Further, Sampson is only eligible to
make every other one of these phone calls. [Note: With approximately 20 senior
recruits and a 35-week period, this sanction reduces calling opportunities by
approximately 700 phone calls, including an additional reduction of 350 calls for
Sampson].

. The unmiversity will reduce the number of phone calls Sampson will be permitted
to make to junior prospective student-athletes to every other one of the monthly
calls to junior prospects beginning September 17, 2007, and ending July 31, 2008.

[Note: With approximately 177 junior recruits and a 10-month period, this
sanction reduces Sampson’s calling opportunities by approximately 885 phone
calls.]

The university limited Sampson to four (4) off-campus recruiting contact days
during the fall 2007 contact period.

The university will limit Sampson to no more than ten (10) additional off-campus
recruiting days to be used from the conclusion of the fall contact period (October
5, 2007) through July 31, 2008.

[Note: Sampson’s typical practice has been to divide the off-campus recruiting
person-days by the four coaches. Therefore, since there are 130 recruiting person-
days during the academic year and 20 person-days by three coaches during the
July recruiting period, his off-campus recruiting days have been reduced from
approximately 48 (130 + (20 x 3) = 190 + 4 coaches = 48) to 14, a 71%
reduction.)] '

. The university will reduce the number of permissible official paid visits from 12
to six (6) during the 2007-08 academic year,

. The university will submit a report to the Committee by September 30, 2008,
documenting compliance with these additional sanctions.
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c | ' DEPARTMENT OF
INTERCOLLEGIATE
ATHLETICS

INDIANA OUNIVERSITY

Qffice of the Direetor
Bloomington

November 1, 2007

Coach Jeff Meyer
Men’s Basketball

~ ‘Indiana University
Assembly Hall
1001 E. 17™ Street
Bloomington, IN 47408

Dear Coach Meyer:

This shall serve as a letter of reprimand and will become a part of your personnel file at Indiana
University. This letter is warranted due to your failure to abide by NCAA sanctions and NCAA
Bylaw 13.1.3.1.2 regarding telephone calls during your recruitment of Scott Martin and Jordan

Crawford, and NCAA Bylaw 13.12.1.3 when you arranged an unofficial visit during Derek
' ° Elston’s participation in the Kelvin Sampson Team Camp June 30 — July 1 this past summer. '

As you know, Indiana University has a strong commitment to compliance with NCAA and Big
Ten rules governing intercollegiate athletics. You had direct access to the compliance office staff
for any interpretative questions that might arise. You also signed monthly declarations that you
were not using your home phone to make recruiting calls. This proved to be inaccurate as you
did make a few recruiting calls from your home phone, none of which were documented in
CyberSports or otherwise reported, including one call to Scott Martin. This call violated NCAA
Bylaw 13.1.3.1.2, which states you may only call a junior prospect once per month. As a result, -
you jeopardized the compliance staff's ability to monitor the telephone activity of the men's
basketball staff and its ability to report the violation regarding Martin in a more timely fashion.
In addition, you made four recruiting phone calls that were contrary to the sanctions imposed on
the men’s basketball program.

Additionally, your involvement in arranging for a prospect to meet with Coach Sampson so that
he could extend a verbal scholarship offer without ensuring that the prospect’s participation in an
institutional camp or clinic was completed is clearly contrary to NCAA Bylaw 13.12.1.3 which
states (emphasis added): ' '

The interaction during sports camps and clinics between prospective student-athletes
and those coaches employed by the camp or clinic is not subject to the recruiting
calendar restrictions. However, an institutional staff member employed at any camp
o or clinic (e.p., counselor, director) is prohibited from recruiting any prospective

Rick Greenspan  Director of Athletics
Assembly Hall 1001 E. 17th Street  Bloomington, IN 47408-1590 (812)855-1966 fax (812) 855-0448 athldir@indiana.edu  11JHoosiers.com



student-athlete during the time period that the camp or clinic is conducted (from
the_time the prospective student-athlete _reports_to_the camp or_clinic_until the
conclusion _of all camp activities). The prohibition against recruiting includes
extending verbal or written offers of financial aid to any prospective student-athlete
during his or her attendance at the camp or clinic. Other coaches wishing to attend
the camp as observers must comply with appropriate recruiting contact and evaluation
periods. In addition, institutional camps or clinics may not be conducted during a
dead period.

_ The meeting with Coach Sampson and his verbal offer of a scholarship to Derek Elston on the
evening of June 30, the first day of a two-day team camp, resulted in a violation of this clearly
established legislation. Although [ understand that you directed Elston’s coach to send him home
after this unofficial visit occurred, you did not (nor did you direct anyone else to) follow up to
ensure his participation in the camp was indeed over before he returned to campus on the
evening of June 30.

I am particularly troubled that these violations and the failure to disclose the use of your home
phone and to report the recruiting calls you made from home occurred during a time period when
the entire men's basketball coaching staff should have been even more attentive to the proper
application of NCAA rules and compliance-related issues as a result of the violations that
occurred while Coach Sampson was at the University of Oklahoma. '

In response to the phone calls made by coaches on the men's basketball staff that were contrary
to the sanctions and in violation of NCAA rules, as set forth in our October 3 and October 26
reports to the NCAA, the university has taken actions regarding the men's basketball program, as
detailed in the attachment to this letter. The following actions are specific to you:

a. You will not be entitled to any bonuses for the 2007-08 academic year or salary increases
for the 2008-09 academic year.

b. A copy of this letter of reprimand will be issued to ‘you and placed in your personnel file.

- ¢. You will be required to attend mandatory compliance meetings every other week for the
full men’s basketball coaching staff (i.e., head coach, assistant coaches, and director of
basketball operations) for one year.

d. You will be required to attend the same 2008 NCAA Regional Rules Seminar as a
member of the university’s compliance staff.

e. The university will reduce the number of permissible calls to prospects on or after August
1 of their senior year in high school from two calls per week to one call per week from
September 17, 2007, through the end of the regular National Letter of Intent signing
period (May 21, 2008). Further, Coach Sampson is only eligible to make every other one
of these phone calls. -



In response to the recruiting activities that took place during Derek Elson’s camp participation
that in violation of NCAA Bylaw 13.12.1.3, the university has taken the following actions:

a. The relevant leglslatlon was discussed wﬂh you in September and w1th Coach Sampson
in October.

b. The relevant legislation was reviewed with the entire men’s basketball staff on October
23,2007.

c. The men’s basketball staff i is limited to six recruiting opportumtles for this prospect
during his senior year.

d. Letters of reprimand will be issued to you (the purpose of this letter) and Coach
Sampson.

It is my hope that these actions illustrate to you the critical importance of athletics compliance
and I trust that you will take every measure possible to ensure that your future conduct adheres to
NCAA, Big Ten Conference and Indiana University regulations and guidelines.

Please be advised that your involvement in or failure to report your knowledge of any other prior
or subsequent violation of NCAA, Big Ten Conference or Indiana University bylaws,
regulations, policies, procedures (including the actions listed in this letter and the attachment) or
interpretations may result in additional disciplinary action, including but not limited to
suspension or termination of your employment.

I am confident that you fuily understand the impact of this issue. It is imperative that you work
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

~cc:  Dottie Frapwell
Chad Hawley
Bruce Jaffee
Kelvin Sampson
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Attachment B.
14. Corrective Actions and Self-Imposed Sanctions Taken by the Institution:

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
and are intended to address both violations of Committee on Infractions sanctions -
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
" year or salary increases for the 2008-09 academic year.

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
coaches, and director of basketball operations) for one year. '

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

Self-hm)osed Sanctions

a. 'The university has, effective September 17, 2007, reduced the number of coaches
allowed to be involved in reécruiting by one through July 31, 2008. Specifically,



~ Senderoff will be prohibited from: (i) making ANY phone calls that relate in any
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

. The university will reduce the number of permissible calls to prospects on or after
August 1 of their senior year in high school from two calls per week to one call
- per week from September 17, 2007, through the end of the regular National Letter
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

. The university will reduce the number of phone calls Sampson will be permitted
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
calls.] .

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
reduction.)]

. The university will reduce the number of permissible official paid visits from 12
to six (6) during the 2007-08 academic year.

. The university will submit a report to the Committee by September 30, 2008,
documenting compliance with these additional sanctions.



DEPARTMENT OF
INTERCOLLEGIATE
ATHLETICS

INDIANA UNLYERSITY

Office of the Director
Bloomingien

November 1, 2007

Coach Kelvin Sampson
Men’s Basketball
Indiana University
Assembly Hall

1001 E. 17" Street
Bloomington, IN 47408

Dear Coach Sampson:

This is a letter of reprimand for you and your staff’s failure to abide by the Committee on
Infractions’ recruiting calls restrictions adopted in its report dated May 25, 2006, and, in multiple
cases, the NCAA Bylaw 13.1.3.1.2 regarding telephone calls, as set forth in Indiana University’s
October 3 and October 26 reports submitted to the NCAA. It also serves as an additional
reprimand for your failure to abide.by NCAA Bylaw 13.12.1.3 regarding the prohibition against
recruiting activities during a prospect’s attendance at an institutional camp. '

On April 19, 2006, you signed a compliance agreement that specifically stated, in part that you
and your staff would:

2. Reduce the number of permissible calls by the men’s basketball coaching staff to
prospects on or after June 15 of the prospect’s sophomore year in high school
through July 31 of the prospect’s junior year in high school from one call per
month to one call every other month for a period cominencing March 29, 2006,
and concluding June 30, 2007.

3. Reduce the number of permissible calls by the men’s basketball coaching staff to
prospects on or after August 1 of the prospect’s senior year in high school from
two calls per week to one call per week for a period commencing March 29, 2006,
and concluding July 31, 2007.

On June 9, 2006, you signed a revised compliance agreement that repeated these restrictions on
the normal NCAA legislation involving permissible telephone calls and also added the
prohibition on your participation in any recruiting calls, as follows:

Rick Greenspan  Director of Athletics
Assembly Hall 1001 E. L7th Street  Bloominglon, IN 47408-1580 (812) 855-1966  fax {B12) B55-0448  athidir@indiana.edu  1UHoosiers.com’



7. Coach Kelvin Sampson is prohibited, for a period of one year beginning May 25,
_ 2006 through May 24, 2007, from making any phone calls that relate in any way
'O ' to recruiting or being present when members of his staff make such calls.

The use of 3-way calling for recruiting, and specifically the impermissibility of your
involvement, was clarified in a memorandum (in question and answer format, emphasis added)
sent out on June 13 stating:

8. If an AAU or HS coach calls one of the [U assistant coaches and then adds a
prospect in on a 3-way call, can the assistant coach add in Coach Sampson at that
time (since the original call was initiated by the AAU or HS coach and not by
anyone at [U)? No. . :

WL be it wnknasiraly,

Therefore, your participation;in 3-way calls involving recruiting was confrary to the Committee

on Infractions sanctions, Further, the assistant coaches’ inability to abide by the telephone call

restrictions adopted and imposed by the COI and, in some cases, NCAA legislation itself are a

direct reflection on your inability to promote compliance and to monitor the activities of your

assistant coaches satisfactorily.

Finally, extending a verbal offer to a prospect during his participation in an institutional camp or
clinic is clearly-contrary to NCAA Bylaw 13.12.1.3 which states (emphasis added):

The interaction during sports camps and clinics between prospective student-
- athletes and those coaches employed by the camp or clinic is not subject to the
3 recruiting calendar restrictions. Howeyer, an institutional staff member employed
c at_any camp or clinic (e.g., counselor, director) is prohibited from recruiting
any prospective student-athlete during the time period that the camp or clinic is
conducted (from the time the prospective student-athlete reports to the camp or

clinic until the conclusion of all camp activities). The prohibition against
§ recruiting includes extending verbal or written_offers of financial _aid to_any

prospective student-athlete during his or her atfendance af the camp or clinic,

Other coaches wishing to attend the camp.as observers must comply with
appropriate rectuiting contact and evaluation periods. In addition, institutional
camps or clinics may not be conducted during a dead period.

Your verbal offer of a scholarship to Derek Elston (“Elston”) on June 30, on the evening of the
first day of a two-day team camp, was in violation of this established legislation. While 1
understand that Coach Jeff Meyer (“Meyer”) directed Elston’s coach to send him home after this
unofficial visit occurred, no one on your staff followed up to ensure his participation in your
camp had in’ fact concluded before he returned to campus on the evening of June 30. This
violation is again a reflection on your inability to  promote compliance and to monitor the
activities of your assistant coaches satisfactorily.

As you know, Indiana University has a strong commitment to compliance with NCAA and Big
Ten rules governing intercollegiate athletics. In addition to the normal monthly compliance
meetings with the entire coaching staff, meetings prior to specific contact and evaluation periods,
and availability of the compliance staff to answer any questions regarding the rules and/or
o sanctions, the director of compliance met with the director of basketball operations (DOBO)
every week and had copies of the agendas and rules education supplé¢inents for the BOBO to
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distribute to the coaching staff. As stated earlier, the coaching staff had direct access to the
compliance office staff for any interpretative questions that might arise. Each of your assistant
coaches also monthly signed declarations that indicated that he was not using his home phone for
recruiting phone calls, even though several of your assistant coaches had made a number of
recruiting calls from their home phones during several months. Moreover, the prohibition on
recruiting during camps and clinics was covered at the February Compliance Meeting and is
clearly stated in the Spring 2007 Camp & Clinic Guide, which was distributed to all coaches in
March.

[ am particularly troubled that these issues and violations occurred during a time period when the
entire men's basketball coaching staff should have been even more attentive to potential
violations and issues regarding recruiting phone calls as a result of the violations that occurred
while you were at the University of Oklahoma.

In response to the phone calls that were made contrary to the sanctions and in violation of NCAA
rules, the university has taken the following actions regarding you and the men's basketball
program. '

a. We have previously agreed as part of the disciplinary actions to be taken your
compensation from Indiana University will be reduced by $500,000 over the specified
twelve-month period.

b. Senderoff and Meyer will not be entitled to any bonuses for the 2007-08 academic year
or salary increases for the 2008-09 academic year.

c. Letters of reprimand will be issued to you (the purpose of this letter), Senderoff and
Meyer. '

d. A letter will be included in the personnel file for McCalium.

e. The university will require Senderoff to sign & form each month reminding him of these
corrective actions and sanctions and will require him to submit his monthly home phone
records for review, in addition to his cell and office phone records.

f. The compliance office will conduct mandatory compliance meetings every other week
for the full men’s basketball coaching staff (i.e., head coach, assistant coaches, and
director of basketball operations) for one year.

g. You and Senderoff will be required to attend at your own expense the same 2008 NCAA
~ Regional Rules Seminar as a member of the university’s compliance staff. Meyer and
McCallum will aiso be required to attend the seminar.

h. The university has ceased the recruitment of prospective student-athlete Jonathon "Bud"
Mackey, the subject of the vast majority (22) of the NCAA violations.

i. The university has, effective September 17, 2007, reduced the number of coaches
allowed to be involved in recruiting by one through July 31, 2008. Specifically, Senderoff
will be prohibited from; (i) meking ANY phone calls that relate in any way to recruiting
(whether or not they are countable under NCAA rules); and (ii) engaging in any off-

3



campus recruiting activities. If Senderoff leaves the employment of the University’s
men’s basketball program prior to July 31, 2008, another assistant coach will serve the
remainder of this sanction.

j. The university will reduce by one the number of men’s basketball financial aid awards
for the 2008-09 academic year.

k. The university will reduce the number of permissible calls to prospects on or after August
1 of their senior year in high school from two calls per week to one call per week from
September 17, 2007, through the end of the regular National Letter of Intent signing
period (May 21, 2008). Further, you are only eligible to make every other one of these
phone calls.

l. The uhiversity will reduce the number of phone calls you will be permitted to make to
junior prospective student-athletes to every other one of the monthly calls to junior
prospects beginning September 17, 2007, and ending July 31, 2008.

m. The university limited you to four (4) off-campus recruiting contact days during the fall
2007 contact period.

n. The university will limit you to no more than ten (10) additional off-campus recruiting
days to be used from the conclusion of the fall contact period (October 5, 2007) through
July 31, 2008. :

0. The university will reduce the number of permissible official paid visits from 12 to six
(6) during the 2007-08 academic year.

p. The university will submit a report to the Committee on Infractions by September 30, |
2008, documenting compliance with these additional sanctions.

In response to the verbal scholarship that wﬁs extended to Derek Elston during his participation
in your team camp this past summer, which was in violation of NCAA Bylaw 13.12.1.3, the
university has taken the following actions regarding you and the men's basketball program.

a. The relevant legislation was discussed with the assistant coach in September and with
you in October.

b. The relevant legislation was reviewed with the entire men’s basketball staff on October
123, 2007.

c. The men’s basketball staff is limited to six recruiting opportunities for this prospect
during his senior year.

d. Letters of reprimand will be issued to you (the purpose of this letter) and Meyer. .
| MSWAIRY
It is my hope that this action will further demonstrate to you the critical importance ofAthletics
compliance with all applicable legislation, including rules, regulations, interpretations, policies 540,
and sanctions. It is your duty, as well as a policy and rule of Indiana University, to, in all C.onp/fa
respects to all applicable NCAA, Big Ten Conference and Indiana University legislation, rules,
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fegulations, interpretations, policies and sanctions. Any failure to do so is also a violation of the
stated mission of the university. [ trust that you will take every measure possible to ensure that
your future conduct, and that of all men’s basketball assistant coaches and other staff members,
is in full conformity to such legislation, rules, regulations, interpretations, policies and sanctions.
It is my sincere des“ﬁ%‘{%b’f ng%rg yt_{tg)%zﬁdi.ssuss behind us and move forward withfa positive
working relationship.” Howéver, jease ¢ advised that the university is reserving its right to
impose additional disciplinary action, including but not limited to suspension or termination of
your employment for "Just Cause", if (a) we determine that you or your staff have not been
completely honest with the university concerning these issues, (b) additional facts arise that
indicate other or additiona! violations of applicable NCAA, Big Ten Conference and Indiana
University legislation, rules, regulations, interpretations, -policies or sanctions by you or your
staff have occurred prior to the date hereof, or (c) other or additional violations of applicable
NCAA, Big Ten Conference and Indiana University legislation, rules, regulations,
interpretations, policies or sanctions by you or your staff occur on or after the date hereof.

I am confident that you fully understand-the impact of these issues and that this letter will serve
as the only necessary reminder to you to carefuily monitor your staff in all areas, and Dpﬁa.icula_;?
regarding all recruiting activities, including phone calls. It is imperative that yougWwor. close y

.and collaboratively with the Indiana University compliance staff going forward as one of their

top priorities will be to work with and assist you and your staff to ensure complete compliance
with all applicable NCAA, Big Ten Conference and Indiana University legislation, rules,
regulations, interpretations, policies and sanctions. '

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. Please acknowledge your receipt

- of this letter and your agreement to abide by the terms hereof by signing a copy of this letter in

the place indicated below and by returning it to me as soon as possible.

Rick Greenspan

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO: .

Kelvin Sampson

cc:  Dottie Frapwell
Chad Hawley
Bruce Jaffee
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INDIANA UNIVERSITY

Office of the Director
Bloomington

December 13, 2007

Mr. Kelvin Sampson : '

Head Men's Basketball Coach . .
Indiana University

Assembly Hall

Bloomington, IN 47405

Dear Coach Sampson,

| am writing with regard to the fetter of admonishment dated November 1, 2007 that |
issued to you, After you reviewed the letter, you provided me with a marked-up copy
indicating some suggested changes to the letter that youwanted me to consider. | have
now had a chance to give thought whether the letter is inaccurate or otherwise in need

' ‘of revision. | have also discussed with our university legal counsel the appropriate way in
° which to provide you the opportunity to express any disagreement with the content of
the letter or to provide any clarification or context that you believe the letter lacks. The
November 1 letter was not intended to be a draft and so should remain in its original
form without editorial comments or changes. However, if you like, I'will place your
marked-up copy of the November 1 letter in your personnel file along with my original
letter. In the alternative, if you want to provide me with a responsive letter or memo of
your own, | will be happy to add that to your file. “

- Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.

Rick Greenspan
Director of Athletics

RIG/s

Rick Greenspan  Director of Athletics

Assembly Hall 1001 E. 17th Street  Bloomington, IN 47408-1590  {812) 855-1966  fax (812) 855-0448  athldir@indiana.edu  IUHoosiers.com




Secondary Infractions Case Precedent

Secondary Case Number: 33572 Eligibility Case Number: 30536 Eligibility Decision
Date: Aug 29, 2007

Secondary Decision Date: Dec 04, 2007

Division: 1

Involved Sports:

Baseball

Facts:

During August, September, and October of 2006, a volunteer baseball coach
participated in 57 impermissible phone calls involving 48 prospective student-
athletes (PSAs). Specifically, the volunteer coach took the coaching test and was

_informed of the rules change prior to the 2006 fall semester, but continued to
make calls and document them in institutional call logs. None of the baseball
PSAs were called more than the permissible number of times. Due to a
breakdown in communication, the violation went undetected by the compliance
office for several months. The compliance office discovered the violation July 1,
2007, when the head baseball coach called the compliance office to confirm
volunteer coaches were permitted to call PSAs. On clarifying this
misunderstanding of the legislation, the compliance office reviewed all previous
call logs for violations.

Additional Facts:

Institution Action:

The institution has declared all PSAs involved ineligible and will seek
reinstatement for two of the PSAs. A letter of reprimand has been issued to the
head baseball coach and the volunteer coach and it will include a review of
NCAA rules as they relate to activities performed by coaches who do not count
against their sport's coaching numerical limitations. A letter of admonishment was
“issued to the Compliance staff person responsible for monitoring recruiting
activities of coaches. All rules education sessions with all coaching staffs will be
conducted in a formal manner in a designated room as opposed to being
occasionally done in the coach's offices. A record of attendance will be kept for
all rules education sessions. All members of the institution's coaching staffs will
be required to attend rules education meetings instead of the previous policy of
requiring only the head coach and full-time assistants. The telephone log
submission grid will include names of only those coaches who are permitted to
call PSAs. The staff member responsible for monitoring phone logs will be
required to note their review of each phone log by placing his/her initials and date
of review on each phone log. As a means of checking accuracy of phone logs, the
logs will be compared with the names and dates of PSAs that are scheduled to
make, or have made, official visits to campus. It is reasonable to assume that a



PSA making an official visit to campus would be called by coaches on a regular
basis. Additional scrutiny would be appropriate for a prospect making an official
visit that is not listed a number of times in the phone log. The institution secured
the services of a compliance entity to assess the current procedures for monitoring
telephone calls and to assist in implementing any needed changes.

Enforcement Action:
No further action.
Eligibility Action:
STAFF: Eligibility reinstated.
Rationale:
. STAFF: Based on case precedent
1 d 0 }

Associated Bylaws

Sel Bylaw Title

I 18697 _I 13.1.3.4.1 Institutional Coaching Staff Members -- General Rule.
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Secondary Case Number: 32041 Eligibility Case Number 29721
Eligibility Decision Date: Feb 21, 2007

Secondary Decision Date: Apr 20 2007

Division: I

Involved Sports:

Men's Track, Qutdoor

Facts:

During the 2006-07 academic year, the head men's track coach had 16
impermissible telephone contacts with a men's track prospective student-athlete
(PSA #1) and eight impermissible telephone contacts with a second PSA PSA
#2). Specifically, between October 31, 2006, and January 5, 2007, the coach made
16 impermissible calls to the PSA #1, and between December 27, 2006, and
January 5, 2007, the coach made eight impermissible calls to PSA #2. Poor record
keeping led to the track and field recruiting coordinators and the compliance
office being unable to accurately monitor the coach's telephone calls. Most of the
calls were made because neither of the PSAs spoke English and the coach spoke
their language and could explain the process of enrolling and other translational
issues.

Additional Facts:

Institution Action:

The coach will not make recruiting phone calls for a period of 48 weeks
beginning January 22, 2007. Other men’s track staff members, no calls for 24
weeks. The coach will not have any off-campus contact with PSAs of any kind for
48 weeks beginning January 22, 2007. A full time recruiting coordinator will be
designated/hired to oversee all areas of recruiting in the track program and ensure
timely submission of all required reports. The coach will review rules with

- compliance office. Letter of reprimand will be placed in the coach’s file. Sport
supervision for track will be reassigned within the department and supervisor will
supply monthly reports on all recruiting activity to the director of athletics, as well
as ensure that all reports are timely submitted. The coach will be placed on a
probationary status and any further NCAA infractions in his track reassignment or
termination of employment at the athletic director's discretion. The coach, in
consultation with athletic director, shall review and consolidate all non-track
obligations that the coach currently has outside of the athletic department, in order
to focus on his primary responsibilities within the track program. The coaches in

" track and in cross country will attend 2007 rules seminars. Two student-athletes
are being held out and will not participate in the 2006-07 indoor season.

Enforcement Action:
No further action.
Eligibility Action:




O

STAFF: Eligibility reinstated.

Rationale;

STAFF: Based on case precedent. Please note the staff considered imposing a
reinstatement condition to negate the recruiting advantage gained by the
institution specifically the high number of phone calls made to PSA no. 1.
However, the staff felt that the responsibility for this violation fell on the
institution and cannot be appropriately addressed in Student-Athlete
Reinstatement.

I

Associated Bylaws

Sel Bylaw Title
| 18851 | 13.13.1.6 Application of Telephone Call Limitations.




Eligibility Decision Date:
Secondary Decision Date: Oct 12, 2006
Division: I

Involved Sporté:

o Secondary Case Number: 30418 Eligibility Case Number: 0

Women's Basketball

Facts:

During the 2005-06 academic year, an assistant women's basketball coach
exceeded one permissible telephone call per week to six women's basketball
prospective student-athletes (PSAs). Specifically, the assistant coach initiated
impermissible telephone calls, after it otherwise was permissible to have such
contact, to the PSAs on 28 different occasions. The assistant coach initiated 12
impermissible telephone calls to one PSA (four of which were messages), six
‘impermissible telephone calls to a second PSA (five of which were messages), six
impermissible telephone calls to a third PSA (four of which were messages), one
impermissible telephone call to a fourth PSA, one impermissible telephone call to
a fifth PSA and one impermissible telephone call and one impermissible message
to a sixth PSA. The violations occurred because the assistant coach failed to
accurately document his recruiting activities. Each of the six PSAs signed with
and will be attending other institutions.

O Additional Facts:

Institution Action:

As aresult of this violation, the interim head wo men's basketball coach has
provided the assistant coach with a logging system that can be used to maintain an
accurate log of his recruiting activities. In addition, the compliance office has
reviewed the applicable recruiting legislation with the assistant coach with the
expectation that this type of recruiting violation does not reoccur, and the assistant
coach will receive a letter of reprimand. The assistant coach will be notified in his
letter of reprimand that the office of human resources will be contacted to
determine if additional punitive action can be taken. Since the institution is no
longer recruiting the above mentioned PSAs, the assistant coach will be
prohibited from contacting any PSA for four weeks beginning September 1, 2006.
In addition, the assistant coach will be prohibited from recruiting off-campus for
half of the permissible recruiting period during the 2006-07 year.

Enforcement Action:

The enforcement staff is extremely concemed regarding the number of
impermissible calls made and the assistant coach's apparent lack of knowledge of
basic NCAA recruiting legislation and failure to monitor recruiting calls. Further,
the staff gave serious consideration to processing these violations as a major
infractions case. The institution should be required to prohibit the entire women's
é basketball coaching staff from telephoning any PSAs who have not previously




signed a National Letter of Intent with the institution from May 1, 2007, until
September 1, 2007. In addition, please note that four of the PSAs are ineligible for
intercollegiate competition at the institution until their eligibility is restored by the
NCAA student-athlete reinstatement staff. If the institution seeks reinstatement
for any of these PSAs in the future, the enforcement staff will re-evaluate this
matter to determine if additional actions or penalties should be imposed.

Eligibility Action:
STAFF:

Rationale:
STAFF:

1 Ho

Associated Bylaws

Sel Bylaw Title

| 17974 l 13.1.3.1.3 Exception -- Women's Basketball.




Secondary Case Number: 30669 Eligibility Case Number: 28446
Eligibility Decision Date: Jun 21, 2006
Secondary Decision Date: Jun 21, 2006
Division: I '

Involved Sports:
Administrative

Football

Facts:

Institution engaged in impermissible recruiting activity with 57 prospective
student-athletes (PSAs) during their official visits. In addition, the associate
athletics director for football operations sent impermissible letters to PSAs prior
to their official visits during the 2004-05 and 2005-06 academic years.
Specifically, institution discovered associate athletics director for football
operations sent impermissible letters (in that it was not prepared by a head coach
or one of the full-time assistant coaches) to PSAs prior to their official visits in
fall 2005 and similar letters from him had been placed in the hotel rooms of the
PSAs on their arrival to campus for official visits. The main purpose of the letters
was to provide a copy of the institution's campus visit conduct guidelines.
Institution discovered that similar letters had been sent during the 2004-05
academic year as well. During institution's review, it discovered a large cookie
snack was placed in the hotel room for each PSA on an official visit and the
cookie was personalized with the PSA's first name, which is a violation of NCAA
legislation as it is a personalized recruiting aid. The violations were discovered in
January 2006 during a review of the official visit reports.

Additional Facts:

Institution Action:

Compliance staff reviewed applicable recruiting legislation with the associate
athletics director for football operations and his support staff. They were informed
that no personalized recruiting aids could be used at any location when a prospect
visits the institution. They were informed that only the head football coach and
nine full-time assistant coaches are permitted to prepare and send general
recruiting correspondence to PSAs, their parents or their legal guardians. They
were also informed that no personalized recruiting aids could be used at any
location when a PSA visits. Athletics director sent a letter of reprimand to the
associate athletics director for football operations and a letter of admonishment to
the assistant director of football operations and required them to attend a 2006
NCAA Regional Rules Compliance Seminar. An additional full-time compliance
assistant has been hired to assist with monitoring of recruiting in all sports.
Finally, applicable recruiting legislation will be points of emphasis at the
institution's next NCAA Rules and Compliance Education meeting with all
coaches.



Enforcement Action:
No further action.
Eligibility Action:
STAFF: Eligibility reinstated for all 57 PSAs.
Rationale:
STAFF: Based on case precedent.
I

i

Associated Bylaws

Sel Bylaw Title

19298 | 134.1.1 Printed Recruiting Materials.

i

17823 | 13.4.4.1 Recruiting Advertisements.

17311 g 13.6.7.9 Activities.
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Secondary Case Number: 32391 Eligibility Case Number: 29859
Eligibility Decision Date: Mar 09, 2007

Secondary Decision Date: Mar 09, 2007

Division: I

Involved Sports:

Administrative

Facts:

For several years, numerous prospective student-athletes (PSAs) across all sports
incorrectly received institutional waivers of the admissions and housing de posits.
Specifically a waiver was provided from the admissions office of the $250
acceptance deposit to PSAs that sign a National Letter of Intent (NLI), as well as
a waiver of the housing deposit for all PSAs on scholarship living in the athletics
department allotment of on-campus housing. Institution reported this had been a
standard practice that the previous compliance personnel did not question.
Specifically, the waiver of deposit fees was used because the NLI itself was a
binding promise to attend the institution if admitted and, therefore, a deposit was
not needed to hold that PSA's seat in the incomin g class. The housing deposit was
waived as it was a portion of PSA's future housing charges, which would be paid
by the athletics scholarship. PSAs not signing a NLI or not on a full scholarship
did not receive these waivers. These waivers covered deposits, which were
permissible to refund to the athletes and thus the S As did not receive any net
financial benefit but standard practice was impermissible in procedure. The
violation was discovered when the director of compliance was reviewing the draft
of a self-study report. ' ‘

Additional Facts:

Institution Action:

Institution has modified its procedures with an immediate effective date to require
PSAs pay all acceptance and housing deposits and fees. The expenses will be
refunded only to PSAs who have been awarded financial aid covering institutional
fees. A memorandum has been issued to all athletics department staff concerning
this change of policy. The compliance office has also notified the admissions and
housing offices of the legislation and will schedule a yearly educational meeting
with each office.

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
| 984 15.2.14  Fees and Related Expenses for Prospective Student-Athletes.




O Secondary Case Number: 27263 Eligibility Case Number: 26643
Eligibility Decision Date: Apr 29, 2005
Secondary Decision Date: Dec 20, 2005
- Division: 1
Involved Sports:

_ Men's Soccer
Men's Tennis
Women's Lacrosse
Softbail

Facts:

For approximately the last 10 summers, including the summer of 2004, the
Jinstitution provided numerous student-athletes (SAs) on various sports teams with
impermissible athletically related aid during the summer in that the amounts
received exceeded amounts permitted by NCAA legislation for summer school.
(The institution is seeking reinstatement for 25 S As who have eligibility
remaining and who received impermissible aid during the 2603 and 2004
summers. The amounts of impermissible aid received by SAs ranged between
$400.50 and $2,142.50.) Specifically, the institution incorrectly calculated the

c equivalency amounts for athletically related summer financial aid over this 10-
year period. When determining the percentage of summer aid awarded for each
SA who received less than a full grant-in-aid during the academic year, the
institution used the value associated with full-time enrollment for summer term as
defined by the financial aid office as the cost of tuition, room and board and
books for an SA taking three eight-week courses. However, per NCAA
regulations, the percentage of summer aid should have been awarded based on the
SA's actual cost of attendance, as opposed to the cost of full-time enrollment for
the summer term. Prior to the start of the summer term, SAs received notification
of the amount of summer aid they were to receive and that it was equal to the
percentage of aid they received during the academic year. The SAs relied on this
information when making their decision whether to attend summer school. With
the exception of one SA, none of the 25 SAs involved required summer courses to
be eligible the following year. In addition, the institution could have used the
Student-Athlete Opportunity Fund to permissibly pay for the SA's courses in the
summer of 2004. The institution discovered the violations through an established,
periodic audit documented by an outside agency per institutional policies and
procedures.

Additional Facts:
Institution Action:

O Institution will reduce the amount of summer aid awarded to its SAs in the
summers of 2006 and 2007 by the amounts of $20,952.63 and $6,127.10, which




represent the total amount of summer aid that was over-awarded to currently
enrolled SAs during the summers of 2004 and 2003. In addition, staff members
from the compliance, academic services and financial aid offices will be required
to attend a financial aid educational session conducted by the conference office

-and will also attend the conference spring workshop scheduled for April 2006 and

the 2006 NCAA Regional Rules Compliance Seminar. The internal auditing
procedures have been amended to include an annual review of the summer
financial aid awarding procedures for at least the next five years after which the
institution will evaluate whether to return to the one-in-four years audit. Letters of
reprimand would have been placed in the files of those responsible for the
oversight of the financial aid process between 1995 and 2004; however, those
individuals no longer are employed by the institution. As a result of a
comprehensive investigation to determine how the violations could have occured,
the institution has made several changes relative to the process for awarding
athletically related summer financial aid. The compliance office will also increase
educational efforts for its SAs relative to financial aid with emphasis placed on
the calculation of summer athletically related aid.

Enforcement Action:

Although the enforcement staff is concerned regarding the length of time over
which the violations occurred and the number of SAs involved, it was determined
that the case should be classified as secondary. The decision to process the case as

. secondary primarily was based on the following factors: (1) The violations were

the result of a misinterpretation of only one area of the financial aid legislation;
(2) only one of the student-athletes with eligibility remaining needed summer
school courses to be eligible; and (3) during the summer of 2004 (which involved
the vast majority of the impermissible funds) the institution could have paid for
the summer courses through the Student-Athlete Opportunity Fund. In addition, it
was determined that no further action should be taken in the matter.

Eligibility Action:

STAFF: Eligibility reinstated for 24 SAs who did not need summer school hours.
Eligibility reinstated based on repayment of impermussible aid for the one SA who
required the courses.

Rationale:

STAFF: Based on the totality of the circumstances. The staff provided relief in
this case based on the institutional error. SAs made decision to take summer
school classes based on information provided by institution regarding the amount
of aid they would receive. Further, the staff noted the classes were not needed for
eligibility purposes. In this case, the staff felt the high institutional involvement in
arranging, encouraging and incorrectly.informing SAs of amount of aid for which
they were eligible was more appropriately addressed through actions against
institution than through requiring repayment of SA's who did not need the class.
Repayment was required for the SA who needeed the classes to be eligible.

R
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O Associated Bylaws
Sel Bylaw Title

I 17119 ; 15.2.8.1 General Stipulations.
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Prolast: Mackey

Profirst: Jonathon "Bugd”

Prename: Bud
Height: 6'3

Date

08/22/2006 Rob

Conversation

10/09/2006 Rob

Conversation

10/18/2006 Rob

Conversation

10/18/2006 Rob

Conversation

12/24/2006 . Rob

Conversation

04/16/2007 Rob

Conversation

04/16/2007 Rab

Conversation

06/05/2007

Conversation

08/06/2007 Rob

Conversation

08/19/2007 Rob

Conversation

08/25/2007 Rob

Conversation

Page 226

Address: 605 George Martin

Who Called

called from cell

Georgetown, KY

Response

Talk to Prospect

Talked to chris and Bud

called from cell

cailed from cell

called from cell
talked to mom

called from cell

called from cell

called from cell

Coach Sampson

called from cell

called from cell

called from cell

Left Message

Left Message

Talked to Other

Talk to Prospect

NONE

Talk to Prospect

Talk to Prospect

Talk to Prospect

Talk to Prospect

tatked to mom and Bud

called from cell

talked to-mom

Talked to Other

40324

Number Called
5025708859

5025708859

8594203347

859-420-2712

8594203347

859-868-6849

859-868-6849

859-420-2712

859-420-2712

859-420-2712

859-420-2712



2007 NATONAL CITY RHSAR

c BOYS’ SWEET SIXTEENe STATE BASKETBALL TOURNAMENT
March 21-24 « Rupp Arena * Lexmngton
Adair County (23-9) 51 (All-Times Eastem & Local To Site — Top Team In Bracket Will Be The Home Team)
Nationat City,

Wed., March 21 Adair County (24-9) 53
12:00 p.m.

Lincoln County (24.9) 41

Fri,, March 23 Scott County (32-2) 73
12:00 p.m.

Scott County (30-2) 59

Wed., March 21 Scott County (31-2} 68
4:30 p.m.
Cldham County (23-§) 47

Boys' State Tournament
sat,March24 | Scott County {33-2)

10 am.
South Laurel (28-5) 48
Wed., March 21 South Laurel (29-5) 49
6:30 p.m.
Fairdale (24-7) 46
Fri., March 23 Holmes {25-9) 64
Holmes (23-9) 57 1:30p.m.
Wed,, March 21 Holmes (24-9) 55
8:00 p.m.
Paducah Tilghman {35-7} 48 Sat., March 24
O 8 p.m. (ET) 2007
(Subject to Change) State Champion
Owensboro 24-8) 60

Thurs., March 22 Ballard {33-2) 71
12:60 p.m.

- Ballard {32-2) 80

Fri., March 23 Ballard {34-2) 61
6:30 p.m.
George R Clark {25-7) 77 {OT)

Thurs., March 22 George R. Clad@-‘l) 48
1:30 pm.
Christian County (284) 71

Sat., March 24 Ballard (35-2)
11:30 am.

Elliott County (24-6) 68

Thurs., March 22 Eflfiott County (25-6) 76
6:30 p.m. |
Shelby Valley (29-3) $5

Fri., March 23 Warren Central {30{4) 55

8:00 p.m.

June Buchanan {26-6) 53

Thurs.,March22 | Warren Central (29}4) 92

. 8:00 p.m.
o Warren Central (28-4) 71
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4 Logan, barius
Loubeats, David
| Lucas, Jal

1 Luclous, Korie
Luster, JayDee

4 tabry, Tashaun
|Macelar, Marcus

Macklin, vernon

|| aciin, Corderio

| Madison, Karl

| Maehten, Jan

' Magruder, Rodney
| Maitiand Jr., Edson
| Malone, Blake

Mariru, Bawa

Réfresh

‘(Lucas-Perry, Laval Priorl{
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- DEPARTMENT OF
INTERCOLLEGIATE
ATHLETICS

INDIANA UNIVERSITY

Bloomington

December 18,2007

Ms. Kelly Groddy

Associate Director of Student-Athlete Reinstatement
NCAA :

VIA FACSIMILE — 317-917-6736

Re: Revised Reinstatement Request
Dear Kelly:

Attached is a revised reinstatement request from Indiana University regarding men’s basketball
prospective student-athlete Derek Elston (“Elston” or “the prospect”). As we reported on October
26, a violation of NCAA Bylaw 13.12.1.3 occurred when the prospect came to campus on an
unofficial visit on the evening of June 30, his first day of participation in a two-day institutional
camp. We are requesting that the prospect’s eligibility to compete at Indiana University be
reinstated with no conditions.

We have modified the context of the violation initially reported due to information that was
discovered after we obtained statements from the prospect and his high school coach, as you
requested, as well as additional information that we received from Assistant Men’s Basketball
Coach Jeff Meyer (“Coach Meyer”), the assistant coach who was the primary organizer of the
mieeting. | have attached the statements from the prospect, his coach (Travis Daugherty or
“Daugherty”’), Coach Meyer and Head Men’s Basketball Coach Kelvin Sampson (“Coach
Sampson”). .

Although the violation itself has not changed, I wanted to hlghhght the circumstances that are
apparently different than we initially reported:

1. Coach Meyer’s statements to Daugherty. When the initial report was prepared, there was
apparently some miscommunication regarding the information or instructions Coach Meyer
conveyed to Daugherty regarding how Elston needed to be dismissed from the camp.
Coach Meyer has indicated that he believes the confusion arose because he emphasized that
he thought Elston had been properly dismissed from the camp and because he did not recall
seeing him on the second day of the camp. Coach Meyer also stated that he did not recall
speaking with either Elston or Daugherty on the second day, but that he generally tries to
casually chat with players, parents and coaches as they finish camp activities and leave
campus. Coach Sampson does not remember talking with the prospect or his coach on the
second day of the camp. Elston and Daugherty stated that Coach Sampson and Coach
Meyer watched at least some of Elston’s last game and that the coaches spoke with Elston
before they left.

Assembly Hall 1001 E. 17th Street  Bloominglon, IN 47408-1590 (812} 855-2794  fax (812) 856-5155  IUHoosiers.com




ARMAWIT VL] 1 0

<]

2. Scholarship Offer. Contrary to what was reported in the original request, no scholarship
was offered at the meeting on June 30, However, as they left the meeting, Daugherty asked
Coach Meyer if a scholarship had been offered. Coach Meyer responded that they could not
make an offer while the prospect was on campus but that was what they planned to do.

The attached reinstatement request reflects our current understanding of the context for the
violation based on the attached wrnitten statements from all parties. Again, we do not believe that
the revisions affect the substance or nature of the violation. Feel free to let me know if you have
any questions or need any additional information. You can contact me at 812/855-0451 or by e-
mail at jhooker@indiana.edu. We appreciate your assistarice in this matter.

Sincerely,

ennifer Brinegar
Assistant Athletics Director

Attachments
cc: Rick Greenspan

Robin Green Harris
Chad Hawley
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. il SELF-REPORT FOR SECONDARY VIOLATIONS
ONFERENC CONFERENCE RULE VIOLATIONS/ NCAA BYLAW VIOLATIONS
ww_bigten.org

1. Institution: Indiana University 2. Sport(s) Involved: Men's Basketball
3. Date Institution Determined Violation Occurred: September 2007

4. Date Reported to: NCAA: December 17,2007  Conference: N/A

5. Location of Violation: Bloomington, Indiana
6. Date of Violation: June 30, 2007

7. How was the violation discovered? Review of information reported to the NCAA and forwarded to the institution in a
written inquiry dated July 12, 2007.

8. Legislation Involved: NCAA: 13.121.3
Conference:
8. For NCAA violations, indicate whether this is a Level | or Level li violation. Report Level | violations directly to
the NCAA.

X Level l: In general: violations of bylaws outside of Bylaws 10-17, all intentionat violations, any violations not isolated
or limited to a single occurrence, and any similar violations that previously have occurred in the same sport
during that same year. Refer to the NCAA website for a complete list of Level | violations

o © {bttp:/lwww1i.ncaa.org/lmembership/enforcement/secondary_violations/index).
Level It: Allinadvertent violations of the operating bylaws {Bylaws 10-17) not identified as Level | violations. Level }i

violations do not require reinstatement by the NCAA. If this self-report involves restitution, please attach
documentation of repayment.

10. Individual(s) Involved (include Name/Position or Title):

Jeff Meyer, assistant coach, and Kelvin Sampson, head coach
11. Prospective or Enrolled Student-Athlefe(s) Involved:

Derek Elston, prospective student-athlete

12. Eligibility reinstatement required? Yes.
If yes, requested to: NCAA X £ YES, request eligibility reinstatement directly from NCAA.
Or Conference . If'YES, request eligibility reinstatement directly from Conference.

A} Date institution declared the prospect/student-athiete ineligible: Date:  September 2007
B) Name(s) of Prospect(s) or Student-Athlete(s) declared ineligible: Derek Elston

C) Are there other eligibility issues with this prospect or student-athlete (e.g., petition pending;
additional reinstatement pending, etc.)? W YES, please clarify: No.

[=
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13. Facts of the Case: The prospecl’s high school team participated in an institutional team camp on June 30 and July 1.
Most of his team’s games took place in the HPER gym on Saturday, June 30; however, his team’s last game took place in’
A--ambly Hall. After the last game, the prospect stayed with a teammate who was getting trealment in Assembly Hall for

. jury that was sustained during the last game. The resl of the team and-one of the team’s assistant coaches wenl back
to their off-campus hotel. Al some point that evening, the prospect and his head coach went inlo the coaches’ locker room
in Assembly Hall 1o meet with Coach Sampson and Coach Meyer. They did not leave campus or Assembly Hall between
the end of their game and this meeting. Further, the next day, the prospect retumed with his team to participale in the
second and final day of the two-day ileam camp. The meeting on June 30 is thus conltrary to Bylaw 13.12.1.3.

Coach Meyer wasthe main organizer of the meeting. He realized the morning of June 30 that the coaches could not meet with
the prospect following the camp’s conclusion on July 1, as would have been permissible if the camp had occurred earfier in
June, due to the impermissibility of unofficial visits during July. He incorrecily believed that NCAA rules would allow a meeting
with the prospect if the prospect had been dismissed from the camp and team obligations at the end of the day on June 30.
During the afternoon or evening of June 30, the assistant coach informed the prospect’s coach that the university’s coaches
would like 1o meet with him and the prospect but thal the prospect had to be dismissed from camp prior to the meeting.

14. Mitigating Circumstances: The assistant coach thought that if he suggested that the prospect leave campus after the last
game.on June 30 that, because all camp aclivity for the day had been compleled, this would constilute dismissal from the
camp. He did not understand that dismissal was not-possible untit the camp was over or the team had finished its participation.
In krying to avoid an issue with the “no July unofficial visit rule” the assistant coach did not lake enough care to ensure the
accuracy of his understanding of what would be considered dismissal from camp. in retrospect, he realizes that he should
have contacled the compliance office for an interpretation regarding what they couid do. The head coach believed this meeting
was permissible based on the information the assistant coach shared with him regarding his incorrect understanding that the
prospect had been dismissed from the camp.

15. Corrective Actions Taken by Institution: The relevant legislation was discussed with the assistant coach in Seplember
and with the head coach in early Oclober. It was also reviewed with the entire men’s basketbalt staff on October 23, 2007. The
men's basketball staff is limited to six recruiting opporlunities for this prospect during his junior year and six during his senior
year, with only two of those for off-campus contacts. The lwo coaches were issued letters of reprimand.

if lo be countersigned by the Facully Representative and Direclor of Athletics.

Submi By:
ubmitted By oate:%/f,,%f

Signature
ignatur ?aa%ﬁ\s\ew
Signature: ! AL ﬂﬂ P Date: ]ZY/I?)/J;L

L, . the provisions of Rul

- v ¥ »
Director of AIh etics
(7/04)

REMINDER: Institutions are required to submit copies of ali letters of admonishmenl and/or repiimand issued with a self-report.
Copies to:

Jennifer Brinegar
Grace Cathoun
Tim Fitzpatrick
Dottic Frapwell
Rick Greenspan
KeHy Groddy
Robin Green Haris
Chad Hawley
Bruce Jaffee
Michae} McRobbie
Jef ™ *eyer

Ke Sampson



Jennifer,

To the best of my memory, here are as direct and detailed of answers as I can provide to
the questions about Derek Elston. If you have any follow-up questions, please let me
know.

Question 1: Did you meet with Derek Elston during the team camp this past summer:
specifically, on the evening of Saturday, June 30 at the end of the camp activities for that
day?

Answer 1: Yes.
Question 2: Was this meeting related to camp activities?

Answer 2: Yes. The meeting was related to camp activities in two ways. First, because
Derek was on campus with his team to participate in camp play, the meeting was
physically possible and we discussed Tipton High School’s pool play opponents.
Second, my impression of Derek’s play during the Saturday camp game that I had
watched earlier in the day was discussed in the meeting.

Question 3: Was any recruitment of Derek discussed (any conversation designed to solicit
Derek’s future enrollment at [U)?

Answer 3: Yes. There was no actual offer of a scholarship to Derek during the meeting.
However, while meeting in the coaches’ locker room, Coach Sampson and Derek did talk
about Derek’s game. As part of that conversation between Coach Sampson and Derek, 1
believe that Coach Sampson said that Derek was the type of player and person whom he
wanted playing at Indiana. To the best of my memory, as Derek, Travis and I were
leaving the locker room, Travis asked something like, “So does Derek have a scholarship
to IU,” and I basically said, “We can’t make any official offer while Derek is on campus,
but that’s what we plan to do.”

" Question 4: Was his coach present?
Answer 4: Yes.
Question 5: Who organized this meeting?

Answer 5: | was the main organizer of the meeting. The meeting came about like this — I
knew that our staff would like to have the chance to talk with Derek while he was in
Bloomington. As I was driving to camp on the morning of Saturday, June 30" 1 realized
that because camp lasted through Sunday, July 1* that the rule prohibiting unofficial
visits during the month of July would prevent us from meeting with Derek after Sunday’s
camp session, which we could have done had camp been earlier in the month. As I was
driving, I tried to think of how we could meet with Derek without violating that rule. I
knew that there was a rule that allowed us to meet with a prospect who had been



“dismissed” from camp. I thought that meeting with Derek after all camp activities had
ended June 30™ and Derek had been “dismissed” from camp and team obligations could
solve these two issues within the NCAA rules. At some point early Saturday afternoon
(after Derek’s team’s first Saturday game), [ saw Coach Daugherty and mentioned that
our staff would like to visit with him and Derek. In order to try to follow the “no July
unofficial visit” rule and because of my (incorrect) understanding of the “dismissed from
camp’ rule, I told Coach Daugherty that we would have to do it Saturday night after he
had dismissed Derek from his camp and team obligations. As I recall, I suggested that
after Coach Daugherty’s team’s last game that he should dismiss his team, let an assistant
coach take the team to their off-campus hotel, he and Derek should go off-campus and
then return to campus and find me in the Assembly Hall. I do not remember watching
Derek play any more on Saturday or having any other conversation with Coach
Daugherty that afternoon. Saturday evening, Coach Daugherty and Derek found me in
the Assembly Hall after their last game of the day. At that time, I (incorrectly) believed
that we could meet with Derek without violating either relevant rule, so we went to meet
Coach Sampson.

Question 6: Where was the meeting held?
Answer 6: The meeting was held in the coaches’ locker room in the Assembly Hall.

Question 7: Who was present (please name everyone who was in the room when this
meeting took place)?

Answer 7: [ know that Derek, Coach Daugherty, Coach Sampson, and I were in the
meeting. I do not remember whether any of our other assistant coaches were present.

Question 8: Did you speak (during this meeting) with Derek or his coach about a
scholarship and/or playing at ITU?

Answer 8: I do not remember personally talking about Derek coming to Indiana during
the meeting. I think that at the beginning of the meeting there was some general
discussion about camp and about Derek’s game, but the meeting pretty quickly became a
conversation between Derek and Coach Sampson. As I mentioned in response to
Question 3, I recall that as Derek, Travis and I were leaving the locker room, Travis

- asked something like, “So does Derek have a scholarship to IU,” and [ basically said,
“We can’t make any official offer while Derek is on-campus, but that’s what we plan to
do.” Ibelieve that was the only time during that weekend that I specifically talked with
Derek or Coach Daugherty about Derek playing at Indiana.

Question 9: Why did this meeting take place during camp?

Answer 9: The meeting occurred when it did for the reasons I explained in response to
Question 5. The intention was to meet in a way that satisfied both the “no July unofficial
visit” rule and the “dismissed from camp” rule. I thought that by holding the meeting in
the way I suggested to Coach Daugherty that we would comply with both of those rules



because all camp activity for Saturday would be finished, Derek would be “dismissed,”
and it would still be June when we met. Regrettably, [ was wrong.

Question 10: Did you talk with Derek and/or his coach at any point during the camp on
Sunday, July 1?

Answer 10: I do not remember talking with Derek or Coach Daugherty on Sunday.
Generally, if a summer camp ends on a day when I am in town, I try to chat with players,
parents and coaches as they finish camp activities and leave campus. These chats are
fairly random and are of a casual and brief nature, basically thanking campers and
coaches for coming to camp and wishing them well during the upcoming season. I know
that [ was around the Assembly Hall at the end of camp on Sunday, and I generally
remember saying goodbye to lots of people. It may be that I chatted with Derek or Coach
Daugherty while they were leaving, but I don’t remember doing that. The reason for
meeting with them Saturday night was becausé I knew we couldn’t have an unofficial
visit on Sunday, so I’'m confident that we didn’t have any deep conversation Sunday.

Question 11: In light of the specific legislation that prohibits recruiting activities during
an institutional camp, please provide your explanation as to why this meeting occurred?

Answer 11: The meeting occurred for the reasons I explained in response to Question 5
and Question 9. Although the meeting turned out to be a violation of the “dismissed from
camp” rule, there was no conscious decision to break the rule or get an unfair recruiting
advantage. Regrettably, in trying to avoid violating the “po July unofficial visit” rule, not
enough care was taken to correctly follow the “dismissed from camp” rule. Looking
back, I regret that I had not realized earlier in the week that we could not meet with
Derek on Sunday and had contacted the compliance office to find out what alternatives
there might be. Even when the problem first occurred to me on Saturday morning, 1
regret, in retrospect, that I did not call to get an interpretation of what we could do.

Additional information: I do not recall specifically watching Derek’s team play on
Sunday or even seeing Derek or Coach Daugherty that day. However, I am sure that
when I spoke with Coach Daugherty on Saturday I did not tell him that he shouldn’t bring
Derek back to camp on Sunday. That phrasing in the report of October 26™ is probably
due to my emphasizing that I thought Derek had been properly “dismissed” from all
camp activities when we met and my genuine belief that I didn’t see him {or my honest
failure to remember seeing him) Sunday.

T Jere m@%ﬁ"\-

Novrmber 26, 2007




MEMO

DATE: November 29, 2007

O

TO: Jennifer Brinegar

- FROM: Coach Kelvin Sampson _@

RE: Camp-Recruiting Issue

1. Did you meet with Derek Elston during the team camp this past summer:
specifically, on the evening of Saturday, June 30 at the end of the camp activities
for that day?

Yes, I remember meeting with Derek Elston and his Coach, Travis
Daugherty, this sammer. I do not remember specifically what day.

2. Was this meeting related to camp activities?
3. Was any recruitment of Derek discussed (any conversation de51gned to solicit
Derek’s future enrollment at IU)?

E é I do not remember specifics regarding our meeting. Only that we did meet

4. Was his coach present?
Yes, Coach Daugherty was present.
5. Who organiied this meeting?
Coach Jeff Meyer
6. Where was the meeting held?
Coaches’ Locker Rooﬁl

7. Who was present (please name everyone who was in the room when this meeting
took place)?

I remember Coach Meyer, Derek, and Coach Daugherty.




8.

Did you speak (during the meetiﬂg) with Derek or his coach about a scholarship'
and/or playing at [U? '

I do not remember offering Derek a scholarship.

. Why did this meeting take place during camp?

My coaching staff indicated to me that we could meet with Derek after camp,
Saturday June 30", provided he was dismissed from all Team/ Camp
obligations by his coach.

10. Did you talk with Derek and /or his coach at any point during the camp on

11.

Sunday, July1?

I do not remember talking with Derek and Coach Daugherty on Sunday
(After we met Saturday Night)

In light of the specific legislation that prohibits recruiting activities during an
institutional camp, please provide your explanation as to why this meeting
occugred? :

I was under the assumption based on what Coach Meyer explained to me
that it was ok to speak with Derek. I was under the impression that he was
dismissed from camp.
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G November §, 2007

Jennifer Brinegar

Asst. Athletic Director/Compliance, Indiana University
Assembly Hall

1001 Bast 17" Street

Bloomington, IN 47408

Ms. Brinegar,

Here is my recollection of the events of IU Team t,amp

We went to Bloomington for the IU Team Camp an Saturday, June 30 through
Sunday, July 1¥. It didu’t take long to see that IU had developed a major interest in
Derek. In our first game vs, Bloomington North, Asst, Coaches Dakich and Meyer
watched almost the cntire game, and Coach Sasupson was in and out as he was on the
phone walking among multiple courts. In our second game, we played Perry Meridian.
TU’s coaches (except maybe Senderoff/McCallum) were present for this game. Caoach
Meyer kept Derck’a individual stats on a piece of paper [or the gume, 4 game which we
won in triple overtime. After the game, Coach Meyer stopped me and showed me that
Derek had 39 points and 23 rebounds in the game, and it was obvious from him that their
interest in Derek was cxtrcmely high at that point. We playwxl another game at the HPER
complex vs. Penn, but our last game of the night was in Assembly Hall vs. Hamilton
Southeastem.

o Either just hefore or just after our game vs. Hamﬂton Southeastern in Assembly

Hall, Coach Meyer informed me that Coach Sampson wanted to meet with Derek and 1. 1
was surprised that they didn’t want to meet with his parents as well (they were not down
that weekend), but I also was excited for Derek and looked forward to the meeting.
Couach Meyer informed me at that point that there was a problem. He said that they
technically couldn’t speak to Derek until he was “dismissed” from camp. Since we were
done playing that night, Derek would be “dismissed” from camp and free to talk while
the rest of our team went back to the hotel, Coach Meyer asked if we wete staying on
carapus, and I told him we were not. One of our other players had sprained his ankle in
the last game vs. Hamilton Sontheastern in Assembly Hall, and was in the training room
getting treatment after that last game. Derek sat in that room for a while with the injured
player for probably 20-30 minutes. He was not with the ILJ coaching staff at that point,
but we also never left Assembly Hall between the end of our game and the meeting
afterwards. Most of the players and other people had cleared out of Assembly Hall at
that point, and I agreed with my Assistant Coach Green that Derek and I would go meet
with the IU coaches, and then we’d ride back to the hotel with Coach Green and the
injured player. At that point, Coach Meyer took Derek an I into the meeting room.
Present at the meeting were Derek, Coach Meyer, Coach Sampson, Coach
Dakich, and myself. The meeting lasted probably 30-40 minutes, and ended with Couach
Sampson offering Derek a scholarship to come play for him at IU. There was no mention
whatsoever of any stipulation that would prevent Derck or our team from participating
the following day (Sunday). As a matter of fact, the [U staf[ expressed their excitement
in the opportunity to watch our team the following day. As we walked out with Coach
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0 Meyer, he asked what we thought. Twasn’t sure that Coach Sampson had actually
offered a scholarship during the mecting. He said a number of times how much he’d tike
for Derek to come play for him, but I didn’t ever rernember him saying the words, “We
are offering you.” I asked Coach Meyer on the walk out if that meeting constituted an
official offer, and Coach Meyer replied that it did, but that the offer wouldn’t actually
exist until we were off-campus, Derek was obviously very excited, and called his parents
that night and informed them of the news. Derek and I then left (with Coach Green and
the injured player) and drove back to the hotel.

The following day, we played two games (one vs. Jolict, IL and one vs. .
Indianapolis Arlington), both at thc HPER complex. Derek was there and played in both
of them. Again, no one from IU’s staff ever mentioned that Derek would not be able to
play since we met the night before.

Derek played in hoth of the games we played on Sunday. Tn the last game, Coach
Sampson and Coach Meyer watched at least some of the game, and they spoke with
Derek after the game before we left. They talked about Derek’s sistet’s boyfriend and
how big of an IU fan he was, and how Derck was tempted to get Eric Gordon's autograph
for him, The entire conversation lasted perhaps 5-10 minutes, then Derek and I returned
to Tipton with the rest of our team.

This is the truth hased on what { remember from that weekend.

With respect,

Travis Daugherty
Boys Basketball Coach
Tipton High School
619 S. Main Street
Tipton, IN 46072
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G November 8, 2007

Jennifer Brinegar

Asst. Athletic Director/Compliance, Indiana University
Assembly Hall

1001 East 17™ Street

Bloomington, IN 47408

Ms. Brinegar,

Here is my recollection of the events of IU Team Camp:

We went to Bloomington for the IU Team Camp ¢n Saturday, June 30 through
Sunday, July 1%, Tt didn’t take long to see that IUJ had developed a major interest in me.
In our first game vs, Bloomington North, Asst. Coaches Dakich and Meyer watched
almost the entire game, and Coach Sampson was in and out as he was on the phone
walking among multiple courts. In our second game, we played Perry Meridian. Same
of TU’s coaches were present for this game. I played very well, and Coach Daugherty
told me that IU's coaching staff had been very impressed, We played another game at
the HPER complex vs. Penn, but our last game of the night was in Assembly Hall vs.
Hamilton Southeastern.

Either just before or just after our game vs. Hamilton Southeastem in Assembly
Hall, Coach Meyer informed Coach Daugherty that Coach Sampson wanted to meet with
us. | was excited and looked forward to the meeting. One of our other players had

o— sprained his ankle in the last game vs, Hamilton Southeastern in Assembly Hall, and was

in the training room getting treatment after that last game. 1 sat in that room for a while
with the injured player for probably 20-30 minutes, I was not with the IU coaching staff
at that point, but Coach Daugherty and I also never left Assembly Hall between the end
of our game and the meeting afterwards. Most of the players and other people had
cleared out of Assembly Hall at that point, and Coach Mcycr took Coach Daugherty and I
into the meeting room.

Present at the meeting were Coach Daugherty, Cozch Meyer, Coach Sampson,
Coach Dakich, and myself. The meeting lasted probably 30-40 minutes, and ended with
Coach Sampson offering me a scholarship to come play for him at [U, There was no
mention whatsoever of any stipulation that would prevent me or our team from
participating the following day (Sunday). As a matter of fact, the [U staff expressed their
excitement in the opportunity to watch our team the following day. As we walked out
with Coach Meyer, he asked what we thought. I wasn’t sure that Coach Sampson had
actually offered a scholarship during the meeting, He said 2 number of times how much
he'd like for Derek to come play for him, but [ didn’t ever remember himn saying the
words, “We are offering you.” I asked Coach Meyer on the walk out if that meeting
constituted an official offer, and Coach Meyer replied that it did, but that the offer
wouldn’t actually exist until we were off-campus. T was cxcited, and called my parents
that night and informed them of the news. Coach Daugherty and T then left and drove
back to the hotel,

(A A
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o The following day, we played two games (one vs. Joliet, I and one vs.
Indianapolis Arlington), both at the HPER complex. I was there and played in both of
them.

In the last game on Sunday, Coach Sampson and Coach Meyer watched at least
some of the game, and they spoke with me after the game before we left. We taiked
about my sister’s boyfriend and how big of an [U fan he was, and how 1 was tempted to
get Bric Gordon’s autograph for him. The entire conversetion lasted perhaps 5-10
minutes, then Coach Daugherty and I returned to Tipton with the rest of our team.

This is the truth based on what I remember from that weckend.

With respect,

I .
; -
Der Iston




@ANA UNIVERSITY

DEPARTMENT OF
INTERCOLLEGIATE
ATHLETICS

Assernbly Hall
1001 East 17th Street
Bloomington, Indiana
47408-1590

02-355-2794
¥312-856-5155

iuhoosiers.com

QOctober 26, 2007

Ms. Jennifer Henderson

" Director of Student-Athlete Reinstatement

NCAA
VIA FACSIMILE — 317-917-6736

Re: Reinstatement Request
Dear Jennifer:

The attached information is a reinstatement request by Indiana University regarding men’s
basketball prospective student-athlete Derek Elston. A violation of NCAA Bylaw 13.12.1.3
occurred when the prospect came to campus on an unofficial visit on the evening of June 30,
his first day of participation in a two-day institutional camp. An assistant coach had told the
prospect’s high school coach that the prospect would not be able to return to the camp the
next day, but failed to follow up to ensure that the prospect was indeed done with camp (afier
the first day). Unfortunately, after reviewing camp records, the prospect did indeed return to
campus on July 1 to play with his team on the second day of the two-day camp.

The compliance office discovered the error when following up on a written inquiry received
from Renee Gomila regarding this matter.

We are requesting that the prospect’s eligibility to play at Indiana University be reinstated
Please let me know if we need to have the prospective student-athlete sign the Buckley

release.

Finally, please let me know if you need additional information. You can contact me at

-812/855-0451 or by e-mail at jhooker@indiana.edu. We appreciate your assistance in this

matter.
Stncerely,

wu?{@r 44-1\156/1/

Jennifer Brinegar .
Assistant Athletics Director

Attachments
cc:  Ruck Greenspan

Renee Gomila

Chad Hawley
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_ | : “ SELF-REPORT FOR SECONDARY VIOLATIONS

CONFERENCE CONFERENCE RULE VIOLATIONS] NCAA BYLAW VIOLATIONS
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1. Institution: Indiana University 2. Sport(s) Involved: Men's Basketball
3.- Date Institution Determined Violation Occurred: September 2007

4. Date Reported to: NCAA: October 26, 2007 Conference: N/A

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

8. Legislation Involved: NCAA: 13.12.1.3
Conference:

9. For NCAA violations, indicate whether this is a Level | or Level Il violation. Report Level | violations directly to

the NCAA.

X Level I: in general: violations of bylaws outside of Bylaws 10-17, all intentional violations, any viclations not isolated
or limited to a single occurrence, and any similar violations that previously have occurred in the same sport
during fhat same year. Refer to the NCAA website for a complete list of Level | violations
(http/Awwwi.ncaa.org/membership/enforcement/secondary_violations/index).

Level : All inadvertent violations of the operating bylaws (Bylaws 10-17) not identified as Level | violations. Level i
violations do not require reinstatement by the NCAA. If this self-report involves restitution, please attach
documentation of repayment. .

10. Individual(s) involved (include NamefPosition or Title):

Jeff Meyer, assistant coach, and Kelvin Sampson, head coach
11. Prospective or Enrolled Student-Athlete{s) Involved:

Derek Elston, prospective student-athlete

12. Eligibility reinstatement required? Yes.

If yes, requested to: NCAA _X _ [fYES, request eligibility reinstatement directly from NCAA.

Or *  GConference ______ If YES, request eligibility reinstatement directly from Conference.

A) Date institution declared the prospect/student-athlete ineligible: Date: . September 2007
B) Name(s) of Prospect(s) or Student-Athlete(s) declared ineligible: Derek Elston .

C) Are there other eligibility issues with this prospect or student-athlete {e.g., petition pending;
additional reinstatement pending, etc.)? If YES, please clarify: No.

Q

i



13. Facts of the Case (Please include an explanation as to why the violation occurred. Attach additional documentation if
rrressary.):

On June 30, 2007, the prospect was attending an institutional team camp. In order to have a permissible unofficial visit per
NCAA Bylaw 13.7.1.1, Coach Meyer told the prospect’s coach that they should leave campus immediately after the camp
activities ended on June 30 and then drive over to Assembly Hall. Coach Meyer also lold the prospect’s coach that the prospect
would not be able to return to the camp on Sunday, July 1, to participate in the last day of the camp’s aclivities.

The prospect's coach did drive the prospect off campus at the end of the camp’s activities on June 30. He then drove the
prospect to Assembly Hall, where the prospect met with Coach Sampson and was given a verbat scholarship offer.
Unbeknownst to Coach Meyer, Coach Sampson, and the camp director, assistant coach Rob Senderoff, the prospect returned
to the second day of the team camp on Sunday, July 1, and participated in the final day of the camp’s team tournament. This
was conlrary to the provisions of NCAA Bylaw 13.12.1.3.

14. Corrective Aclions Taken by Institution:

The relevant legislation was discussed with the assistant coach in September and with the head coach in October. It was also
reviewed with the entire men’s basketball staff on October 23, 2007. The men's basketball staff is limited to six recruiting
opportunities for this prospect during his junior year and six during his senior year, with only two of those for off-campus
contacts. The two coaches will be issued letters of reprimand.

15. Punitive & Disciplinary Actions—Level Il Violations: N/A

.1.C, this report is to be gountersigned by the Faculty Represertative and Direclor of Athlelics.

Date: /"i/z gj/ﬂ 7 -

Under the provisions of Rule 3

Submitted By:
Signature

@

Signature: / mre——_ ' Date: [?/?{/07’

A —
Director of At‘)letics

Facult presentati

(7i04)
REMINDER: Institutions are required to submit copies of all letters of admonishment and/or reprimand issued with a self-report.
Copies to:

Jennifer Brinegar
Grace Calhoun
Tim Fitzpatrick
Dothe Frapwell
Renee Gomila
Rick Greenspan
Chad Hawley
Jennifer Henderson
Bruce Jaffee

- Michael McRobbie
Jeff Meyer
Kelvin Sampson

o
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: RECFIVED MEMORANDUM I
1 MAReBL0 |

Febfuary 29, 2008

Director of Athletics

Faculty Athletics Representative
Senior Woman Administrator
Conference Commissioner.

TO: :

FROM: Kelly J. Groddy
Associate Director of Membership Services/
Student-Athlete Reinstatement.

SUBJRCT: Student-Athlete Reinstatement Staff Case Decision.

Thisimemorandum 2nd a datsbase printout (located on the reverse side of this
page) serve a3 written confirmation of the decision by the NCAA for this case,
This information has been' sent to the persons named above as well as the
institutional staff member who submitted the request, Please note that the facts
are considered agreed on by the institution and the staff. If the institution does not
agrec with the stated facts, it is the institution’s responsibility to notify the staff
since any change in facts will void the decision, prompting the staff to make a
decision based on the new set of facts.

If the institution wishes to appeal this decision to the appropriate division specific
NCAA Committee on Student-Athiete Reinstatement, it may do so by submitting
a completed appeal request form (found on the NCAA Student-Athlete
Reinstatement Web site) and all supporting documentation to this office within
J0-calendar days from the date of this letter. Once the completed form is
received, 8 member from the NCAA staff will contact the institution regarding the
appeal process.

If you have questions regarding the processing of this case, please contact me.
Your assistance in processing this case is appreciated.

KiG:gae :

Athletic Associatian

: An association of mere than 1,200 membors sgeving the student-athlete
. Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Employar
p

National Collegiate
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I Date Printed Feb 26, 2008 10:03 AM'
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Eligibility Case Report
NCAA Confidentiat - lrternal Distribution Oniy

|| Llig Case 1D: 30976

| Sec Case 1D 34216 (3 m T3 g s
| Verbal Eliglbility Date: 30-JAN-08 U T T
Institution Indiana University, Bloomington . C i RECEIVED
Division: 1 M
. 40 MAR 03 2008
Athletes: Decele Elston (PSA} e e
Sports: Men's Basketbalt
Bylaws: . 13.12.:1,3 Recruiting Calendar Bxcoptions.
Caw:4*\1:u:»ealc:_tl:'-E No s E b A
Pactss  * o 2| ' K

P.

Men's baaketbal! copching staff had nnpunmsmble rocruiting contact with prospcctwc studon!-ath!cte (PSA) while he was |

sticuding an instintional team basketball camp, Specifically, institution conducted men's basketball camp June 30-July 1, 2007, in
which PSA, his high school team and coach participated, During the June 30 contests involving PSA, one or more basksthall
coaches warched PSA and appeared vary interested. At some point during that dey, PSA and his high school coach were invited to
wmeet with ingtitution’s head coach and an assistant coach after PSA's team had finished compoting for the day and PSA had been
dismissed from team activities. Following PSA's tast contest and afier his teammates had leR campus for the evening and returned
" to the hotel, PSA and high school coach, who had remained with an injured player in the training room, were teken into
institution's coaches locker mom where head coach and one or raore assistant caaches met with them. During this conversatian,

' racruitment of PSA occurred including statements by head coach indicaling PSA was the type of player he wanted at institution, -

nllhough o official scholarship offer was made 1o PSA. A1 the end of 30-40 minute conversation, PSA's high school ¢oach asked
ussistant coach whether PSA has a scholarship to insrintion and was informed no official offer can be made when PSA is on
tampus buf that was what they planaed 1o dn. Assistunt coach, wha indicated he was primary organizer of meeting, indicated he
knew of July recruiting restrictions but assumed they could mest with PSA aficr he was dismissed fram wam activities June 34,

fastimtonal Action:
+ Institution reviewed applicable legislation with entire basketbal] couching staff by October 23, 2007, and head and assnstant ocoach
teceived fetters of reprimand, Institution will limit basketball staff to six recruiting opporiunities with PSA during both junior and
senior yeers, allowing only tv/o of those for off-campus contacts,

Enforcoment Action;
This case is being forwarded fo the enforcement staff for further review.

Eligibility Action: .
STAFF: Eligibiliry reinstared, e

Rationate: , ; . v . : - :
. STAFF: Based on case precedent. )

Rage § of 1

03



FOR RELEASE: . | CONTACT:
May 25, 2006 Thomas E. Yeager, acting chair
3 p.m. Eastern time NCAA'Division |

Committee on Infractions

Colonial Athletic Association

UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA

PUBLIC INFRACTIONS REPORT

é I INTRODUCTION.

On April 21, 2006, officials from the University of Oklahoma, the former head men's
basketball coach (the "former head coach") and three former assistant men's basketball coaches
("assistant coaches A, B and C," respectively) appeared before the Division I Committee on
Infractions to address allegations of NCAA rules violations in the institution's athletics program.
Officials from the former head coach's and assistant coach B's present institutions also attended
the hearing,

The majority of the violations involved the men's basketball program and primarily
consisted of 577 impermissible telephone contacts with 17 prospective student-athletes
from 2000 to 2004. Over 40 percent of the calls (233) were made by the former head
coach, with assistant coaches A and B accounting for 165 and 107 calls, respectively.
The remaining calls were either made by other members of the men's basketball staff or
were made from a men's basketball phone extension and could not be attributed to a
particular member of the staff. Of the 17 prospects who received the calls, five enrolled
. at the institution and another has signed a National Letter of Intent (NLI) to attend the

é — institution.



The impermissible calls violated NCAA Bylaw 13.1.3.1.2. As that bylaw existed in the
2004-05 academic year and previously, it permitted men's basketball coaches at an
institution to make the following telephone contacts with a prospect or a prospect's
parents or legal guardians:

e One telephone call on or after June 21 following the prospect's junior year of high
school [Findings II-A and II-B];

e  Three telephone calls during the month of July following the prospect's junior
year of high school with no more than one call per week [Finding II-CJ;

e After July of the prospect's junior year, no more than one phone call per week
[Finding 11-D].

The specific violations committed by the coaching staff were contrary to every clause of
this bylaw. Multiple calls were made to prospects and/or their family members prior to
June 21 following the prospects' junior year of high school and during weeks when only
one call was allowed. Impermissible and excessive calls were also made during July
evaluation periods. One prospect ("prospect 2") and his parents received 154
impermissible phone calls, including 16 during a five-day period in September 2000.
Once the violations were discovered, the former head coach characterized the high
number of impermissible calls the staff made to prospect 2 as "ridiculous." Another
prospect ("prospect 4") and members of his family received 113 impermissible calls
during the course of the young man's recruitment. A third prospect ("prospect 8")
received 67 impermissible phone calls from the men's basketball coaching staff. The
former head coach made 63 of the calls. Prospect 8 went directly from high school to the
National Basketball Association (NBA).

This case is a result of the former head coach's complete disregard for Bylaw 13
telephone contact limitations during the four-year timeframe (2000-04). The former head
coach created and encouraged an atmosphere among his staff of deliberate non-
compliance, rationalizing the violations as being the result of "prioritizing" rules.
Though he acknowledged that he knowingly violated NCAA recruiting legislation, he did
not take the phone contact violations seriously. He considered them to be unimportant in



comparison to, for example, the provision of significant material inducements for
prospects, even though the end result could have been the same, securing the
commitment of a prospective student-athlete by operating outside recruiting rules. The
former head coach preferred to think of what he and his staff were doing as "hard work"
rather than cheating. -

The committee has consistently heard that the key to successful recruiting is being able to
develop relationships with prospects and their families. The obvious purpose of these
violations was to be the first institution to make recruiting contact with prospects and
then to build on the relationship by having multiple impermissible contacts with the
prospects in the very important early stages of their recruitment. These calculated
violations created a significant recruiting advantage over institutions abiding by the
telephone contact limitations.

The committee is troubled by the fact that, during part of the time span in which the
violations were taking place, the former head coach was serving as president of the
National Association of Basketball Coaches (NABC). He presided over a widely
publicized NABC Ethics Summit called by the organization in October 2003. At a time
when the NABC identified impermissible phone contact as a serious issue and the -
organization was calling on its membership to be accountable, the former head coach and
his staff were engaged in a pattern of willful recruiting violations. At the hearing, the
former head coach stated that the rules regarding phone calls constitute the biggest ethical
dilemma facing the college coaching profession. In addition to making the excessive
phone calls, this staff attempted to avoid detection by institutional compliance personnel
by failing to record all of their calls on the written logs required by institutional recruiting
procedures. At one point during the four year period in which the violations were
occurring, the former head coach was approached by a coach from another institution and
informed that one of the former head coach's assistants was making calls to high school
juniors prior to June 21. The former head coach said that he "talked to" his assistant but
did not report the violation or take any action to stop the violations in spite of being
aware of the rules.

As a result of the former head coach's deliberate actions over four years, including
knowingly making over 230 impermissible phone calls and encouraging and allowing his
staff to commit similar violations, the committee finds that he failed to meet his
responsibility to monitor his program. The telephone contact violations support an
additional finding that the institution failed to monitor calls made by the men's basketball
coaching staff.




The committee is further troubled by the former head coach's conscious decision to
violate NCAA recruiting legislation in the recruitment of prospective student-athletes,
some of whom were among the most prominent in the nation, and the fact that this
decision permeated the actions of other members of his staff. However, the enforcement
staff did not bring an ethical conduct allegation against the former head coach, explaining
that telephone contact violations are not specifically enumerated in Bylaw 10.1 as
activities that constitute unethical conduct. Despite this position, the enforcement staff
acknowledged that Bylaw 10.1 findings can be based on repeated and knowing violations
such as those committed in this case. The committee agrees, and seriously considered
giving notice of an ethical conduct allegation to the former head coach and requiring him
to respond. Ultimately, the committee decided to forego an ethical conduct proceeding,
concluding that the culpability of the former head coach.could be adequately dealt with
through the show cause provisions of Bylaw 19.5.2.2 (1) based on findings of his personal
involvement in the multitude of the violations committed, combined with a finding that
he failed to monitor his program. His show cause provision is set forth in Section III of
this report (Penalty III-L}).

The case also involved self-reported violations in women's gymnastics concerning
impermissible countable athletically related activities conducted by the coaching staff. A
" major violation also occurred in the men's gymnastics program.

The university is a member of the Big 12 Conference and has an enrollment of approximately
25,000 students. The university sponsors nine men's and nine women's intercollegiate sports.
This was the university's sixth major infractions case. It previously appeared before the
committee in 1988 for a case involving the football program; 1980 for a case involving the
football and men's track programs; 1973 for a case involving the men's basketball and football
programs; and 1960 and 1956, both times for cases involving the football program.

IL ‘FINDINGS'OF VIOLATIONS OF NCAA LEGISLATION.

A. IMPERMISSIBLE PHONE CONTACT PRIOR TO JUNE 21
FOLLOWING THE JUNIOR YEAR OF HIGH SCHOOL. [NCAA Bylaw
13.1.3.1.2 (2004-05 NCAA Manual) and Bylaw 13.1.3.1.4 (1999-00 NCAA
Manual)]



In the month of June in the years 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004, members of
the men's basketball coaching staff, including the former head men's basketball
coach and assistant men's basketball coaches A, B and C, engaged in
impermissible telephone contacts prior to June 21 following the junior year of
high school with multiple prospective student-athletes or their parents or legal
guardians or both, Specifically:

1. Between June 2 and 14, 2000, assistant coach B placed six impermissible
telephone calls from his cell phone to the home of prospective student-
athlete ("prospect 1") prior to June 21, 2000, (his junior year of high
school).

2. Between June 5 and 16, 2000, an assistant coach placed eight
impermissible telephone calls from his office or cell phone to the mother's
place of employment or the father's cell phone of prospect 2 prior to June
21, 2000, (his junior year of high school).

3. Between September 28, 2000, to June 20, 2001, members of the men's -
basketball staff placed 25 impermissible telephone calls to a prospective

student-athlete ("prospect 3"} prior to June 21, 2001, (his junior year of
high school).

4, Between December 29, 2000, and June 18, 2001, members of the men's
' basketball staff placed six impermissible telephone calls to a prospect 4
prior to June 21, 2001 (his junior year of high school).

5. On May 17, 2004, an assistant coach placed one impermissible telephone
' call from his cell phone to the home of a prospective student-athlete
("prospect 5") prior to June 21 of his junior year in high school.

6. Between April 29 and May 18, 2004, members of the men's basketball
staff placed two impermissible telephone calls to a prospective student-



athlete ("prospect 6") prior to June 21, 2004, (his junior year of high
school).

7. On June 18, 2004, assistant coach C placed an impermissible telephone
call from his office telephone to the home of a prospective student-athlete
("prospect 7") prior to June 21, 2004, (his junior year of high school).

8. Between June 23, 2003, and June 19, 2004 members of the men's
- basketball staff placed 47 impermissible telephone calls to prospect 8 prior
to June 21, 2004, (his junior year of high school).

9. Between January 11 and February 18, 2004, two impermissible telephone
calls were placed from a telephone extension or calling card assigned to
the men's basketball staff to the home of a prospective student-athlete
("prospect 9") prior to June 21, 2004, (his junior year of high school).

Committee Rationale

The enforcement staff, the institution, the former head coach and assistant coaches A, B and C
were in substantial agreement with the facts of the finding and that violations of NCAA
legislation occurred. The committee finds that the violations occurred.

This finding involves 98 impermissible phone calls made by four coaches to nine
prospects, three of whom enrolled at the institution. At the time of the hearing, another of the
prospects had committed to attend the institution. The former head coach acknowledged being
aware that he could not phone prospects prior to June 21 following their junior year of high
school. ' :

Forty-seven of the 67 impermissible calls to prospect § were made prior to June 21 following his
junior year of high school, when all calls are prohibited. The former head coach made 43 of the



47 calls, claiming that they were made in his role of "consultant" to the family and that during
many of the calls he did not talk of the young man's college plans. However, the former head
coach actively recruited prospect 8 until August 2004 when the young man made it known that
he would not be attending the institution because he intended to bypass college for the NBA.
Regarding the calls to prospect 4 listed in this and subsequent findings, the former head coach
justified them because he had known the family since the young man was ten years old. Prospect
4 is a current men's basketball student-athlete at the institution.

B. MORE THAN ONE PHONE CALL BETWEEN JUNE 21 AND JUNE 30
FOLLOWING JUNIOR YEAR OF HIGH SCHOOL. [NCAA Bylaw
13.1.3.1.2 (2004-05 NCAA Manual) and Bylaw 13.1.3.1.4 (1999-00 NCAA
Manual)]

Between June 21 and June 30 in the years 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004, the
former head coach and assistant coaches A and C engaged in impermissible
telephone contact by placing more than one telephone call to multiple prospective
student-athletes or their parents or legal guardians or both between June 21 and
June 30 following the prospects' junior year of high school. Specifically:

1. Members of the men's basketball staff placed 14 impermissible telephone
calls to prospect 2 after the one permissible call was made on or after June
21.

2. On June 28 and 29, 2004, the former head coach placed twe impermissible
calls from his office phone to the home of prospect 6 after the one
permissible call was made on or after June 21.

3. Members of the men's basketball staff placed 13 impermissible telephone
calls to prospect 7 after the one permissible call was made on or after June
21,
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On June 23, 2004, the former head coach placed two impermissible calls
from his office phone to the cell phone of a prospective student-athlete
("prospect 10") after the one permissible call was made on June 21.

From June 23 to June 29, 2004, the former head coach placed five
impermissible calls from his office and cell phones to the home of the
guardian, a foster parent's cell phone or the home of prospect 8 after the
one permissible call was made on or after June 21.



-

Committee Rationale

The enforcement staff, the institution, the former head coach and assistant coaches A and C were
in substantial agreement with the facts of this finding and that violations of NCAA legislation
occurred. The committee finds that the violations occurred. :

This finding involved 36 impermissible calls made to five prospects, one of whom enrolled at the
institution. The former head coach made 15 of the calls. The former head coach acknowledged
that he was knowingly violating NCAA recruiting legislation.

C. IMPERMISSIBLE PHONE CONTACT DURING JULY EVALUATION
PERIODS, [NCAA Bylaw 13.1.3.1.2 (2004-05 NCAA Manual) and Bylaw
13.1.3.1.4 (1999-00 NCAA Manual)]

In July of the years 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004, members of the men's
basketball coaching staff, including the former head coach and assistant coaches
A, B and C engaged in impermissible telephone contact during the July evaluation
period with multiple prospective student-athletes or their parents or legal
guardians or both. Specifically:

1. Members of the men's basketball staff placed 21 impermissible telephone
calls to prospect 1 either after the three permissible calls were made during
the July evaluation period or after a permissible call was made during the
same week during that period.

2. Members of the men's basketball staff placed 22 impermissible telephone
calls to prospect 2 either after the three permissible calls were made during
the July evaluation period or after a permissible call.was made during the
same week during that period.




3. Members of the men's basketball staff placed two impermissible telephone
calls to a prospective student-athlete ("prospect 11"} either after the three
permissible calls were made during the July evaluation period or after a
permissible call was made during the same week during that period.

4. Members of the men's basketball staff placed 19 impermissible telephone
calls to prospect 4 either after the three permissible calls were made during
the July evaluation period or after a permissible call was made during the
same-week during that period.

5. During July 2004, assistant coach C placed three impermissible telephone
calls from his office or cell phone to the cell phone of prospect 7 during
the July evaluation period after a permissible call was made during the
same week.

6. During July 2004, the former head coach placed five impermissible

' telephone calls from his cell phone to the work phone of the guardian of
prospect 8 after a permissible call was made during the same week during
the July evaluation period.

Committee Rationale

The enforcement staff, the institution, the head coach and assistant coaches A, B and C were in
substantial agreement with the facts of this finding and that violations of NCAA legislation
~ occurred. The committee finds that the violations occurred. -

This finding involved 72 impermissible calls made to six prospects, three of whom attended the
institution, The former head coach made 33 of the calls; assistant coach A made 19 of the calls;
assistant coach B made 13 calls and assistant coach C made three calls. Four calls were made
from a phone in the basketball office. At the hearing, assistant coach B acknowledged that the
violations were committed knowingly and that he rationalized the calls as attempts to "out-work"
other institutions. He added that the men's basketball staff didn't take telephone contact rules




seriously and that he lacked the courage and job security to question the systemic violations
occurring in the program. Assistant coach B, in his interview with the enforcement staff,
admitted that the staff didn't log all of its calls as required because "we were making too many
calls." At the hearing, the former head coach said that he and the staff knew they were only
supposed to make one call per week. He was aware it was a violation to make the additional

calls.

MORE THAN ONE CALL PER WEEK. [NCAA Bylaw 13.1.3.1.2, 2004-05
NCAA Manual] '

Between August 1, 2000, and September 29, 2004, members of the men's
basketball coaching staff, including the former head coach and assistant coaches

A, B and C engaged in impermissible telephone contacts by placing more than

one call per week to multiple prospective student-athletes and/or their parents or
legal guardians. Specifically:

1. Members of the men's basketball staff placed 38 impermissible telephone
calls in excess of the one-time-per-week limitation to prespect 1.

2. Members of the men's basketball staff placed 112 impermissible telephone
calls in excess of the one-time-per-week limitation to prospect 2.

3. Members of the men's basketball staff placed 10 impermissible telephone
calls in excess of the one-time-per-week limitation to prospect 11.

4, Members of the men's basketball staff placed three impermissible
telephone calls in excess of the one-time-per-week limitation to prospect
3.

5. On April 24 and 25, 2001, assistant coach A placed 12 impermissible
telephone calls in excess of the one-time-per-week limitation from his
office or cell phone to a junior college prospective student-athlete.



10.

11.

12,

13.

Members of the men's basketball staff placed 101 impermissible telephone
calls in excess of the one-time per week limitation to prospect 4.

Members of the men's basketball staff placed 12 impermissible telephone
calls in excess of the one-time-per-week limitation to a prospective
student-athlete ("prospect 12").

On October 12 and 13, 2003, the former head coach placed four
impermissible telephone calls in excess of the one-time-per-week
limitation from his office or cell phone to a prospective student-athlete
("prospect 13").

From September 19 to October 16, 2003, the former head coach placed
five impermissible telephone calls in excess of the one-time-per-week
limitation from his cellular telephone to the cellular telephone of a
prospective student-athlete ("prospect 14").

From October 25, 2003, to March 19, 2004, the former head coach placed
29 impermissible telephone calls in excess of the one-time-per-week
limitation from his cell or office phone to prospect 15.

From August 13 to September 11, 2003, assistant coach B placed eight
impermissible telephone calls in excess of the one-time-per-week
limitation from his office phone to the home of junior college prospective
student-athlete ("prospect 16").

Members of the men's basketball staff placed two impermissible telephone
calls in excess of the one-time-per-week limitation to prospect 5.

Members of the men's basketball staff placed 21 telephone calls in excess
of the one-time-per-week limitation to prospect 7.




14, From August 13 to September 29, 2004, the former head coach placed 14
impermissible telephone calls from his cell or office phones to prospect 8's
home, guardians' cell phones or guardians' work phones.

Committee Rationale

The enforcement staff, the institution, the former head coach and assistant coaches A, B and C
were in substantial agreement with the facts of this finding and that violations of NCAA
legislation occurred. The committee finds that the violations occurred.

This finding involves 371 impermissible calls made by the former head coach and assistant
coaches A, B and C. The calls went to 14 prospects, five of whom enrolled at the institution.
The former head coach, who made 137 of the impermissible calls, admitted that he considered
the telephone contact rules to be insignificant and that he didn't consider himself and his staff to
be gaining any kind of recruiting advantage by breaking them. The committee strongly
disagrees.

E. IMPERMISSIBLE FACE-TO-FACE CONTACTS. [NCAA Bylaws 13.1.1.1
(2000-01 NCAA Manual) and 13.1.8.2-(b) (1999-00 NCAA Manual))

Members of the men's basketball coaching staff, including the former head coach
engaged in impermissible contacts with multiple prospective student-athletes.
Specifically:

1. Between April and December 2000, members of the men's basketball
coaching staff engaged in impermissible face-to-face contacts with
prospective student-athletes during their junior year in high school.

a. In April 2000, during a prospective student-athlete's ("prospect
17") junior year, the former head coach engaged in conversation




with prospect 17 at his high school after watching him play pick-
up basketball.

In December 2000, during prospect 3's junior year, the former head
coach engaged in conversation with prospect 3 at his high school
after watching him play pick-up basketball.

2. In July 2000, members of the men's basketball coaching staff engaged in
impermissible face-to-face contacts with prospective student-athletes
during the day of competition.

a.

Committee Rétionale

In July 2000, during the Adidas Big Time Tournament held in Las
Vegas, Nevada, a member of the men's basketball staff engaged in
conversation with a prospective student-athlete ("prospect 18")
between games.

In July 2000, during the Great American Shootout held in Denton,
Texas, a member of the men's basketball staff engaged in
conversation with prospect 18 and his mother between games.
Further, after initiating impermissible face-to-face contact, the
men's basketball staff member handed prospect 18 a cell telephone
and facilitated impermissible telephone contact between prospect
18 and another member of the men's basketball coaching staff.

The enforcement staff, the institution and the former head coach were in substantial agreement
with the facts of this allegation and that violations of NCAA legislation occurred. The
committee finds that the violations occurred.

F. IMPERMISSIBLE ATHLETICALLY RELATED ACTIVITIES. [NCAA
Bylaws 17.1.5.2-(a) (2004-05 NCAA Manual), 17.1.5.2.2 (2003-04 NCAA
Manual) and 17.13.6]



During the 2003-04 and 2004-05 academic years, the women's gymnastics team
engaged in impermissible, countable athletically related activities outside of the
institution's declared playing season. Specifically:

1. Between August 25 and October 6, 2003, which constituted the preseason
for the 2003-04 academic year, the women's gymnastics team participated
in mandatory skill instruction when only skill instruction requested by the
student-athlete was permissible under NCAA legislation. In addition, as a
result of the activities being deemed countable, the women's gymnastics
team: : ‘

a. Exceeded the maximum weekly time limitation of eight hours per
week for mandatory activities with not more than two hours per
week spent for individual skill instruction. The mandatory activity

* limitation was exceeded by approximately 10 hours per week and
the individual skill instruction was exceeded by approximately 15
hours per week.

b. Exceeded the maximum number of four student-athletes allowed to
be involved in skill-related instruction with their coaches at any
one time in any facility.

2, Between August 23 and October 25, 2004, which constituted the
preseason for the 2004-05 academic year, the women's gymnastics team
participated in mandatory skill instruction, which:

a. Exceeded the maximum weekly time limitation of eight hours per
week for mandatory activities with not more than two hours per
week spent for individual skill instruction.

b. Exceeded the maximum number of four student-athletes allowed to
be involved in skill-related instruction with their coaches at any
one time in any facility.



Committee Rationale

The enforcement staff and institution were in substantial agreement with the facts of this finding
and that violations of NCAA legislation occurred. The committee finds that the violations
occurred. :

These violations, which were discovered by the institution and self-reported, involved mandatory
weight training and individual workouts by members of the women's gymnastics team. The
coaches claimed that the "safety exception" of Bylaw 17.13.7 applied; however, attendance at the
workouts by the student-athletes was mandatory and the workouts were conducted by the
coaches. Additionally, student-athletes who didn't attend the workouts were disciplined by the
coaches. The coaches acted in more than a "safety” capacity.

G. FAILURE TO RECORD COUNTABLE HOURS. [NCAA Bylaw 17.1.5.3.4]

During the 2004-05 and 2003-04 academic years, the men's and women's
gymnastic coaching staffs failed to record countable hours on a daily basis for
each student-athlete who engaged in athletically related activity. Specifically, the
men's and women's gymnastic coaching staffs failed to maintain records of
countable athletically related activity during the preseason of each academic year
until requested to do so by the institution's compliance staff in late September
2004,

Committee Rationale

- The enforcement staff and the institution were in substantial agreement with the facts of this
finding and that violations of NCAA legislation occurred. The committee finds that the
violations occurred.



H. FAILURE TO MONITOR. [NCAA Constitution 2.8.1]

The scope and nature of the violations detailed in Finding II-A through II-D
demonstrated that over a four-year period and through several staff changes the
former head coach failed to monitor his and his staff's activities in the area of
telephone contacts with prospective student-athletes in order to ensure compliance
with NCAA telephone contact legislation, and thus also failed to maintain an
atmosphere of compliance among his staff in that area. Specifically, between
June 2000 and September 2004: '

1. The former head coach and some members of his staff committed
numerous violations relating to - telephone contacts with multiple
prospective student-athletes, including many impermissible early
telephone contacts with junior prospects.

2. The former head coach had reason to know that violations relating to
telephone contacts were occurring, but he failed to report the
impermissible telephone contacts or take appropriate corrective measures
to prevent them from continuing.

Committee Rationale

The enforcement staff, the institution and the former head coach were in substantial agreement
with the facts of this finding and that violations of NCAA legislation occurred. The committee
finds that the violations occurred.

As stated in the Section I of this report, the Introduction, the former head coach created an
environment in which telephone contact rules were consciously ignored and repeatedly broken
over a four-year period. Even when specifically told by an opposing coach that one of his
assistants was violating telephone contact rules, the former head coach did nothing to change the
pattern of behavior; to the contrary, he encouraged the behavior in the name of "hard work." He
failed to ensure that his staff was recording all calls as required, he took no action to correct the
violations and he never reported the violations.



FAILURE TO MONITOR. [NCAA Constitution 2.8.1}

The scope and nature of Findings II-A through 11-D demonstrated a failure by the
institution to monitor telephone contacts with prospective student-athletes by the
‘institution's men's basketball program between June 2000 and September 2004,
contributing to over 550 impermissible telephone contacts by four men's
basketball coaching staff members with 17 prospective student-athletes going
undetected over a four year period. Specifically, the institution failed to do the
following:

1. Implement adequate systems to ensure that the men's basketball coaching
staff was in compliance with NCAA rules relating to telephone contacts
. with prospective student-athletes. The institutional system in place for
ensuring compliance relating to telephone calls to prospects included the

. following:

a. . Regular rules education, including a written recruiting manual
containing a sample telephone call log sheet.

b, The documentation of the telephone contacts with prospects, which
was done on a form different than that supplied to coaches by the
institution, was maintained only in the men's basketball office.

c. Infrequent spot checks by compliance personnel and institutional
~ auditors to determine whether the coaches were in compliance with
NCAA legislation.

(I  From June 2000 to spring 2003, institutional auditors and
the compliance staff conducted infrequent spot checks of
the telephone call logs prepared by the men's basketball
staff to determine whether the logs were being maintained
and whether the coaches recorded more than one call per
week to prospective student-athletes.

(2)  From spring 2003 to September 2004, the compliance staff
conducted infrequent spot checks of telephone numbers
that appeared on the men's basketball staff's cellular
telephone billing records to determine whether more than
one call per week was made to a number that appeared on
the cellular bill.



2. The institutional systems in place to track and monitor the telephone
contacts made by members of the men's basketball coaching staff with
prospective student-athletes were deficient in that the institution failed to
do the following:

a. Provide a standardized system to the men's basketball staff for the
tracking or monitoring of telephone calls made to prospects.

b. Conduct spot checks comparing actual telephone billing records to

the telephone logs sheets completed by the men's basketball
coaching staff.

Committee Rationale

The enforcement staff took the position that the facts of this finding demonstrated a lack
of institutional control. The institution asserted that the facts of this finding demonstrated a
failure to monitor the telephone contacts with prospective student-athletes. The committee finds
that the facts establish a failure to monitor by the institution.

As shown by over 500 impermissible calls made over four years going undetected, the
system in place to monitor phone calls made by the men's basketball coaching staff was wholly
inadequate. The coaching staff got together on Sunday nights, reviewed the calls they had made
and recorded a countable call on forms different than those supplied by the compliance office.
The completed forms weren't turned in to the compliance office but were instead stored in a
filing cabinet in the basketball office.

However, review of the records by compliance personnel was sporadic at best, occurring
approximately once per year. It wasn't possible to say with certainty when the reviews took
place, as no records were maintained by the institution. Compounding the problem was that the
reviews were conducted by interns rather than by trained and experienced compliance personnel.
But perhaps the most glaring deficiency was that the logs produced by the basketball staff (which
were incomplete since the coaches failed to record all calls made) were never cross-checked
against institutional phone records; the coaches were taken at their word when even a cursory
review of men's basketball office, cell phone and calling card bills would have revealed the
myriad of impermissible calls being made by multiple coaches over a period of years.



Though seriously flawed, a system for monitoring the phone calls did exist. The coaches
were regularly educated regarding phone contact rules, written policies were in place and forms
to record the activities were supplied to the coaching staff. It was the monitoring of the calls that
contributed to the problems; the phone logs compiled by the coaches were not checked on a
regular basis and the reviews that took place did not involve cross-checking the logs with
available institutional records. Finally, the violations involved only one aspect of one sport. For
these reasons, the committee finds that the facts establish a failure to monitor the men's
basketball program by the institution rather than a lack of institutional control.

SECONDARY VIOLATIONS:

A listing of 13 secondary violations is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

III. "PENALTIES.

For the reasons set forth in Parts I and IT of this report, the Committee on Infractions finds that .
this case involved major violations of NCAA legislation. The violations occurred primarily in the
sport of men's basketball and were caused by the former head coach's decision to consciously
ignore certain recruiting rules which he "prioritized" as insignificant in the recruiting process.

He also allowed his staff to violate the same rules and like him they knowingly did so. '

The former head coach, who made 233 impermissible phone contacts with prospects over four
years, fostered the environment of noncompliance. His assistants knowingly joined in, with
assistant coaches A and B making 165 and 107 impermissible calls, respectively, over the same
time frame. Assistant coach C did not join the staff until 2004 and made only 28 of the
impermissible calls. These intentional violations of unambiguous rules conferred a significant
recruiting advantage upon the institution.



The institution, which cooperated fully in the investigation, acknowledged its responsibility for
the personal actions of its athletic department employees and self-imposed a number of
meaningful institutional and individual penalties. Some of the penalties were imposed
individually on the former head coach, who has since left the institution. However, the former
head coach's present institution indicated in writing that it will impose some of the same
penalties upon the former head coach for the same period of time. A full listing of all the
institutional and individual penalties, including those imposed by the committee and those self-
imposed by the institution and adopted by the committee, follow: Additional corrective actions
developed by the institution are set forth in Appendix Three: :

A. Public reprimand and censure.

B. The institution shall be placed on two years probation from May 25, 2006,
through May 24, 2008. '

C. The number of men's basketball financial aid awards shall be reduced from 13 to
11 for the 2005-06 academic year and from 13 to 12 for the 2006-07 academic
year. (Self-imposed penalty adopted by the committee as its own.)

D. During July 2005, the institution reduced the number of permissible calls to
prospects in July subsequent to the junior year in high school from three to one.
(Self-imposed penalty adopted by the committee as its own.)

E. The number of permissible calls to prospects on or after June 15 of the prospects’
sophomore year in high school through July 31 of the prospects' junior year in
high school shall be reduced from one call per month to one call every other
month for a period of two years commencing August 1, 2005, and concluding
July 31, 2007. Exceptions to this penalty will be permitted in accordance with the
provisions of NCAA Bylaws 13.1.3.3.2 (Official Visit Exception), 13.1.3.3.3
(Letter of Intent Signing Date Exception) and 13.1.3.3.4 (Telephone Calls
Subsequent to National Letter of Intent Signing or Other Written Commitment),
This penalty will result in a minimum reduction of 240 calls over a two-year
period of implementing the reduction and was imposed to directly address any
recruiting advantage gained by the impermissible telephone calls. (Self-imposed
penalty adopted by the committee as its own.) '

F. The institution shall reduce the number of permissible calls to prospects on or
after August 1 of their senior year in high school from two calls per week to one
call per week for a period of two years commencing August 1, 2005, and
concluding July 31, 2007. Exceptions to this penalty will be permitted in
accordance with the provisions of NCAA Bylaws 13.1.3.3.2 (Official Visit
Exception), 13.1.3.3.3 (Letter of Intent Signing Date Exception) and 13.1.3.3.4
(Telephone Calls Subsequent to National Letter of Intent Signing or Other
Written Commitment). This penalty will result in a reduction of from at least 780




calls up to possibly more than 1,600 calls over a period of two years. These
numbers are based on a calling period from August to April, which is about 40
weeks, and recruiting 20 prospective student-athletes per year. (Self-imposed
penalty adopted by the committee as its own.)

The institution prohibited the former head coach from engaging in any off-
campus recruiting activities during July 2005. In addition, the institution reduced
the permissible number of recruiters at any one time from three to two during July
2005. (Self-imposed penalty adopted by the committee as its own.)

The institution reduced the number of official paid visits in men's basketball from
12 to nine for the 2005-06 academic year. (Self-imposed penalty adopted by the
committee as its own.)

The institution shall reduce the number of permissible recruiting days from 130 to
98 for the 2005-06 and 2006-07 academic years. (Self-imposed penalty adopted
by the committee as its own.)

The former head coach was restricted to engaging in off-campus recruiting
activities for a maximum of 19 days during a period commencing August 1, 2005,
and concluding June 30, 2006. Further, this prohibition applies to all off-campus
appearances at which prospects may be in attendance including exceptions
provided in Bylaw 13.1.9. (Self-imposed penalty adopted by the committee as its
own.)

The institution retroactively implemented a ban on the former head coach's
~ eligibility for bonus compensation due under the former head coach's contract for.
the two year period of March 2, 2005, through March 1, 2007. During the same
two year period, the former head coach's employment contract shall not be.
renegotiated, amended or extended and he shall not be eligible for any
compensation increase. According to financial figures supplied by the institution,
the cost to the former head coach over the two year period will be approximately
$180,000. (Self-imposed by the university.)

The former head coach's present institution adopted and transferred penalties E, F,
J and K above. It noted that the former head coach had already used 15 of the 19
permissible off-campus recruiting days at Oklahoma and would therefore only be
able to be off-campus four days from the date of his hiring through June 30, 2006.
The present institution has also required weekly meetings between compliance
personnel and the director of basketball operations to monitor men's basketball
recruiting activities. While the committee recognizes the significance of the
transferred penalties it determined that, because of the number and nature of the
violations committed by the former head coach as well as the atmosphere of
noncompliance he fostered and encouraged among his assistant coaches, further
recruiting restrictions are warranted. Therefore, his current employing institution
shall, pursuant to the provisions of NCAA Bylaw 19.5.2.2 (1), show cause why it




should not be penalized if it does not prohibit the former head coach, for a period
of one year from the date of the release of this report (May 25, 2006 through May
24, 2007), from 1) making any phone calls that relate in any way to recruiting or
being present when members of his staff make such calls; and 2) engaging in any
off-campus recruiting activities. The prohibition on off-campus recruiting
activities shall apply to all off-campus appearances at which prospects may be in
attendance including banquets, booster functions and exceptions provided by
Bylaw 13.1.9. The present institution shall submit a report to the committee by
August 1, 2006, in which it details the institution's monitoring of, and rules
education sessions for, the former head coach and his staff. The report should
also include documentation of the institution's compliance with all other penalties
adopted and transferred to the present institution.

Assistant coach A, who made 165 impermissible calls while at the institution, is
presently under a three-year show cause order stemming from his involvement in
similar violations while he served as the head men's basketball coach at California
State University-Fresno (see Case No. M238). The violations committed by
assistant coach A in this case also warrant a show cause order. The show cause
order in this case shall be identical to that in Case No. M238 and will run
concurrently and independently, expiring on March 16, 2008. Assistant coach A
is not presently employed at an NCAA member institution,

Therefore, assistant coach A will be informed in writing by the NCAA that, due to
his involvement in the violations of NCAA legislation found in this case, if he
seeks employment or affiliation in an athletically related position at an NCAA
member institution during a three-year period (March 17, 2005, through March
16, 2008), he and the involved institution shall be requested to appear before the
Committee on Infractions to consider whether the member institution should be
subject to the show cause provisions of Bylaw 19.5.2.2(1), which could limit his
athletically related duties at the new institution for a designated period.

Assistant coach B made 107 impermissible calls during his tenure at the
institution. He is presently employed at another NCAA member institution which
has informed the committee that it has imposed the following sanctions on
assistant coach B: 1) no recruiting activities (other than on-campus contacts) for
the month of September 2005; 2) a letter of admonishment; 3) a ban on all phone
contact by him and the entire institutional men's basketball staff from June 21-30,
2005; and 4) official paid visits in the sport of men's basketball reduced from 12
to 11 for 2005-06. Additionally, the men's basketball program was required to
develop a new communication system and to undergo audits of its phone records.

At the hearing, assistant coach B stated that when he arrived at the institution he
went along with the rest of the staff in the violations because he was a new, young
coach without job security or the courage to challenge the way things were done.
He pointed out that the majority of his impermissible calls were made early in his
four-year tenure at the institution and that after he became an established member



of the staff he tried to adhere to the rules. Records show that of his 107
impermissible calls, 91 were made during his first two years on staff and only 16
in his final two years. Noting that he will have a record in the office of the
Committee on Infractions for committing major violations, the committee
declines to impose further sanctions upon assistant coach B.

Assistant coach C made 28 impermissible calls, beginning when he joined the
staff in 2004. The bulk of his calls were to the family of a prospect whose father
he had known for a number of years and at least some of his violations seem to
have been truly inadvertent. Because of his minimal involvement in the
violations and his small number of impermissible calls, assistant coach C will not
have an individual record of his violations maintained in the office of the
Committee on Infractions.

Regarding the women's gymnastics program, the institution reduced practice
activities by 192 hours over the 2004-05 and 2005-06 academic years.
Specifically, the coaching staff reduced practice activities by one hour per day for
 the 2004-05 declared playing season equaling 144 hours. In addition, the
coaching staff will be required to reduce practice hours during the 2005-06
‘playing season by one hour per day to satisfy the remaining 48 hours per the
penalty schedule. Finally, the institution determined that the coaching staff will
only be allowed to provide individual skill instruction every other week during the
fall of 2005 out-of-season practice activities. (Self-imposed and adopted by the
committee as its own.) ,

The institution issued a public letter of reprimand dated December 13, 2004, to
the head women's gymnastics coach. The assistant coaches were also issued
letters of reprimand. (University imposed and acknowledged by the committee.)

The institution required the head women's gymnastics coach and the assistant
coaches to serve a one-week suspension from practice and team-related activities.
The head women's gymnastics coach was also required to attend a 2005 NCAA
Regional Rules Seminar at his expense. (University imposed and acknowledged
by the committee.)

The institution imposed a one-year salary freeze on the head women's gymnastics
coach's base salary. Moreover, the head coach did not have the opportunity to
receive any bonuses contained in his contract for the 2004-05 season. (University
imposed and acknowledged by the committee.)

The institution reduced practice activities for the men's gymnastics team by 108
hours over the 2005-06 academic year. Practice activities were reduced by one
hour per day for the 2005-06 declared playing season, equalmg 108 hours. (Self-
imposed by the university.)




The institution only allowed the men's gymnastics coaching staff to provide
individual skill instruction every other week during the fall of 2005 out-of-season
practice activities. (Self-imposed by the university.)

During this period of probation, the institution shall:

1.

Continue to develop and implement a comprehensive system to effectively
monitor the recruiting process for prospective student-athletes in all sports,
particularly men's basketball and for tracking countable athletically related
activities. In addition, the institution will continue to develop and
implement a comprehensive NCAA rules-education program to educate all
coaches, athletics department staff members and all umver31ty staff
members with responsibility in the area of recruiting.

Submit a preliminary report to the office of the NCAA Committees on
Infractions by July 30 2006, setting forth a schedule for the continued
development and implementation of this comprehensive system of
monitoring recruiting.

File with the office of the Committee on Infractions annual compliance
reports indicating the progress made with this program by April 15 of each
year during the probationary period. Particular emphasis should be placed
on adherence to recruiting legislation, particularly telephone calls, contacts
and evaluations and the monitoring of athletically related activities. The
reports must also include documentation of the university's compliance
with the penalties adopted and imposed by the committee.

At the conclusion of the probationary period, the institution's chancellor shall
recertify in a letter to the committee that all of the university's current athletics
policies and practices conform to all requirements of NCAA regulations.




o

As required by NCAA legislation for any institution involved in a major infractions case,
the University of Oklahoma shall be subject to the provisions of NCAA Bylaw 19.5.2.3,
concerning repeat violators, for a five-year period beginning on the effective date of the penalties
in this case, May 25, 2006.

Should the University of Oklahoma or any involved individual appeal either the findings of
violations or penalties in this case to the NCAA Infractions Appeals Committee, the Committee
on Infractions will submit a response to the members of the appeals committee.

The Committee on Infractions wishes to advise the institution that it should take every
precaution to ensure that the terms of the penalties are observed. The committee will monitor the
penalties during their effective periods, and any action contrary to the terms of any of the
penalties or any additional violations shall be considered grounds for extending the institution's
probationary period, as well as imposing more severe sanctions in this case.

Should any portion of any of the penalties in this case be set aside for any reason other
than by appropriate action of the Association, the penalties shall be reconsidered by the
Committee on Infractions. Should any actions by NCAA legislative bodies directly or indirectly
modify any provision of these penalties or the effect of the penalties, the committee reserves the
right to review and reconsider the penalties.

NCAA COMMITTEE ON INFRACTIONS

Jack H. Friedenthal
Edward (Ted) Leland
Andrea Myers

James Park Jr.

Thomas E. Yeager, acting chair
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APPENDIX ONE

SECONDARY VIOLATIONS:

In August 2005, the former head coach made an impermissible telephone call to a
prospective student-athlete after a permissible call had already been placed for the month.
The former head coach received a number of calls on his cell phone from a number he
did not recognize. He returned the call, and after realizing the number belonged to the
prospect, he immediately ended the call knowing that the staff had already placed the one
permissible call for the month. The violation was immediately reported by the basketball
staff to the compliance staff. [NCAA Bylaw 13.1.3.1]

In July 2005, the men's basketball staff sent recruiting correspondence to approximately
five prospective student-athletes who were participating in a summer certified event
(July). The e-mail was sent to a total of 25 men's basketball prospective student-athletes
from the recruiting software, and the staff member sending the e-mail inadvertently
forgot to delete the prospects participating in the summer certified event. Upon
discovery, the violation was. immediately reported to comphance by the coaching staff.
[NCAA Bylaw 13.1.7.2.2]

In July 2005, a men's basketball student-athlete participated in a summer certified league
prior to receiving approval from the institution's athletics director. The student-athlete
was scheduled to compete in a summer foreign tour with an approved outside team;
however, the dates of competition crossed into the institution's start of the academic year.
When the student-athlete was told he could not participate in the summer foreign tour and
subsequently joined a summer certified league without the knowledge of the coaching
staff or the compliance office. [NCAA Bylaw 14.7.3.2]

In July 2005, a junior college men's basketball prospective student-athlete was provided
an unofficial visit during the month of July. The former head coach contacted the
compliance staff on a Sunday morning in July to inquire about the permissibility of an
unofficial visit that afternoon with the involved prospective student-athlete. The
compliance staff mistakenly allowed the former head coach to proceed with the visit,
forgetting the restriction on unofficial visits for the sport of men's basketball in the month
of July. [NCAA Bylaw 13.7.1.1]




9.

During the men's basketball camps conducted in the summers of 2001 to 2005, an
educational session detailing initial-eligibility standards and regulations related to
gambling, agents and drug use had never been provided to all camp and/or clinic
participants. The coaching staff was unaware of the requirement. [NCAA Bylaw
13.12.1.6]

In September 2004, the "godfather” of a men's basketball prospective student-athlete was
provided meals during an official visit. The violation occurred because of the unique
family relationship between the prospect, the prospect's mother and the mother's
significant other (godfather). [NCAA Bylaw13.6.6.7]

Between December 2004 and February 2005, a former student-athlete, who had
exhausted his eligibility in the sport of men's basketball, used departmental phones to call
long distance without the knowledge or permission of. the coaching and/or support staff.
The calls were discovered and reported by the coaching staff. [NCAA Bylaws 16.02.3
and 16.11.2.1]

In November 2004, a men's basketball student-athlete received. an extra benefit ($105)
when he was arrested following a game in Alaska, and an assistant coach paid part of his
bail money to allow the student-athlete to be released in time to make the early morning
flight back to campus. In addition, the coach thought he would (and subsequently did)
receive his portion of the money back after the charges against the student-athlete were
dropped. The student-athlete repaid the benefit. [INCAA Bylaws 16.0203 and 16.11.2.1]

In December 2004, the men's gymnastics team participated in countable athletically

related activities outside of the playing season during an institutional vacation period. [NCAA
Bylaw 17.1.5.2.1.1]

10.

In April 2004, the softball team was required to practice immediately following an away-
from-home competition. [NCAA Bylaw 17.1.5.3.2.1]



11.

12.

13.

During the 2003-04 and 2004-05 academic years, the men's gymnastics team engaged in
impermissible countable athletically related activities outside of the institution's declared
playing season. [NCAA Bylaws 17.1.5.2-(a) (2004-05 NCAA Manual) and 17.1.5.2.2
(2003-04 NCAA Manual)]

During the nonchampionship segment of the 2002-03, 2003-04, 2004-05 and 2005-06
academic years, the softball team engaged in countable athletically related activities that
exceeded permissible time limitations of eight hours per week during the preseason and
20 hours per week during the season by an average of 37 hours each year. [NC
Bylaws 17.1.5.1 and 17.1.5.2] _ _ ‘

On two separate occasions, once in October 2000 and once in October 2001, the former
head coach provided T-shirts to a prospective student-athlete and/or a family member of
the prospect. [NCAA Bylaw 13.2.2]



APPENDIX TWO

CASE CHRONOLOGY.

February 19 — The enforcement staff received information from an anonymous source that the
men's basketball staff violated NCAA telephone and in-person contact rules.

March 14 — The enforcement staff received additional information from a confidential source
indicating that the men's basketball staff violated NCAA telephone and in-person contact rules. -

April and May — The enforcement staff conducted interviews of numerous prospective student-
athletes. :

2003

January 9 — The enforcement staff received additional information from a confidential source
indicating that the men's basketball staff violated NCAA telephone and in-person contact rules.

February and October ~ The enforcement staff conducted mterv1ews of men's basketball
prospective student-athletes.




December 18 — The basketball certification staff in enforcement services sent a request for
information to the institution, including a request for all telephone records for the men's
basketball staff from June 2000 to March 2001.

2004
May 28 — The enforcement staff issued a notice of inquiry to the institution.

December 21 — The secondary enforcement staff received a self-report from the institution
indicating that the women's gymnastics team engaged in impermissible out-of-season activities,
and exceeded permissible daily and weekly time limitations.

2005

April 4 — After reviewing telephone records and other information obtained through an open
records request, the Daily Oklahoman published a story about the NCAA investigation and
identified similar potential violations that occurred after those violations.identified through the
original NCAA inquiry.

September 27 —~ Submission of the summary disposition report by the parties.

November 29 — The NCAA Division | Committee on Infractions rejected the findings in the
summary disposition report and directed that the case be set for hearing in April 2006.

December 15 — The enforcement staff issued a notice of allegations to the institution, the former
head coach and assistant coach's A, B and C.



March 2 — Deadline for filing of responses by the institution, the former head coach and assistant
coaches A, B and C.

April 21 — The university appeared before the NCAA Division I Committee on Infractions.

May 25 — Infractions Report No. 250 was released.



APPENDIX THREE

CORRECTIVE ACTIONS AS REPORTED BY THE INSTITUTION ON MARCH 2, 2006.

Structural changes,

Oklahoma has taken steps to provide greater human resources and detailed reporting lines to the
compliance department. Oklahoma acknowledges that this is a work in process, but believes that
the changes that have taken place in the last 12 months demonstrate the institution's commitment
to rules compliance. The institution has increased its compliance staff from three full-time
members during the 2003-04 academic year to six as it begins the 2005-06 academic year.

Compliance staff

A former NCAA director of membership services staff and assistant athletics director at another
NCAA Division [ institution was hired to oversee Oklahoma's athletics compliance program in
August 2004. At the time of his hire, the compliance staff consisted of another assistant athletics
director and monitoring coordinator. Previously, the executive associate athletics director,
provided oversight for the compliance program.

In August 2004, the monitoring coordinator was promoted to a director. In March 2005, the
director assumed day-to-day oversight of the compliance operations. The assistant director of
compliance was initially hired as the compliance director and was promoted to assistant director
in March of 2005. The compliance coordinator was hired in April 2005. She previously worked
for two years in the compliance department at another NCAA Division I institution. A
compliance graduate assistant was retained in May 2005, she began her duties August 15, 2005.
An administrative assistant became a full-time administrative assistant for the compliance
program in August 2004,

Reporting changes and individual responsibilities.

In February 2005, the director of compliance became the sole compliance staff member to report
to the associate athletics director/administration. The assistant director of compliance and the
compliance coordinator began to report directly to the director of compliance.



In March 2005, the compliance office added a reporting relationship between the director of
compliance and the financial aid and initial-eligibility coordinators.  These additional
communication lines have enhanced the coordination of duties among the groups with
compliance responsibility and served to more fully integrate these important areas into the
overall compliance structure.

In July 2005, the compliance office finalized the individual compliance-related assignments.
Each compliance staff member began an extensive review and revision process of all the.
procedures related to the various components of rules compliance.

Rules education,

In January 2004, the compliance staff added to its education program small educational meetings
with individual coaching staffs at least two times a semester. These informal meetings are
conducted by the director of compliance. The agenda usually includes a review of hot topics,
other items of a timely nature, monitoring requirements, and a question and answer session.

Beginning October 2004, the compliance staff expanded the rules education during the monthly
"Coaches Roundtable." These meetings are mandatory for all head and assistant coaches and
athletic administrators with oversight of a sport. Previously, assistant coaches were not required
to attend these meetings. A compliance-rules quiz is used during these meetings to teach the
proper application of NCAA rules. After each meeting, an outline of the rules-education section
is provided to the coaches.

In August 2005, individual meetings with each head coach to review playing and practice season
legislation (which included the declaration of each sport's official practice and playing season
dates) was implemented. '

Once a week the director of compliance e-mails timely educational items to the athletics
department staff, coaching staff and/or relevant individuals outside the athletics department (e.g.,
certifying officer, faculty athletics representative).

In October 2004, the compliance staff developed a monthly recruiting calendar that is circulated
to the coaching staff, administrators of each sport and other key staff members involved in the
recruiting process. The calendar may also have educational items from the director of
compliance, financial aid coordinator, and the initial-eligibility coordinator.

The compliance staff will develop and distribute a compliance newsletter to all staff members at
least once a semester. It will cover new legislation, important e-mail education, and timely
issues. A major focus will be to present the information in an easy-to-read format.

Beginning in the fall of the 2005-06 academic year, the compliance staff will broaden the scope
of the rules education of its student-athletes by conducting meetings during the fall and spring
semesters. Heavier emphasis will be placed on the playing and practice season legislation, and
the rules governing voluntary practice activities, summer employment and workouts, booster
education, and other relevant legislation.




Recruiting,

In August 2004, the compliance staff revised and updated the existing manual. These revisions
included the creation of new forms, updating existing forms, incorporating amendments to the
rules section to reflect recent changes to existing rules and inclusion of newly enacted
legislation. The recruiting manual and newly proposed recruiting policy was reviewed and
approved by three other on-campus groups or offices with athletics oversight responsibility: the
Compliance Review Committee, the athletics department executive staff and the president.
Revisions are made to the manual as needed on an annual basis prior to the beginning of the
ensuing academic year.

During the fall semester of 2004, the compliance staff began impromptu spot checks of each
sport's recruiting files to ensure proper and contemporaneous record keeping was maintained for
each recruited prospect. The staff also provides guidance to the coaches regarding recruiting
legislation and sends a follow-up e-mail where issues or areas of improvement were noted.

In October 2004, the compliance office began to distribute a monthly recruiting calendar for use
by the coaches in each sport. It provides a quick reference as to what phase of the recruiting
cycle is in effect. Educational items issued by the NCAA, Big 12 Conference, or on-campus
source (initial eligibility coordinator) re also included on the calendar.

During the spring semester of 2005, the compliance staff continued the practice of visiting each
sport's office to spot check recruiting files and provide guidance to the coaching staff regarding
recruiting legislation. Some sports were visited twice during the semester while others other
sports with less active spring recruiting activities were visited once.

In May of 2005, and in conjunction with the spot checks, the compliance staff developed a
monitoring notebook that will be used as a tool to assist in the spot-checking process. It is an
index of all the contemporaneous information that a sport must be tracking and have on hand for
compliance purposes. The list of required information set forth in the notebook will facilitate the
systematic review of telephone records by the compliance staff later in the year.

Beginning in the fall of 2005, the compliance staff will review each sport's telephone records two
times a semester. All calls placed from either a land line or a cell phone will be tracked
electronically and merged together in a master spreadsheet. The data from the spreadsheet will
be cross-referenced with prospect telephone information (e.g., home or cell telephone numbers)
recorded in the monitoring notebook and the telephone logs being maintained by each coach to
verify that all calls are permissible, properly logged, and that each coach is properly recording
his/her recruiting calls.

Beginning in the fall of 2005, the compliance staff will implement a new system requiring pre-
approval for all coaches' recruiting travel. The system is designed to help ensure coaches are
only recruiting off-campus during the appropriate periods and that they are not exceeding the
applicable number of contacts or evaluations for any one prospect.

Playing and practice seasons.




New polices and procedures were implemented.

Miscellaneous items.

In January 2005, the compliance staff created a written interpretation log that documents all
interpretive questions received and answered by a member of the compliance staff. The
interpretation log ensures better tracking of in-house questions and -answers of rule
interpretations.

The compliance staff recently enhanced the compliance annual report that is provided to the
Athletics Council and president. The report details all aspects of the compliance operations to
ensure full disclosure and opportunity for review by the institution's governing bodies. This
report is exemplary of the compliance culture and philosophy of involving individuals outside
the compliance office in the review of compliance systems and operations.

In addition, as part of the ongoing efforts to communicate rules information, the compliance
manual was updated in 2004 and is currently being reviewed again by the new compliance staff
to identify areas for improvement, system overhauls and appropriate policy revisions.



Secohdarv Infraction Reported by Indiana University from 2003-2007

As Requested in No. 11 of the Notice of Allegations

2007 Secondary Violations of NCAA Bylaws

Violation # | Date Reported Sport(s) Bylaw(s)
1 1/31/2007 | WP 14.01.3, 14.10.1, 16.8.1.2 & 17.1.3 (and BT Rule 14.10.C)
2 5/1/2007 | MBB - Senderoff 13.4.1.1-(a)
3 5/14/2007 | WSO, WSW and VB 16.2.1.3.A
4 5/14/2007 | MTR and WGO 13.5.2.1 and 13.5.2.2
5 5/14/2007 | MBB 13.10.2
6 5/16/2007 | MBB 13.2.2
7 7/31/2007 | VB 11.7.4.3
8 7/31/2007 | SB 134.1
9 8/17/2007 | VB 13.5.2.1 and 13.54
10 8/24/2007 | FB 16.01.1 and 16.9.1-(e)
1 10/10/2007 | MTR, BB, MBB & WR 14.01.3 and 15.01.5 (and BT Rule 14.‘4.3.1.A)
12 10/22/2067 | MBB - Senderoff & Meyer | 13.1.3.1.2
13 |. 10/26/2007 | MBB - Meyer & Sampson | 13.12.1.3
14 10/26/2007 | MBB - Senderoff 13.1.7.2.4
Totals
Indiana 14
Meyer ‘2
_Sampson 1
Serideroff | 3




2006 Secondary Vielations of NCAA Bylaws

Violation # | Date Reported | Sport(s) Bylaw(s)
1 1/20/2006 | WTIR 15.01.5
2 1/30/2006 | WP 12.1.1.1.4.3
3 4/19/2006 | wBB 13.82
4 4/19/2006 | WSW 11.7.4
5 5/26/2006 | Men's Diving 13.4.1
6 6/20/2006 | MBB - Sampson 13.12.1.6
7 7/13/2006 | FB 13.2.1
3 7/13/2006 | MBB 12.5.1.7
9 7/26/2006 | MBB, FB, MSO & BB | 14.01.3 and 15.01.5 (and BT Rule 14.4.3.1.4)
10 8/18/2006 | WBB 13.12.1.6 '
11 8/22/2006 | WSO 12.1.2.1.5 _
12 8/22/2006 | FH 14.01.3, 14.4.3.2 and 16.8.1.2 (and BT Rule 14.10.C)
13 9/21/2006 | FB 11.01.3
14 9/21/2006 | All Sports 134.1.1
15 11/2/2006 | MBB 14.01.3 and 15.01.5 (and BT Rule 14.43.1.A.5)
16 | . 11/14/2006 | BB 15.01.5 (and BT Rule 14.4.3) °

Totals '

Indiana 16

Sampson i




2005 Secondary Violations of NCAA Bylaws

Violation #

Date Reported | Spert(s) Bylaw(s)
1 1/24/2005 | WBB 14.1.4.1
2 1/24/2005 | MTR & WTR 13.16.1
3 1/24/2005 | FH 15.1.1-(b) and 15.2.5.2.2
4 1/28/2005 | MTR & WTR 16.12.2.3-(a)
5 2/1/2005 | MSO 12.2.1.2 and 12.1.1.1.6
6 2/17/2005 | WCC 13.02.5.1-(a)
7 4/12/2005 | FB 13.1.2.3 and 13.7.6.1.1
8 5/25/2005 | MBB 13.4.1
9 6/3/2005 | SB 17.1.5.1,17.1.5.3.3 and 17.1.5.4
10 6/10/2005 | FB 13.4.1
11 7/8/2005 | MSW 13.1.3.1
12 7/8/2005 | MTR & WTR 1254
13 9/6/2005 | MTN 12.5.2.1
14 9/14/2005 | WBB 13.1.7.2
15 9/21/2005 | MTR 15.01.5
16 9/28/2005 | Men's Diving 13.1.3.1
17 11/30/2005 | MSW 13.13.1
18 12/12/2005 | WBB 17.1.53.6
Totals

Indiana

18




2004 Secondary Violations of NCAA Bylaws
Violation # Date Reported | Sport(s) .Bylaw(s)
1 1/15/2004 | SB 12.1.1.1.3.1 and 12.1.1.1.4.3
2 1/15/2004 | FB 13.02.4.4 and 13.1.6.3-(b)
3 1/29/2004 | FB 17.11.6
4 2/13/2004 | SB 114.1
5 3/9/2004 | WSW 16.12.2.1
6 3/9/2004 | MSW 16.12.2.1
7 13/18/2004 | MSO 134.1
8 3/31/2004 | WR 13.1.3.1
9 5/11/2004 | FB 13.1.2.3a)
10 5/11/2004 | FB 13.2.24d), 13.7.5.1 and 13.7.6
11 5/11/2004 | WSW 13.02.5.1
12 8/20/2004 | FB 17.11.6
13 9/2/2004 | FB 13.2.1 and 13.7.5.7
14 9/9/2004 | FB 14.1.4.1
15 9/23/2004 | FB 15.2.2.1.6
16 9/24/2004 | MBB 13.7.1.2.1
17 9/30/2004 | MSW 10.1
18 9/30/2004 | FB 12.5.1.1
19 9/30/2004 | wsw 13.7.3
20 9/30/2004 | SB 13.7.3
21 9/30/2004 | wWGO EEEEY
22 9/30/2004 | WSO 16.8.1.2
23 10/20/2004 | MSO 13.7.6.2
24 10/27/2004 | WR 14.1.4.1
25 12/1/2004 | MSW " | 13.7.6.8and 13.1.2
26 12/1/2004 | WSW 13.7.6.8
27 12/16/2004 | FB . 17.02.13-(ayand 17.11.6
28 12/16/2004 | FB 17.11.6
29 12/16/2004 | FB 17.1.5.1 and 17.11.6-(b)<(8)
30 12/16/2004 | FB 17.02.1,17.02.13 and 17.11.6
31 12/28/2004 | MTR 15.01.5 (and BT Rule 14.4.3)
12 " 12/28/2004 | WR 15.01.5 (and BT Rule 14.4.3)
33 12/30/2004 | WBB 12.5.1.1
Totals
Indiana 33




2003 Secondary Violations of NCAA Bylaws

Violation # Date Reported | Sport(s) ‘| Bylaw(s)
1 1/24/2003 | FB 13.1.2.1
2 1/24/2003 | WSW 13.1.2.1
3 1/24/2003 | WGO & WBB 16.12.2.1
4 1/25/2003 | MBB 17.1.5.3.2.1
5 2/12/2003 | FB 11.01.4
6 2/12/2003 | MTR/MCC 14.1.3.1 and 14.1.4.1
7 2/12/2003 | Rowing 11.01.6
8 2/12/2003 | FB 13.11.4
9 3/6/2003 | FB 13.7.5.1.1
10 3/6/2003 { MGA 13.7.1.2.1
11 3/26/2003 | FH 12.5.1.1
12 3/26/2003 | FB : 13.7.5.1.1
13 3/28/2003 | MTN _ 13.1.1.3
14 4/2/2003 | Diving 13.4.1
15 4/2/2003 | WSO 13.7.5.7
16 4/2/2003 | WTR 15.2.6.1.1
17 4/2/2003 | MBB 16.6.1
18 5/8/2003 | FB 11.7.2.2
19 5/9/2003 | MSW 14.01.1, 14.10.1, 14.11.1 and 16.8.1.2
20 5/19/2003 | SB 13.13.2.1.5 '
21 6/19/2003 | WSW 12.1.1.4.1
22 7/22/2003 | MIN 11.7.5.1
23 . 8/1/2003 | WTR 14.01.1, 14.5.5.2.10-(d) and 14.10.1
24 9/4/2003 | W Diving ' 12.1.1.1.5
25 9/18/2003 | MGO 12.1.1.5 and 16.1.1.2
26 9/22/2003 | MTR 12.1.1.1.1
27 9/24/2003 | WSO 13.4.1
28 10/24/2003 | MBB 30.16-(b)
29 12/15/2003 | wSw 13.7.5.5and 13.1.2
30 12/15/2003 | WSW 13.12
31 12/23/2003 | FB 16.7
32 12/23/2003 | FB 16.12.2.1 and 16.12.2.2.2
thals
Indiana - 32




Men’s Basketball Secondary Violations of NCAA Bylaws 2003-2007

Violation # Date Reported | Sport(s) Bylaw(s)
1 1/25/203 | MBB 17.1.53.2.1
2 4/2/2003 | MBB 16.6.1
3 10/24/2003 | MBB 30.16-(b)
4 9/24/2004 | MBB 13.7.1.2.1
5 5/25/2005 | MBB 134.1
_6 6/20/2006 | MBB - Sampson 13.12.1.6
7 71372006 | MBB 12.5.1.7
8 7/26/2006 | MBB, FB, MSO and BB | 14.01.3 and 15.01.5 (and BT Rule 14.4.3.1.A)
9 11/2/2006 | MBB 14.01.3 and 15.01.5 (and BT Rule 14.4.3.1.A.5) ‘
10 5/1/2007 | MBB - Senderoff 13.4.1.1-(a) ‘
11 5/14/2007 | MBB 13.10.2
12 5/16/2007 | MBB 13.2.2
13 10/10/2007 | MTR, BB, MBB & WR 14.01.3 and 15.01.5 (and BT Rule 14.4.3.1.A)
14 10/22/2007 | MBB - Sendereff & Meyer | 13.1.3.1.2
15 10/26/2007 | MBB - Meyer & Sampson | 13.12.1.3
16 10/26/2007 | MBB - Senderoff 13.1.7.24
Totals
MBB 16
Meyer 2
Sampsen 2
Senderoff [ 3

1/2140990.1




o

fndiana University
Athletic Department

o

Michael
McRobbie

President

Terti Smithson
Chief of Staff.

All Support Staff

{

1

Mary Ann
Rohleder Janet K_Ittell
Director of Associate
rector 0 Athletic Director
Administrative
Services
Sport

Human Resources

Administration

—

._|Event Management

Strength &
Conditioning

Sports
Medicine

Liaison to Foothali,Men’'s
Basketball, Women's

Basketball

Edwin Marshall Bruce Jaffe Rfck Greenspa_n
YICS ’_Dres'fdent for Faculty Athistics Director of Athletics -
Diversity, Equity and Representative
Multi-cultural Affairs P
T
1
r,___j\__w,_____"
| 1 l ] { ] [
I
M. Grace Calhoun|| | Jack Garrett | Chris Reynolds Kevin Clark Scott Dolson Tim Fitzpatrick .
Associate A.D. ! Associate A.D. Sr. Assoc. A.D. Associate A.D. Assoc. A.D. Sr. Assoc. A.D.
f
] 1
Senior Woman : -
Administator | Marketing
] - Facilities Equipment Business and Varsity Club And
‘ i Management |- r— Operations - Finance Promotions
Compliance _J
. Ticket
|| Computer Services Operations
Academic Golf Course | | Contracts
Services
Concessions And Publications and
§gort ) —| Food Services Spedial Prejects
Student Services Baseball —| Administration
Wrestling
Video
L Travel Productions
Media

Relations




V'l SRELITYSEERTHCART W gt AT TS RGN RO AN {15 O R [ Wl | k1 3%

o

Page 1 2007 _: 08 Squad List Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:04:20
" Form 07-5¢ ' s
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Institution: Indiana University - City: Bloomington State: Indiana
Status of Student Financial Aid Exempt] Countable Change in Status Eligible
Players to Compets
Recruited Overall
Seasong Amount Rev. - _
Term Firs Amount of
Enrolled of Othex Total enue
Any | Your thletics |Countable |Countable EqQuiv. ada'l Dist.
Residency Institution Grant aid aig Awaxd Reason Date Sports Only .
0001888198 F 2004 3[nf FY | 15,776 0| 15,776 15,775] 1]1.00 | /7 1.00]y
0002227681 W [F 2006 [i[y[ Fy | 15,776 of 15,776] ] 15.775] 1]1.00] | /7 | [ 1.co]¥
0002346175 b| [F 2007 |ojv[ Fy | 30,255 o[ 3c,255f | 30,255]1]1.00] | /7 [ [ 1-00]¥
CAA ELIGIBILITY CENTER CONFIRMED QUALIFIER STATUS 8/30/2007
0002341340 [[s 2005 2007 [ [2]¢v] Fy | 30,255 30,255[ 1]1.00] | /7 | [ 1.00]¥
NEEDS
78 HRS PASSED W/ 2.00 BY JAN. 200 '
0002137179 of 0] of | 15.775] 0[.000] | /o | | o.00]Y
0002331735 [F 2007 ] - }o]¥] FY [ 15,776 o] 15,776f [ 15,775[1[1.00] ] /o | [ 1.00]v
SR 0 0 02293 685 [F 2007] [o[¥] Fy | 30,255 o] 30,255] [ 30,255/ 1[1.00] | /7 | [ 1.00]¥
PENDING INITIAL ELIGIBILITY WAIVER WITH NCAA ELIGIBILITY CENTER AS OF ‘
9/25/2007 SO ELIGIBLE TO PARTICIPATE IN ARA UNTIL DECISION BUT NOT
ELIGIBLE FOR COMPETITION UNTIL WAIVER DECISION AND CERTIFIED ON CEL;
ATHLETIC AID PENDING WAIVER APPROVAL; NCAA APPROVED INITIAL
ELIGIIBILITY WAIVER 10/12/2007 WITH WRITTEN LETTER OF APPROVAL TO
FOLLOW; WILL ADD TQ CEL WHEN LETTER & NCAA ELIGIBILITY UPDATE OCCURS;
ADDING TO BK CEL WEEK OF 10/22/2007
_ 0002341609 [ 2007] JoJv] FY | 30,255 o[ 30,255] [ 30,255]1]1.00] ] /7 | [ 100f¥
0001846004 15,775 1f.500] | /7 [ { o.s50]v
Ota. ] [ Totals | Total
176,235.00  176,235.00 8| 7.50 7.50
Total
0.00
Form completed : Phone: Date:
Signature . Title




Page 2 2007 - 08 Squad List : Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:04:28

Form 07-5¢
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball

Institution: Indiana University City: Bloomington State: Indiana
j Status of Student Financial Rid Exempt| Countable Change 1in Status Eligible
Players to Compete
Recruited Ovezrall
Seasons Amount Rev.
Term Firs Amonnt of
Enrolled Perxd. of other Total . enue
Any | Your of [|athletics |Countable [Countable Equiv. add*1 pist.
Name /1D Number Residency Iastitutlon Award| Grant Atd Ald Award Reason Date Sporte Only
: A
ONLY VERIFICATION SENT NOT ON ATHLETIC AID IN FALL AND NO COMPETITION
N + |IN FALL; ELIGIBLE AFTER FALL 2007 & ADDING TO CEL, ADD. 2 0N
/20/2007 '
P 0002221908 o] 30,2s5) [ 30,255[1[1.00] [ ° ‘! | [ 1.00]Y
- 0001613069 15,775 0|.ooo E|Exhausted Eligibility 08/27/2007 | || 0.00[
X ) .
0001922529 15,775 1]1.00] | /o | | 1.00]¥
. W
S 0002341343 30,255 1]1.00] | /o [ [ 1.00]Y
0001984821« [F 2004 | [3]¥] Fy | 30,255 [ 30,255/ 1}1.00] | /ot | | 1.00]¥
Se— 70 B O 00| D[ | 3035 o] s [ A N RS
)
RN &
& M ¢ S, W = i 3
- Cam e . e,
Total s Total Totals ToEal |
146,293.00 136,796.00 5 5.00 5.00
Total
0.00

Fhone: . Date:

Form complete . .
Signature Title~



Page 3 2007 - 08 Squad List Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:04:30
Form 07-5c¢ ‘ '
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than ¥Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Total Total | [Tetals | ToEal
Grand Totals: 322,528.00 313,031.00 13| 12.50 12.50
T(;“B’(') NCAA Limit: 13.00 First Scheduled Competition Date: / /
' TU Limit: 13.00 Exhibition Competition bate: / /
Contemporaneous Legislated Maximum CP Team is CP Carried Qver from PREVIOUS Maximum Team Limit for CP Applicable to 2007 - 08

Penalties (CP)

Team Limit for Sport

Subject to in

Academic Year (if any) Applicable

This Academic Year

Carried@ Over to 2008 - 09

1

13.00 2007 - 08 to Current Academic Year (if any)
S ewma . - K]
Form completed by: - . Phone: Date:
- Signature Title
Form approved by: . Phone: Date:
] o Signature Title
Head Coach: - : : Phone: Date:
i Signature
Director of athletics: A"' M Phone: Date:
Signature

a



Page 1 : 2006 - 07 Squad List Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:04:40
Form 06-5¢ ’
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Institution: Indiana University City: Bloomington State: Indiana
Status of Student Financial Aid Exempt| Countable Change in Status Eligible
Playexs to Campete
Recruited Overail
Seasons Use Amount Rev.
‘ferm Fixs Amount of
Enrolled of Otherx Total - enue
Any | Your IAthletics |Countable |Countable Equiv. Addrl Dist.
Name/ID Number Residency Institution Grant Aia aid Award Reason Date Sports | Only
0001888198 F 2004 2(nj Fv 0 0 0 15,079 0] . 000 I 0.00[Y
0002077688 F 2005 Jafy[ Fy | 28,001 o[ 28,091] [ 28,001]1f[1.00] | /o | [ 1.00]v
SR 0002227651 Lo 079] 11,00} | A N T
0002115042 | : /7 | [ 1.00]¥

0002227469

| [r 2006] Jov] | AN I MR K

e ——
0001846004 [ [F 2004 | [2]v] : , [ 77 [ ro0]¢

0002093208 F 2005 [o]¥] ry | 28,091 o] 28,091} | 28,091} 1ji.00] | /o [ ] 1-00]¥

NO COMPETITION 2005-06; MAY TRANSFER 2007-08 ?

) 0002221908 2003 [F_2006 2[¥[ Fy | 28,091 o[ 28,091 [ 28,091]2[1.00( | . . [ [ 1.00]v

0001633356 | / [ | IE
Total ota, [ ToEals | ToL&l
170,613.00 170,613. 00 7| 7.00 - 7.00
Total
0.00
N o ¥
Form complete : : Phone: Date:

Signature Tiglae R




O 0

Report Generated: 20 March 2008

Page 2 ' - " 2006 - 07 Squad List 13:04:45
T Form 06-5c
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Institution; Indiana University City: Bloomington State: Indiana
Status of Student Financial Aid Extempt[ Countable Change in Status Eligible
Players - to Compate
Recruited . Overall
Seasond Used | Amocunt - ] Rev
Term Fixst  Years | Amcunt of Total *
Enrclled Recv Pexd. of other Total Tuitiom enue
Any | Your Fin of |athletics (Countable |Countable . Fees Equiv. adarl Digt.
Name/ID Number Residency Institution Ald L +[|pward| Grant aid aid Books ‘L Award Reason Date Sports || Only
: 0001613069 Ws]r« FY | 11,529 o] 11,529 [ 15,079]1].765] | // 0.76] ¥
0001922529 F 2004 iinj FY | 0] o] of T 15,079 o] .000] | r7 | I 0.00Y
h 0001984821 [2[x[ 7y | 28,091 o] 28,091] | 28,091 1]1.00 70 [ 1-00]Y
) N 2004 |[F 2006 : 28,091} [ 28,091 1]1.00] T / | 1.00]v
[ 26,921]1]1.00] | /o | [ 1.00f¥
» : #
& o (o
: ¥
Totak Total [ _Totmls | [_Total |
94,632.00 94,632.00 4 ‘3.76 3.76
Total
0.00
Form completer Phone: Date:

Signature Title.




Page 3

2006 - 07 Squad List

Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:04:46
. Form 06-5c .. :
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Total Total Totale Total
Grand Totals: 265,245.00 265,245.00 11| 10.76 1¢.76
"’0“3::) NCAA Limit: 13.00 First Scheduled Competition Date: /
i IU Linit: 13.00 - Exhibition Competition Date: / /
Contemporaneous Legislated Maximum CP Team is CP Carried Over from PREVIOUS Maximum Team Limit for CP Applicable to 2006 - 07
Penalties {(CP) Team Limft for Sport Subject to in Academie Year (if any) Applicable This Academic Year

Carried Over to 2007 - 08

12.00 2006 - 07 to Current Academic Year (if any)
A
" Form completed by: pPhone: Date:
Signature Title
’;_ T e e
Form approved by: ~ Phone: Date:
w E‘J}gnature Title
Head Coach: = phone: Date:
Signature
Director of Athletics: Phone: Date:

Signature




Page 1 2005 - 06 Sgquad List Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:04:56
Form 05-5¢
Division I Head~Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Institution: Indiana University City: Bloomington State: Indiana )
Status of Student Finane¢ial Aid Exempt] Countable Change in Status Eligible
' Players to Compete
Recruited Overall
Seagons Us Amount Rev.
Term FiXrs ears Amount of
Enrolled Recv Perd. of Other Total enue
Any | Your Fin of thletics |Countable [Countable Equiv. addrl Dist.
Name/ID Number Regidency Institution aid - Award| Grant Aig Aid Award Reason Date Sports Only
0001888198 F 2004 M ER IE 0 0 0 14,489] o] .co0} | / 000 Y
0002077688 F 200 6,885 0} 26,885] | 26,885/ 1[1.00] | VN | ] 1.00]¥
0002115042 2002 [F 2005 [y rY | 25,885 o| 26.885 26,885] 111.00] ] /Y [ [ 1.00]v
0002120871 2004 [F 2005 1fn| 1s 0 0 0 14,489} 0].000 /7 | 0.00] ¥
0002130881 F 2005 olvf rv | 26,885 - 0] 26,885 26,885[ 1[1.00 /0] [ 1.00]Y
A oo 002 1 7 e K3
lotal Total als Total
80,655.00 80,655.00 3 3.00 3.00
Total
0.00
Form complete : ; Phone: Date:
Signature Title™




Page 2 2005 - 06 Squad List Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:04:59 '
Form 05-5c¢ .
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Institution: Indiana University. City: Bloomington State: Indiana
Status of Student Financial Aid IIExe:nptH Countable Change iIn Status EXigible
Players to Compete
Recruited Overall
Seasons Usae Ancount Rev.
Term Firs cars Amcunt of Total
Enrolled Reacv of Other Total .Tuition enue
Any | Your Fin lathletics |Countable [Countable Fees Equiv. - Add’l bist.
Name/ID Number Residency Institution aid Grant d aid Books Award Reagon Date Sports only
i 26,885 0| 26,885 26,885] 1]1i.00| | /o 1.00]v
Goo13e375L, |l ¥y [ 13,397 o] 13.332] [ 13,392[1[1.00] | 77 ] [ 1.00x
0002008099, fIF 2 26, 885] 0] 26,885] [ 26,885 1[1.00] ] /o ] [ 1.00]¥
'1‘2',"386 ' - 25,771] 0{.000 0 |other 01/09/2006 | [ o.00[n
F 2004 ify[ ry [ 14,489 0 .14,489] | 14,48gk]1.00] | /o I [ 1.00]¥
~[F 2005]- Jo[¥] Fy | 26,885] . . o] 26,885] | | /7 [ [ 1.00]Yy
[F 2002 1.0 3[¥[ Fy [ 25,771] of 25.771] ] ] /I | [ 1.00]v
10,539 I s | Jeasfy
000} | /7 [ | o.o0fY
14,489] | 14,489 1[1.00] ] /o | | 1.00fY
- 0001284821 § F 2004 1|Y] Fy 0| 26,88':'d| E 26.885[ 1|1.00 | /o || u 1 OOHY
—a)1660246—|g [F 2002 [1.0[2[¥] FY | o] 25,771] [ 25.771] 1]1.00] | 77 ] [ T-oo]¥
N
TOEAL — Total | [ Totals | [ Total |
225,277.00 212,391.00] 10| 9.75 9.75
Total
. 0.00
Form complet: Phone: Date:
Sighature Titlae~




Page 3 2005 - 06 Squad List Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:05:02
Form 05-5¢
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
- - Total Total otals [ Total]
Grand Totals: 305,932.00 293,046.00 13| 12.75 12.75
TO""'SJ('J NCAA Limit: 13.00 First Scheduled Competition Date: 11/04/2005
. IV Limit: 13.00 Exhibition Competition Date: / /
Contemporaneous ..i Legislated Maximum CP Team is CP Carried Over from PREVIOUS Maximum Team Limit for CP Applicable to 2005 - 06
Penalties (CP) Team Limit for Spoxrt - Subject to in Academic Year (if any) Applicable This Academic Year Carried Over to 2006 - 07
i 13_00--{ T 2005 - 06 to Current Academic Year (if any) : )
g W
Form completed by: - . S Phone: Date:
o Signature T B Title '
; i =8
Foxm approved by: _ - _ _ Phone: Date:
Signature " ’ Cor " ., Title A
Head Coagch: Ce 3 Phone: Date:
Signature
Director of Athletics: = Phone: Date:
- ' Signature
-
3
i ‘



Page 1 2004 - 05 Sqguad List Report Gemerated: 20 March 2008 13:05:12
: . Form 04-5c '
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Institution: Indiana University City: Bloomington State: Indiana
Status of Student Financial Ald Exempt| Countable Change in Status Eligible
Players to Campete
Reczuited Overall
Seasons US ) Amount Rev.
Texm FIFst  Yeare | Amount of
Enrolled .Recv of Other “Total enue

Pexd.
of

add'l Dist.

Any | Your Fin thletics [Countable Countable Equiv.
Name/ID Number Residen: Institution ada | | |Award| Grant Aid aid Award Reason Date Sports Only
- 0001888198 ¥ 2004 [o[n 0 0 0 13,900[ o .ooo] ] / 0.00f Y
R ooiczo70s gl |F 2002 o[ ] FY 0 5 of 112, 860] 0].000] | 77 T o.00]w
A e R ey Rt . :
0001883515 [F 2003 ] o]y FY | 25,713 o] 25,713] | 25,713 1]1.00] | /] [ f 1.00]¥
0001961821 F 2004 0 | - | /4 [rB ] Ty
%
0001728110 @ |F 2003 | Jo[nf Fy of [ 13,900]0[.000] | / [ T o.00]n
0001565392 § F 2001 |0.0]3[N] FY 0] [ 24,653 o[ 600 | 77 IS
0002003409 G 2001 [F 2004 3]y FY | 25,713 0] 25,713 | 25,713} 1j1.00 /7 1 | 1.00fn
0001363791 8 b JF 2001 2. 021y FY | 12,866] ;i " 2,860] 1]1.00] ] /7 [ [ 2.00]¥
0000328818 ¥ e 200l Lloiloy | 0] 220] 0] 000 ] /7 i [ 0.00fw
0002008099 ol 25 733l ] 25,713 1]1.00] | /7 [ § 1.00fw
otar | [ Totals - Tota,
89,999.00 89,999.00 4| 4.00 4.00
Total
0.00
Form complete z . . : Phone: Date:
- Signature Ti tle™



o

Report Gemerated: 20 March 2008

Page 2 2004 - 05 Sqguad List 13:05:16
Form 04-5c¢
Pivision I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Institution: Indiana University City: Bloomington State: Indiana . :
Status of Student Financial Aixd JI Exempt] Countable Change In Status Eligible
) Players to Compete
Recruited Overall
Seasons Use Amocunt Rev.
Term Pizrs ears Amocunt of Total
Enrolled Recv l l Perd. of other Total Tuition enue
. Any | Your Pin of |athletics |Countable |[Countable Feea Equiv. Ad4‘1 bist.
Name/ID Number Residency Institution Add Award| Grant aid Aid ) Books Award Reazon Date Sports || Omly
0000166728 F 2000 [3.0f4ivl 18 2,867 0 oy 24,653J_0| 000 | /7 0.00] N
.0001686333 F 2003 o[nf FY 0 13,900 0] .000] | /o [ [ o.o0fn
0001575900 F 2001 [2.0[ 3]y Fy | 24,653]- . 0] 24,653] | 24,653] 1|1'-.oo | / I [ 1.00]v
000184600* [F 2004 Jofv{ Frr [ 13,900] 0] 13,900 [ 13,900[1f1.00} | /o I [ T.ocfv
0001851431 _ 1 2003 [F 2004 0 0 0 0 o;,.o%;o | /] | o.o00[w
001523594 ¥ 2000 [3.0{3[v] Fv | 24,653 0] 24,653] [ 24,653[1[1.00] | r 7] [ 1.00fY
0002015666 25,713 0| 25,713 25,713 1|1.00 A | ] t.o0fn
3 .
0001633356 F 2002 [1.0] 2[v ] Fy | 24,653] 0] 24,653] [ 24,653]1f1.00] | /7 [ ] t.o0]¥
0001613065 [§ FY 0 ol of '|| 13,900] of .o00 ¥ ] /o [ ] o.o00f¥
0001922529 r 200l To|n] FY of T 23.900[o].000] | /7 I ] o.00]¥
0000399851 F 2001 [0.O[3[R] | o] o] 8] ] 12,860 0]-000] | 77 ] T o.00]v
ToEAL Total [ Totals | Total
116,439.00 113,572.00 5] 5.00 5.00
Total
0.00
Form corrrplete' : : Phone: Date: -
Signature Title— -




Page 3 . 2004 - 05 Squad List - Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:05:18
Form 04-5c
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Institution: Indiana University City: Bloomington gtate: Indiana
Status of Student Financial Aid J\ Exempt] Countable Change in Status Eligible
Playvers to Corpete
Recruited Overall

Seasonsd Used f Amount : Rev

Term Firs eaxrs Amount of *

Enrolled Recv Pexd. of other Total enue

Any | Your Fin of Iathletics |Countable |Countable Equiv. add'l Dist.,

. Residency Institution Ald |||Awazd| Grant Aig Aid Avard Reason Date Sports | Omly
0002004736 I [F2004] |o[y| Fy | 13,900 o] 13,900] 13,900/ 1]1.00] | 7 7 1.00] ¥

[F 20;)4|.4|0|Y|| FY | 25;713f o] 25, 713] | 25.:,;713|H1.00 T /o [ T 1.00]v

P

0001984821j[

oo olily | ry | 22,65@ -' 7 0] 24,653] | 24,653 1[1.00] | /o [ f 1.00]¥

P01660246

0001650627 v| FY | 24,653 0] 24,653] T 24,653]11.00] | /o f | 1.00]¥

:
26

B
—Total TOtEL [ Totals _'!651—
88,919.00 . 88,919.00 4 4.00 4.00
Total
0.00
Form complete : N : Phone: Date:

Signature Titlé--- . . '



page 4 2004 - 05 Squad List ' Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:05:18
Foim 04-5¢ '
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Total Tctal [Totals | Total
Grand Totals: 295,357.00 292,450.00 13| 13.00 13.00
ﬁ;‘gt NCAA Limit: 13.00 First Scheduled Competition Date: 11/25/2002
. IV Limit: 13.00 Exhibition Competition Date: 11/08/2002
Contemporanecys LegislatediMaximum CP Team is CP Carried Over from PREVIOUS Maximam Team Limit for CP Applicable to 2004 - 05
Penalties (CP) Team Limit for Sport Subject to in Academic Year (if any) Applicable This Academic¢ Year Carried Over to 2005 - 06
, 13.00 2004 - 05 to Curreant Academic Year ) (if any)
Form completed by: & . L Phone: : Date:
. B Signature Title
Form approved by: - : :i . Phone: Date:
Signature - Title
Head Coach: _ Phone: Date:
Signature
Director of Athletics: . ' Phone: Date:

Signature



Report Generated: 20 March 2008

Page 1 2003 - 04 Sguad List 13:05:31
Form 03-5c¢ ' o
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Institution: Indiana University City: Blocmington State: Indiapa
j Status of Student Financial Aid Exempt] Countable Change in Status Eligible
. Players to Compete
. Recruited Overall
Seagong U8 Amount Rev.
Texm Fixrd ears Amount of
Enrolled Recv Perd. of Other Total enue
Any | Your Fin of |athletics |Countable |Countable Equiv. Adarl Dist.
Name/ID Number Residency Institution Add (Award| Grant Aid Aid Award Reason Date Sports || Only
0000082448 F 2001] Joln 0 0 0 12,601] o] .000 ccut or Dismissed 10/27/2003 0.00w
0001620708 0 0 0 12,601] 0] . 000 [c|cut or Dismissed 10/27/2003] ] o0.o00fn~
0001883515 F 2003 | ofofy] Fy | 24,635 of 24,635] [ 24.63s[-1]1.00] | A [ 1.00fv
0001867099 F 2003 |o.ofaly| FY | 24,635] o| 24,8635 4,635] 1{1.00] | /o | ] 1.00fw
0001565392 F 2001 [0.0] 2|N| FY . 0f 23,6358 [ 23,635[1[1.00] | /s I [ 1.00fv
0001363791 F 2001 [2.0[1fy] FY | 12,60if o] 12,601] ] 12,601} 1[1.00} | i ] | 1.00|Y
0000147912 F 1999 [4.0 FY | 23,635 o] 23,635 23,635[1f1.00] | / [ ~f 1.00]v
0000166728 F 2000 [3. 03[y [ F¥ [ 23,635 of 23,635]- J 23,635]1[1.00] ] /o I [ 1.00]v
0000169646 F 1 Y| 23,635[ 0f.000] | A [ o.00]w
0001668353 F 2 oln|f ry ¢ 0 0 24,635 0].000 JC[Cut or Dismissed 10/27/2003| [ o.o00fn
TStal Total | Totals [ Total |
144,594 .00 132,776.00 6 6.00 6.00
Total
0.00
PR
Form complete 4 ; Phone: Date:
Signature Title~" -



Page 2 2003 - 04 Sguad List Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:05:34
. Form .03-5¢ .
Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
Institution: Indiana Universgity City: Bloomington » State: Indiana
Status of Student Financial Aid Exempt| Countable Change in Status Ellgible
Players to Compete
Recruited Overall
Seasond Used | Amount Rav.
Texrm FiX# ears Amount of
Enrolled Racv Paxd. of Other Total enue
Any | Your Fin of |athletice |Countable |Countable Equiv. Add'l Dist.
Name/ID Numbex Residency Institution Ald J, Awaxd| Graat aid aid Award Reason pate Sports Only
# 0001575900 ~[F 2001 [2.0f2v | FY | 23,635 0| 23,635 23,635) 1{1.00} 1 /o 1.00[Y
001523594 F 200013.02]¥] FY | 21,135 2,500] 23,635 23,635 1]1.00 | AR [ o.89v
. I . ‘v"-:.'k,*.:-: 2
0001732950 £ 20037 Lol c|cut or Dismissed 10/27/2003 | [ o.cofn
0000204921 F 2000 1n] Fy | of of of | 12,601] of.000f | /1] [ o.o00]Y
0001633356 F 0ol 23 6358 [ 23,635[1)1.00] | /] [ o.83]y
0001613069 |F 2003 onlF of [ 13,603]0f.000[ T /] [ o.oo]¥
0000399851 F 2001 [0.0| 2|8 FY | 12.601] o] 12,601f 1} 12,601 3f1.00] | /] 1 [ 1.00]Y
1660246 F 2002 [1.0] o]y FY | 23,635] of 23,6350 | 23,635/ 11,00 | /] [ 1.00fy
0001740210 Nl Fy K 0 24,635} 0| .000 JC|Cut or Dismissed 10/27/2003 | o.00]N
0001650627 F 2002 [1.0]1]v] FY | 23,635] of 23,635f0 | 23,635] 1[1.00f ] /o ] | 1.00fv
- =TT ota. Btals St a,
124,276.00 130,776.00 §f .00 5,72
Total
6,500,00
Form complete . Phone: Date:
Signature Title



Page 3 2003 - 04 Squad List Report Generated: 20 March 2008 13:05:36
' ) " Form 03-5¢ .
| Division I Head-Count Sports Other Than Football Sport: Men's Basketball
)
‘ Total Total | Totals . Total
‘ Grand Totals: 268,870.00 263,552.00 12| 12.00 11.72
6 SOT(;“:;J(.) NCAA Limit: 13.00 First Scheduled Competition Date: / /
- IU Limit: 13.00 Exhibition Competition Date: / /
Contemporanecus Legislated Maximum CP Team is CP Carried Over from PREVIQUS Maximum Team Limit for CP Applicable to0 2003 - 04
Penalties (CP) Team Limit for Sport Subject to in Academic Year (if any) Applicable This Academic Year Carried Over toc 2004 - 05
13.00 2003 - 04 to Current Academic Year (if any)
Form completed by: . Phone: Date:
Signature Title
Form approved by: Phone: Date:
Signature : Title
Head Coach: Phone: Date:
. Signature
Director of Athletics: & Phone: . _Date:
Signature
5
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May 31, 2006

Mr. Thomas E, Yeager

Acting Chair of the NCAA Division |
Committee on Infractions

Colonial Athletic Association

Dear Mr. Yeager,

Our administrative and compliance staffs met with the men’s basketball staff yesterday (the
first opportunity after Coach Sampson’s return on Memorial Day from a 10 day trip to
Kuwait) to discuss the additional penalties and our procedures for implementing those
restrictions, as well as monitoring full compliance with all penalties assessed during this
process,

We would like to get the committee’s input on a number of questions or concerns that have
come up during our discussions of the recruiting restrictions placed on our coaching staff as a
result of the violations that occurred at Oklahoma. [ have tried to number the questions, but
there are several that are multi-faceted. As of my last count, I think there were 21 specific
questions in the following 12 paragraphs (the highlighted questions in paragraph 1 are the
only extremely time-sensitive questions as they involve a previous commitment regarding a
speaking engagement scheduled for this weekend):

e would like clarification regarding the prohibition on outside speaking

‘What about at our IU booster/donor events? We typically schedule the majority of
these in the summer - around golf outings — they are aimed at the boosters/donors, but
what happens if they bring along their children or grandchildren?

2. Coach Sampson has a long-standing speaking engagement at the 20 year reunion of
the movie “Hoosiers” which is taking place in Knightstown, Indiana, where much of
the movie was filmed. Is it okay for him to fulfill his obligation even though this event
is open to the public and there may be prospect-aged individuals in the audience?



10,

11

12.

What about his local radio show during the season ~ it is broadcast from a local
restaurant and he does take questions from the audience (actually, thie host, Don
Fisher, acts as the moderator and he is the one who takes the calls/questions)?

What happens if prospect-aged individuals are eating at the restaurant during the
show?

What happens 1f there are prospect-aged females in attendance at a speaking
engagement?

It doesn’t appear that the COI limited the number of IU coaches who could be on the
road at any one time except for the fact that Coach Sampson can not be out at all. Is
this an accurate statement?

Exactly who can Coach Sampson call? He is restricted from “making any phone calls
that relate in any way to recruiting or being present when members of his staff make
such calls.” The restriction certainly applies to prospects, their coaches, and their
parents. We can’t think of anyone whom he should be permitted to call that has a
relationship to high school, JC, or AAU basketball. Is our interpretation tco
restrictive? Does it violate the spirit of the penalties if the assistants make a recruiting
call and tell the person to call Sampson at some specific time that Sampson has
arranged?

Can Coach Sampson text message a récruit and type: “Call me at 1-
800-IUBBALL” (or whatever his phone number is)?

. If an AAU or HS coach calls one of the IU assistant coaches and then adds a prospect

in on a 3-way call, can the assistant.coach add in Coach Sampson at that time (since
the original call was initiated by the AAU or HS coach and not by anyone at IU)?

Once a prospect signs an NLI with IU, is it possible for Coach Sampson to call him
and to have off-campus contact with him (can he make a home visit to a current NLI

signee)?

What happens if Coach Sampson receives a call from a prospect (or coach or parent),
but loses the connection (common problem with cell phones)? Can he call back or
must he wait for the prospect (or coach or parent) to call him back?

Can Coach Sampson call high school and/or AAU coaches about basketball related
issues, such as talking about our offense, defense, etc.?

If the institution determines we will not be appealing or contesting any findings made
by the committee, do we need to notify you of that decision or is notification only
necessary if we did decide to appeal or contest any findings? :




Thuni you for allowing us to seek clarification of these issues as we strive to follow the letter
and 1nient of both the assessed and self-imposed penalties. I look forward to hearing from

.' you.

Sincerely,

Jennifer Brinegar

Assistant Athletics Director — Compliance
Indiana University

812-855-0451 (O)

812-327-0071 (C)

812-856-5155 (F)

jhooker@indiana.edu




